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Letter to Shareholders

The outbreak of the COVID-19 pandemic more than two years ago has had a substantial
impact on the existing model of globalization. This has changed the ecology of the
industry, human consumption behavior, and even the overall economic structure. Thus,
we have witnessed reorganizations of the industrial chain, developments of the digital
economy, and the emergence of new economic models. While the pandemic is indeed a

crisis, there are also many transformational opportunities.

Building on Hon Hai’s foundation of expertise in the ICT industry, the Company adopts
a '"right customer, right product, and right time" as our ethos to embark on new
technological development alongside our global-leading customers; and create an
increasingly comprehensive smart lifestyle for humankind. In the spirit of "perpetual
betterment”, we have continuously improved Group’s core strengths. Facing ever-
changing technologies and business environments, Hon Hai’s global reach, strong vertical
integration and execution enables us to demonstrate the overall competitiveness of the
Group in the face challenging global political and business scenarios; ensuring our pole
position amongst key clients and products, allowing the Company to maintain its position

as a global leader.

In 2021, even though the impact of the pandemic has caused very drastic changes and
uncertainties in the workflow and supply chain, we have successfully overcome these
challenges and delivered above expectations. Consolidated revenue for the year reached
NT$5.994 trillion, an increase of 636.2 billion over the previous year, an increase of
approximately 12%, and a new record high; the net profit attributable to the parent
company for the current period was NT$139.3 billion, and the earnings per share was a
record TWD 10.05, an increase of roughly 37% over the previous year, earnings per share

were also the highest since 2008.

Financial and Profitability Analysis

Unit: Million NTD 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Revenue 4,706,736 5,293,803  5,342.811 5,358,023 5,994,174
Gross Profit 303,007 332,030 315,868 302,919 362,127
Operating Incom 112,570 136,147 114,897 110,827 148,959
Net Profit 138,734 129,065 115,309 101,795 139,320
EPS (Unit: NTD) 8.01 8.03 8.32 7.34 10.05
Gross Profit Margin 6.44% 6.27% 5.91% 5.65% 6.04%
Operating Profit Margin 2.39% 2.57% 2.15% 2.07% 2.49%
Net Profit Margin 2.95% 2.44% 2.16% 1.90% 2.32%
Debt Ratio 65.61% 60.59% 57.85% 59.88% 59.75%




Continued Strategies for the Information and Communication Industry

The Company's existing core businesses includes four major product categories: Smart
Consumer Electronic Products, Cloud and Networking Products, Computing Products, and
Components and Others Products. Benefiting from strong demand for consumer electronics and
increased component sales in 2021, we achieved more than double-digit growth and improved

gross profit margins.

Affected by a mix of geopolitics, the pandemic, and inflation this year, the market will be more
volatile and more challenging. Although the tight supply of some components has eased, it has
not been completely resolved, and will be until the second half of the year for better clarity.

Among them, Smart Consumer Electronic Products and Computing Products have experienced
considerable growth in the past two years, and their performance will stabilize this year. We
will continue to focus on high-end and niche products and will continue to leverage our leading
R&D technology, extensive production capacity and mass production capacity to maintain our
lead.

The pandemic has driven enterprises and individuals to adopt cloud services, coupled with the
rise of Al, blockchain, metaverse, and even electric vehicles, all of which require large and
stable high-speed computing and data centers. In 2021, Hon Hai's server revenue has reached
the trillion mark, and simultaneously is the world's largest server manufacturer. This year, we
expect continued growth in demand, and Hon Hai will also take advantage of its global presence,
extensive scale, and joint development of forward-looking technologies with customers to
expand its leadership in cloud network products; especially CSP products, which will be our
leading ICT offering and an important growth driver.

At the same time, through the established customer base and product composition, we have
gradually increased our portfolio of components to improve the overall profitability. This year,
we expect the component and other product categories to see the most significant revenue
growth of the four categories.

Overall, we will continue to strengthen our market position and improve profitability by
optimizing management, adjusting product mix, and focusing on technology research and
development, with aims to maximize EPS. The stable cash flow generated by the ICT offerings
every year will serve as a strong backing for Hon Hai to develop new businesses and will also
sufficiently support the stable annual cash dividend distribution, which is also one of our
advantages.



Flourishing New Business

Since initiating "F1.0 optimization of the status-quo; F2.0 digital transformation; F3.0
transformation and upgrade" plans three years ago, we have continued to push forward. By
expanding the use of digital technology tools, Hon Hai's operations have not only been
unaffected by the pandemic in the past two years, but at the same time posted record high
revenues. Last year, the Chengdu factory, Zhengzhou factory, and Wuhan factory were also
selected as lighthouse factories, highlighting the continued results of F1.0/F2.0.

In terms of F3.0, the negative effects of the pandemic last year did not deter our pace of
transformation. We completed the development of new vehicles within a year, and released
three self-developed electric vehicles on the 2021 Hon Hai Tech Day (HHTD21): Model C
SUV, The Model E premium business sedan and the Model T electric bus; taking the
opportunity to showcase our determination as a global new vehicle manufacturer and
demonstrate our speed and efficiency capabilities. Among them, the electric bus has been
officially delivered in Taiwan this year, which has been praised and well-received by the market,
further cementing the Company’s vehicle manufacturing capabilities. Going forward, we will
continue to expand the customer base at home and abroad.

We also acknowledge the trend of de-globalization and regional manufacturing, we must
maintain an innovative operational mindset to create a win-win situation on the national, local
company, and the Hon Hai supply chain levels. Therefore, we utilized the cooperation model
of Build-Operate-Localize to localize the operational supply chain, which enables local
companies to participate in growth opportunities, allowing partners to share the results, and also
enable the global coverage of Hon Hai Electric Vehicles develop in a systemic manner.

In 2021, we have achieved success through various alliances. Through the acquisition of the
automobile production base of Lordstown Motors in Ohio, USA, we have obtained a
production-ready team and capacity to produce electric vehicles in North America. In the future,
we will also create products for key customers such as Fisker and Lordstown. In addition, we
have begun cooperation with Thailand PTT to establish and cultivate the electric vehicle
industry in Thailand, and will commence building a factory this year. We have also cooperated
with Indonesia and Saudi Arabia, and will also build EV and battery related supply chains in
these two countries in the future.

Hon Hai's electric vehicle development strategy has not only attracted the cooperation of new
car manufacturers, but has also gradually been favored by existing car brands. For example,
with Stellantis, the fourth largest car manufacturer in the world, we have established a joint
venture company in the smart cockpit market; and are jointly developing automotive chips to
meet the needs of future automobiles toward design modularization and functional
differentiation. Our goal is to invite customers to enter the global market together.

At the same time as we enhance of vehicle manufacturing business, Hon Hai also places
emphasis on key components of electric vehicles. Last year, we invested in an upstream battery
material factory, and also cooperated with international manufacturers on motor products,
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acquire key technologies, to jointly developed the international market. The goal is to provide
a complete service from platform; chassis design; three key components (Battery, motor and
electric control system products); component supply; software; EEA architecture; to vehicle
manufacturing, so as to enhance the value to customers.

The MIH alliance has already onboarded 2,300 partners from more than 60 countries around
the world, which further proves that the electric vehicle industry must work together as a team
to achieve win-win and common prosperity. In addition to assisting these partners in business
and technology, we have jointly established a new energy vehicle industry fund with CTBC
Financial Holding to invest in high-quality companies in the field of new energy vehicle related
technologies or manufacturing, enables Taiwan’s electronic technology, jointly with traditional
automobile industries to join the leading frontier for global new energy vehicles, fueling
Taiwan’s industrial growth and economic transformation.

Semiconductors is one of our new businesses focuses to support future ICT growth and electric
vehicle business. Last year, we invested in a FAB in Malaysia, acquired a six-inch FAB in
Taiwan, established a joint venture with Yageo to establish XSEMI, and cooperated with
Stellantis to develop and design automotive chips. We also plan to set up a new FAB locally
with our Indian partners. We believe that our diversified layout in the semiconductor business
can provide customers with high-quality and a stable supply one-stop shopping service, and
allow us to better deploy our value chain structure.

Research Development Status

In order to maintain the Company's lead in the ICT industry, Hon Hai invested more than 100
billion in research and development last year. Our R&D center a comprehensive R&D team
and a deep technical talent pool, which can cooperate with customers to invest in the

development of new products, new materials, new processes and new technologies.

The Hon Hai Research Institute established last year aims to emphasize key technologies in the
next three to seven years. The institute established the first "lon Trap Laboratory" in Taiwan
last year, investing in the development of ion traps to seize the opportunity for the development
of quantum computing technology.

With the mass adoption of 5G, the application of artificial intelligence, and the metaverse
driving the demand for high-speed transmission and efficient computing; servers will also enter
the era of a new generation of high-speed transmission interfaces. We have designed a series of
servers with X86 and ARM infrastructure equipped with a new generation of high-speed
transmission interfaces, and are expected to enter mass production in the second half of 2022,
driving a new wave of data center replacements. At the same time, we have developed a series
of'advanced energy-saving cooling technologies, some products have already been successfully
introduced to customers, and more advanced cooling technology products will be launched this
year.
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Our strategy in Metaverse focuses on providing platforms, complete solutions from wearable
devices, software, infrastructure, applications, and access. The Company will also combine
powerful external partners, and in the future, through cooperation with various metaverse
parties, deepen product capabilities and technical capabilities in software and on the cloud.

In the electric vehicle business in 2022, we will continue to design new cars and invest in the
development of key components and solutions. Among the key components, battery technology
is of the utmost important, key among which are high-safety lithium iron phosphate batteries,
solid-state batteries and upstream related materials. We will continue to speed up research and
development, and start planning a battery manufacturing base in Taiwan, so that the two
technologies of lithium iron phosphate battery and solid-state battery can be applied to domestic
electric buses, electric passenger cars, and electric scooters sooner.

In the research and development of electric vehicle software, our core approach is one of a
Software Defined Enterprise, and will launch open platforms, calculation software and other
software projects that meet demands of EV vehicles. The focus is on smart cockpit and ride
experience applications, intelligent in-vehicle operating systems, and safe autonomous driving
functions. Hon Hai officially announced a software R&D center last year, which will assemble
more than 1,500 software application talents within the Group, and is expect to recruit more
than 1,000 senior software R&D engineers within three years, as an important starting point for
"Hon Hai - Defined by Software" going forwards.

Over the past year, we have accelerated the progress of semiconductor research and
development, and started the process technology development of third-generation
semiconductor silicon carbide to supply the high-voltage key power-related components
required for the mass production of electric vehicles. In the development of 2.5D/3D advanced
packaging technology, such as substrate-less fan-out packaging and 5G millimeter-wave
antenna packaging technology have been launched successively to provide high-performance
computing, artificial intelligence, high-frequency communication and other customer needs.
For key components of assisted driving in vehicles, we have launched the world's smallest first-
generation product in the lidar chip, and are continually optimizing to achieve higher accuracy
and meet the needs of future autonomous driving sensing. In automotive ICs, we will work with
customers to develop automotive microprocessors, SoCs and small ICs with new electronic and
motor architectures for next-generation electric vehicles to assist the Group in the long-term
development of electric vehicle technology and businesses.

Effects of the External Competitive Environment, Regulatory Environment and Overall
Business Environment

As far as the external competitive environment is concerned, the technology and specifications
of consumer electronic products are changing with each passing day, which increasingly
toughens industrial competition. But overall, Hon Hai has accumulated nearly 50 years of
exquisite management strength for talents, funds, logistics, and technology, in-turn creating the
industry's largest entry barrier. We also continue to strengthen upstream and downstream



integration, improve technical abilities, and stabilize mass production and cost control; allowing
us to brave challenges of industrial competition.

The huge seasonal fluctuations in the ICT industry are also characteristics that make it very
difficult for many manufacturers to deal with. The recent addition of geopolitics and the impact
of the pandemic on supply chains has exacerbated this characteristic. Hon Hai will overcome
these challenges by leveraging its large scale, diverse customers and products, and strong
execution. The Company continues to foster intimate collaborative relationships with customers
and respond to the needs of customers and the market in real time. Because of the industrial
development trend of regionalized manufacturing, we will continue to deploy globally to
respond to this change.

In regards to the domestic and foreign regulatory environment, countries around the world are
promoting environmental protection regulations, and global brand-leader customers have also
formulated stringent supplier codes, which are strictly required by all suppliers. The company
will continue to cultivate research and development and mass production, in order to achieve
the goal of green carbon-reduction manufacturing. The Company continues to closely monitor
possible changes in the legal environment, and actively proposes countermeasures to reduce
operational risks.

As the overall business environment becomes more complex, including the pandemic, inflation,
international geopolitical risks, etc., and countries have begun to adopt tighter monetary policies
and raise interest rates, making future changes and volatility more difficult to predict. The
Company continues to pay close attention to changes in the overall environment and prudently
formulate the best business strategy.

Continuous Efforts for Social Responsibility

Hon Hai believes that responsible business operations must take into account both operating
results and corporate social responsibility. Therefore, we propose the concept of "Sustainable
Management = EPS + ESG". Last year, we formulated the Group's ESG vision and six major
strategies, and this year we will also set and further announce long-term ESG goals.

Hon Hai values ESG values in line with international standards. In addition to responding to
CA100+ and committing to achieve net zero carbon emissions by 2050, we have completed the
carbon inventory for participation in SBTi; furthermore, we will be announcing future carbon
reduction targets. At the same time, Hon Hai officially became a TCFD supporter, committing
to implement the TCFD disclosure framework. In order to respond more actively to the global
net zero emission movement, we participated in the "Alliance for Net Zero Emission" as a co-
sponsor. In the future, we will use Hon Hai's influence to promote ESG throughout the entire
value chain.



For the corporate governance facet, we also set up a nomination committee under the board of
directors to assist the board of directors to strengthen the management mechanism this year;
with aims to improve the corporate governance structure, and lay the foundation for the
sustainable development of the Company.

Evident from the sweeping impact of the pandemic globally and in Taiwan, with the
authorization and assistance of relevant units, Hon Hai and Yongling Foundation have allied
with other social stakeholders to introduce vaccines and provide them to Taiwan's medical and
epidemic prevention system, fulfilling social responsibilities.

External Honors and Affirmation

Facing the ever-changing global landscape, digital transformation has become a standard for
enterprise operation and management. Hon Hai utilized top manufacturing technologies
accumulated in the past, efficient supply chain management capabilities as the basis, and
combines various innovative technologies to create a clear development path for digital
transformation. In-turn, Hon Hai was awarded the "Digital Transformation Leader Award",
"Smart Manufacturing Leader Award" and "Digital Transformation Revolution Award" from
the Harvard Business Review.

Hon Hai continues to focus on the growth of its own business, and ranks 18th in revenue among
Forbes 2000 companies; simultaneously ranking 22nd in the world in Fortune Global 500. In
addition to business operations, we also pay attention to our employees and the investors. Last
year, we ranked 1st in Taiwan by Forbes as the best employer in the world and won the "Best
IR Website" award from the world's authoritative "Investor Relations Magazine" (IR Magazine).

Hon Hai's efforts and achievements in ESG have been highly recognized externally for three
consecutive years. In 2021, it won the Global Corporate Sustainability Award and the
Leadership Award, among others; and was selected as a constituent stock of the ESG relevant
index, showing that while in pursuit of EPS, Hon Hai is also deeply committed towards ESG
initiatives, sparing no effort to achieve sustainable development and core Environmental, Social,
and Governance facets.

Looking towards the future, Hon Hai will continue to maintain a "Sustainable Management =
EPS + ESG" philosophy. As global citizens, we strive to continuously improve business
performance, while promoting a friendly environmental and sound governance culture. We
have also expanded to share these achievements with shareholders, for three consecutive years,
the distribution rate of cash dividends has exceeded 50%. This year's cash dividend per share
is also the highest since our listing in 1991. We will continue to improve and bring stable returns
and increase value to our shareholders.

Chairman Liu, Young-Way



II. Company Introduction

A. Founding

Founding Date: February 20, 1974

Listing date: June 18, 1991

B. Formation History

In 1994

1.

4.

5.

In 1996

In 1997

l.

2.

Increased capital to NT$1,303,000,000.
Reinvested Vate Technology Co., Ltd.
Reinvested LUNG HWA Electronics.

Many new products like AN and AT were developed.

Increased capital to NT$2,279,000,000.

Reinvested Unimicron Technology Corporation.

Reinvested United Microelectronics Corporation.

Many new products like L/P MCA, SGC and RF were developed.

Huyue Factory carried out its third phase for expansion.

Increased capital to NT$3,580,000,000.
Reinvested Hongyang Venture Capital Investment Co., Ltd.

Reinvested Guifeng Co., Ltd.

Increased capital to NT$5,118,000,000.

Set up the heat transfer product business office and environmental-friendly
electro-plating technique development department.

Established the Material Testing Center.



In 1998

1. Increased capital to NT$7,346,000,000.

2. Established the High-Speed Electrical Test Lab, the EMI/RFI Lab and Heat
Transfer Lab.

3. Listed into The Information Technology 100 (IT 100) by the Business Week of
America for the first time.

In 1999

1. Increased capital to NT$11,000,000,000.

2. Capital was first raised from the international finance market via GDR issuance
with 10% premium for issuing, creating a new high in overseas capital raising
by domestic enterprises.

3. Selected as the Best Management Company in Taiwan by Asian Money.

In 2000

1. Increased capital to NT$14,529,000,000.

2. Issued US$345 million of overseas unsecured and transferable corporate bonds.

3. Invested Foxconn Optical Technology Inc. through its subsidiary — FOTI
Holdings Corporation.

In 2001

1. Increased capital to NT$17,687,800,000.

2. Evaluation of Taiwan Ratings as long-term issuer: grade AA- and its prospect:
stability.

3. Evaluation of Standard & Poor’s (S & P): grade BBB and its prospect: stability.

4. Became the first largest private manufacturing enterprise in Taiwan.

5. It is the earliest manufacturer of quantity production around the world for Intel
Pentium 4 CPU Stocket478.

6. Issued NTS$5 billion of domestic unsecured ordinary corporate bonds.



In 2002

1. Increased capital to NT$20,648,970,000.
2. According to survey of Taiwan Ratings, it was the first largest manufacturing
enterprise in Taiwan.
3. Won the first prize of the Best Corporate Strategy by Asiamoney.com.
4. Became the first largest exporter in Greater China.
In 2003
1. Increased capital to NT$25,191,744,000.
2. Issued US$450 million of overseas unsecured and transferable corporate bonds.
3. According to evaluation of IR Magazine, it was awarded the Best Investor
Relation in Taiwan.
4.  Acquired Motorola Chihuahua Factory in Mexico.
In 2004
1. Increased capital to NT$32,310,231,130.
2. Acquired Eimo Oyji of Finland.
3.  Merged Taiwan Ambit Microsystems (Stock) Company.
4. Became the first largest 3C OEM globally.
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In 2005

1. Increased capital to NT$40,383,230,780.

2. Invested Antai Power (Stock) Company through its subsidiary — Hongyang
Venture Capital Investment (Stock) Company.

3. Invested Chi Mei Communication Systems Inc. through its subsidiary —
Transworld Holdings Limited.

4. Issued NT$11,500,000,000 of domestic unsecured ordinary corporate bonds.

5. Its overseas subsidiary — Foxconn International Holdings Ltd. was listed in Hong
Kong.

6. Selected as the first largest enterprise in Taiwan firstly by CommonWealth.

7. Ranked among the Top 15 of the World’s Most Admired Companies in
Electronics by Fortune.

8. Became a member of Electronic Industry Code of Conduct (EICC), dedicated to
promoting corporate social and environmental responsibilities (hereinafter
referred to as SER).

In 2006

1. Increased capital to NT$51,681,387,530.

2. Merged Taiwan Premier Image Technology Corp.

3. Issued NT$18,000,000,000 of domestic unsecured and transferable corporate
bonds.

4. Selected as the Happiest Taiwan Enterprise according to the questionnaire
survey of 104 Job Bank.

5. Selected as the Most Desirable Company of office staff of Taiwan according to
the survey of Cheers.

6. Nominated as the Best Investor Relation Company in Taiwan by IR Magazine.

7. Nominated as the Best Corporate Governance of the Year in Taiwan by IR

Magazine.
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In 2007

1. Increased capital to NT$62,907,665,030.

2. Awarded as the Most Admired Enterprise in Taiwan by CommonWealth.

3. Nominated as the Best Investor Relation Company in Taiwan by IR Magazine.

4.  Awarded the Progress Prize for the best investor relation company in Taiwan by
IR Magazine.

5. Awarded the title of the World’s Top 10 Chinese Enterprises of the Year by
Asiaweek.

6. Ranked 154th among Fortune Global 500 Enterprises.

In 2008

1. Increased capital to NT$74,146,234,780.

2. Issued NT$5,180,000,000 of domestic unsecured ordinary corporate bonds.

3. Awarded as the Most Admired Enterprise in Taiwan by CommonWealth.

4. Ranked 132nd among Fortune Global 500 Enterprises.

In 2009

1. Increased capital to NT$85,789,318,550.

2. Issued NT$6,820,000,000 of domestic unsecured ordinary corporate bonds.

3. Ranked 109th among Fortune Global 500 Enterprises.

4. Ranked first among Taiwan enterprises for four consecutive years by Taiwan
Ratings.

5. Awarded as the Best Management Enterprise in Taiwan by Finance Asia.

6. Recognized as one of Asia’s Fabulous 50 of Asia by Forbes.

-12-



In 2010

1. Increased capital to NT$96,612,482,030.

2. Issued US$1,000,000,000 of overseas transferable corporate bonds.

3. Issued NT$6,000,000,000 of domestic unsecured ordinary corporate bonds.

4. Ranked 176th among the Forbes Global 2000.

5. Ranked first among Taiwan Top 1000 Enterprises for five consecutive years
according to the evaluation of CommonWealth.

6. Ranked first among Taiwan enterprises for five consecutive years by Taiwan
Ratings.

7. Ranked 194th among the Global 500 Enterprises by (Britain) Financial Times.

8. Ranked 112th among Fortune Global 500.

9. Awarded as the Most Admired Companies in Taiwan by CommonWealth.

In 2011

1. Increased capital to NT$106,890,966,630.

2. Issued NT$18,000,000,000 of domestic unsecured ordinary corporate bonds.

3. Ranked 189th among Forbes Global 2000.

4. Ranked first among Top 1000 Taiwan Enterprises for six consecutive years by
CommonWealth.

5. Ranked first among Taiwan enterprises for six consecutive years according to
the evaluation of Taiwan Ratings.

6. Ranked 60th among Fortune Global 500 by Fortune.

7. Awarded the Most Admired Enterprise in Taiwan by CommonWealth.
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In 2012

1. Increased capital to NT$118,358,665,270.

2. Issued NT$26,300,000,000 of domestic unsecured ordinary corporate bonds.

3. Ranked first among the Top 1000 Taiwan Enterprises for seven consecutive
years according to the evaluation of CommonWealth Magazine.

4. Ranked first among Taiwan enterprises according to the evaluation of Taiwan
Ratings for seven consecutive years.

5. Ranked 43rd among Fortune Global 500.

6. Ranked 156th among Forbes Global 2000.

In 2013

1. Increased capital to NT$131,287,068,400.

2. Issued NT$24,000,000,000 of domestic unsecured ordinary corporate bonds.

3. Ranked first among the Top 1000 Taiwan Enterprises for eight consecutive years
according to the evaluation of CommonWealth Magazine.

4. Ranked first among Taiwan enterprises according to the evaluation of Taiwan
Ratings for eight consecutive years.

5. Ranked 30th among Fortune Global 500.

6. Ranked 113th among Forbes Global 2000.

In 2014

1. Increased capital to NT$147,934,068,630.

2. Issued NT$39,200,000,000 of domestic unsecured ordinary corporate bonds.

3. Ranked first among the Top 1000 Taiwan Enterprises for nine consecutive years
according to the evaluation of CommonWealth Magazine.

4. Ranked first among Taiwan enterprises according to the evaluation of Taiwan
Ratings for nine consecutive years.

5. Ranked 32nd among Fortune Global 500.

6. Ranked 139th among Forbes Global 2000.
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In 2015

1. Increased capital to NT$156,382,882,280.

2. Issued NT$34,650,000,000 of domestic unsecured ordinary corporate bonds.

3. Ranked first among the Top 1000 Taiwan Enterprises for ten consecutive years
according to the evaluation of CommonWealth Magazine.

4. Ranked first among Taiwan enterprises according to the evaluation of Taiwan
Ratings for ten consecutive years.

5. Ranked 31st among Fortune Global 500.

6. Ranked 122nd among Forbes Global 2000.

In 2016

1. Increased capital to NT$173,287,382,620.

2. Invested in Sharp Corporation.

3. Issued NT$21 billion of domestic unsecured ordinary corporate bonds.

4. Ranked 1st among Top 2000 Taiwan Enterprises by CommonWealth Magazine
for eleven consecutive years.

5. Ranked 1st among Taiwan enterprises by Taiwan Ratings for eleven consecutive
years.

6. Ranked 25th among Fortune Global 500.

7. Ranked 117th among Forbes Global 2000.
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In 2017

1. Ranked 1st among Top 2000 Taiwan Enterprises by CommonWealth Magazine
for twelve consecutive years.

2. Ranked No. 5 among Top 1000 across Taiwan Strait by CommonWealth
Magazine.

3. Ranked 1stamong Taiwan enterprises by Taiwan Ratings for twelve consecutive
years

4. Ranked No. 27 among Fortune Global 500.

5. Ranked No. 98 among Forbes Global 2000; Foxconn was the only company
from Taiwan to place within Top 100

6. Awarded as the Best Education Promoter in 13th CSR Awards from Global
Views Monthly

7. Ranked No. 5 of the Most Admired Company by Taiwan’s New Generation by
Cheers Magazine.

8. Nominated for Most Progress in Investor Relations in IR Magazine Awards —
Greater China.

In 2018

1. Decreased capital to NT$138,629,906,090.

2. Ranked 1st among Top 2000 Taiwan Enterprises by CommonWealth Magazine
for thirteen consecutive years.

3. Ranked No. 24 among Fortune Global 500.

In 2019

1. Increased capital to NT$138,629,906,090.

2. Director Guo, Tai-Ming (Terry) resigns as Chairman.

3. Director Liu, Young-Way succeeds as Chairman.

4. Ranked 25" in Forbes “Top 100 Digital Companies”

5. Ranked No. 23 among Fortune Global 500.

6. Ranked among Clarivate Analytics “Derwent Top 100 Global Innovators 2020”
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In 2020
1. Capital of NT$138,629,906,090.
2. Ranked 26™ among Fortune Global 500.

3. Recipient of the "Galloping Fifty Success Award - No. 1 in Revenue for 15
Consecutive Years" and "Fifty Success Award - No. 1 in Revenue Growth Rate
in 30 Years" by China Credit Information Service, Ltd (A CRIF Company).

4. Ranked 1*" in Manufacturing for 15 consecutive years by the CommonWealth
Magazine’s “Survey — Top 2000”.

5. Ranked among Clarivate Analytics “Derwent Top 100 Global Innovators” for 3

consecutive years.

6. Awarded the “2020 Taiwan Sustainability Enterprise” Gold Award by the
Taiwan Academy of Corporate Sustainability (TACS).

7. Awarded “Outstanding Sustainable Resilience Award” by the British Standards
Institution (BSI)

8. Awarded Silver Award for Epidemic Prevention by the Taiwan Immunization

Vision and Strategy (TIVS) association.

9. Ranked 4™ in “Top 100 Most Admired Company by Taiwan’s New Generation
2020” by Cheers Magazine.

In 2021
1. Capital of NT$138,629,906,090.
2. Ranked 22" among Fortune Global 500.

3. Ranked 1% in Manufacturing for 16 straight years by the CommonWealth
Magazine’s “Survey — Top 2000”.

4. Ranked among Clarivate Analytics “Derwent Top 100 Global Innovators” for 4
straight years.

5. ESG initiatives recognized by TCSA and GCSA with three Gold Awards
for 3 straight years.

6. Ranked 5" in “Top 100 Most Admired Company by Taiwan’s New Generation
2021” by Cheers Magazine.
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10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

Awarded 2021 “Best IR Website” by IR Magazine and also nominated for
“Technology”, “Best IR Event (Large Cap)” and “Best ESG Materiality

Reporting”. Hon Hai has the most nominations among Taiwanese companies.
Awarded “The Happiest Taiwan Enterprise of Gold and Special Prize” by 1111.

Chairman Young-Wei Liu was awarded "Digital Transformation Leader" by
Harvard Business Review and the B Business Group was awarded "Smart

Manufacturing Award".

After reignition of Shenzhen and Chengdu site as Lighthouse in 2019,
Zhengzhou and Wuhan site were certificated as the third and fourth Lighthouse
of Hon Hai.

Awarded TSAA (Taiwan Sustainability Action Award) with 3 Gold Prizes in

environmental sustainability, social inclusion and economic development fields.

Achieved “RBA FOC One-Star Level” for Hengyang site and awarded UL 2799
Gold-Level Certification of zero waste.

Awarded “Greater China Business Sustainable Index” (GCBSI) - Achiever
Awards.

Established a JV, HORIZON PLUS Co., Ltd., with PTT.

Signed of an Asset Transaction Agreement for the sales of Macronix’s 6-inch
wafer fab and equipment for NT$2.52 billion

An agreement with Lordstown Motors’ electric vehicle to obtain assembly
plant in Lordstown, Ohio and purchased approximately $50 million of
Lordstown Motors’ common stock, for $230 million.

Subsidiary, FIH Mobile Ltd., (“FIH”) (HKG:2038), of Hon Hai, announced the
signing of a non-binding memorandum of understanding to form Mobile Drive,

50/50 voting rights joint venture.
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III. Corporate Governance Report
A. Organization
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Department Functions
Chairman’s Office

Responsible for setting up strategies and developing new businesses, evaluating investment areas

and targets, defining forward-looking research, investors, and media communications.
Cost Management

Responsible for business analysis, budgeting and cost control

Financial and Accounting

Financial - Responsible for financial matters, capital planning, and scheduling.
Accounting - Responsible for accounting matters

Global Procurement

Responsible for purchasing raw materials needed by the Company for production and

manufacturing and adjusting the procurement strategies according to industrial prospects.
Human Resources

Responsible for comprehensive management of such businesses of the Company as personnel,

checking attendance and recruitment etc.
Legal and Intellectual Property

Responsible for regulatory compliance of the company, reviewing of contracts, and handling and

processing of litigations.

Responsible for the management, use, and strategic planning of the Company’s intellectual

property and rights; and handling of intellectual property related cases.
Information Technology

Responsible for establishing, maintaining, managing, controlling and auditing the global
information system of the Company and setting up safe management and control and firewall and
other relevant mechanisms; also in charge of connecting global network communication systems

of the Company, ERP, KM, virtual office and other platforms.
Safety and Environmental Protection

Responsible for making the Group's global environmental protection policies, setting goals, and
conduct effective audits in various regions, nuclear management and optimize the environmental

management of the company's operations.

Responsible for promoting global industrial safety, fire, chemical safety. Strengthening security

completing management system, implement production safety and management categories.
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Business Group A

Responsible for smartphones and related operations.

Business Group B

Responsible for wearables, tablets, laptop computers, smart speakers and related operations.
Business Group C

Responsible for precision molds, electrical engineering R&D, production, and structural
component production and material application related operations, and testing and verification

platform services.
Business Group D

Responsible for personal computers, printers, monitors, smart office, smart home, and related

operations.
Business Group E

Responsible for LCD TV, gaming devices, smart robots, electronic control modules, AIOT

modules, and related operations.
Business Group S

Responsible for semiconductor equipment, panel driver IC, amplifiers, and related operations.
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A3 Directors
Date: 04/02/2022
Shares currently
Nationality Gender| First Shares held when Current held by their Main working (education) Concurrent positions
Title or Place of Name Age | Elected elected Shareholding spouses and ! wex ler%enceu ! in the Company and
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Number % | Number % | Number | %
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Engineering and Computer ~ |* CEO_’ Hon Hai
Science, University of Precision Industry
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National Chiao Tung Foxsemicon
University Integrated
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Corporation. * Chairman, Foxtron
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« CEO, Princeton Technology : Dlregtor, Shanghai
Corp Ketai Century
. . Technology Co.,
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) ) International
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Hon Jin
Director | Republic of [International | June 8, 1,483,078/ 0,01 1483,078| 0.01 0| 0.00|None None
China  |Investment 2007
Co., Ltd.
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Nationality Gender| First Shares held when Current held by their Main working (education) Concurrent positions
or Place of Name Elected elected Shareholding spouses and g in the Company and
Registration A | Date minor children experience other companies
Number % | Number % | Number | %
« PhD. Electrical Engineering,
George Washington
University
* Member, Global Future
Council on Advanced
Manufacturing and
Production, World Economic
Forum
« Founding Director, Intelligent
Maintenance Systems (IMS) ,
National Science Foundation |, Ohio State
(NSF) Distinguished
« Founding Director, The Scholar /
Artificial Intelligence Center | Distinguished
(Industrial Al) « Chair Professor,
Republic of [Representative:| M | June 21, ol 0.00 ol 0.00 ol 000 * Senior Consultant, McKinsey | University of
China  |Jay Lee 61~70 | 2019 : : | & Company. Cincinnati
* Head of Manufacturing and |« Director, Cloud
Industrial Innovation Network Technology
Department, Engineering USA Inc.
Research Centers (ERC), « Director. Fine Tech
Industry-University Corpora;ion

Cooperative Research
Centers (I/UCRC), National
Science Foundation (NSF)

« Department Director, Product
Development and
Manufacturing, United
Technologies Research
Center (UTRC)

* Founding Member, Digital
Manufacturing and Design

Innovation Institute (DMDIT)
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Shares currently

Nationality Gender| First Shares held when Current held by their Main working (education) Concurrent positions
Title or Place of Name Age | Flected elected Shareholding spouses and ox er%ence in the Company and
Registration & Date minor children P other companies
Number % | Number % | Number | %
and MForesight

* Member, Government Joint-
Team, Technology
Reinvestment Program
(TRP), White House

* Researcher, Industrial
Research Institute, Ministry
of International Trade and
Industry (MITT)

« Founder, Predictronics, NSF
ICorp

« Selected as 30 Visionary
Leaders in Smart
Manufacturing by SME in
2016

« Selected as Top 20 Influential
Professors in Smart
Manufacturing by SME in
2020

« Taipei College of Maritime
Technology
* Founder, Foxconn

Technology Group
1,334,668,518(9.63|1,742,198,518|12.57 0f 0.00] . . .. |None
« Director of Taiwan Electrical

Equipment Association
« Chairman of Mold Industry
Association

Republic of |Gou, Tai-ming M |February

Director | ™" cpina  [(Terry Gow) | 7180 | 20, 1974
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Shares currently

Nationality Gender| First Shares held when Current held by their Main working (education) Concurrent positions
Title or Place of Name Age | Flected elected Shareholding spouses and o ergence in the Company and
Registration & Date minor children xpert other companies
Number % | Number % | Number | %
* Master degree from Dept. of
Applied Physics, Chung
Yuan Christian University
« Chairman, Asia Pacific
Telecom Co.,Ltd. Trust Fund M
. M . . * Trust Fund Manager,
Director | RPUPLiCOf . g-ming June 8, 6,177,580/ 0.04| 7,489,580 0.05| 1,959,012| 0.01|" General Manager of Asia- | A gian pay Television
China 61~70 | 2010 Pacific Region, Lingyun Trust
Science and Technology Co.,
Ltd.
* General Manager of
Computer System Products of|
HP Taiwan
Hon Jin
Republic of |International June 8,
China  |Tnvestment - 2007 1,483,078/ 0.01 1,483,078 0.01 0| 0.00|None None
Co., Ltd.
« Bachelor of Science, and
Direct Mechanical Engineering,
irector ] L
gn];vers%};lofllh'nms at * Executive Director,
Republic of |Representative:| M | February rbana-t-hampaign Chairman and CEO,
China  |Lu, Sung-ching| 1~70 |21, 2000 2,400/ 0.00 2,400/ 0.00 3,523 0.00], Director, Hon Hai Precision | Foxconn Interconnect
Industry Co., Ltd. Technology Ltd.
« TE Connectivity Ltd.
* General Motors Corporation
. Republic of |Fu Chu June 21,
Director China  |Technology - 2019 10,560( 0.00 10,560 0.00 0 0.00|None None
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Title

Shares currently

Nationality Gender| First Shares held when Current held by their Main working (education) Concurrent positions
or Place of Name A Elected elected Shareholding spouses and g in the Company and
Registration £ | Date minor children experience other companies
Number % | Number % | Number | %
* Ph.D. in Economics, The
University of Chicago
(specialization in History of
Economic Thought,
International Trade, and
International Finance)
* Minister of Finance of the
Republic of China * Managing Director,
* Minister of the Council for Bellwether
Economic Planning and International Group,
Development, Taiwan Hong Kong
« Legislator (Two-terms), : Memb@r, Global
Taiwan Council of Asia
. Society (USA)
* Member, Economic .
Development Commission, |° Adjunct Professor,
Republic of |Christina Y F | Junel Hong Kong Fimmoe, Natinal
epublic o ristina Yee- une 1, . . . inance, Nationa
China ru Liu 61~70 | 2020 01000 12,000 0.00 0} 0.00)- Chief Economic Advisor, Taiwan University

ChinaTrust Financial
Holding Co., Ltd., Taiwan

Chief Economic Advisor,
Daiwa Institute of Research,
Tokyo

Board Member, Taiwan
Fund (listed NYSE)

Board Member, Taiwan
Stock Exchange

Professor and Director,
Department of Finance and
Graduate Institute of
Finance, National Taiwan
University

Professor at numerous
universities including City

* Senior Consultant,
Chinese National
Federation of
Industries

« Consultant, Taiwan
Electrical and
Electronic
Manufacturers’
Association
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Shares currently

Nationality Gender| First Shares held when Current held by their Main working (education) Concurrent positions
Title or Place of Name A Elected elected Shareholding spouses and g in the Company and
Registration £ | Date minor children experience other companies
Number % | Number % | Number | %
University of New York,
Australian National
University, Chinese
University (Hong Kong),
Tsinghua University
(Beijing), and Nanjing
University (Nanjing).
* Independent Director
* Business Administration, and Audit Committee
National Taiwan University | Chair, HannStar
« EMBA Business Board Corporation.
Administration, National * Independent Director,
Taiwan University gudit and )
. emuneration
y . E::ianman, Les enphants Co. gomlr?ﬁt;e Mgr?g?r,
i uo Lih Fen Holdin,
ln%ei];f?;iim Re]él;lbiz: o James Wang 61~70 ;f?gg?é 00.00 0 0.00 0] 0.00 Executive Director, . * Independent Directogr
Stores and Franchise Audit and ?
Association .
. . Remuneration
« Executive Director, Committee Member,
Marketing Communication Apex Medical
Executive International Corporation.
« Executive Director, Taiwan |« Remuneration
Excellent Brand Association | Committee Member,
E & E Recycling
« PhD. Computer Science, CcDictinomn:
University of Texas at Austin E;;?:S%gfhed
« Masters of Computer Department of
Inde.pendent Repul?llc of Kuo, Tei-Wei M | June 21, 0l 0.00 ol 0.00 ol 0.00 Sc1ence., University of Texas | Computer Sc_lence
Director China 51~60 | 2019 at Austin and Information
« Bachelor of Computer Engineering,
Science, National Taiwan Networking and
University Mutimedia and
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Shares currently

Nationality Gender| First Shares held when Current held by their Main working (education) Concurrent positions
Title or Place of Name Age | Flected elected Shareholding spouses and ox er%ence in the Company and
Registration & Date minor children P other companies
Number % | Number % | Number | %
* Acting President, National Electronic
Taiwan University Engineering, National
 Academic Vice President, Taiwan University
National Taiwan University |+ Chair Professor,
« Distinguished Researcher and| Information
Director, Research Center for Engme.ermg, College
Information Technology, Of Engineering
Academia Sinica Director, and Senior
.. Consultant to the
« Convener, Ministry of . .
. President, City
Science and University of Hon
Technology/Department of ¥ &
. . Kong
Engineering and
Technologies
« Distinguished Professor,
Department of Computer
Science and Information
Engineering, National
Taiwan University
 Academician, European
Academy of Sciences and Arts
* Academician, National
Academy of Inventors
* Masters of Business
Administration, Harvard
Business School.
« Bachelor Degree, Dartmouth M ine Partn
. . M College * Managing Partner,
Ing?r’:;g‘r’m Relé‘;lbiﬁ: of gﬁﬁfn Kuo ! “2“(;%)1’ 0/0.00 o[ 0.00 0| 0.00 ¢ _ Nexus Point Advisors
51~60 « Partner, Greater China (HK) Limited.
General Manager, MBK
Partners, L.P.
« Managing Director, The
Carlyle Group
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Notel: (Independent) Directors election date is June 21, 2019, and assumes office on July 1, 2019, for a term of 3 years. Fu Chu Technology representative Christina Yee-ru Liu was assigned on
June 1, 2020.

Note2: Directors’ shares held under the names of other parties: None.

Note3: Directors is the spouse or a relative within the second degree or closer of other managers, directors, or supervisors: None.

Note4: Combined Chairman and CEO explanation and measures: The Company operates with a combined Chairman and CEO system which enhances operational efficiency and policy execution
efficiency. Meanwhile, there are constant efforts to train and find a suitable managerial candidate; additionally, the Chairman maintains a constant channel of communication with updates to the
Board of Directors regarding the Company’s operations and corporate governance initiatives. In the future, the Company plans to increase independent director representation on the Board, to

further enhance supervision. Currently, the Company has the below specific measures:

1. 3 Independent Directors with financial, accounting, and information engineering expertise, to effectively supervise the Company.
2. The Company has established an Audit Committee, comprised of 3 Independent Directors, and majority of which are not concurrent employees or managers of the Company.
3. In accordance with Corporate Governance principles, Independent Directors at key committees can fully discuss matters and freely propose suggestions to the Board.
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) Major Institutional Shareholders

Name of Institutional Shareholder Name of Major Shareholders Perce‘:fz/tzg(fz
Hon Jin International Investment Co., Ltd. Hongyuan International Investment Co., Ltd. 50%
Hongqi International Investment Co., Ltd. 50%
Fu Chu Technology Co., Ltd. YongLin Healthcare Foundation 28.56%
Yonglin Foundation 71.44%

Q) Principal shareholder of corporate shareholders with a juridical person as its major
shareholder
4/2/2022
Name Name of Major Shareholders (Notel) Percentage

Hongyuan International Investment Co., Ltd. | Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd. 100%
Hongqi International Investment Co., Ltd. Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd. 100%
YongLin Healthcare Foundation Shi, Fu-Hua 100%
Yonglin Foundation Lin, Shu-Ru  (Note2) 100%

Notel: Institutional shareholders that are not corporate, shall disclose the major shareholders and shares, that is to disclose
the sponsors name and donation ratio.
Note2: Shi, Fu-Hua is deceased.

6) Professional knowledge and independence check matrix of directors

a)  Professional knowledge of directors

Name Professional Knowledge and Experience

Liu, Young-wei Mr. Liu founded three companies: a motherboard company in 1988, Young Micro
Systems; a northbridge and southbridge IC design company in 1995 focused on the
PC chipset as their core product, ITE Tech; and an ADSL IC design company,
ITeX in 1997. Young Micro Systems was then merged with Foxconn in 1994, and
ITeX was successfully listed on NASDAQ in 2001.

Mr. Liu joined Foxconn in 2007 as a Special Assistant to the Founder. In 2010, he
was appointed as the General Manager of Innovation Digital System Business
Group of Foxconn, and had been the Chairman of Socle Technology Corporation
since 2014. In 2016, he was elected as a member of the Board of Directors of
SHARP Corporation, as well as the General Manager of Foxconn’s Semiconductor
Business Group. In 2019, Liu was appointed Chief Executive Officer and
Chairman of Hon Hai Technology Group, and the Chairman of Foxsemicon
Integrated Technology Inc.. In 2020, he became Chairman of Foxtron Vehicle
Technologies Co., Ltd.

As Chairman, he sets and coordinates the company's direction and the strategies
that are enabling it to chart its next phase of international growth which known as
3+3 strategy, three major industries and three major technologies. These three
industries are electric vehicles, digital health and robotics. The three major
technologies are Artificial Intelligence, semiconductors, and next-generation
communication technologies.
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Name

Professional Knowledge and Experience

Jay Lee

Fellow of ASME, SME and PHM.

He broken through mechanical equipment failure prediction of traditional theory,
method and technology. He has been praised as one of the three most popular
technologies in the world in the 21st century by the American "Fortune" magazine.
He is currently the vice chairman of Hon Hai and Distinguished
Scholar/Distinguished Chair Professor of University of Cincinnati Ohio. Now he
focuses on intelligent prediction technology based on industrial big data analysis,
and the master-controlled innovative design of products and services.

Gou,Tai-ming

Mr. Terry Gou is the Founder and former Chief Executive Officer of Hon Hai
Technology Group (Foxconn) .Since its establishment in 1974, the company has
become the world’s largest electronics manufacturer and the leading global science
and technology solutions provider.

In 2016, the strategic alliance with Sharp Corporation set a precedent for a foreign
company to invest in a century-old Japanese company for the first time in the
history of the Japanese industry. In 2018, Foxconn Industrial Internet (Fii), a
subsidiary of Hon Hai, was listed on the Shanghai Stock Exchange. And Mr. Gou
announced the "Flying Eagle Project" at the White House in the United States, and
held a groundbreaking ceremony in Wisconsin in June 2018, accompanied by US
President Trump.

Under Mr. Gou’s leadership, Foxconn has committed to creating an Al 8K+5G
global ecosystem which will be a catalyst in promoting next-generation
technological solutions and applications in all aspects of everyday life including
work, education, entertainment, social, security, healthcare, e-commerce,
environment, and transportation.

Lu, Fang-ming

He used to be the manager of the company's business group, in charge of cloud
technology and network technology, leading the development of
telecommunications, broadcasting, interconnection, IoT and smart grid solutions.
He also has satellite communication technology and optical fiber layout, and
builds cloud network platform. During his tenure as the chairman of Asia Pacific
Telecom Co., Ltd., he was an important helmsman for the group to cut into 4G,
and played a key role in realizing a smart life by playing the complete ecological
chain of the Internet of Everything that connects Hon Hai Group's "11 screens, 3
networks and 2 clouds".

Lu, Sung-ching

He used to be the manager of the company's business group and has more than 20
years of experience in connector technology business. He is currently the
executive director, chairman and chief executive officer of FIH. FIH’ covers a
wide range of industries, mainly computer and consumer electronics, mobile and
wireless equipment, communication infrastructure (including cloud Computing),
automotive, industrial, medical and other end markets provide design,
development, production and interconnect solutions.

Dr. Christina Yee-ru Liu

She is expertise in international trade and finance, financial management, industry
and economics.

Ph.D. in Economics, The University of Chicago (specialization in History of
Economic Thought, International Trade, and International Finance)

Minister of Finance of the Republic of China

Minister of the Council for Economic Planning and Development, Taiwan
Legislator (Two-terms), Taiwan

Member, Economic Development Commission, Hong Kong

Chief Economic Advisor, ChinaTrust Financial Holding Co., Ltd., Taiwan

Chief Economic Advisor, Daiwa Institute of Research, Tokyo

Board Member, Taiwan Fund (listed NYSE)

Board Member, Taiwan Stock Exchange

Professor and Director, Department of Finance and Graduate Institute of Finance,
National Taiwan University

Professor at numerous universities including City University of New York,
Australian National University, Chinese University (Hong Kong), Tsinghua
University (Beijing), and Nanjing University (Nanjing).

Managing Director, Bellwether International Group, Hong Kong
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Name

Professional Knowledge and Experience

Member, Global Council of Asia Society (USA)

Adjunct Professor, Department of Finance, National Taiwan University

Senior Consultant, Chinese National Federation of IndustriesConsultant, Taiwan
Electrical and Electronic Manufacturers’ Association

James Wang

Business Administration, National Taiwan University

EMBA Business Administration, National Taiwan University

Independent Director of Hon Hai’s the Board, the member of Hon Hai Audit
Committee and the chairperson of Hon Hai Compensation Committee.

Chairman, Les enphants Co. Ltd

Executive Director, Chain Stores and Franchise Association

Executive Director, Marketing Communication Executive International Executive
Director, Taiwan Excellent Brand Association

Kuo, Tei-Wei

PhD. Computer Science, University of Texas at Austin

Masters of Computer Science, University of Texas at Austin

Bachelor of Computer Science, National Taiwan University

Acting President, National Taiwan University

Academic Vice President, National Taiwan University

Distinguished Researcher and Director, Research Center for Information
Technology, Academia Sinica

Convener, Ministry of Science and Technology/Department of Engineering and
Technologies

Distinguished Professor, Department of Computer Science and Information
Engineering, National Taiwan University

Academician, European Academy of Sciences and Arts

Independent Director of Hon Hai’s the Board, the member of Hon Hai Audit
Committee and the member of Hon Hai Compensation Committee.
Academician, National Academy of Inventors

Distinguished Professor, Department of Computer Science and Information
Engineering, Networking and Mutimedia and Electronic Engineering, National
Taiwan University

Chair Professor, Information Engineering, College of Engineering Director, and
Senior Consultant to the President, City University of Hong Kong

Kung, Kuo-Chuan

Masters of Business Administration, Harvard Business School.

Bachelor Degree, Dartmouth College

Independent Director of Hon Hai’s the Board, the member of Hon Hai Audit
Committee and the member of Hon Hai Compensation Committee.

Partner, Greater China General Manager, MBK Partners, L.P.

Managing Director, The Carlyle Group

Managing Partner, Nexus Point Advisors (HK) Limited.
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b) Independence of independent directors

Qualification

Name

Independence Attribute

Concurrent
independen
t director
position in
other
publicly
traded
companies

James Wang

Kuo, Tei-Wei

Kung, Kuo-
Chuan

The Directors comply with the following conditions from two years before being
elected and appointed, and during his tenure in office:

(1) Not an employee of the Company or any of its affiliates.

(2) Not a director or supervisor of affiliated companies. Not applicable in cases
where the person is an independent director of the parent company, any
subsidiary, or subsidiary of the same parent company, as appointed in accordance
with the Act or with the laws of the country of the parent or subsidiary.

(3) Not a nature-person shareholder who holds shares, together with those held by
the person’s spouse, minor children, or held by the person under other’s names,
in an aggregate amount of one percent or more of the total number of issued
shares of the company or ranks as one of its top ten shareholders.

(4) Not a manager in the preceding first subparagraphs, or not a spouse, relative
within the second degree of kinship, or lineal relative within the third degree of
kinship, or any of the above persons in the preceding second and third
subparagraphs.

(5) Not a director, supervisor, or employee of a corporate/institutional shareholder

that directly holds five percent or more of the total number of issued shares of
the company, or ranks as one of its top five shareholders, or being appointed
based on subparagraph 1 or 2 of Article 27 of the Corporate Law. Not applicable
in cases where the person is an independent director of the parent company, any
subsidiary, or subsidiary of the same parent company, as appointed in accordance
with the Act or with the laws of the country of the parent or subsidiary.
Not a director of the Company or a director, supervisor, office holding half or
more of the share that controlled by one person. (Not applicable in cases where
the person is an independent director of the parent company, any subsidiary, or
subsidiary of the same parent company, as appointed in accordance with the Act
or with the laws of the country of the parent or subsidiary).

(7) Not the same person or spouse that designated as directors (directors),
supervisors (supervisors) or equivalent position of the company, or as other
company's chairman, general manager and employees. Not applicable in cases
where the person is an independent director of the parent company, any
subsidiary, or subsidiary of the same parent company, as appointed in accordance
with the Act or with the laws of the country of the parent or subsidiary.

(8) Not a director, supervisor, officer, or shareholder holding 5% or more of the
share, of a specified company or institution that has a financial or business
relationship with the Company. Not applicable in cases where the specified
company or institution holding more than 20% but less than 50% of the share,
and the person is an independent director of the parent company, any subsidiary,
or subsidiary of the same parent company, as appointed in accordance with the
Act or with the laws of the country of the parent or subsidiary.

(9) Not a professional individual who, or an owner, partner, director, supervisor, or
officer of a sole proprietorship, partnership, company, or institution that,
provides auditing, commercial, legal, financial, accounting services or
consultation to the Company that received remuneration more than NT$50,000
or to any affiliate of the Company, or a spouse thereof. Not applicable in cases
where the person is member of Compensation committee or, Public Tender Offer
Committee, or Business Mergers and Acquisitions, that exercise related
regulations according to Securities and Exchange Act or M&A Act.

(10) Not having a marital relationship, or a relative within the second degree of
kinship to any other director of the Company.

(11) Not been a person of any conditions defined in Article 30 of the Company Law.

(12) Not a governmental, juridical person or its Representative as defined in Article
27 of the Company Law.

(6)

3
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Q)

a)

The diversity and independence of the Board directors

Diversity within the members of the Board of Directors:

The members of the board directors formulate and implement the diversity policy. The directors are

diversified, with industry experience in manufacturing, branding access, technology research and

financial investment, in order to implement the policy of diversification and build up the structure of the

board.

The Company has set “Corporate Governance Practical Principles” to ensure boards’ diversity. The

members of the Board of Directors should be diversified and possess the below skills:

1.  Operational judgement skills.

2. Accounting and financial analysis skills.
3. Operational management skills.
4.  Crisis management skills.
5. Industry knowledge.
6.  Global market view.
7. Leadership skills.
8. Decision making skills.
Core Items lnd%pendent Industry Professional
Age Director Knowledge Competenc
Tenure g P y
|5
=5 = — ,'_'11
o | 2 FIZ|Ig (8|5 |5
5 | £ |=|E|8|E|5|2|E
ape . . 4 = 2 |52 2
Position Nationality | Gender | Employee z o Ela|El|la|s |22 |
a2 = S (el |8|E|5|5 =
s H FRERER =R ] o)
olule| < = E12|=|E =222
w I = | A - & e (S
S|S|S £ 25 |e a8
=< < |2 |52 |2|s|%|CIR
g | ¢ |E|E|E|5|E|F|E[
|3 |TIE|E|E|2 |52
Name BIE "
Liu, Young-Way Chairman ROC M 4 v
Vice
v v v
Jay Lee Chairman ROC M
Gou, Tai-ming Director ROC M v v v
(Terry Gou)
Lu, Fang-ming Director ROC M v v v
Lu, Sung-ching Director ROC M 4 4
Christina Yee-ru Liu | Director ROC F v v
James Wang In.d cpendent ROC M v v v v
Director
Kuo, Tei-Wei Independent | poc M v v v v
Director
Kung, Kuo-Chuan Ind ependent ROC M v v v v
Director

Note: Concurrently an employee of the Company accounts for 22.22%. 2 directors aged between 51-60 years of age. 6 directors
aged between 61-70 years of age. 1 director aged between 71-80 years of age.
The Company places great importance on the gender diversity of the Board, and aims for an above 10% female representation,
currently of 9 directors, there is 1 female director achieving 11% female representation on the board.

b)

Independence within the members of the Board of Directors:

33.33% of directors and independent directors respectively. 2 independent director tenure average below 3 years and 1
independent director has a tenure of 4 years.
The independent directors of Hon Hai are all in compliance with the regulations on the establishment of independent directors
of public companies and the rules of matters to be followed. There are no matters 3 and 4 stipulated in Article 26-3 of the
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Securities and Exchange Act between the directors and independent directors. The board of directors of professional
qualifications and independence, please refer to previous page
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®

Management Team Information

Date: 04/2/2022

Currently
i Shareholdin, holding shares of Main experience iti
Position Nationality Name Gender Inauguration 2 spouses and P Concurrent posm.ons at other
Date minor children (education background) companies
Number| % Number | %
* Masters of Electrical Engineering and
Computer Science, University of
Southern California . .
« Bachelor of Electrophysics, National + Chairman, Foxsemicon Integrated
X S Technology Inc.
Chiao Tung University . .
« Chairman. Socle Technolo « Chairman, Foxtron Vehicle
Corporati(;n e Technologies Co.,Ltd.
Chairman and | Republic of | . - . . .
President China |HiW Young-Way| M Jul. 01,2019 | 656,219  0.00 0} 0001, Executive Assistant to the Chairman, Director, Shanghai Ketai Century
. - Technology Co., Ltd.
Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd. Chai MIH C X
* CEO, Princeton Technology Corp. airman, onsortium
« Founder. ADSL IC Desien House « Director, Fu Tai International
’ & ? Investment Limited
Integrated Telecom Express Inc.
* Founder, ITE Technology Inc.
* Founder, Young Micro Systems
Denartment * MBA, University of Tennessee
epartment | p o e of ~ . i
General epublic o Wang, Cheng: M Jan 01, 2020 471 000 ol 0.00 VP, WLBG SonyEricsson Product  |Nope
China Yang Group, Foxconn Interconnect
Manager .
Technology Limited
¢ Chairman, Innovative & Intelligent
Department . . . Factory Accelerator (Shenzhen) Co.,
Republic of - . R
General e‘éﬁ,m‘i ° Chméniﬁ’nc,hlh M | Jan 01,2020 | 546,919  0.00 86,485| 0.00|* Feng Chia University Ltd
Manager s « Chairman, Jiangyu Innovation Medical
Technology Chengdu CO.,LTD
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Currently
holding shares of

i Shareholdin Main experience iti
Position Nationality Name Gender Inauguration 2 spouses and ! P Concurrent posm.ons at other
Date minor children (education background) companies
Number| % Number | %
* Mechanical Engineering, Minghsin
University of Science and « Director, Fine Tech Corporation

Department Republic of|  Lin. Chung- Technology « Director, Foxconn Baja California S.A.

General pudlic o b ~ung M | Jan01,2020 | 144,589  0.00 2,962| 0.00|* Director, ESON Precision de C.V.
China Cheng Engineering Co. Ltd . - R
Manager ngineering Co. Ltd. « Director, Foxconn Precision Imaging
« Statutory Director, FOXCONN Pte Ltd
JAPAN CO., LTD.
Department . . . . . .
General Repul?llc of| Chu, Cheng— M Jan 01,2020 | 100409 0.00 ol 000 Mechanical Ené{neer}ng, National Chairman, Futaijie Technology
China Qing Cheng Kung University Development (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd.
Manager
« Director of Apex Gold Limited
X X « Director of China Galaxy Enterprises
* Master’s Degree in accounting, Long| 1 ihiteq
Island University K .

A " Republic of M £ Deloitte & Touch « Director of Foxconn Singapore Pte Ltd.
ccounting epublic o . * Manager of Deloitte & Touche, . . L. .
Dircctor China Chou, Zong-kai M Jul 20,2010 0 0.00 0| 0.00] Taiwan . D}reptor of High Precision Holdings

. . . Limited.
* Lecturer of Hsing Wu University,
Taiwan
« Director of Precision Technology
Investments Pte. Ltd.
+ Chairman, Lin Yin International
Investment Co., Ltd.
« Chairman, Fu Tai International
* Graduated from National Chiao Investment Co., Ltd.
Tung University, Taiwan * Chairman, Hongyuan International
Fi ial Republic of 1.266.12 * Financial director of Vanguard Investment Co., Ltd.
inancial epublic o . ,266, . . . .
Director %hina Huang, De-cai M Apr. 15,1998 6 0.01 0| 0.00] Intematl(?nal Semiconductor « Chairman, Hongyang Semiconductor
Corporation Corporation
* Manager of Taiwan Philip Co. « Chairman of Hongyang Venture Capital
Company Investment Co., Ltd.,
« Chairman, Hon Jin International
Investment Co., Ltd.
« Chairman, Honggi International
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Position

Nationality

Name

Gender

Inauguration
Date

Currently

Sharcholding holding shares of
spouses and
minor children
Number| % Number %

Main experience

(education background)

Concurrent positions at other
companies

Investment Co., Ltd.

Chairman, Bon Shin International
Investments Co., Ltd.

Chairman, Hongfu (Shenzhen) Equity
Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd.
Director, Zhong Yuan Rong Chuang
Foundation Management (Henan) Co.,
Ltd.,

Director of Zhong Yuan (Henan)
Financing and Rental Co., Ltd.
Director, Jinchangzhi Technology
(Shenzhen) Co, Ltd.

Director, Fulong Credit Loan
(Shenzhen) Co, Ltd.

Director, Zhunshida International
Supply Chain Management Co., Ltd.

Director, MIH Consortium

Director of Jiaming Financial Leasing
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

Director of Zhengzhou Airport
Economic comprehensive Experiment
Zone Zhongyuan Inclusive Finance
Co.,Ltd

Director, Jinan Property Development
Co., Ltd.

Director, QUKUAILIAN
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY
(SHENZHEN) CO., LTD.

Executive Director, Hong Ding

Management Consultants (Shenzhen)
Co., Ltd.
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Position

Nationality

Name

Gender

Inauguration
Date

Currently
holding shares of

Shareholding
spouses and
minor children
Number| % Number %

Main experience

(education background)

Concurrent positions at other
companies

Director, Chained Finance
Limited(Cayman)

Director, Chained Finance Limited(HK)

Director, Foxconn (Far East)
Limited(Cayman)

Director, Foxconn (Far East)
Limited(HK)

Director, Foxconn Capital Limited
Director, Foxteq Holdings Inc.
Director, Foxteq Integration,Inc.
Director, HCM International Company

Director, Rich Dreams Network
Technology Limited

Director, Talent Sky Holdings Limited
Director, TMJ Technology Co., Ltd.

Note 1: Management holding shares in the name of others: None

Note 2: Management has spouse or second-degree relative holding a position as manager: None

Note3: Combined Chairman and CEO explanation and measures: The Company operates with a combined Chairman and CEO system which enhances operational efficiency and policy execution
efficiency. Meanwhile, there are constant efforts to train and find a suitable managerial candidate; additionally, the Chairman maintains a constant channel of communication with updates to the
Board of Directors regarding the Company’s operations and corporate governance initiatives. In the future, the Company plans to increase independent director representation on the Board, to

further enhance supervision. Currently, the Company has the below specific measures:

1. 3 Independent Directors with financial, accounting, and information engineering expertise, to effectively supervise the Company.
2. The Company has established an Audit Committee, comprised of 3 Independent Directors, and majority of which are not concurrent employees or managers of the Company.
3. In accordance with Corporate Governance principles, Independent Directors at key committees can fully discuss matters and freely propose suggestions to the Board.
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()] Remuneration paid to Directors, Supervisors and management team in the most recent fiscal year

(a) Remuneration of Directors and Independent Directors

Unit: NT$Thousand

Compensation of Directors Relevant remuneration of part-time personnel o=
=1
Remunerati K Percent of A, K Percentof A, | Z. =
Remunerations Retirement | on from ilelilunt?cs; B, Cand D to m%:?ug\?::g):; d Retirement | Employee profit sharing B,C, D,E,F ¢ g
) allowance | distribution | * ~ net profit after s eciﬁl expenses | Allowance | from earnings distribution and Gtonet | g Z
(B) of earnings P tax P P (F) (G) (Note 1) profit after tax | .8 3
(D) etc. (E) 2
© o=
> £
All g g
2 lgz|glee|g szl2|eze| 2 |sz| 2 |gz|z gz | 2 |ez|EE
g 35|18 2218|2218 82 g |25 g S= 8| 22 companies g |25 |e5
5 Name O |EE Q| SE (0| 2E (9| 25| 9| 25| © | 25 || 25| . The | wihinthe | o | SE |53
2 Note 2 3 &5 |3| &5 || 88 |E| &2 =] ] = g5 |2| &5 | Company |consolidated| 3 g5 | 2 g
@ (Note 2) S |82 |8| 88 |B| 25 |B| 88| % |2E| B | g% |8| &% financial | E | E5 |52
S ez 2| =5 |8 &5 |8 =5 5 a5 S ez || =5 s 2z 189
< mw | < mw |[< ma |< =R~ < =Rt < hw | j=cR statement < =R 2=~
£z £z = EE £z £z £z Ez| &
B = B = B = B = S5 = S5 = B = 5 = =
2.2 e = o .8 [s=3 [=H=3 .= [s=H Q @2 Q @ 2= 2
85 B 5 B3 B 5 B 5 B 5 B 5 g |8 g g B 5 s
v 5 w 5 v = w = = =3 = 5ol ® T | ® =3 &
g0 £ £e E0 ge 56 ge g |z 2 |2 go | 2
@ <] <] a <] <] <] =. =k =. = <]
2 2 2 2 2 2 2 a |z & = =4
(<} (<} (<} (<} (e} (e} a o @ o 19} [}
= 2 2 =2 =2 2 2 2 2 2 2 =3
@ & @ &
Liu, Young-Way
Hon Jin International Investment
Co., Ltd.
Representative: Jay Lee
Gou,Tai-ming (Terry Gou)
O |Lu, Fang-ming
=
Sé Hon Jin International Investment |12-200{ 12,200 0 0| 0 0| 0 0| 0.009| 0.009(108,013{368,263| 0 0[135,649| 0]206,038| 0| 0.184| 0.421 0|
% |Co., Ltd.
Representative: Lu, Sung-Ching
Fu Chu Technology Co., Ltd.
Representative: Christina Yee-ru
Liu
James Wang
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ompensation of Directors elevant remuneration of part-time personne o =
C t f Directs Rel t t f part-t 1 =
(=1
Remunerati . Percent of A, . Percent of A, g %
Remuncrations Retirement | on from e?(leliluntii B,Cand D to m%i‘:“g:;::éo:l’l d Retirement | Employee profit sharing | B- G, D,E.F | & g
allowance | distribution net profit after Y allowance | from earnings distribution | and Gtonet | @ 5
(A) - expenses ta special expenses S fit after t: <
(B) of earnings X (F) (G) (Note 1) profitarter tax | . —
©) (D) etc. (E) g g
]
=55
All s e
3 | sx|dl gz |2 g=l=2| g=| 2| sx=| = s> 3| g» =4 |g»|E8
e = S = S = S = = e = . = e
125|225 1|8|251(8| 25| B | 25| B |25 |2| 285 companies | | 2 Z | g 2
4 Name o] S S 2l 22 (2] = g 2| & g o S, S o] S 5 Q| ¢ The within the Q = S g2
= 5 g2 |2 55 |2| &2 8| &4 =] 53 =4 2 |2| £ | Company |consolidated| £ g2 a8
19 (Note 2) =1 =8 |5 2 S =8 |5 =8 <] =8 S a8 |5 = . 5 =2 |88
5 g5 |B| 28 |B| 38 |B| @8 5 a5 5 S [B| 88 financial 5 g5 | 8
2 es |2 25 |2| 25 |2| =% 3 e g 2 25 |2 =% 2 25|22
< =R~ BN =rRZE ;e |< =R < j=R%] < e < =R statement < Mm@ | e
£z £z gz £z £z £z £z gz | ¢
s 8 E gE gE gE gE EE| o |2 o |2 gE| %
B 5 BB B 5 N ] ] ] 2 gl & g ] s
= = = = = = = z 1z = 2
g5 g8 g3 s s s €8s | = |&2l = |& £3| &
g g g a g g a < Z 2 = g
3 3 2 =] 2 2 =] a = a = 3
g g g g g g g g |g| 8 g g
=2 2 =4 =3 =3 =4 =3 2 = 2 =1 =4
& & & &
_ |Kuo, Tei-Wei
o&
=
8@ Kung, Kuo-Chuan 15,560| 15,560{ 0O 0| 0 0 0 0 0.011| 0.011 0 of o 0 o 0 0 0 o0.011f 0.011
g a
@ @
=1
~ |Kung, Kuo-Chuan

Note: NT$8,122,670 is set aside for employee remuneration for 2021 according to the resolution of the Board of Directors. It was calculated used last year’s actual allocation ratio.
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Range of Remunerations for Directors

Range of remunerations paid to directors

Names of Directors

Summation of the first 4 items (A+B+C+D)

Summation of the first 7 items
(A+B+C+D+E+F+G)

The Company

All companies involved
in financial statement

(H)

The Company

Parent company and all
reinvestments (I)

Under NT$1,000,000

Liu Young-Way, Hon
Jin International
Investment Co.; Ltd.;
Jay Lee; Gou, Tai-ming
(Terry Gou); Lu, Sung-
Ching; Christina Yee-ru
Liu

Liu Young-Way, Hon
Jin International
Investment Co.; Ltd.;
Jay Lee; Gou, Tai-ming
(Terry Gou); Lu, Sung-
Ching; Christina Yee-ru
Liu

Hon Jin International
Investment Co., Ltd.;
Jay Lee; Gou, Tai-ming
(Terry Gou); Lu, Sung-
Ching; Christina Yee-ru
Liu

Hon Jin International
Investment Co., Ltd.;
Gou, Tai-ming (Terry
Gou); Christina Yee-ru
Liu

NT$1,000,000 (included) ~ NT$2,000,000 (excluded)

NT$2,000,000 (included) ~ NT$3,500,000 (excluded)

NT$3,500,000 (included) ~ NT$5,000,000 (excluded)

Fu Chu Technology Co.,
Ltd.;Kuo, Tei-Wei

Fu Chu Technology Co.,
Ltd.;Kuo, Tei-Wei

Fu Chu Technology Co.,
Ltd.;Kuo, Tei-Wei

Fu Chu Technology Co.,
Ltd.;Kuo, Tei-Wei

NT$5,000,000 (included) ~ NT$10,000,000 (excluded)

Lu, Fang-ming; James
Wang; Kung, Kuo-
Chuan

Lu, Fang-ming; James
Wang; Kung, Kuo-
Chuan

Lu, Fang-ming; James
Wang; Kung, Kuo-
Chuan

Lu, Fang-ming; James
Wang; Kung, Kuo-
Chuan

NT$10,000,000 (included) ~ NT$15,000,000 (excluded)

NT$15,000,000 (included) ~ NT$30,000,000 (excluded)

NT$30,000,000 (included) ~ NT$50,000,000 (excluded)

NT$50,000,000 (included) ~ NT$100,000,000 (excluded)

Over NT$100,000,000

Liu, Young-Way;

Liu, Young-Way; Jay
Lee ; Lu, Sung-Ching

Total

11

11
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(b) Remuneration paid to the management team
Rate of total o w
. Retirement Money a\yard . o .. amount of A, B, C | &. g
Remunerations and special Earning distribution as dividends for 52
(A) allowance payment etc personnel (D) (Note) and D to pure 23
(B) ©) . profits after tax | 8 3
(%) 28
. =
o
2 gz | g |5z 7 gz Sevoeam | | FE |38
@ B4 o |8 @ IS The Company involved in ° B, |28
Title Name o] &g g lgg| ¢ g g financial statement| 5 gg |B 2
(Note2) =] =3 2 |=3 =] =3 =] =35 |2 a
k<l v £ k<) [~} L= v ® o « o=
] s 2 2 |E2| g g 2 Q 2 Q @ B BB |25
& g§g | 2 |88 & g9 2z g & g Z g% |22
= 2 s Z 2 2 = = = = 52 |B¢g
g2 gz gz g o = = g2 |g'8
= = = 2 =X = < = = 5 v a
o o o a =. a =. o
9] o @ I
2 g 2 g
a & a &
General Manager Liu, Young-Way
Department General Manager | Wang, Cheng-Yang
Department General Manager | Chiang, Chih- Siung
Department General Manager |Lin, Chung-Cheng | 107,024 | 108,022| 646| 646 25,086| 25,249| 780,589 0] 780,589 0 0.656| 0.656| 0
Department General Manager | Chu, Cheng-Qing
Financial Director Huang, De-cai
Accounting Director Chou, Zong-kai

Notes 1. NT$8,122,670 is set aside for employee remuneration for 2021 according to the resolution of the Board of Directors. It was calculated used last year's actual allocation ratio.
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Range of Remunerations for the management team

Names of General M:

Range of remuneration paid to general managers and deputy general gers

s and Deputy General Managers

The Company

All in the fi ial stat t (E)

Under NT$1,000,000

NT$1,000,000 (included) ~ NT$2,000,000 (excluded)

NT$2,000,000 (included) ~ NT$3,500,000 (excluded)

NT$3,500,000 (included) ~ NT$5,000,000 (excluded)

NT$5,000,000 (included) ~ NT$10,000,000 (excluded)

NT$10,000,000 (included) ~ NT$15,000,000 (excluded)

NT$15,000,000 (included) ~ NT$30,000,000 (excluded)

Chou, Zong-kai

Chou, Zong-kai

NT$30,000,000 (included) ~ NT$50,000,000 (excluded)

NT$50,000,000 (included) ~ NT$100,000,000 (excluded)

Huang, De-cai

Huang, De-cai

Over NT$100,000,000 Liu, Young-Way; Wang, Cheng-Yang; Chiang, Liu, Young-Way; Wang, Cheng-Yang; Chiang,
Chih- Siung; Lin, Chung-Cheng; Chu, Cheng- Chih- Siung; Lin, Chung-Cheng; Chu, Cheng-
Qing; Qing;
Total 7 7
(¢) Employee profit sharing granted to the management team
Unit: NT$ Thousand
Title Name Stock Dividends | Cash Dividends (Note) Total Proportion of total amount to net profits after tax (%)
General manager Liu, Young-Way 0 780,589 780,589 0.560
§ Department General Manager Wang, Cheng-Yang
w;‘,: Department General Manager Chiang, Chih-Siung
g Department General Manager Lin, Chung-Cheng
s Department General Manager Chu, Cheng-Qing
§ Financial Director Huang, De-cai
Accounting Director Chou, Zong-kai

Note: As of the printing date of this Annual Report, the distribution list of employee profit sharing has not been fixed, and shall be proposed as stipulated according to the actual distribution of

last year.
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(d)

Analysis of the proportion of the total remuneration of directors, supervisors,

general managers and deputy general managers of the Company paid by the

Company and all companies in the consolidated financial statement to net profit

after tax in individual financial statements of the past two fiscal years

Item Proportion of the total compensation to net profit after tax %
2021(Note) 2020
All companies in All companies in
the consolidated the consolidated
The Company financial The Company financial
Title statement statement
Directors 0.195 0.432 0.229 0.349
General Managers and
Deputy General Managers 0.656 0.656 0.707 0.708

Note: As of the printing date of this Annual Report, the distribution list of employee profit sharing has not been fixed, and
shall be proposed as stipulated according to the actual distribution of last year.

(e)

Procedures for payment and relevance with operation performance and future risks

(1)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

v)

(vi)

The Company’s Articles of Incorporation does not specify director remuneration.
There is no compensation distributed to Directors or Supervisors except employee

compensation.

(Independent) director remuneration and attendance fees are proposed and processed

according to “Director remuneration allocation policies”.

(Independent) director remuneration has a fixed remuneration and attendance fees.

There are no variable or other remunerations paid.

Remuneration and attendance fees will not be issued to directors or Representatives
who are also Company employees, related companies, or employees of Company-

invested entities.

Management compensation includes fixed salary, performance bonuses, employee
compensation. Salary is calculated by comparing industry peers’ similar positions,
employee level, education, experience, professional skill and responsible fields.
Bonuses will be allocated dependent on the overall profit contribution of each
business unit. Employee compensation are set according to manager’ operational

results.

According to the Company’s Articles of Incorporation, In case of the Company has
made a profit for the year, 5% to 7% of the profit shall be set aside for staff
compensation, and manager salaries are evaluated on a frequent basis. Manager
compensation will be processed according to the Company’s “Management
remuneration allocation policies”, and are subject to the indicators within the policies
which business performance compensation is calculated by two main facets, 1.

Financial Indicators: According to the profit and loss, and evaluating the contribution
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on the overall profit contribution of each business unit, and managers target

achievement rate; and 2. Non-financial indicators: Implementation of core company

values and operation management capabilities, and sustainable management

participation. Furthermore, constantly monitoring the implementation of management

compensation and relevant laws and regulations.

B. Implementation of corporate governance

(1) Information on implementation of Board of Directors
Six meetings were held by the Board of Directors in the most recent year (2021) with their
attendance shown as follows:
Title Name Attendance | By | Attendance | Remark
in person | prox rate in s
y person (%) | (Note)
Chairman Liu, Young-Way 6 0 100% -
Vice Chairman Hon Jin International Investment 6 0 100% -
Co., Ltd.
Representative: Jay Lee
Director Gou,Tai-ming (Terry Gou) 0 6 0% -
Director Lu, Fang-ming 6 0 100% -
Director Hon Jin International Investment 5 0 83.33% -
Co., Ltd.
Representative: Lu, Sung-Ching
Director Fu Chu Technology Co., Ltd. 6 0 100% -
Representative: Christina Yee-ru Liu
Independent James Wang 6 0 100% -
Director
Independent Kuo, Tei-Wei 6 0 100% -
Director
Independent Kung, Kuo-Chuan 5 0 83.33% -
Director

Other noteworthy matters:

A. the Board Meeting’s date, session, proposal contents, all Independent Directors’ opinions and the

Company’s actions in response to the opinions if any of the following occurred:

(a) Matters specified in Article 14-3 of Taiwan’s Securities and Exchange Act: The Company

established Audit Committee on July 1, 2016. The provisions of Article 14-3 of the Securities
Exchange Act are not applicable. For an explanation of the matters listed in Article 14-5 of the
Securities Exchange Act, please refer to Operation of the Audit Committee section.
(b)  Other matters apart from the aforementioned where an independent director has a dissenting
opinion or qualified opinion: None
B. Effort made by directors in preventing Conflict of Interests when required:

1.

On J March 30th 2021, the board proposed the lifting of director of non-competition
restrictions, resolutions regarding the issuance of 2019 annual managers’ year-end bonus and
performance-based bonuses and resolutions regarding the issuance of 2020 manager year-end
bonus and performance bonus issuance ratification case. Executive Chairman Liu, Young-Way
abstained from voting to avoid conflict of interest. The rest of the attending Directors
unanimously passed the resolution.
On November 12th 2021, the board proposed resolutions regarding follow up agenda for
distribution of 2020 employee remunerations. Executive Director Liu Yang-Way abstained
from voting to avoid conflict of interest. The rest of the attending Directors unanimously
passed the resolution.

C. Evaluation of targets for strengthening of the functions of the board during the current and immediately
preceding fiscal years (such as the establishment of an Audit Committee, increase in transparency, etc.),
and measures taken toward achievement thereof: The Company established an Audit Committee and
Compensation committee, both to assist in supervision of the Board.
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@

The Board of Directors Evaluation and Implementation

Evaluation | Evaluation . Evaluation .
Frequency Period Evaluation Scope Method Content of Evaluation
Annually | 2021/1/1 to | Including the Self evaluation of | 1. The items for the self- evaluation
2021/12/31 | performance the performance of of the board of directors include

evaluation of the
board of directors,
directors and
functional
committees

board of directors,
directors and
functional
committees

the following aspects:

(1) The degree of participation in
the company's operations.

(2) Improvement of board
decision quality.

(3) The composition and
structure of the board of
directors.

(4) The selection and continuing
education of directors.

(5) Internal control.

2. The items for the self- evaluation
of the individual directors include
the following aspects:

(1) Understanding of the
Company’s goals and
mission.

(2) Awareness of directors'
duties.

(3) The degree of participation in
the company's operations.

(4) Internal relationship
management and
communication.

(5) Continuing education of
directors.

(6) Internal control.

3. The items for the self- evaluation

of the functional committees

include the following aspects:

(1) The degree of participation in
the company's operations.

(2) Awareness of the functional
committees’ responsibilities.

(3) Improvement of board
decision quality.

(4) Functional committee
composition and member
selection.

(5) Internal control.
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Information on operation of Audit Committee

(3)In most recent year, the Audit Committee held 6 meetings, and the attendance

of Independent Directors is as follows:

Title Name Attendance By Attendance rate Remarks
in person proxy in person (%) (Note)

Independent Director | James Wang 6 0 100%

Independent Director | Kuo, Tei-Wei 6 0 100%

Independent Director | Kung, Kuo-Chuan 5 0 83.33%

Other noteworthy matters:

A.  When one of the following situations occurred to the operations of the Audit Committee, state the date,
period, proposal contents, independent directors opinion, opinion with reservations or significant
recommendation and resolutions of the Audit Committee, and the Company's actions in response to the
opinions of the Audit Committee:

(a) Matters specified in Article 14-5 of the Taiwan’s Securities and Exchange Act: Please refer to
following pages.

(b) Resolutions passed by two-thirds of all Directors but without approval of the Audit Committee
except for the preceding item: None

B.  Efforts made by independent directors in preventing Conflict of Interests when required: None

C.  Communications between the independent directors, the internal auditors and independent auditors
(including means of communication and results, regarding Company financials, operations and other

matters):
(a) Independent director, internal auditor and Accountant communication:
1. Atleast once a year, a separate meeting of independent directors, internal audit supervisors

and accountants is held to discuss the completed external audit findings of the Chief Audit
Executive and accountants, and to communicate according to the deficiency of annual audit,
and record down the communication.

2. At the end of each month, the head of Internal Audit send the audit and follow-up reports
for the preceding month, and reports to independent directors according to the Company’s
annual audit plans and internal control follow-up procedures. Provide audit progress reports
to independent directors at least once a quarter. If material unusual matters occur during the
auditing process, the head of Internal Audit will produce a report and submit to the
independent directors immediately. There were no abnormal events during 2021.

3. Independent directors and accountants communicate and discuss audit planning matters and
key audit matters.

4.  Others: In the event of major unusual activities or matters that independent directors, Chief
Audit Executives and accountants deem necessary to communicate separately, meetings
may be held at any time in any occasion.

Communication between the independent directors, the Chief Audit Executive and
accountants has been good and efficient.
(b) The major matters of the communications between independent directors and internal auditors in

2021:
Audit Communications between independent directors and internal auditors
Committee
Meeting Date
2021/03/30 Attendees Independent Director/James Wang, Independent Director/Kuo,
Audit Tei-Wei, Independent Director/Kung, Kuo-Chuan, Chief Audit
Committee Executive/Galatea Chao
Pre-meeting | Description | 1. Audit Report Progress Report for Q4 2020
2. Approving of the 2020 Statement of Internal Control System.
3. Head of internal auditor responds to questions raised in the
meeting.
Resolution | Met with no objection.
2021/05/14 Attendees Independent Director/James Wang, Independent Director/Kuo,
Audit Tei-Wei, Independent Director/Kung, Kuo-Chuan, Chief Audit
Committee Executive/Galatea Chao
Pre-meeting | Description | 1. Audit Report Progress Report for Q1 2021
2. Head of internal auditor responds to questions raised in the
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D.

meeting.

Resolution | Met with no objection.
2021/08/12 Attendees Independent Director/James Wang, Independent Director/Kuo,
Audit Tei-Wei, Independent Director/Kung, Kuo-Chuan, Chief Audit
Committee Executive/Galatea Chao
Pre-meeting | Description | 1. Audit Report Progress Report for Q2 2021
2. Head of internal auditor responds to questions raised in the
meeting.
Resolution | Met with no objection.
2021/11/09 Attendees Independent Director/James Wang, Independent Director/Kuo,
Audit Tei-Wei, Chief Audit Executive/Galatea Chao,
Committee Accountant/Hsu, Yung-Chien
Pre-meeting | Description | 1. Audit Report Progress Report for Q3 2021
2. Approving of the Company’s 2021 annual audit plans and
procedures.
3. Head of internal auditor responds to questions raised in the
meeting.
Resolution | Met with no objection.
2021/11/12 Attendees Independent Director/James Wang, Independent
Annual Audit Director/Kuo, Tei-Wei, Accountant/Hsu, Yung-Chien
Report Meeting | Description | 1. Accountants communicated and discussed the audit planning
matters and key audit matters in 2021.
2. The impact of the Covid19 epidemic on 2021 audit work.
Resolution | Independent directors and accountants fully communicated, and

met with no objections from the independent directors.

(@)

Audit Committee annual major matters and operation status:
Annual major annual matters:

1. Regularly communicate the results of the audit report with the internal auditor based on the
annual audit plan.

2. Regularly communicate with the company's CPA on the results of the quarterly financial
statements review or audit.

NN R W

Review financial reports

Evaluation of the effectiveness of the internal control system.
Material asset or derivative transactions.

Appointment, dismissal or remuneration of CPA.

CPA qualification and independence assessment.

Review and revise the “Procedures for Acquisition and Disposal of Assets”, “Procedures for

Derivatives Transactions”, "Procedures for Lending of Capital to Other Parties”, and

“Procedures for Endorsement and Guarantee” or any other major financial business

behaviors.
9. Regulatory Compliance.

(b) Implementation:
Board Motions and subsequent actions Particulars | Contents of
Meeting described | independent
Date / in Article directors'
Meeting 14-5 of the | objections,
Number. Securities | reservations
and or major
Exchange proposals
Act
2021/03/30 . The Company’s 2020 annual financial report. v None
17" Board | 2. The Company plans to issue the first overseas v None
13" Meeting unsecured convertible corporate bonds in 2021.
3. The Company plans to indirectly disposal of v None
Equity of Fuyu properties (Shanghai) Co., Ltd
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4. 2021 annual financial report verification, proposal v None
for appointment of accountants, independence
evaluation of accounts and related service
expenses.

5. Approved the company's 2020 internal control v None
statement proposal.

Audit committee resolution (2021/03/30): Passed by all attending Audit committee
members.

Company’s response to Audit committee opinions:

2021/05/14 | The audit certification of the Company's 2020 v None
17 Board | Operational Results.

14" Meeting | Audit committee resolution (2021/05/14): Passed by all attending Audit committee
members.

Company’s response to Audit committee opinions:

2021/08/051 | 1. Case of acquiring the plant and equipment of v None
7" Board Macronix Electronics Co., Ltd.
16" Meeting [ Case of donating COVID-19 Vaccine v None
Audit committee resolution (2021/08/05): Passed by all attending Audit committee
members.

Company’s response to Audit committee opinions:

2021/08/12 | 1. Case of the Company's lending capital and domestic v None
17" Board subsidiary

17" Meeting | 2. Case of proposing indirect investment in Futaihua v None
Precision Industry (Weihai) Co., Ltd.

3. Case of indirect disposal of share subscription v None
warrants of Pu Li Da Technology Co., Ltd. in
Foshan City.

4. Amendment to the Company's "Internal Control v None
System for the Management of the Financial
Statement Preparation Process"

Audit committee resolution (2021/08/12): Passed by all attending Audit committee
members.

Company’s response to Audit committee opinions:

2021/11/121 | 1. Proposed increase of capital in subsidiary Lin Yin v None
7% Board International Investment Co., Ltd.

18% Meeting |73 Dispose of the Company's plant and machinery to v None
its subsidiary, Hon Young Semiconductor
Corporation.

3. Proposed increase of capital to its subsidiary Hon v None
Young Semiconductor Corporation.

4. Finalizing of the Company’s 2022 “Annual Audit v None
Plan”

5. Introduced ISO37001 anti-bribery management v None
system certification, adding 12 internal control
regulations and corresponding forms and list.

Audit committee resolution (2021/11/12): Passed by all attending Audit committee
members.

Company’s response to Audit committee opinions:

Resolutions passed by two-thirds of all Directors but without approval of the Audit Committee
except for the preceding item: None

Hon Hai's Audit Committee is empowered by its Charter to conduct any study or investigation it deems
appropriate to fulfill its responsibilities. It has direct access to Company's internal auditors, the Company’s
independent auditors, and all employees of the Company. The Committee is authorized to retain and oversee
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special legal, accounting, or other consultants as it deems appropriate to fulfill its mandate. The Audit
Committee Charter is available on Hon Hai's corporate website.

-51-




“@

The difference between the corporate governance implementation and the Corporate

Governance Best Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM-Listed Companies and reasons:

Implementation Status

Difference from

Corporate
Governance
Item Practice Principles
Yes | No Description for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons
1. Does the Company set and v The Company has set a corporate No Difference
disclose corporate governance code of practice, for the
governance code of protection of shareholders’ rights, to
practice according to strengthen the functions of the BOD,
corporate governance respect the interests of stakeholders,
practice principles for enhance the transparency of information
TWSE/GTSM-Listed and relevant rules.
companies? Detailed information can be found on the
Company’s website.
2. Equity structure and No Difference
shareholder rights.
(1) Has the Company set v (1) The Investor Relations Department is
internal operating dedicated to processing shareholder
procedures to deal with proposals or disputes.
shareholder proposals,
doubts, disputes and
litigation matters, and
does it implement these in
accordance with its
procedures?
(2) Does the Company havea | v (2) The Company keeps track of of the
list of those who shareholding status of directors,
ultimately control the managers, and major shareholders
major shareholders of the holding more than 10%, and provides
Company? disclosure according to law.
(3) How does the Company 4 (3) The Company has established
establish its risk appropriate internal risk control
management mechanism mechanisms and firewalls, pursuant to
and firewalls involving the rules for specific companies or
related enterprises? groups related business operations and
financial transactions, supervision
measures for subsidiaries, procedures
for endorsement and guarantee,
operational procedures for lending
funds to others and procedures for
asset acquisition & disposal. Business
relations between affiliated enterprises
have been evaluated by an
independent third party to prevent
violations of unlawful transactions.
(4) Has the Company set v (4) The Company has set operating

internal standards to
prohibit the use of
undisclosed insider
information to trade
securities on the market?

procedures and critical control points
to prevent insider trading, Company
insiders are prohibited from using
undisclosed information to buy and
sell securities on the market.
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Item

Implementation Status

Yes

No

Description

Difference from
Corporate
Governance
Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons

Q)

@

€)

Organization and
responsibilities of the
Board of Directors

Has the Company
established a
diversification policy or
specific goal for the
composition of its Board
of Directors and has it
been implemented
accordingly?

Has the Company
establish other functional
committees besides the
Compensation Committee
and Audit Committee?

Has the Company set
performance assessment
rules and methods for the
BOD and does it perform
this evaluation every year?

Q)

2

3

The Company has set “Corporate
Governance Practical Principles” to
ensure boards’ diversity. The
company’s BOD (including
independent directors) has adopted a
nomination system.

The members of the BOD are
diversified and possess
manufacturing, brand channel,
technological research and financial
investment backgrounds for the
implementation of Board diversity
and create a healthy board structure.
Concurrently an employee of the
Company accounts for 22.22% and
33.33% of directors and independent
directors respectively. 2 independent
director tenure average below 3 years
and 1 independent director has a
tenure of 4 years. 2 directors are aged
between 51-60. 6 between 61-70 years
of age. 1 between 71-80 years of age.
The Company places great importance
on the gender diversity of the Board,
of 9 current directors, there is 1
female representation, accounting for
11%.

(Please refer to “[7] Diversity within
the members of the Board of
Directors” in previous pages for board
members’ professions and
independence).

The Company set up a Compensation
Committee, has also set up the FGSC
Committee, Energy-saving
Technology Development Committee,
Employee Benefits Committee and
Employee Retirement Reserves
Oversight Committee and
Sustainability Committee;
Nomination Committee on March 16
2022; other functional committees
will be set up depending on future
needs.

Since November 12, 2020, the
Company’s Procedures includes
“Director and Committee evaluation
method”. Evaluations are conducted
early, and at least once every three

No Difference
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Implementation Status

Yes

No

Description

Difference from
Corporate
Governance
Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons

years by an external professional
independent organization or an
external scholar/expert. The
evaluation also specifies aspects of
evaluation for each functional
committee. The company’s internal
performance evaluation for the board
of directors in the most recent year is
carried out by the directors, using
internal questionnaires.

1. The items for the self- evaluation
of the board of directors include
the following aspects:

(1) The degree of participation in
the company's operations.

(2) Improvement of board
decision quality.

(3) The composition and
structure of the board of
directors.

(4) The selection and continuing
education of directors.

(5) Internal control.

2. The items for the self- evaluation
of the individual directors include
the following aspects:

(1) Understanding of the
Company’s goals and
mission.

(2) Awareness of directors'
duties.

(3) The degree of participation in
the company's operations.

(4) Internal relationship
management and
communication.

(5) Continuing education of
directors.

(6) Internal control.

3. The items for the self- evaluation
of the functional committees
include the following aspects:

(1) The degree of participation in
the company's operations.

(2) Awareness of the functional
committees’ responsibilities.

(3) Improvement of board
decision quality.

(4) Functional committee
composition and member
selection.

(5) Internal control.

Evaluation Results:

The results of the performance
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Item

Implementation Status

Yes

No

Description

Difference from
Corporate
Governance
Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons

(4) Does regularly evaluate
the independence of the
CPA?

“

evaluation of the board of directors

were sent to the board of directors and

functional committees on March 16,

2022 and were used as a reference for

the remuneration of individual

directors and nominations for re-

election. The results of the 2021

performance evaluation are as

follows:

1. The overall average score of the
board of directors’ performance
self-evaluation is 4.93 points (out
of 5); the overall average score of
the individual board members’
self-evaluation is 4.92 points (out
of 5). The results of the overall
board performance evaluation are
still effective.

2. The overall average score of the
audit committee's self-evaluation
is 4.88 points (out of 5).

3. The overall average score of the
compensation committee's self-
evaluation is 4.43 points (out of
5).

The Company regularly assesses the
performance and independence of the
CPA through the BOD. The
recommended CPA is required to
provide CVs and declarations (not in
violation of Ethical Standards
Publication No. 10) for the BOD to
discuss the appointment and
independence of the CPAs. The
company’s board of directors
reviewed and approved on March 16,
2022: All certified public accountants
meet the company’s independence
assessment standards (direct or
indirect financial interest with clients,
excessive reliance on the source of
remuneration from a single client by
the firm, significant and close
business relationship, etc.).

4. Does the Company
appoint competent and
appropriate corporate
governance personnel and
corporate governance
officer to be in charge of
corporate governance
affairs (including but not
limited to furnishing
information required for

In aims to implement corporate
governance, assist directors, and protect
investor rights; the Company has passed a
resolution on 2019/05/14 board meeting
and has appointed competent and
appropriate corporate governance
personnel. The Company has established
full-time financial officer, Huang, De-cai
as responsible for corporate governance
related matters. Huang has accumulated

No Difference
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Implementation Status

Yes

No

Description

Difference from
Corporate
Governance
Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons

business execution by
directors, assisting
directors’ compliance of
law, handling matters
related to board meetings
and shareholders’
meetings according to law,
and recording minutes of
board meetings and
shareholders’ meetings)?

over twenty years of financial manager
expertise and experience.

Primary responsibilities include the
following:

Assist Independent and Non-
Independent Directors to carry out
their duties pursuant to the Law:

1.

a.

Notify the board 7 days in
advance before Board of Director
meetings, and if matters are
subject to abstaining due to
conflicts of interest.

Registration of the Shareholders’
Meeting dates, and notification
dates according to relevant laws.

Creation of board and shareholder
meeting minutes - 20 days after the
meeting according the relevant
regulations.

Assist Directors in assuming the

position: According to the Company’s

specific industry, and the profession
and educational backgrounds of the
Director, assist the Director in
formulating an advancement plan and
arrange relevant classes.

Assist in production of materials to
assist the Board of Directors to carry
out their duties:

a.

Regularly inform the Board of
Directors with relevant
information regarding updates
rules and regulations of
Company’s industry and relevant
corporate governance updates.
Review relevant information
confidentiality levels and provide
the Board of Directors the
necessary information, maintain
the Board and Managements
communication channels.
Meeting with internal and
external auditors to maintain
Independent Director’s
compliance with the Company’s
corporate governance regulations,
and if needed, organize relevant
meetings.

Assist in the Board’s compliance with
Laws:

a.

Report to the Board regarding the
Company’s governance situation,
and make sure the Company’s
Shareholders’ and Board of
Directors’ Meetings comply with
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Implementation Status

Difference from

Corporate
Governance
Item Practice Principles
Yes | No Description for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons
relevant laws and corporate
governance practices.
b. Assist and remind Directors
regarding the importance of
adherence to laws and regulations
for resolutions within meetings,
and provide suggestions in the
case where such laws and
regulations are infringed upon.
c. Examination of Directors’
Meeting’s resolutions post-
meeting, and the release of such
information. Confirming the
resolutions and relevant
information are according to law
and correct, to protect the
integrity of investors’ trading
information.
6. For “Continuing education of
Directors”, please see following pages
5. Does the Company v The Company has set “Stakeholder Zone” | No Difference
establish communication and have the contact information for
channels and dedicate spokesperson and any related contact
section for stakeholder on window to on its website to respond to
its website to respond to major concerns regarding corporate social
important issues of responsibilities from stakeholders. Please
corporate social refer to CSR Annual Report. “The
responsibility concerns? communication and Responsibility of
stakeholder” Chapter.
6. Has the company v The Company authorized “Grand Fortune | No Difference
appointed a professional Securities Co., Ltd.” as stock service
stock affairs agency for agency to handle shareholder transactions.
shareholders affairs?
7. Disclosure of information No Difference
(1) Does the Company set up v (1) The Company has placed financial
website to disclose and corporate governance information
financial operations and of each year on its website.
corporate governance
information?
(2) Has the Company adopted | v (2) The Company has an English website

other measures (such as
English website, a
designated person
responsible for the
collection and disclosure
of information,
implementation of the
spokesman system, the
legal entities
announcements uploaded
to website, etc.) to
disclose information?

and a spokesperson, investor relations
department and shareholder services
department to disclose relevant
information. The Company issued
global depository receipts (GDR) in
London, and discloses company
information on its website according
to the provisions of the relevant rules
of the London Stock Exchange.
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Implementation Status

Difference from

Does the Company have
other important
information for better
understanding the
Company’s corporate
governance system
(including but not limited
to interests and rights of
employees, care for
employees, relation with
investors, relation with
suppliers, relation with
interested parties,
continuing education of
directors and supervisors,
execution of risk
management policies and
risk measuring standards,
execution of customer
policies, liability
insurance for the
Company’s directors and
supervisors)?

@)

2

3)

“

)

(6)

™

Interests and rights of employees: The
Company has always treated
employees in good faith to ensure
their legal interests and rights in
accordance with the Labor Standards
Act.

Care for employees: by adopting a
welfare system and good education
and training, a relationship of mutual
trust has been established with
employees. Such as: employee
benefits and community cultural and
recreational activities and
entertainment, health clinic grants and
medical advice, the Company also
provides staff quarters, rented
accommodations for staff,
accommodation care, parking lots, etc.
Investor Relations: The Investor
Relations Department was set up to
specifically deal with shareholder
proposals.

Supplier Relationship: good relations
with suppliers are maintained at all
times.

Relations with stakeholders:
stakeholders shall communicate with
the Company and put forward
proposals to protect their due legal
rights and interests.

Continuing education of directors and
supervisors: The Company’s directors
are qualified with industrial
professional knowledge and practice
experience in operation management.
Please refer to the following table for
more information on continuing
education (please refer to the table
below for specific case studies).
Execution of risk management policy
and risk measuring standards: various

Corporate
Governance
Item Practice Principles
Yes | No Description for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons
(3) Does the Company v (3) The Company’s annual financial
announce and report the report and the first, second, and third
annual financial quarter financial reports were
statements within two announced and submitted within the
months after the end of the time limit specified by the law. In
fiscal year, and announce addition, since June 2019, the
and report the first, Company’s revenue information has
second, and third quarter been disclosed in advance on the 5" of
financial statements as the following month. However, the
well as the operating annual financial report has not been
status of each month announced and filed within two
before the prescribed months after the end of the fiscal year.
deadline?
v No Difference

-58-




Difference from

Implementation Status Corporate

Item
Yes

No

Governance
Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies

and reasons

Description

®)

(€))

internal regulations are established
legally for various risk management
and evaluation.

Execution of customer policies: stable
and good relations with customers are
maintained with the view of creating
profits.

Liability insurance for the Company’s
directors: liability insurance has been
covered for directors.

9. Please specify the measures adopted by the Company to improve the items listed in the corporate
governance review result from Taiwan Stock Exchange's Corporate Governance Center and the
improvement plans for items yet to be improved.

Evaluation Indicators

Priority items to be improved and measures:

Does the Company’s independent directors adhere
to “Directions for the Implementation of

The Company’s independent directors adheres to
“Directions for the Implementation of Continuing

Continuing Education for Directors and

Supervisors of TWSE Listed and TPEx Listed

Companies” and its directed hours?

Education for Directors and Supervisors of TWSE Listed
and TPEx Listed Companies” and its directed hours.

Continuing education of Directors

Title Name Date Organizer Course Hour
s
Director Lu, Fang-ming | 2021/09/01 | Financial The 13" Taipei 6
Supervisory Corporate
Commission Governance Forum
2021/10/05 | Securities and Key Technologies 3
Futures Institute and Business
Opportunities of
Quantum
Technology
2021/10/15 | Securities and Early Warning and 3
Futures Institute Categorization
Analysis of
Corporate Financial
Crisis
2021/10/27 | Securities and Discussion on 3
Futures Institute Human Resource
and M&A
Integration Issues in
the Process of
Corporate M&A
2021/11/19 | Securities and Discussion on the 3
Futures Institute Practice of
Combating Money
Laundering and
Financing of
Terrorism
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Title Name Date Organizer Course Hour
s
Corporate Christina Y. 2021/11/03 | Greater China Building Corporate 3
Director Liu Financial and Resilience Through
representative Economic Digital
Development Transformation
Association
2021/12/20 | Greater China Corporate 3
Financial and Reputation and
Economic Governance, from a
Development Big Data
Association Perspective
Independent | James Wang 2021/08/27 | Taiwan Corporate | Discussion on the 3
Director Governance Use of
Association Remuneration
Strategies and Tools
for Corporate
Employees
2021/08/27 | Taiwan Corporate | The Recent 3
Governance Development and
Association Response Strategy
of Cross-strait Anti-
tax Avoidance
Independent | Kuo, Tei-Wei | 2021/12/02 | Greater China Innovative Thinking 3
Director Financial and of Digital
Economic Transformation
Development
Association
2021/12/20 | Greater China Corporate 3
Financial and Reputation and
Economic Governance, from a
Development Big Data
Association Perspective
Independent | Kung, Kuo- 2021/11/19 | Greater China Tax Planning for 3
Director Chuan Financial and Corporate Operation
Economic and Shareholding
Development Structure
Association
2021/12/15 | Greater China M&A Trends and 3
Financial and Development of
Economic Investment Holding
Development Companies in
Association Taiwan
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Continuing education of corporate governance manager

Title

Name

Date

Organizer

Course

Hours

Corporate
Governance
Manager

Huang, De-Cai

2021/09/27

Securities and
Futures Institute

Legal Liability and
Case Analysis for
Insider Trading

2021/10/13

Securities and
Futures Institute

Relevant
Regulations and
Operational
Practices of the
Audit Committee

2021/10/26

Securities and
Futures Institute

Corporate Tax
Governance and
Tax Technology
Solutions, From the
Perspective of ESG
Trends and the
Epidemic
Environment

2021/11/03

Securities and
Futures Institute

2021 Annual
Prevention of
Insider Trading
Disseminate
Conference
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(5) Organization, responsibilities, and operation status of the Compensation Committee:

(a) Information on members of the Compensation Committee

at Austin

Masters of Computer Science, University of
Texas at Austin

Bachelor of Computer Science, National
Taiwan University

Acting President, National Taiwan University

Academic Vice President, National Taiwan
University

Distinguished Researcher and Director,
Research Center for Information Technology,
Academia Sinica

Convener, Ministry of Science and
Technology/Department of Engineering and
Technologies

Distinguished Professor, Department of
Computer Science and Information
Engineering, National Taiwan University

Academician, European Academy of Sciences
and Arts

Independent Director of Hon Hai’s the Board,
the member of Hon Hai Audit Committee and
the member of Hon Hai Compensation
Committee.

Academician, National Academy of Inventors

Distinguished Professor, Department of
Computer Science and Information
Engineering, Networking and Mutimedia and
Electronic Engineering, National Taiwan
University

Chair Professor, Information Engineering,
College of Engineering Director, and Senior
Consultant to the President, City University of
Hong Kong

Name Professional Knowledge and Experience Independence Concurrent
Attribute independent director
position in other
publicly traded
companies

James Wang Business Administration, National Taiwan Please refer to 3
Chairperson University “Professional

EMBA Business Administration, National knowledge

Taiwan University and

Independent Director of Hon Hai’s the Board, i)nfdgili zgifrl;,c,e

the member of Hon Hai Audit Committee and in previous

the chairperson of Hon Hai Compensation f

Committee. bages for

board

Chairman, Les enphants Co. Ltd members’

Executive Director, Chain Stores and professions

Franchise Association and

Executive Director, Marketing independence

Communication Executive International

Executive Director, Taiwan Excellent Brand

Association
Kuo, Tei-Wei | PhD. Computer Science, University of Texas 0
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Name Professional Knowledge and Experience Independence Concurrent
Attribute independent director
position in other
publicly traded
companies
Kung, Kuo- Masters of Business Administration, Harvard 0
Chuan Business School.
Bachelor Degree, Dartmouth College
Independent Director of Hon Hai’s the Board,
the member of Hon Hai Audit Committee and
the member of Hon Hai Compensation
Committee.
Partner, Greater China General Manager,
MBK Partners, L.P.
Managing Director, The Carlyle Group
Managing Partner, Nexus Point Advisors
(HK) Limited.
(b) Operation status of the Compensation Committee

(1)  There are 3 members in the Company’s Compensation Committee.

(2)  Current Term: From July 1, 2019 to June 30, 2022. The Compensation Committee held 2
meetings in the recent year, the qualifications and attendance of the Committee are shown as
follows:

Title Name Attendance By proxy Attendance rate in Remarks
in person person (%)

Chair James Wang 2 0 100%

Member Kuo, Tei-Wei 2 0 100%

Member Kung, Kuo-Chuan 1 0 50%

Other noteworthy matters:

c. The resolutions of the Compensation Committee and the Company’s action:

a. The Board of Directors does not accept Compensation Committee’s suggestions or amendments: None.

b. The resolutions of the Compensation Committee which Committee member has oppositions or
reservations: None.

Meeting Major Matters Resolution The Company’s
Date action regarding the
Compensation
Committee
2021/03/3 | 1. The ratification of the Company’s 2019 Passed by all Submitted to and
0 annual year-end bonus and performance-based | Audit passed by all
bonuses paid to the management team. committee attending directors.
2. Reviewing of the ratification of the members
Company’s 2020 annual remuneration paid to
the management team.
2021/11/1 | 1. Formulated the company's " Director and Passed by all Submitted to and
2 Committee evaluation method" proposal. Audit passed by all
2. Ratification of the Company’s 2020 committee attending directors.
remuneration paid to the management team. members Passed | Submitted to and
3. Approval of the salary and remuneration of by all Audit passed by all
the Company’s general manager. committee attending directors.
members

6
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Development of Listed OTC Companies and Its Reasons

Item

Implement status

Yes

Description

Difference from
Corporate
Governance
Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons

Does the company establish a
governance structure to achieve
sustainable development, and set up
a dedicated (part-time) unit to
promote sustainable development,
which is authorized by the board of
directors to handle senior
management, and supervised by the
board of directors?

The Company formally established
Corporate Social Responsibility
(CSR) in 2007 and renamed as
Sustainability Committee in 2022.
The organizational structure is
under the office of the directors.
The committee is chaired by
Company Chairman Liu Young-
Way; under which, an assigned
spokesman, Wu Jun-Yi, who is
special assistant and in charge of
the office. Xing Hao-Ran, the
assistant director, serves as the
director general, and
comprehensively manages the
practice of the committee. The
office has a team of full-time staff,
responsible for editing the relevant
systems and norms of the group's
sustainable development,
supervising the company's
sustainable development policies
and plans, regularly tracking and
evaluating the progress and
effectiveness of sustainable
development, publishing
sustainable development reports,
promoting and internalizing
sustainable development into the
group’s corporate culture. In
addition, each business group of the
group has its promotion branches,
which implement the relevant
sustainability policies of the group
and are supervised by the
sustainability committee.

The Sustainability Committee will
regularly report the progress of the
work to the Chairman, and report to
the Board of Directors at least once
a year on the annual
implementation results of
sustainable development.

No Difference

Does the company conduct risk
assessments on environmental,
social and corporate governance
issues related to company operations
according to the principle of
materiality, and formulate relevant
risk management policies or
strategies?

The company communicates with
shareholders through multiple
channels, gathers the focus of
attention from all walks of life,
and identifies preliminary
important issues based on the
context of sustainability,
materiality, integrity and
inclusiveness of shareholders, the
evaluate team of the Sustainability

No Difference
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Implement status

Yes

Description

Difference from
Corporate
Governance
Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons

Committee of the company will
evaluate the two axes of “impact to
the organization” and
“shareholders’ concern” according
to the identification of the AA1000
Materiality Test standard, and then
analyze the materiality ranking and
draw a matrix of major issues,
identify potential risks and
management opportunities faced by
the enterprise, and formulate
corresponding management
strategies to realize the concept of
sustainable development.

For details, see "Communication
and Responsibilities with
Stakeholders" in the Company's
Sustainability Report.

3. Environmental issues

(1) Does the company establish
proper environmental
management systems based on
the characteristics of their
industries?

(2) Does the company endeavor to
utilize all resources more
efficiently and use renewable
materials which have low
impact on the environment?

(1) The Company firmly believes
that when promoting
environmental protection, it
must not only comply with
relevant laws and regulations,
but also need to be in line with
international development
trends. In 2021, the Company
will formulate an
environmentally sustainable
development strategy based on
the identification of important
environmental issues. In
response to the international
trend and customer
requirements, the Company has
gradually established
environment management
systems for its business units,
and passed the certification of
ISO 14001: 2015 (received
2019/12/15, and valid through
2022/12/14), and certification
of ISO50001:2018 (received
2020/05/25, and valid through
2023/05/01). For details, please
refer to the Company's official
website and sustainability
report.

(2) The Group systematically
manages the energy use of the
group by adapting the ISO
50001 energy management
system and passing third-party

No Difference
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Implement status

Yes

Description

Difference from
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Governance
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for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons

verification, thereby
identifying the risks and
opportunities of reducing
energy use and improving
energy efficiency. The
Company continues to promote
the implementation of energy-
saving technical transformation
projects.

In addition, the Company also
actively develops new
technologies for energy
conservation and emission
reduction, new products, and
new business models to fully
explore the potential of energy
conservation, and to promote
and improve the Company’s
transformation and increase
revenue, and ultimately,
continuously optimizes the
Company's energy-saving and
carbon-reduction system and
achieves the goal of continuous
improvement.

The raw materials used by our
company are all in compliance
with EU RoHS, REACH and
halogen-free specifications.
The Company continues to
cooperate with international
customers, and conducts
chemical safety information
disclosure of processes used in
assembly plants. Furthermore,
establish a list of prohibited
substances to complete the
replacement of green chemicals
in customer products. The
Company assists some
international organizations
since 2021 to build an
information disclosure of green
cleaning agents; and also
establishment of a shared
platform, so as to promote
upstream and downstream
enterprises in the industry
chain to actively select green
chemicals which are
environmentally friendly and
safe.

The Company actively
advocates water recycling and
adopts
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Implement status

Yes

Description

Difference from
Corporate
Governance
Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons

renewable/biodegradable raw
materials to effectively reduce
the impact of production and
manufacturing on the
environment.

The company takes the Central
Environmental Protection
Office as the Environment
management team, and the
chief environmental protection
officer serves as the top leader.
Every year, the company
reviews the Environment
management team strategy and
goals, manages climate change
risks and opportunities,
implementation status and
discusses future plans. The
team reports to the chairman of
the board. The company has
officially become a TCFD
supporter since 2011. By
taking the advise from the
team, the team takes reviews
regulations, customer
requirements and expectations,
international trends and
research reports, to evaluates
climate change risks and
opportunities. And Further, by
reviewing above status, the
team proposes relevant
response measures to reduce or
avoid the adverse impact of
climate risks on the company,
while actively grasping climate
opportunities, so as to benefit
the company and build a good
culture of environmental
sustainability. For details,
please refer to the
Environmental Section of the
CSR Annual Report.

Since 1997, it has been
promoting carbon dioxide
emission, and some factories
have also passed the
verification and obtained
certificates.

(3) The company identifies the

Central Environmental
Protection Office as the climate
change management
organization, and the chief
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Implement status

Yes

Description

Difference from
Corporate
Governance
Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons

(3) Does the company assess the

potential risks and opportunities
of climate change on its present
and future operation, and take
measures to respond to climate-
related issues?

environmental protection
officer serves as the top
supervisor. Every year, the
Company reviews its climate
change strategy and goals,
manages climate change risks
and opportunities, reviews the
implementation status and
discusses future, and reports to
the chairman of the board. The
company officially became a
TCFD supporter in 2021. By
adapting the recommendations
of its working group to check
its internal operations’
situation, regulations, customer
requirements and expectations,
as well as international trend
development and research
reports, identify and evaluate
the risks and opportunities of
climate change, and propose
relevant managing response
measures to reduce or avoid the
adverse impact of climate risks
on the company, while actively
grasping climate opportunities,
s0 as to benefit the company
and build a good environmental
sustainability culture.

For details, please refer to the
Environmental Section of the
CSR Anual Report.

(4) Since 2010, the Company has

actively participated in the
Carbon Disclosure Program
(CDP), and has closely
monitored the greenhouse gas
emissions of direct emissions
(Scope 1) and indirect
emissions (Scope 2) and Scope
3 according to the “Green
House Gas Protocol Initiative”
(announced by World Business
Council for Sustainable
Development WBCSD, and
World Resources Institute,
WRI).

In 2021, direct greenhouse gas
emissions were 237,946 tons
CO2e, indirect greenhouse gas
emissions (based on location)
were 5,982,836 tons CO2e, and
indirect greenhouse gas
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Implement status
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Difference from
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Governance
Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons

4)

Does the company conduct
assessment on greenhouse gas,
water consumption and waste
for the last two years, and
establish company strategies for
energy conservation and carbon
reduction, greenhouse gas
reduction, water saving and
waste management?

emissions (location based)
were 5,772,920 tons CO2e.
The Company have examined
the carbon dioxide emission
since 2008. Some parts of our
plant have passed the
inspection and received
relevant certifications.

Unit: t CO2e

The company promotes the
recycling and reuse of water
resources, and has incorporated
renewable/biodegradable
materials into some production
raw materials, effectively
reducing the impact on the
environment during the
production process. In 2011,
the water consumption reached
79,446 million liters, the
recycled water reached 5,785
million liters, and the recycling
rate reached 7.28%.

The Company established a
waste management platform in
LongHua Park, ShenZhen,
mainland China in 2021.
Through data-based
management and control, the
generation, flow and
conversion rate of waste can be
tracked in real time. This
platform combines various
solutions such as reduction of
factory waste, resource
recovery of waste and
harmlessness treatment, which
is to be continuously improved
to achieve zero waste, and to
build a comprehensively zero-
waste ecological park.

)

Social Issues

Does the company formulate
appropriate management
policies and procedures
according to relevant regulations
and the International Bill of
Human Rights?

(1) The Company has set

employees codes of conduct in
accordance with labor laws and
related personnel regulations,
to protect the legitimate rights
and interests of employees. As
an official member of RBA, in
addition to actively
participating in alliance
activities and undertaking
member-related obligations,
the group is also committing to

No Difference
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Item

Implement status

Yes

Description

Difference from
Corporate
Governance
Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons

(2) Does the company formulate

and implement reasonable
employee benefits measures
(including remuneration,
vacation and other benefits,
etc.), and appropriately reflect
operating performance or results
in employee compensation?

(3) Does the company provide a

healthy and safe working
environment and organize

the compliance and
implementation of corporate
social responsibility with its
peers in the electronics industry
and various partners. The
"Group Corporate Social
Responsibility (CSR) Code of
Conduct" is formulated on the
basis of RBA, which is
implemented after being signed
by the chairman and the top
managers of each business
group, and is actively
implemented and listed as an
annual compulsory course for
all new employees.

On-the-job education for
employees further promote
compliance with the Code.

The Group's Code of Conduct
covers eight areas: Ethics,
Labor and Human Rights,
Health and Safety,
Environment, Management
Systems, Responsible Mineral
Sourcing, Anti-Corruption
Policy and Anti-Slavery Policy.

(2) According to the Article 28 of

the Company’s “Articles of
Incorporation” adopted by the
Board, 5%-7% of the Company
profit shall be set aside for
employee remuneration. The
Company has set performance
bonuses, employee
compensation and other
rewards systems. The
Company’s operating profit is
distributed to employees in
accordance with employee
performance, to align employee
and Company growth. In
addition, the Company has set
a code of employee ethics,
employee self- discipline,
performance evaluation and
reward system, leading
employees to behavior in line
with the Company’s corporate
social responsibility policy.

(3) The Company has formulated

the safety and health policy and
promised to achieve the goal of
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Item

Implement status

Yes

Description

Difference from
Corporate
Governance
Practice Principles
for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons

4)

®)

(6)

training on health and safety for
its employees on a regular
basis?

Does the company provide its
employees with career
development and training
sessions?

Does the company comply with
relevant regulations and
international standards on the
health and safety of customers,
customer privacy, marketing and
labeling of products and
services, and formulates relevant
policies and procedures to
protect consumer rights and
handling complaints?

Does the company formulated
and implement supplier
management policy, requiring
suppliers to follow relevant

zero injury, zero occupational
disease and zero accident so as
to create a best working
environment for all employees.
The Company updated Health
and Safety Management
System in 2019, and have
received SGS Certifications
ISO45001 (received
2019/11/24, and valid through
2022/11/23), and CNS45001.
The Company regularly hosts
health promotion training
during training for new
recruits. For the 2021 health
promotion training, a total of
39 sessions were held this year,
totaling 19.5 hours, and a total
of 39 sessions of labor health
education training, totaling 117
hours.

(4) The Company’s Career

Development unit is tasked
with the planning and
implementation of the Career
Development Program.

(5) On health and safety and

protection of customer privacy
and rights for complaint for
customers, the Company
complies with relevant
regulations and establishes
procedures based on
international standards.
Detailed procedures and codes
can be found on the Company's
official website.
https://www.honhai.com/s3/rep
orts/CSR%UES%A0%B1%ES5%
91%8A%E6%9B%B8/%E6%9
6%B9%E9%87%9D%E6%BA
%96%E5%89%87/2021%E5%
B9%B4%E9%B4%BB%E6%B

5%B7%E7%A7%91%E6%8A
%80%E9%9B%86%ES5%9C%
98%E8%A 1%8C%E7%82%B
A%E6%BA%96%E5%89%87.

pdf

(6) The Company has established

supplier management policies.
Requiring suppliers to adhere
to environmental, occupational
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Difference from
Implement status

Corporate
Governance
Item Practice Principles
Yes | No Description for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons
regulations on issues such as health and safety, and labor
environmental protection, rights guidelines, and
occupational safety and health, supervises and audits
or labor rights? accordingly. For details, please

visit Hon Hai Supplier Social
and Environmental
Responsibility Website:
https://sser.foxconn.com/Portal
/SupplierLogon.aspx

Please refer to the supplier
management chapter of the
company's sustainability report
for the relevant

implementation.

5. Does the company compile v The Company’s sustainability No Difference
corporate social responsibility report is compiled according to
reports or reports that disclose Global Reporting Initiative (GRI)
the company's non-financial GRI-Standard Sustainability
information based on Reporting Standards and the
international CSR compiling Sustainability Accounting
standard or guidelines? Is the Standards Board (SASB) standards,
report accredited from with the previous report receiving
accreditation agency or third- confirmed third-party accreditation
party verification organization? (BSD).

6. If the Company makes its own corporate social responsibilities principles according to the Rules of
Corporate Social Responsibility Best Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM-Listed Companies, please state
the differences: Not applicable.

7. Any other important information that helps to understand the conduct of corporate social responsibility:

(1) Adopted new processing system to enhance the capacity to recover wastes and sewage. The new system
has been installed and put into operation in some areas in the plant.

(2) Respecting employees, the Company emphasizes that it does not hire child labor, does not force employees
to work overtime. Managers are prohibited to discriminate or harass against employees. All relevant
measures are officially announced.

(3) The Company has Health and Safety Department, examining the facilities, providing training to employees
on industrial safety and health and conduct performance review on a regular basis.

(4) The Company has a supplier management department, providing audit and trainings on corporate social
responsibilities to suppliers.

(5) The Company participates in events relating to development of society, charity groups and domestic
governments via donations:

a. Donated NT$67,052,248 to the Hope Elementary School for academic counseling.

b. Sponsored NT$39,990,000 for scholarship programs for Foxconn Education Foundation.

c. Sponsored NT$5,999,995 to the Kaohsiung City Table Tennis Association — Player Training Program.
d. Donated NT$5,521,487 to NPOs and NGOs.

e. The company and YongLing Foundation have each completed the purchase of five million doses of

BioNTech (BNT) 162b2 vaccine, for a total of 10 million doses, and donated them to the Taiwan
Centers for Disease Control (CDC) of the Executive Yuan Ministry of Health and Welfare for
epidemic prevention of the novel coronavirus (COVID-19).
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@) Status of Implementation of Integrity Operation and differences to the Ethical Corporate
Management Best Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM Listed Companies and rationale.
. Difference from
Implementation Status Ethical Corporate
Management Best
Item Practice Principles
Yes | No Description for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons
1. Establishment of ethical No Difference
corporate management
policies and programs
(1) Does the company formulate | v (1) The Company has established the
ethical corporate board approved “Integrity
management policy that Management Code”, based on
approved by the board of principles of legality, fairness,
directors, and declare its equality, consensus and good faith.
policies and procedures in its These principles of integrity are set
guidelines and external down and implemented through the
documents, as well as the provisions of the Company’s
commitment from its board “Declaration of Human Resources
and top executives to and Code of Conduct” section of
implement the policies? the Employee Handbook.
(2) Has the company established | v (2) The company has established
an evaluation mechanism to effective internal control
assess the unethical conducts mechanisms, subject to routine
risk, and regularly analyzes annual evaluations analysis and
and evaluates business report, and used as a basis for
activities with high potential formulating a plan to prevent
unethical conducts, and unethical behavior.
formulates a precaution plan
which at least covered listed
activities stated in Article 2,
Paragraph 7 of the Ethical
Corporate Management Best
Practice Principles for
TWSE/TPEx Listed
Companies?
(3) Does the company establish v (3) The Company is committed to
policies to prevent unethical abiding by international and
conduct with clear domestic corruption and anti-
statements regarding bribery laws which are described
relevant procedures, in the corporate social
guidelines of conduct, responsibility (CSR) code of
punishment for violation, conduct. The Company has a zero-
rules of appeal, the tolerance policy regarding any
commitment to implement activities in violation of the
the policies, and review the provisions. The aforementioned
policy regularly? policies are routinely reviewed and
subject to amendment.
2. Fulfill operations integrity No Difference
policy
(1) Does the company evaluate v (1) The Company asks its suppliers,

business partners’ ethical
records and include ethics-
related clauses in business

manufacturers and customers to
sign “Partner Commitment” and
strictly implement high-standard
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Item

Implementation Status

Difference from
Ethical Corporate
Management Best
Practice Principles

Yes | No Description for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons
contracts? anti-corruption policies as the
premise for cooperation.

(2) Does the company establish v (2) The Company has set up a
an exclusively dedicated unit dedicated Corporate Integrity unit
supervised by the Board to through the Safety Department.
be in charge of corporate The unit is responsible for policy-
integrity, and regularly (at making and execution supervision
least once a year) report to of integrity management policies,
the Board about the and prevention of unethical
implementation of ethical behavior, reporting at least
corporate management annually to the Board of Directors.
policy and the plan against On November 11, 2021, the
unethical conducts? Company reported the 2021

Implementation of Corporate
Integrity to the Board of Directors:
The Company requires employees
sign "Employee Declaration",
"Employee Integrity Commitment"
and "Honesty, Integrity & IP
Protection Agreement ", and
routinely invites internal and
external experts to provide insight
to employees regarding relevant
law amendments, to prevent any
possible mistakes. Employees and
suppliers involved in dishonest
behaviors found in the
investigation shall be punished
accordingly.

(3) Does the company establish v (3) The Company developed the codes
policies to prevent conflicts of conduct standards on corporate
of interest and provide social and environmental
appropriate communication responsibilities, and published the
channels, and implement it? “The Group’s Anti- Corruption

Code of Conduct” which clearly
defines integrity management,
information disclosure, unfair
income, fair trade, identity
confidential and anonymous
complaints principles.

(4) Has the company established | ¥ (4) According to result of analysis for
effective systems for both unethical conduct, the Company’s
accounting and internal internal audit unit formulates
control to facilitate ethical related auditing plans and
corporate management, and evaluations.
audit the implementation of
policies of preventing
unethical conduct, either by
internal auditors or CPAs on
a regular basis?

v

(5) Does the company regularly

©)

For 2021, the Company hosted

74-




Item

Implementation Status

Difference from
Ethical Corporate
Management Best
Practice Principles

Yes | No Description for TWSE/GTSM
Listed Companies
and reasons
hold internal and external training pertaining to ethical
educational trainings on management, including insider
operational integrity? trading, trade secrets and legal
general education information and
telecom network operating
procedures and principles, and
company information security
courses. Courses were participated
by 1,453 for 2,6906 hours
cumulatively.
3. Report System operating No Difference
status
(1) Has the company set specific | v (1) Dedicated personnel, reporting
report and reward system to channels, procedures and feedback
facilitate the report cannel information can be found on the
and assign appropriate Company’s “Integrity Management
specialist accepting to spot Code”.
the reported object?
(2) Does the company establish v (2) The Company has set up the
standard operating dedicate groups for acceptance and
procedures for confidential investigation of misconducts, and
reporting on investigating have formulated the Company’s
accusation cases and “Fraudulent Inspection Act”,
measures for follow-up? protecting the investigations
confidentiality, procedure, and
post-investigation measures.
(3) Has the Company set v (3) The Company clearly defined in
measures to protect corporate social responsibility
whistleblowers do not suffer codes of conduct which will
for which he or she protect both identity and
reported? anonymous reports for suppliers
and employees to ensure the
identity of the confidential
informant.
4. Enhance information v The Company has established Integrity | No Difference
disclosure Operation Rules, and discloses the
Does the company disclose implementation results on CSR annual
the information of report. The content of the Integrity
implementation and results Operation Rules and the
of integrity management on implementation results are disclosed on
its website and the MOPS? company official website and the
MOPS.
5. If the company develops its own integrity operation rules according to the Integrity Operation Best
Practice Principles for TWSE/GTSM-Listed Companies, please state the differences: No difference.
6. Other important information for better understanding of the integrity operation (such as review and
revision of the regulations on integrity operation)
(1) The Company strictly abides by the Company Act, the Securities and Exchange Act, Business Entity

Accounting Act, publicly traded relevant rules and other relevant laws and regulations of business conduct
as the basis for the implementation of the integrity management.
(2) Please refer to the Company’s official website http://www.foxconn.com for the Integrity Management
Code and Annual Report on Corporate Social and Environmental Responsibilities.
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(8)  Other Company-established corporate governance rules and regulations
Please refer to the Company’s website for the company’s Corporate Governance Code of Practice.
(9)  Other Important Corporate Governance Information

There is a “CSR” link (http://www.honhai.com/) on the Company’s website. It includes the “Corporate

Social Responsibility Code of Conduct,” annual report of “Performance of Social Responsibilities” and

“Status of Implementation of Integrity Management” report.
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(10

Status of Implementation of Internal Control System
a.  Statement of Internal Control System

Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd.

Statement of Internal Controls

Date: 3/16/2022

According to the examination on internal control system done by the Company itself in 2021, we hereby state as
follows:

(1

2

3)

4

)

(6)

()

The Company’s Board of Directors and management team understand their responsibilities of developing,
implementing and maintaining the Company’s internal control system, and such a system has been
established. The purpose of establishing the internal control system is to reasonably assure the following
objectives: (a) The effectiveness and efficiency of business operation (including earnings, operation
performance and the safeguard of company assets); (b) Achieve the reliability, timeliness, transparency, and
compliance objectives according to the relevant laws and regulations in order to provide reasonable
assurances.

Due to the innate limitation in designing a faultless internal control system, this system can only assure the
reasonableness of the above three objectives have been fairly achieved. In addition, the effectiveness of
internal control system could alter over time due to the change of business environment or situation. Since
the Company’s internal control system has included self-examination capability, the Company will make
immediate corrections when errors are detected.

The evaluation of effectiveness of the internal control system design and implementation is made in
accordance with the “Guidelines for the Establishment of Internal Control Systems by Public Companies”
(the Guidelines). The Guidelines are made to examine the following five factors during the management and
control process:

(1) control environment, (2) risk assessment and response, (3) control activities, (4) information and
communication, and (5) supervision. Each factor also includes several items. Details of each factor can be
found in the Guidelines.

The Company has examined the effectiveness of each respected area in the internal control system based on
the Guidelines.

The examination result indicated that the Company’s internal control system (including subsidiary
governance) dated December 31, 2021 has effectively assured that the following objectives have been
reasonably achieved during the assessing period: (a) The degree that effectiveness and efficiency of business
operation; (b) The reliability of the financial and related reports; (c) The compliance of the relevant
laws/regulations and company policies

This Statement is a significant part of the Company’s annual report and prospectus available to the general
public. If it contains false information or omits any material content, the Company is in violation of Article
20, Article 32, Article 171 and Article 174 set forth in the Taiwan’s Security and Exchange Act.

The Company hereby declares that this statement had been approved by the Board of Directors on March
16, 2022. Among the 8 attending Directors, to the contents of this statement.

Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd.

Chairman:  Liu, Young-Way [signature and seal]

President: ~ Liu, Young-Way [signature and seal ]
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b. The Company is required by the Security and Futures Bureau to hire an accountant to audit

the Company’s internal control system and disclose the audit report made by accountants:

None

(11)  Lawful punishment inflicted on the Company, and/or disciplinary action taken by the Company

against its employees for violating internal regulations in the latest year (up to the printing date of

this Annual Report); Punishments that may materially affect shareholder rights of share prices,

and correction and improvement procedures:

None

(12) Important resolutions made by the Shareholders’ Meeting and Board of Directors, from periods

2020 and up to the printing date of this Annual Report:

a. The resolutions approved by the entire attending shareholders at the annual shareholders’

meeting on July 23, 2021 and its implementation

Resolutions

Implementation

The approval of the 2020 Business Report -
and Financial Report

Approval of the 2020 earnings distribution Shareholder’s cash dividend: NT$4 per share.

Distributed on August 20, 2021

Approval of the lifting of director of non- Removal of non-compete restrictions on directors in accordance
competition restrictions with the resolution of the shareholders' meeting

Director: Liu, Young-wei
Company and the title: Foxtron Vehicle Technologies Co.,Ltd.

b. The resolutions approved by the board of directors for 2021, up to March 31, 2022 and its

implementation

(1)

2)

3)

March 30, 2021

The 2020 Business Report and Financial Report; the Company’s 2021 earnings
distribution, Resolution by the board of directors to distribute dividends; the Board of
directors convene the 2020 Regular Shareholders' Meeting; the Company plans to
issue the first overseas unsecured convertible corporate bonds in 2021; increase
investment from return earning in China and the Company plans to indirectly disposal

of Equity of Fuyu properties (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.

May 14, 2021
Company announce the consolidated financial statement for year 2021Q1; Obtaining

Foxconn Singapore Pte Ltd Shares.

July 6, 2021
Announcement for the board of Directors approved to change the date of 2021 Annual

Shareholders' Meeting in accordance with the instructions announced by FSC
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13)

(14)

(4)

()

(6)

(7)

(1)

August 5, 2021

Board of Directors approved acquisition of 6-inch Fab.

August 12, 2021

Company announce the consolidated financial statement for year 2021Q2; The
Company’s Board of Directors approved the issuance of unsecured corporate bond;
Company announces indirect PRC investment; Company announces indirect PRC

investment; The Change of Spokesperson.

November 12, 2021

Obtaining Lin Yin International Investments Co., Ltd. Shares; To announce the
disposal of PRC investment; To announce the disposal of Building and Machinery
equipment; Subsidiary Hon Young Semiconductor Corporation announces obtaining

Building and Machinery equipment.

March 16, 2022

Company announce the annual self-assessed financial information for year 2021; The
Company’s Board of Directors approved the issuance of unsecured corporate bond;
Obtaining Lin Yin International Investments Co., Ltd. Shares; Subsidiary Bharat FTH
Limited intends to apply for listing in India through an initial public offering of
Rupees ordinary shares; The Board of directors convene the 2022 Regular
Shareholders' Meeting; The Compnay's BOD resolved to Establish The Nominating

Committee and Appoint Members of Nominating Committee.

March 23, 2022

Reporting of the Company’s 2021 Financial Reports; the Company’s 2021 earnings
distribution; Resolution by the board of directors to distribute dividends; To announce
the disposal of PRC investment; Obtaining Hon Young Semiconductor Corporation

Shares.

Directors or supervisors have expressed opposition or qualified opinions that have been noted in

the record or declared in writing in connection with the important resolutions passed by the Board

of Directors in the latest year and up to the printing date of this Annual Report:

None

During the latest year and up to the printing date this Annual Report, the Company’s chairman,

general manager, accounting director, financial director, internal auditors, and R&D supervisor

had resigned or been dismissed:

None
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C. Information on Accountants’ Fees

(1)  Accountants’ Fees
CPA Firm Name of Inspection | Audit Fee | Non-audit | Total | Remarks
Accountant Period Fee
PricewaterhouseCoopers Hsu, Patrick | 2021/01/01 21,851 2,380 24,231 | Non-audit
Taiwan Yung- Hsu ~ fee are tax
chien 2021/12/31 consulting
fee and
others.
(2)  Alter the CPA Firm and the audit fee in altering year is less than that in the previous year:
None
(3)  The audit fee is reduced by over 10% compared with the previous year:

None

D. Alternation of CPA

1

@)

3)

About the Former CPA:
Not Applicable

About Successor CPA:
Not Applicable

Former CPA's reply:

Not Applicable

E. The Company’s chairman, general manager, or any managerial officer in
charge of finance or accounting matters has in the most recent year held a
position at the accounting firm of its CPA or at an affiliated enterprise:

None
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F. Transfer & pledge of stock equity by directors, supervisors, managerial
officers and holders of 10% or more of company shares

(1)  Changes in Equity
Unit: Shares
Title Name 2021 Current year to March 31
Shareholdin | Pledged | Shareholdin Pledged
g Increase/ Shares g Increase/ Shares
Decrease Increase/ Decrease Increase/
Decrease Decrease
Chairman Liu, Young-Way 0 0 0 0
Vice Chairman Hon Jin International 0 0 0 0
Investment Co., Ltd.
Representative: Jay Lee 0 0 0 0
Director Gou,Tai-ming (Terry Gou) 400,000,000 0 0 | (257,286,000)
Director Lu, Fang-ming 760,000 | 2,000,000 0 (1,000,000)
Director Hon Jin International 0 0 0 0
Investment Co., Ltd.
Representative: Lu, Sung- 0 0 0 0
Ching
Director Fu Chu Technology Co., 0 0 0 0
Ltd.
Representative: Christina 10,000 0 (18,000) 0
Yee-ru Liu
Independent James Wang 0 0 0 0
Director
Independent Kuo, Tei-Wei 0 0 0 0
Director
Independent Kung, Kuo-Chuan 0 0 0 0
Director
Department Wang, Cheng-Yang 0 0 0 0
General Manager
Department Chiang, Chih-Siung 0 0 0 0
General Manager
Department Lin, Chung-Cheng 0 0 0 0
General Manager
Department Chu, Cheng-Qing 0 0 0 0
General Manager
Department Huang, De-cai 0 0 0 0
General Manager
Department Chou, Zong-kai (63,680) 0 0 0
General Manager

@)

3)

Information on Equity Transfer:
The counterparties of equity transfer are not related parties.
Information on Equity Pledge:

The counterparties of share pledges are not related parties.
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G. Information on relationships among the top ten shareholders:

Name Shareholding Spouse & Shares Held Related Party Remar
Minor through Other | (Between Top 10 k
Shareholding Parties Shares Shareholders)
Number % Numbe % Numbe % Name | Relatio
r r n
Gou, Tai-ming 1,742,198,51 12.57 0 0.00 0 0.00 | None None -
(Terry Gou) 8 % % %
Citibank Hosting 329,004,385 | 2.37% 0 0.00 0 0.00 | None None -
Government of % %
Singapore
Investment Account
Citibank Hosting 177,665,783 | 1.28% 0 0.00 0 0.00 | None None -
Hon Hai Precision % %
Industry Co., Ltd.
Depositary Receipts
Account
New Labor Pension 175,256,934 | 1.26% 0 0.00 0 0.00 | None None -
Fund % %
JPMorgan Chase 165,781,761 | 1.20% 0 0.00 0 0.00 | None None -
Hosting Vanguard % %
Developing Markets
Index Fund
JPMorgan Chase 153,359,135 | 1.11% 0 0.00 0 0.00 | None None -
Bank Hosting % %
Vanguard STAR
Developed Markets
Index Fund
Citibank Hosting 141,782,796 | 1.02% 0 0.00 0 0.00 | None None -
Norges Bank % %
Investment Account
Standard Chartered 133,000,012 | 0.96% 0 0.00 0 0.00 | None None -
Bank Hosting the % %
Fidelity Puritan
Trust: Fidelity Low-
Priced Stocks Fund
LGT Bank AG 113,782,190 | 0.82% 0 0.00 0 0.00 | None None -
% %
SAUDI CENTRAL 109,789,101 | 0.79% 0 0.00 0 0.00 | None None -
BANK - State % %
Street Global
Advisors as external
fund manager
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H. Combined shareholding percentage

3/31/2022; Unit: 1,000 shares

Reinvestment Investment by the | Direct or indirect Combined
Company control of Investment
Directors,
Supervisors, or
Managers
Shares % Shares % Shares %
FOXCONN (FAR EAST) LTD. 8,061,629 | 100.00% - - | 8,061,629 | 100.00%
SHARP CORPORATION 130,000 | 21.28% | 91,555 | 14.99% 221,555 | 36.27%
ECMMS PRECISION SINGAPORE 343,010 | 100.00% - - 343,010 | 100.00%
PTE. LTD.
Hyield Venture Capital Co., Ltd. 1,174960 | 97.95% | 24,540 | 2.05% | 1,199,500 | 100.00%
Bon Shin International Investments 1,163,730 | 100.00% - - 1,163,730 | 100.00%
Co., Ltd.
MARGINI HOLDINGS LIMITED 275,980 | 100.00% - - 275,980 | 100.00%
AMBIT INTERNATIONAL LTD. 74,572 | 100.00% - - 74,572 | 100.00%
FOXCONN HOLDINGS B.V.- 108,355 | 100.00% - - 108,355 | 100.00%
NETHERLAND
FENIX INDUSTRIA DE 53,334 | 99.47% 280 | 0.53% 53,614 | 100.00%
ELETRONICOS LTDA.
FOXCONN MOEBGINDUSTRIA DE 24,315 | 99.99% 31 0.01% 24,318 | 100.00%
ELETRONICOS LTDA
FOXCONN Technology Co., Ltd. 139,726 9.88% | 277,195 | 19.60% 416,921 | 29.48%
FOXCONN HOLDING LTD. 1,570,511 | 100.00% - - | 1,570,511 | 100.00%
HonYuan International Investments 341,679 | 100.00% - - 341,679 | 100.00%
Co., Ltd.
Hon Chi International Investments Co., 300,280 | 100.00% - - 300,280 | 100.00%
Ltd.
Foxconn Singapore Pte. Ltd. 451,838 39.23% | 700,000 | 60.77% | 1,151,838 | 100.00%
FOXCONN SA B.V. 72,163 | 100.00% - - 72,163 | 100.00%
Pan-International Electronics 107,776 | 20.79% | 29,620 | 5.71% 137,396 | 26.51%
Lin Yih International Investments Co., 261,900 | 100.00% - - 261,900 | 100.00%
Ltd.
SYNTREND CREATIVE PARK CO., 183,646 | 74.80% - - 183,646 | 74.80%
LTD
Premier Image Technology (H.K.) 1,405 1.63% | 84,753 | 98.32% 86,158 | 99.95%
Limited
ALTUS TECHNOLOGY INC. 65,811 64.59% | 36,079 | 35.41% 101,890 | 100.00%
Asia Pacific Telecom 1,253,027 | 29.02% | 302,022 | 7.00% | 1,555,049 | 36.02%
Ennoconn Corporation 504 0.50% 36,250 | 35.83% 36,754 36.33%
Foxtron Vehicle Technologies Co.,Ltd. 794,400 | 51.00% - - 794,400 | 51.00%
SOCLE TECHNOLOGY CORP. 21,139 | 39.78% | 32,000 | 60.22% 53,139 | 100.00%
Hon Young Semiconductor 317,000 | 100.00% - - 317,000 | 100.00%
Corporation
HONG JIN CHANG HOLDINGS CO., 20 | 100.00% - - 20 | 100.00%
LIMITED
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Note: Long-term equity investment of the Company calculated according to the equity method

IV. Company Shares and Fund Raising

A. Company Capital and Shares

(1) Capital and Shares
4/2/2022; Unit: 1,000 shares
Type Authorized Capital
Issued Outstanding Non-issued Options, bonds, Total
Shares (Listed Stock) Shares warrants, other
convertible shares
Registered Common 13,862,991 3,637,009 500,000 | 18,000,000
Shares
(2) Sources of Capital
Unit: NT$1,000; 1,000 shares
Year/ | Issue | Authorized capital stock Paid-in capital Remarks
month | price Shares Amount Shares Amount Source of Property | Approval date
(NTS) capital other than | and document
(NT$1,000) cash offset No.
by the
number of
shares
1991/06 10 100,000 1,000,000 80,300 803,000 | Capital increase None —
42 93,000 by
earnings
Capital increase
90,000 by cash
1992/07 10 100,000 1,000,000 97,600 976,000 | Capital increase None -
132,850 by
earnings
Capital increase
40,150 by
capital reserve
1993/08 10 150,000 1,500,000 112,800 1,128,000 | Capital increase None —
103,200 by
earnings
Capital increase
48,800 by
capital reserve
1994/08 10 150,000 1,500,000 130,300 1,303,000 | Capital increase None —
118,600 by
earnings
Capital increase
56,400 by
capital reserve
1995/06 10 250,000 2,500,000 187,900 1,879,000 | Capital increase None June 19, 1995
445,700 by (84), TCZ(I)
earnings No.36224
Capital increase
130,300 by
capital reserve
1995/10 48 250,000 2,500,000 227,900 2,279,000 | Capital increase None October 09,
400,000 by cash 1995 (84),
TCZ(D)
No.52879
1996/10 10 450,000| 4,500,000 358,000 3,580,000 | Capital increase None July 9, 1996
1,301,000 by (85), TCZ(1)
earnings No.41678
1997/09 10 600,000 6,000,000 511,800 5,118,000 | Capital increase None June 30, 1997
1,108,400 by (86), TCZ(D)

-84-




Year/ | Issue | Authorized capital stock Paid-in capital Remarks
month | price Shares Amount Shares Amount Source of Property | Approval date
(NTS) capital other than | and document
(NT$1,000) cash offset No.
by the
number of
shares
earnings No.51749
Capital increase
429,600 by
capital reserve
1998/08 10 1,000,000 | 10,000,000 734,600 7,346,000 | Capital increase None July 10, 1998
1,818,560 by (87), TCZ (D)
earnings No.58651
Capital increase
409,440 by
capital reserve
1999/08 10 1,300,000 | 13,000,000| 1,050,000| 10,500,000 | Capital increase None June 30, 1999
3,154,000 by (88), TCZ(I)
earnings No.58593
1999/11 | 220.75| 1,300,000 13,000,000 1,100,000| 11,000,000 | Capital increase None August 9, 1999
500,000 by cash (88), TCZ(I)
No.63098
2000/08 10 2,400,000 | 24,000,000 1,452,900 14,529,000 | Capital increase None June 22, 2000
3,529,000 by (89), TCZ(I)
earnings No.54010
2001/08 10 2,400,000 | 24,000,000 1,768,780 17,687,800 | Capital increase None June 13, 2001
3,158,800 by (90), TCZ(I)
earnings No.137713
2002/08 10 3,000,000 30,000,000 2,064,897 | 20,648,970 | Capital increase None June 27, 2002
2,961,170 by 91, TCZ(I)
earnings No.135225
2003/08 10 3,000,000 30,000,000 2,519,174| 25,191,744 | Capital increase None June 12, 2003
4,542,774 by (92), TCZ(1)
earnings No.20128415
2004/07 10 3,600,000| 36,000,000 2,757,198| 27,571,989 | Capital increase None January 27, 2004
2,380,244 by (93), TCZ(I)
merging No0.920162759
2004/10 10 4,600,000 | 46,000,000 3,231,023 | 32,310,231 | Capital increase None July 21, 2004,
4,738,011 by IGZYZ
earnings; No0.0930132689
Converse 231
Euro-
convertible
bond
2005/05 10 4,600,000 | 46,000,000 3,238,718| 32,387,189 | Converse None —
76,957 Euro-
convertible
bond
2005/08 10 5,300,000 53,000,000| 3,284,525 32,845,251 | Converse None —
458,061 Euro-
convertible
bond
2005/09 10 5,300,000 53,000,000 4,003,171| 40,031,717 Capital increase None January 29,
7,186,466 by 2005, JGZYZ
earnings No0.0940131076
2005/11 10 5,300,000 53,000,000 4,038,323 | 40,383,231 | Converse None —
351,514 Euro-
convertible
bond
2006/04 10 5,300,000 53,000,000 4,099,953 40,999,534 | Converse None —
616,303 Euro-
convertible
bond
2006/09 10 5,700,000 | 57,000,000 4,989,944 | 49,899,441 | Capital increase None July 11, 2006,
8,899,907 by IGZYZ
earnings No0.0950129699
2007/03 10 5,700,000 57,000,000| 5,168,139 51,681,388 | Capital increase None October 19,
1,781,947 by 2006, JGZYZ
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Year/ | Issue | Authorized capital stock Paid-in capital Remarks
month | price Shares Amount Shares Amount Source of Property | Approval date
(NTS) capital other than | and document
(NT$1,000) cash offset No.
by the
number of
shares
merging No0.0950147071
2007/09 10 7,000,000 | 70,000,000 6,290,767 | 62,907,665 | Capital increase None July 09, 2007,
11,226,277 by JIGZYZ
earnings No0.0960035148
2008/10 10 8,120,000 81,200,000 7,414,623 | 74,146,235 | Capital increase None June 30, 2008,
11,238,569 by IGZYZ
earnings No0.0970032402
2009/06 10 9,300,000 93,000,000| 8,578,932| 85,789,319 | Capital increase None April 28,2009,
11,643,084 by IGZYZ
earnings No.0980017596
2010/09 10 10,820,000 | 108,200,000| 9,661,248| 96,612,482 | Capital increase None July 01, 2010,
10,823,163 by JGZFZ
earnings N0.0990034120
2011/08 10 12,230,000 | 122,300,000| 10,689,097 | 106,890,967 | Capital increase None June 20, 2011,
10,278,485 by JGZFZ
earnings No.1000028108
2012/09 10 12,230,000 | 122,230,000 11,835,867 | 118,358,665 | Capital increase None July 5, 2012
11,467,698 by JGZFZ
eamings No.1010029788
2013/10 10 18,000,000 | 180,000,000| 13,128,707 | 131,287,068 | Capital increase None July 29,2013
12,928,403 by IGZFZ
carnings No.1020029486
2014/10 10 18,000,000 | 180,000,000 | 14,793,407 | 147,934,069 | Capital increase None July 17,2014
16,647,001 by IGZFZ
carnings No.1030027390
2015/06 10 18,000,000 | 180,000,000 | 15,148,407 | 151,484,069 | Issuance None June 13,2014
3,550,0000f JGZFZ
new shares that No0.1030022403
restrict
employees’
rights
2015/10 10 18,000,000 | 180,000,000| 15,993,288 | 159,932,881 | Capital increase None July 24,2015
8,448,8143 by JGZFZ
earnings No.1040028126
2015/12 10 18,000,000 | 180,000,000 | 15,638,288 | 156,382,881 | Cancellation of None —
3,550,000 new
shares that
restrict
employees’
rights
2016/12 10 18,000,000 | 180,000,000 17,328,738 | 173,287,382 | Capital increase None Effective July
16,904,500 by 27,2016
earnings
2018/09 10 18,000,000 | 180,000,000| 13,862,991 | 138,629,906 | Capital decrease None August 8, 2018
-34,657,477 JGZFZ
No.1070327353

-86-




)

Information on Shelf Registration System:

None
(4) Shareholder Structure
4/2/2022
Shareholding | Governments | Financial Other Foreign Individuals Total
Structure Institutions | Institutions | Institutions &
Individuals
Quantity
Members 7 137 1,554 2,692 827,865 832,255
Total Shares Held 396,692,081 | 745,007,837 | 457,964,732| 6,224,819,069 | 6,038,506,890 | 13,862,990,609
Shareholding (%) 2.86% 5.37% 3.30% 44.90% 43.57% 100.00%
(5) Distribution of Shares
(a) Distribution of Common Shares
4/2/2022
Shares No. of Shareholders Total Shares Held Shareholdings (%)
1 to 999 214,291 70,287,217 0.51%
1,000 to 5,000 461,331 990,208,985 7.14%
5,001 to 10,000 81,118 604,056,549 4.36%
10,001 to 15,000 27,492 339,970,962 2.45%
15,001 to 20,000 14,533 259,242,493 1.87%
20,001 to 30,000 13,009 321,377,885 2.32%
30,001 to 40,000 5,994 210,084,613 1.52%
40,001 to 50,000 3,479 158,095,054 1.14%
50,001 to 100,000 6,080 422,676,848 3.05%
100,001 to 200,000 2,476 335,875,551 2.42%
200,001 to 400,000 1,055 290,518,010 2.10%
400,001 to 600,000 336 163,264,249 1.18%
600,001 to 800,000 177 123,173,753 0.88%
800,001 to 1,000,000 95 85,940,837 0.62%
Above 1,000,001 789 9,488,217,603 68.44%
Total 832,255 13,862,990,609 100.00%
(b) Diversification of Preferred Stocks

The Company does not issue preferred stocks.
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©

List of Major Shareholders

4/2/2022
Shares | Shares Held | Shareholding
Name of Major Shareholder s (%)
Gou, Tai-ming (Terry Gou) 1,742,198,51 12.57%
8
Citibank Hosting Government of Singapore Investment Account 329,004,385 2.37%
Citibank Hosting Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd. Depositary Receipts 177,665,783 1.28%
Account
New Labor Pension Fund 175,256,934 1.26%
JPMorgan Chase Hosting Vanguard Developing Markets Index Fund 165,781,761 1.20%
JPMorgan Chase Bank Hosting Vanguard STAR Developed Markets Index 153,359,135 1.11%
Fund
Citibank Hosting Norges Bank Investment Account 141,782,796 1.02%
Standard Chartered Bank Hosting the Fidelity Puritan Trust: Fidelity Low- 133,000,012 0.96%
Priced Stocks Fund
LGT Bank AG 113,782,190 0.82%
SAUDI CENTRAL BANK - State Street Global Advisors as external fund 109,789,101 0.79%
manager
(7) Information on Market Price, Book Value, Earnings Per Share and Dividends
Year 2020 2021 Current
year to
March 31,
Item 2022
Market Price Highest 93.40 134.50 111.00
Per Share Lowest 65.70 9330 100.00
Average 80.17 111.35 104.58
Equity Per Before Distribution 93.58 99.58 -
Share After Distribution - - -
Earnings Per Weighted average shares (1,000 shares) 13,861,508 13,861,508 13,861,508
Share Earnings per share (NTS$) 7.34 10.05 ]
Dividends Per | Cash dividend 4 52 -
Share Stock Stock Dividends - - -
Dividends | Appropriated from Retained
Earnings
Stock Dividends - - -
Appropriated from Capital
Reserve
Accumulated Unappropriated Dividends - - -
Investment P/E ratio 10.92 11.08 -
Return Price-dividend ratio 20.04 2141 -
Analyses
Cash dividend yield 4.99% 4.67% -
(8) Dividend Policy and Execution Status

(a) Dividend Policy

The Company is in a growth stage. Therefore, the Company’s dividend distribution policy

is subject to the Company’s current and future investment environment, capital
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(b)

requirements, domestic and foreign competition, capital budgets and other factors, taking
into account the interests of shareholders and long-term financial planning considerations,
stock dividends on the accumulated allocable earnings should not be less than 15% of the
accumulated allocable earnings and cash dividends of not less than 10%.

Distribution of Stock Dividends at this Shareholders’ Meeting:

According to the Article 28-1 of the Company’s Article of Incorporation, the distributable
dividends and bonuses, legal or capital reserve, in whole or in part may be paid in cash
after a resolution has been adopted by a majority vote at a meeting of the board of directors
attended by two-thirds of the total number of directors.

As adopted by Board Meeting on March 23, 2022, the Company plans to distribute
dividends of NT$72,087,551,167 to shareholders from the distributable surplus of 2021,
and to distribute the cash dividend of NT$5.2 per share. The Board of Directors will
authorize the Chairman to determine the ex-dividend date, issuance date and other relevant

matters.

(9) Impact of Planned Issuance of Bonus Shares on the Company’s Business Performance

and Earnings Per Share:

Not Applicable

(10) Remuneration to Employees, Directors, and Supervisors

(@)

(b)

(©)

(@

Information on Remuneration to Employees, Directors, and Supervisors, as Set
Forth in the Company’s Articles of Incorporation
According the Articles of Incorporation adopted by the Board, 5-7% of the company profit
(Surplus refers to profit before tax deducted appropriated employee compensation) is to
set aside for employee remuneration, no Directors’ remuneration has been allocated.
The Estimation Basis of the Remuneration Amount to Employees, Directors, and
Supervisors for the Current Period; the Estimation Basis of the Number of Shares
of Stock Dividend to Employees; and the Accounting Treatment of the
Discrepancy, if any, between the Actual Distributed Amount of Employees’ Stock
Bonus and Estimated Figure Thereof:
1. On March 23, 2022, the Board of Directors approved the Company to set aside 5%
of earnings as cash dividend for 2021 employees’ compensation.
2. Where there is discrepancy between the actually distributed and the estimated
amount, it shall be treated in accordance with the estimated.
Information on the Amount of Compensation for Distribution Approved by the
Board of Directors are as follows:
1. The cash dividend distributed to employee shall be NT$8,122,669,781.
2. Inthe case of any differences between the actual distributed and recognized number,
please state the difference, reasons and response:
The Company’s actually distributed number does not differ from the recognized
one.
Information on the Amount of Compensation for Distribution and the Calculation
of Earnings Per Share as Approved by the Board of Directors are as follows:

1. Actual Distribution
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Unit: NT$

Employee dividends Remuneration
to Directors
Employee Stock Dividends: Employee Stock Employee Cash and
Amount Dividends: Dividends Supervisors
Number of Shares
0 0 6,001,329,021 0

2. Inthe case of any differences between the actual distributed and recognized number,

please state the difference, reasons and response:

The Company’s actually distributed number does not differ from the recognized one.

(11) Share Repurchases:

None
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B. Section on Corporate Bonds

(1) Corporate Bonds
Units: NTD Million
Corporate The 1** Tranche of The 2" Tranche of The 3" Tranche of
Bond Type | UnsecuredAnnual Ordinary | UnsecuredAnnual Ordinary | Unsecured Annual Ordinary
Corporate Bonds, 2014 Corporate Bonds, 2014 Corporate Bonds, 2014
Coupon D Coupon D Coupon B
Issuing 2014/03/18 2014/05/21 2014/07/08
(handling)
date
Total amount 2,500 4,200 6,000
Interest rate 2.00% 1.95% 1.95%
Term 10 years 10years 10years
Expiry Date 2024/03/18 2024/05/21 2014/07/08
Outstanding 2,500 4,200 6,000
principal
Name of None
credit rating
agency /
Rating date /
Rating of
corporate
bonds
Denomination | NT$1,000,000
Issuing and GreTai Securities Market (OTC)
transaction
location
Issue price Issue by denomination
Consignee Bank SinoPac Company Limited
Repayment Repayment in lump sum upon maturity
method

Note: The above corporate bond does not have the following: 1.Guarantor, 2.Underwriter, 3.Legal Counsel, 4.Auditor, 5.
Redemption or Early Repayment Clause, 6. Covenants, 7. Other Rights of Bondholders (including A. Amount of Converted
or Exchanged Common Shares, ADRs or Other Securities, B. Conversion Right), 8. Dilution Effect and Other Adverse Effects
on Existing Shareholders, 9. Custodian.
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Units: NTD Million

Corporate Bond Type The 4th Tranche of Unsecured Annual | The 1 Tranche of Unsecured Annual The 2nd Tranche of Unsecured Annual
Ordinary Corporate Bonds, 2014 Ordinary Corporate Bonds, 2015 Ordinary Corporate Bonds, 2015
Coupon D Coupon E Coupon E Coupon F Coupon G

Issuing (handling) date 2014/10/08 2014/10/08 2015/01/14 2015/06/24 2015/06/24
Total amount 2,200 200 1,000 2,300 500
Interest rate 2.02% 2.15% 1.75% 1.70% 1.90%
Term 10 years 12 years 7 years 7 years 10 years
Expiry Date 2024/10/08 2026/10/08 2022/01/14 2022/06/24 2025/06/24
Outstanding principal 2,200 200 1,000 2,300 500
Denomination NT$1,000,000

Issuing and transaction location

GreTai Securities Market (OTC)

Issue price

Issue by denomination

Consignee

Bank SinoPac Company Limited

Repayment method

Repayment in lump sum upon maturity

Custodian / Underwriting None
institution

Legal Counsel / Auditor None
Redemption or Early Repayment | None
Clause

Covenants None
Name of credit rating agency / None

Rating date / Rating of corporate
bonds

Other Amount of Not applicable
Rights of Converted or
Bondholders | Exchanged
Common Shares,
ADRSs or Other
Securities
None None
Dilution Effect and Other Adverse | None
Effects on Existing Shareholders
Custodian None




Units: NTD Million

Corporate Bond Type The 3" Tranche of Unsecured Annual Ordinary Corporate The 4" Tranche of Unsecured Annual Ordinary Corporate
Bonds, 2015 Bonds, 2015

Coupon G Coupon H Coupon F Coupon G Coupon H
Issuing (handling) date 2015/09/29 2015/09/29 2015/11/30 2015/11/30 2015/11/30
Total amount 1,000 300 1,400 100 200
Interest rate 1.45% 2.00% 1.40% 1.75% 1.95%
Term 7 years 12 years 7 years 10 years 12 years
Expiry Date 2022/09/29 2027/09/29 2022/11/30 2025/11/30 2027/11/30
Outstanding principal 1,000 300 1,400 100 200
Denomination NT$1,000,000

Issuing and transaction location

GreTai Securities Market (OTC)

Issue price

Issue by denomination

Consignee Bank SinoPac Company Limited
Repayment method Repayment in lump sum upon maturity
Custodian / Underwriting institution | None

Legal Counsel / Auditor None

Redemption or Early Repayment None

Clause

Covenants None

Name of credit rating agency / None

Rating date / Rating of corporate
bonds

Other Amount of

Rights of Converted or
Bondholders | Exchanged Common
Shares, ADRs or
Other Securities

Not applicable

Conversion Right None
Dilution Effect and Other Adverse None
Effects on Existing Shareholders
Custodian None
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Units: NTD Million

Corporate Bond Type

The 1% Tranche of Unsecured Annual Ordinary Corporate

The 2" Tranche of Unsecured Annual Ordinary Corporate

Bonds, 2016 Bonds, 2016

Coupon E Coupon F Coupon G Coupon E Coupon F
Issuing (handling) date 2016/06/07 2016/06/07 2016/06/07 2016/08/08 2016/08/08
Total amount 1,300 1,800 1,800 1,700 2,900
Interest rate 0.88% 0.95% 1.20% 0.83% 0.90%
Term 6 years 7 years 10 years 6 years 7 years
Expiry Date 2022/06/07 2023/06/07 2026/06/07 2022/08/08 2023/08/08
Outstanding principal 1,300 1,800 1,800 1,700 2,900
Denomination NT$1,000,000

Issuing and transaction location

GreTai Securities Market (OTC)

Issue price

Issue by denomination

Consignee

Bank SinoPac Company Limited

Repayment method

Repayment in lump sum upon maturity

Custodian / Underwriting None
institution

Legal Counsel / Auditor None
Redemption or Early Repayment | None
Clause

Covenants None
Name of credit rating agency / None

Rating date / Rating of corporate
bonds

Other Amount of
Rights of Converted or
Bondholders | Exchanged

Not applicable

Common Shares,
ADRs or Other

Securities

None None
Dilution Effect and Other Adverse | None
Effects on Existing Shareholders
Custodian None
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Units: NTD Million

Corporate Bond Type The 1% Tranche of Unsecured Annual Ordinary Corporate The 2" Tranche of Unsecured Annual Ordinary Corporate
Bonds, 2017 Bonds, 2017
Coupon C Coupon D Coupon E Coupon D Coupon E Coupon F Coupon G

Issuing (handling) date 2017/05/17 2017/05/17 2017/05/17 2017/08/08 2017/08/08 2017/08/08 2017/08/08
Total amount 4,000 900 400 3,100 200 2,000 700
Interest rate 1.12% 1.36% 1.53% 1.04% 1.18% 1.30% 1.52%
Term 5 years 7 years 10 years 5 years 6 years 7 years 10 years
Expiry Date 2022/05/17 2024/05/17 2027/05/17 2022/08/08 2023/08/08 2024/08/08 2027/08/08
Outstanding principal 4,000 900 400 3,100 200 2,000 700
Denomination NT$1,000,000

Issuing and transaction location

GreTai Securities Market (OTC)

Issue price

Issue by denomination

Consignee

Bank SinoPac Company Limited

Repayment method

Repayment in lump sum upon maturity

Custodian / Underwriting None
institution

Legal Counsel / Auditor None
Redemption or Early Repayment None
Clause

Covenants None
Name of credit rating agency / None

Rating date / Rating of corporate
bonds

Other Amount of Not applicable
Rights of Convertedor
Bondholders | Exchanged
Common Shares,
ADRSs or Other
Securities
None None
Dilution Effect and Other Adverse | None
Effects on Existing Shareholders
Custodian None
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Units: NTD Million

Corporate Bond Type

The 3" Tranche of Unsecured Annual Ordinary Corporate

The 1* Tranche of Unsecured Annual Ordinary Corporate

Bonds, 2017 Bonds, 2018

Coupon B Coupon C Coupon D Coupon B Coupon C Coupon D Coupon E
Issuing (handling) date 2017/11/16 2017/11/16 2017/11/16 2018/05/09 2018/05/09 2018/05/09 2018/05/09
Total amount 2,950 1,950 1,000 3,100 200 3,200 1,500
Interest rate 1.00% 1.18% 1.4% 0.89% 0.96% 1.05% 1.35%
Term 5 years 7 years 10 years 5 years 6 years 7 years 10 years
Expiry Date 2022/11/16 2024/11/16 2027/11/16 2023/05/09 2024/05/09 2025/05/09 2028/05/09
Outstanding principal 2,950 1,950 1,000 3,100 200 3,200 1,500
Denomination NT$1,000,000

Issuing and transaction location

GreTai Securities Market (OTC)

Issue price

Issue by denomination

Consignee Bank SinoPac Company Limited
Repayment method Repayment in lump sum upon maturity
Custodian / Underwriting institution | None
Legal Counsel / Auditor None
Redemption or Early Repayment None
Clause
Covenants None
Name of credit rating agency / Rating | None
date / Rating of corporatebonds
Other Amount of Converted | Not applicable
Rights of or Exchanged
Bondholders | CommonShares,
ADRs or Other
Securities
None None
Dilution Effect and Other Adverse None
Effects on Existing Shareholders
Custodian None
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Units: NTD Million

Corporate Bond Type

The 2™ Tranche of Unsecured Annual Ordinary Corporate

The 1% Tranche of Unsecured Annual Ordinary Corporate

Bonds, 2018 Bonds, 2019

Coupon B | Coupon C | Coupon D |Coupon E | Coupon F | Coupon A | Coupon B | Coupon C | Coupon D | Coupon E
Issuing (handling) date 2018/07/27 | 2018/07/27 | 2018/07/27 |2018/07/27| 2018/07/27 | 2019/10/22 | 2019/10/22 | 2019/10/22 | 2019/10/22 | 2019/10/22
Total amount 200 3,900 500 2,300 1,400 100 1,900 500 2,500 950
Interest rate 0.80% 0.87% 0.92% 1.00% 1.30% 0.68% 0.80% 0.86% 0.90% 1.10%
Term 4 years 5 years 6 years 7 years 10 years 3 years 5 years 6 years 7 years 10 years
Expiry Date 2022/07/27 | 2023/07/27 | 2024/07/27 |2025/07/27| 2028/07/27 | 2022/10/22 | 2024/10/22 | 2025/10/22 | 2026/10/22 | 2029/10/22
Outstanding principal 200 3,900 500 2,300 1,400 100 1,900 500 2,500 950
Denomination NT$1,000,000

Issuing and transaction location

GreTai Securities Market (OTC)

Issue price

Issue by denomination

Consignee

Bank SinoPac Company Limited

Repayment method

Repayment in lump sum upon maturity

Custodian / Underwriting institution | None
Legal Counsel / Auditor None
Redemption or Early Repayment None
Clause
Covenants None
Name of credit rating agency / Rating | None
date / Rating of corporatebonds
Other Amount of Converted | Not applicable
Rights of or Exchanged
Bondholders | CommonShares,

ADRs or Other

Securities

Conversion Right None
Dilution Effect and Other Adverse None
Effects on Existing Shareholders
Custodian None
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Units: NTD Million

Corporate Bond Type

The 2" Tranche of Unsecured Annual Ordinary Corporate Bonds,

The 1% Tranche of Unsecured Annual Ordinary

2019 Corporate Bonds, 2020

Coupon A Coupon B Coupon C Coupon D Coupon A Coupon B Coupon C
Issuing (handling) date 2020/01/09 2020/01/09 2020/01/09 2020/01/09 2020/05/14 2020/05/14 2020/05/14
Total amount 1,700 500 2,350 1,650 1,900 4,100 600
Interest rate 0.73% 0.80% 0.87% 0.92% 0.80% 0.90% 1.00%
Term 5 years 6 years 7 years 10 years 5 years 7 years 10 years
Expiry Date 2025/01/09 2026/01/09 2027/01/09 2030/01/09 2025/05/14 2027/05/14 2030/05/14
Outstanding principal 1,700 500 2,350 1,650 1,900 4,100 600
Denomination NT$1,000,000

Issuing and transaction location

GreTai Securities Market (OTC)

Issue price

Issue by denomination

Consignee Bank SinoPac Company Limited
Repayment method Repayment in lump sum upon maturity
Custodian / Underwriting institution None

Legal Counsel / Auditor None

Redemption or Early Repayment None

Clause

Covenants None

Name of credit rating agency / Rating None

date / Rating of corporate bonds

Other Amount of Converted or
Rights of Exchanged Common
Bondholders | Shares, ADRs or Other

Securities

Not applicable

Conversion Right None
Dilution Effect and Other Adverse None
Effects on Existing Shareholders
Custodian None
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Units: NTD Million

Corporate Bond Type The 2" Tranche of Unsecured Annual Ordinary The 3" Tranche of Unsecured Annual Ordinary Corporate
Corporate Bonds, 2020 Bonds, 2020
Coupon A | Coupon B | Coupon C Coupon D Coupon A Coupon B Coupon C Coupon D
Issuing (handling) date 2020/09/09 | 2020/09/09 | 2020/09/09 2020/09/09 2020/12/28 2020/12/28 2020/12/28 2020/12/2
8
Total amount 2,850 3,700 1,400 300 1,800 6,600 3,400 200
Interest rate 0.69% 0.79% 0.90% 1.00% 0.53% 0.63% 0.68% 0.90%
Term 5 years 7 years 10 years 12 years 5 years 7 years 10 years 15 years
Expiry Date 2025/09/09 | 2027/09/09 | 2030/09/09 2032/09/09 2025/12/28 2027/12/28 2030/12/28 2035/12/2
8
Outstanding principal 2,850 3,700 1,400 300 1,800 6,600 3,400 200

Denomination

NTS$1,000,000

Issuing and transaction location

GreTai Securities Market (OTC)

Issue price

Issue by denomination

Consignee

Bank SinoPac Company Limited

Repayment method

Repayment in lump sum upon maturity

Custodian / Underwriting institution None
Legal Counsel / Auditor None
Redemption or Early RepaymentClause None
Covenants None
Name of credit rating agency / Rating date | None
/ Rating of corporatebonds
Other Rights | Amount of Converted or Not applicable
of Exchanged Common
Bondholders | Shares, ADRs or Other

Securities

Conversion Right None
Dilution Effect and Other AdverseEffects | None
on Existing Shareholders
Custodian None
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Corporate Bond Type The 1* Tranche of Unsecured Annual Ordinary Corporate The 2" Tranche of Unsecured Annual Ordinary
Bonds, 2021 Corporate Bonds, 2021
Coupon A | Coupon B | Coupon C | Coupon D | Coupon E | Coupon A | Coupon B | Coupon C | Coupon D

Issuing (handling) date 2021/05/14 | 2021/05/14 | 2021/05/14 | 2021/05/14 | 2021/05/14 | 2021/09/30 | 2021/09/30 | 2021/09/30 | 2021/09/30
Total amount 1,300 2,100 5,700 2,200 700 2,550 10,300 2,400 200
Interest rate 0.48% 0.54% 0.63% 0.73% 0.95% 0.51% 0.62% 0.70% 0.84%
Term 3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years 15 years 5 years 7 years 10 years 15 years
Expiry Date 2024/05/14 | 2026/05/14 | 2028/05/14 | 2031/05/14 | 2036/05/14 | 2026/09/30 | 2028/09/30 | 2031/09/30 | 2036/09/30
Outstanding principal 1,300 2,100 5,700 2,200 700 2,550 10,300 2,400 200

Denomination

NT$1,000,000

Issuing and transaction location

GreTai Securities Market (OTC)

Issue price

Issue by denomination

Consignee

Bank SinoPac Company Limited

Repayment method

Repayment in lump sum upon maturity

Custodian / Underwritinginstitution

None

Legal Counsel / Auditor None
Redemption or Early RepaymentClause | None
Covenants None
Name of credit rating agency / Rating None

date / Rating of corporate bonds

Other Amount of Convertedor | Not applicable
Rights of Exchanged Common
Bondholders | Shares, ADRs or Other
Securities
None None
Dilution Effect and Other Adverse None
Effects on Existing Shareholders
Custodian None
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Corporate Bond Type The 3" Tranche of Unsecured Annual Ordinary Corporate Bonds, 2021

Coupon A Coupon B Coupon C Coupon D
Issuing (handling) date 2021/12/08 2021/12/08 2021/12/08 2021/12/08
Total amount 1,000 5,500 4,000 1,650
Interest rate 0.55% 0.63% 0.72% 0.82%
Term 3 years 5 years 7 years 10 years
Expiry Date 2024/12/08 2026/12/08 2028/12/08 2031/12/08
Outstanding principal 1,000 5,500 4,000 1,650
Denomination NT$1,000,000

Issuing and transaction location

GreTai Securities Market (OTC)

Issue price

Issue by denomination

Consignee

Bank SinoPac Company Limited

Repayment method

Repayment in lump sum upon maturity

Custodian / Underwritinginstitution

None

Legal Counsel / Auditor None
Redemption or Early RepaymentClause | None
Covenants None
Name of credit rating agency / Rating None
date / Rating of corporate bonds
Other Amount of Convertedor | Not applicable
Rights of Exchanged Common
Bondholder | Shares, ADRs or Other
s Securities

None None
Dilution Effect and Other Adverse None
Effects on Existing Shareholders
Custodian None
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Corporate Bond Type The 1% tranche of Oversea The 1% tranche of Oversea
Unsecured Convertible Corporate | Unsecured Convertible Corporate
Bonds, 2017 Bonds, 2021
Issuing (handling) date 2017/11/06 2021/08/05
Total amount USD 500,000,000 USD 700,000,000

Interest rate

Coupon rate: 0%

Coupon rate: 0%

Term 5 years 5 years

Expiry Date 2022/11/06 2026/08/05

Outstanding principal USD 439,800,000 USD 700,000,000

Denomination USD 200,000 or its integer multiple | USD 200,000 or if it exceeds USD

200,000, an integer multiple of USD
100,000

Issuing and transaction location

Singapore Exchange Limited (SGX)

Singapore Exchange Limited (SGX)

Issue price

100% of par value

100% of par value

Consignee

Citigroup International Limited

Citigroup International Limited

Repayment method

The issuing company has direct and
unconditional payment obligations
for the corporate bonds. Unless the
corporate bonds have been
redeemed, repurchased and
cancelled, or the bondholders
exercise the right to convert, the
corporate bonds will be redeemed by
the issuing company at the face
value plus the annual interest rate of
0% on the maturity date. The
redemption amount at maturity will
be converted into TWD at a fixed
exchange rate, and the amount of the
TWD will be repaid in USD at the
prevailing exchange rate.

The issuing company has direct,
unconditional, non-sequential and
unsecured payment obligations for
its corporate bonds. Unless the
corporate bonds have been
redeemed, repurchased and
cancelled, or the bondholders have
exercised the right to convert, the
corporate bonds will be paid by the
issuing company based on the face
value plus an annual interest rate of -
0.41% on the maturity date
(calculated on a semi-annual basis).
interest once) redemption. The
redemption amount at maturity will
be converted into TWD at a fixed
exchange rate, and the TWD amount
will be converted into USD at the
current exchange rate (refer to the
fixing exchange rate displayed by
Taipei Forex Inc. at 11:00 a.m.).

Bond Guarantor

None

None

Underwriter Foreign underwriter(s) in charge: Foreign underwriter(s) in charge:
Citigroup Global Markets Limited, Citigroup Global Markets Limited,
Merrill Lynch Far East Limited, The | Goldman Sachs International, The
Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited Corporation Limited
Domestic underwriter in charge: Domestic underwriter in charge:
Grant Fortune Securities Grant Fortune Securities

Certified Lawyer Not applicable Not applicable

CPA Not applicable Not applicable

Redemption or Early An issuing company may redeem its | An issuing company may redeem its

Repayment Clause

corporate bonds in advance under
the following circumstances:

(1) After three years of issuance, if
the closing price of the ordinary
shares of the issuing company
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
(converted into US dollars at the
current exchange rate) for 20
consecutive trading days (in the
case of ex-rights or ex-
dividends, in the case of ex-right

corporate bonds in advance under
the following circumstances:

(1) After three years of issuance, if
the closing price of the ordinary
shares of the issuing company
on the Taiwan Stock Exchange
is for 20 consecutive trading
days (in the case of ex-rights or
ex-dividends, the period from
the ex-right or ex-dividend
trading day to the ex-right or ex-
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Corporate Bond Type

The 1% tranche of Oversea

Unsecured Convertible Corporate

Bonds, 2017

The 1% tranche of Oversea

Unsecured Convertible Corporate

Bonds, 2021

2

3)

or ex-dividend transactions
From the ex-rights date to the
ex-rights or ex-dividend base
day, the closing price used shall
be calculated as the price before
ex-rights or ex-dividends) when
it reaches 130.00% of the
conversion price, the issuing
company can add the face value
to the annual interest rate of 0%
(hereinafter referred to as "
Early redemption amount”) to
redeem the corporate bonds in
whole or in part;

When more than 90% of the
corporate bonds have been
redeemed, repurchased and
cancelled, or the bondholders
have exercised the right to
convert, the issuing company
may redeem all but not part of
the corporate bonds at the early
redemption amount. back; and

When the tax laws of the
Republic of China are changed,
resulting in an increase in the
tax burden of the issuing
company due to its corporate
bonds after the issuance date, or
additional interest expenses or
increased costs must be paid, the
issuing company may redeem
the amount in advance and use
all of its corporate bonds instead
of Partial redemption. Holders
of corporate bonds may choose
not to have their holdings of the
corporate bonds redeemed by
the issuing company in advance,
but the holders of corporate
bonds who choose to do so will
not be entitled to any additional
amount or additional tax
compensation.

The amount of early redemption
will be converted into New
Taiwan dollars at a fixed
exchange rate, and the amount
of TWD will be converted into
USD at the current exchange
rate for repayment.

)

€)

dividend base day During the
period, the closing price used
shall be calculated as the price
before ex-rights or ex-dividend)
and reaches 130% of the total
amount obtained by multiplying
the early redemption price (as
defined below) by the current
conversion price and dividing
by the face value of the
corporate bonds. The company
can redeem all or part of its
corporate bonds at the early
redemption price;

When more than 90% of the
corporate bonds have been
redeemed, repurchased and
cancelled, or the bondholders
have exercised the right to
convert, the issuing company
may sell the corporate bonds at
the early redemption price (as
defined below). redemption in
whole but not in part; and

When the tax laws and
regulations of the Republic of
China are changed, resulting in
an increase in the tax burden of
the issuer due to the corporate
bonds after the issue date or
additional interest expenses or
increased costs, the issuer may
pay the issuer’s early
redemption price (as defined
below). Redemption of
corporate bonds in full but not
in part. Holders of corporate
bonds may choose not to have
their holdings of the corporate
bonds redeemed by the issuing
company in advance, but the
holders of corporate bonds who
choose to do so will not be
entitled to any additional
amount or additional tax
compensation.

The early redemption price is
the return rate of -0.41% per
annum based on the bond face
value of the corporate bonds
(interest is calculated every six
months) when the relevant event
occurs, and the rate is calculated
from the date of issue to the day
when the relevant event occurs.
The amount calculated on the
number of days elapsed (based
on 360 days per year and 30
days per month). The open early
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Corporate Bond Type The 1% tranche of Oversea The 1% tranche of Oversea
Unsecured Convertible Corporate | Unsecured Convertible Corporate
Bonds, 2017 Bonds, 2021
redemption price will be
converted into TWD at a fixed
exchange rate, and the amount
of the TWD will be converted
into USD at the current
exchange rate (refer to the fixing
exchange rate displayed by
Taipei Forex Inc. at 11:00 a.m.)
for repayment.
Covenants None None
Name of credit rating agency / | None None
Rating date / Rating of
corporate bonds
Other Amount of None None
Rights of Converted or
Bondholders | Exchanged
Common
Shares, ADRs
or Other
Securities
Conversion Please find details in: Please find details in:
Right Market Observation Post System Market Observation Post System
(MOPS) -Investment Section — (MOPS) -Investment Section —
Corporate Bond. Corporate Bond.

Dilution Effect and Other
Adverse Effects on Existing
Shareholders

Should the overseas unsecured
convertible corporate bonds issued
this time are fully converted this
year, the equity dilution ratio will be
approximately 0.63%, which will
have limited effect on the original
shareholder's equity dilution ratio.

Should the overseas unsecured
convertible corporate bonds issued
this time are fully converted this
year, the equity dilution ratio will be
about 0.86%, and the effect on the
original shareholder's equity dilution
ratio is still limited.

Custodian Not applicable Not applicable
(2) Convertible Bonds
Unit: NT$
Convertible Bond Type 2017 Annual Overseas Initial 2021 Annual Overseas Initial
Unsecured Convertible Bonds Unsecured Convertible Bonds
Year 2021 For Year 2021 For Year
Items Ending Ending
Mar. 31, 2022 Mar. 31, 2022
Market Value of | Highest 119.058 110.886 103.517 103.175
Convertible
Bond (Note 1) Lowest 108.204 106.183 98.583 95.445
Average 112.437 108.884 102.322 99.800
Conversion Price 151.583 151.583 163.17 163.17

Issue (Transaction) Date and
Conversion Price upon Issue

Issued on Nov. 6, 2017, at NT$145

Issued on Aug. 5, 2021, at
NT$163.17

Conversion Method

(Note 2)

Issuance of New Shares

Issuance of New Shares
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(3) Information about Exchangeable Bonds

None

(4) Information about Shelf Registration to Issue Corporate Bonds

None
(5) Information about Bonds with Attached Warrants
None

Preferred Shares (with Warrants)

None
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D. Global Depository Receipts (GDR)

As of March 31, 2022, the global depository receipts issued by the Company totaled 266,202,591 units.
(Stock dividends issued increased 247,091,129 units from 2000 to 2016, capital decrease in 2018
reduced 66,550,649 units. In addition, ECB issued 26,296,111 units of GDR in total.)

March 31, 2022

Issue date
Item

October 7, 1999

March 17, 2005

Issuing and transaction location:

Issuing location: Europe, Asia,
USA Transaction location: London

Issuing location: Europe, Asia,
USA Transaction location:

Stock Exchange London Stock Exchange
Total amount: USD 416,700,000 USD 257,178,618.20
Unit issue price: USD 13.89 USD 8.7577
Total of issued unit (1) 25,000,000 units 29,366,000 units

(2) 5,000,000 units

30,000,000 units in total
Source of securities represented (1) Issuance of new shares for cash | The Company’s common shares
increase held by the original shareholders

(2) The Company’s common
shares held by the original
shareholders

Amount of securities represented

60,000,000 common shares

58,732,000 common shares

GDR holders’
rights and obligations

1. Rightto vote
2. Right to distribute dividend,
subscribe new shares and other

1. Rightto vote
2. Right to distribute dividend,
subscribe new shares and

rights other rights
Consignee None None
Depository Bank Citibank N. A Citibank N. A
Custodian Bank Citibank N. A, Taipei Branch Citibank N. A, Taipei Branch

Outstanding balance

88,904,141 units (Securities represented 177,808,305 shares)

Method to share the expenses
incurred during the issuance and
duration

Issue cost: amortized by the issuing companies and shareholder
participants according to the actual shares issued
Expenses incurred in the duration: amortized by the issuing company

Important conventions about
depositary and escrow agreement

The depositary institute performs the obligations for GDR holders, while
the guarantee agency keeps GDR common shares represented.

Market price per unit Year 2021 For Year Ending March 31, -2022
(Unit: USD) Highest 8.9837 8.00
Lowest 6.7643 6.91
Average 7.8621 7.356

E. Subscription of Warrants for Employees

None

F. Name of Managers Holding Warrants for Employees and Top Ten
Employees in terms of Subscription of Warrants, and the Acquisition

Status

None

G. Subscription of New Shares for Employee Restricted Stocks

None
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H. Name of Managers Holding the New Shares for Employee Restricted
Stocks and Top Ten Employees in terms of Subscription of the New
Share, and the Acquisition Status

None

I. Issuance of New Shares due to Acquisition of Shares of Another
Company

(1) During the latest year and up to the printing date of this Annual Report, the Company

has issued new shares due to acquisition of shares of another company:

(a) The assessment prepared by lead securities underwriter concerning the issuance of
new shares due to acquisition of shares of another company within the past

quarter:

None

(b) The implementation status of the past quarter. If the progress or benefit of such
implementation is not as expected, its impact on shareholders’ equity and an

improvement plan shall be stated specifically:

Not Applicable

(2) The acquisition or issuance of new shares approved by the Board of Directors during the

latest year and up to the printing date of this Annual Report:

None

J. Implementation of fund usage plan

The Company doesn’t have any uncompleted issuance plan or completed plan with unrealized benefit

within the latest three years
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V. Operational Highlights

A. Business Content

)

Business Scope

()

(b)

(©)

(@

Major Business

ICT, communications, automation devices, photo-electricity, precise machinery, auto,

production, sales and service related with connectors, casings, radiators, optics, assembled

parts of consuming electronics as well as assembly of network cables.

In addition to ICT product, the Company continues to expand into 3 new businesses in

EV, robotics, and digital health, as well as the 3 core technology fields of Al,

semiconductors and new-generation communications.

Revenue Mix

98% of the products are 3C electronics (Computer, Communication, Consumer

Electronics). The output and sales volume of the recent two years can be found in the table

of Production and Sales.

Current Product Items

The products manufactured by the Company include:

1. Smart Consumer Electronic Products (mainly smartphones, TVs, game consoles,
etc.): Personal consumer electronic products, including smart phones, feature phones,
wearable devices, etc.; as well as smart home entertainment systems and equipment,
including TVs, game consoles, set-top boxes, speakers, etc. Covers a larger portion of
traditional categories of 3C, which encompasses Consumer Electronics and parts of
Communications.

2. Cloud and Networking Products (mainly servers, network communications and
related products): Enterprise and consumer network communication equipment,
equipment required by cloud storage, including routers, servers, edge computing, data
centers, satellite communications and other related equipment.

3. Computing Products (mainly computers, tablets, etc.): Lifestyle and work
computing equipment, office and workplace computing products, including desktops,
notebooks, tablets, office machines, printers, etc. Covers the Computing aspect of the
traditional definition of 3C product category.

4.  Components and Others Product (mainly connectors, mechanical parts, services,
etc.): Upstream manufacturing and development of key components, technical
components; including connectors, precision optical components, lenses, electronic
components, semiconductor products, automotive electronic parts, tool/mold fixtures
and mechanical equipment. Additionally, logistics, warehousing, software
development, healthcare services, and industrial internet integration solutions also fall
into this category.

New Products, New Industries, and Technologies Developments

The Company actively transforms, upgrades, and promotes the transition from brawn-

intensive industries to brain-intensive strategies of "F1.0, F2.0, and F3.0". In addition to

the development lights-out factories and automation, the Company also focuses on our
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defined “3+3 categories” including the three industries of electric vehicles, robotics, and
digital health; across three applications of Al, semiconductor and next geneneration
communications. Among these, electric vehicles and semiconductors are one of the
Company's main growth drivers in the future. In addition, EV and semiconductors is our
drivers in the future. We will continue to expand our clients base, components, and
software. Also, we will continue to expand our global manufacturing with local partners
to allocate the best resources by our innovative business model — BOL Model (Build,
Operate and Localize). We will cooperate with different local government and partners,
to build up the ecosystem in local countries and also penetrate into the local market.

As for Metaverse industry, we will build up platforms to provide a complete value chain

from wearable devices, software, infrastructure, applications, and to services.

(2) Industry Overview

()

The Current Status of the Industry and Future Developments
Current Status
In 2021, The world has been continuously affected by the COVID-19 pandemic, and
global governments continued to launch fiscal stimulus policies, which made the market
full of liquidity. Working from home and learning from home continue to drive the
demand of our Computing Products and Cloud and Networking Products. Additionally,
consumers allocated more of their expenses on electronic devices. Therefore, among these
3 major Products have significant growth in 2021.
Regarding the electronics industry in the recent years, smartphone accounts for the largest
market share in consumer electronic products. According to Canalys research, global
smartphone shipments totaled 1.35 billion units in 2021, 7% increase from 1.26 billion
units in 2020. This mainly reflects economic and global supply chain disruptions gradually
recovering in the post-pandemic era. In the field of Cloud and Networking Products, the
remote work and remote learning has become a new norm. Based on DIGITIMES
Research, despite global IC and component shortage, server shipment up by 4.6% to 17
million units in 2021, mainly driven by US and China based large data center provider’s
demand. In the field of Computing Products, demand for tablets and PCs increased
significantly in 2021 because of the demand from remote work and education. For tablets,
according to International Data Corporation (IDC), shipments in 2021 increased by 3.2%
to 168.8 million units. For PCs, according to Gartner's analysis, PC shipments reached
339.8 million units in 2021, an increase of 10%, which is the highest shipment since 2013.
In terms of Components and Others Products area, their demand fluctuates depending on
the sale of corresponding end products.
The electric vehicle industry continued to grow significantly in 2021, and EV-Volumes
showed that the total global sales increased by 108% to 6.5 million units. Compared with
flattish sales of gasoline vehicles, the strong performance of electric vehicles shows that
under the shortage of ICs and the increasing market preference for electric vehicles,
global automakers have chosen to give priority to the production of electric vehicles,
and the global penetration rate of electric vehicles has also increased from 4.2% in 2020

to 8.3%. China and Europe are two major electric vehicle markets, where contributed
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(b)

Upstream

50% and 35% of global sales in 2021, respectively.

Future Developments
Looking forward to 2022, although the market is still suffering for the pandemic and IC
shortage in the first half 2022, the shortage situation is expected to improve by the second
half of 2022, due to more capacity supply. Based on IEK analysis, global smartphone
shipments will increase to 1.42 billion in 2022, up by 5% from 1.35 billion in 2021.
In the field of Cloud and Networking Products, DIGITIMES Research predicts that the
global server market will be under supply because of cloud services, work from home,
and online services driven by the pandemic. Despite global IC and component shortage,
server shipment up by 6.8% in 2022, mainly driven by large data center provider’s
demand.
In the field of Computing Products, MIC predicts global NB and PC shipments are
expected to be 230 million driven by demand from enterprise. Demand for desktop is
expected to recover to 79 million shipment because of returning to office.
As the demand for Smart Consumer Electronics and Server increase, the demand for the
relevant component increases as well.
The electric vehicle industry has gradually become the mainstream, because of not only
the governments policy support, but also the rising consumers' awareness of the
advantages and characteristics of electric vehicles compared with gasoline vehicles. The
IDM estimates that the supply of automotive semiconductors will not improve until the
second half of 2022. It is expected that automakers will prioritize EV production. The
market estimates that the sales of electric vehicles in 2022 will exceed 10 million units,
an annual increase of more than 60%. In the long term, electric vehicles will be the
largest growing segment of the world's major industries.

The Industry Value Chain and Relationships

Processor
CPU

Storage Devices
SSD

PCA., Motherboard,
Data Card and various
other cards

Others
Keyboard, software

Midstream Downstream
—>
¢ International
Manufacturer
wn
)
=
=
> S
—_ % e a
— 8 N é’ e) » | 3C Product Channel
=2 ) s
< —
=4
£
=
L » Internet Sales

(©

Various Product Trends and Competition
There are four main product categories. In short-term, the company continues to expand

the new businesses in EV and semiconductors :
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1.

Smart Consumer Electronics Products (smartphone, TV and game console)

With the commercial launch of 5G and the gradual adoption of artificial intelligence
(Al) into various technological applications, the consumer electronics industry will
enter the era of intelligent networking driven by 5G and Al in the coming decade. In
the development of 5G, Al and other related products, the Group has advanced
deployment plans, analyzed market demand in advance, and continues to work
closely with relevant customers; this combined with the Group's advantages, will
enable 5G-related smart consumer products to be deployed timely in the market.
Many companies have also seen opportunities and invested in. The company's long-
term focus on high-end smart phone products, the accumulated competitive
advantages in scale, technology, speed, yield rate, cost, and globalization also allow
the company to secure the largest share.

Cloud and Networking Products Category (mainly servers and networking products)
As a result of the gradual formation of HPC, 5G network and edge computing,
enterprise users’ purchasing needs of servers to ride on the tailwind of private cloud
or even hybrid cloud have been driving worldwide server market growth. The
Company has been in the server market for a long time and our quality, technology
and service have been one of the most recognized. The swiftly increasing need of a
regionalized supply chain under a broad globalized framework from major server
customers has raised the bar of manufacturers higher and hence we believe that the
Company is well positioned to be a leading system provider on that front. The huge
scale and joint development of cutting-edge technologies with customers, which
have expanded our leading position in Cloud and Networking Products.

Computing Products (computers and tablets)

This is a mature sector and with cross device streaming and cloud services sharing a
large part of the performances of personal desktops and notebooks, we expect stable
demand for this category. Meanwhile, tablets and smart TVs are now seeing
performance pressure and hence a potential upgrade cycle.

The demand and supply of this market is relatively mature. Producing high end
Notebook, tablets, desktops, printer have been one of the Company’s strengths. We
aspire to capture this growth tide by integrating core competencies across
manufacturing and services and our access to global channels. And also complete
product lines, global footprint, and production capacity, supply chain make the
company to obtain greater opportunities.

Components and Others Products (connectors, mechanic parts and services)

The Group’s long-term strategy is to form strategic partnerships to formulate a
comprehensive, vertically integrated supply chain, leveraging our core expertise and
advantages. We will take component supply as one of the main goals while we
develop our new business. These two fields are relatively large-scale industries at
this moment. They attract more investment from different countries and enterprises,
and there are different competitors in each field.

The company's key competitiveness lies in its long-term cooperative relationship
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with customers, a complete product line, precision manufacturing capabilities,
global footprint, and solid operation management. The long-term development
strategy is to establish a complete supply chain with our strategic partners, integrate
the internal and external resources of the group. This enhance the competitive
advantage of vertical integration and further improve our layout in the industry. And
it enhance profitability.

5. Electronic Vehicle
The total vehicle market size is around 4 trillion US dollar. Based on the market
estimated, by 2025, the global EV market will reach 600 billion US dollar. Under
the trend that the vehicles have started to adapt motors, instead of internal
combustion engine, the complexity and components has significantly decreased. In
addition to the direction of software-defined EV, ICT suppliers will have huge
potential.
The Company created the MIH Consotium, an standardized and modularized open
platform, with hardware and software integration. By BOL business model, it will
help us expand our EV global footprint. On the one hand, it secure our client base
and to develop higher-value components and software.

6.  Semiconductor
The company purchases chips exceeds 50 billion US dollars every year. In addition
to advanced processes, many of them are mature processes. In the past two years,
the supply of mature process chips has been tight, which has caused bottlenecks in
product production. And it become a room where the company can focus. Moreover,
the chips used in electric vehicles in the future can be up to three times higher than
the current. Semiconductors account for 30% of the cost of the entire vehicle, of
which power IC account for half. It is expected that the cost of SiC will be higher in
the future.
Mastering stable supply and differentiated functions ICs means are the key to electric
vehicle manufacturing. And it is also one of the ICT clients’ values. The company
is one of few enterprises with entire semiconductor supply chain from upstream
equipment, design, wafer fabs, packaging to testing plants, etc. We secure the
capacity by minor share holdings investment, BOL model, joint ventures and

acquisition, with asset light approach.

(3) Technology and R&D

()

Technical and R&D Businesses

The Company has utilized proprietary management methods for IDM-SM; Integration;
Innovation; Design; Manufacturing to Sales; Marketing, and coupled with Precision
Molding; Material Technologies; Sustainable Manufacturing Technology; SMT
Manufacturing Technology; Heat Transfer Technology; Plastic Processing; Metal
Processing; Testing Capabilities; Automation Capabilities; Photoelectric Consolidation
Technologies; Motherboard Design; E-Commerce Capabilities; Server Design; Wireless
Communications and Light Display Modules, to achieve core competitive advantage. The

Company also strives to provide the best 6C (Computers, Communication, Consumer
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(b)

electronics, digital Contents, Car parts and modules, Channels) foundry services with our
strategic partners globally, and create maximum value for shareholders.

Looking to the future, the Company will remain committed to innovation and R&D;
develop cutting-edge prospective applications; commercialize and realize product designs;
bring to market the fruits of our research, and continue systemization of management
processes, to solidify and maintain the Company’s lead in core competencies.

R&D Expenses for Recent Years

Unit: NT$ Thousand

Item

Year 2020 2021

R&D Expenses

94,110,512 105,068,764

R&D Expenses to Revenue % 1.76% 1.75%

(©)

Successful Technological or Product Developments for Recent Years

Year

Successfully Developed Technologies or Products

2021

e A o e

—_ e = = =
N W N = O

16.

17.

18.
19.
20.
21.
22.
23.

24,
25.
26.
27.
28.

1. India specification 32""/43""/50"" HD/UHD Android TV

Pan-Asia specification 43""/50"" Ultra HD Android TV

Stand-Alone smart home health care system

U.S. specification 70""/75"" quantum dot smart networked TV

82""~100"" laser short-focus integrated audio-visual system

High-contrast high-end display system (2304 zone backlight)

Development of GOA 70"" 4K T-con board

B2B RTC Dongle TV/Display auxiliary timer

65""~85"" mechanical positioning wall mount (90 degree left/right rotation)

. 65"" 4K commercial specification antibacterial e-whiteboard product

. 40"" 2K fitness magic mirror product development

. 70"" 8K commercial display product development

. Test procedure automation development for e-whiteboard product line

. 8K screen splicing control box

. VIP module design: 5M wide-angle camera for tablet application, ToF Module

(CMOS) for POS machine application, ToF Module (CCD) for Demo Kit product
application

VIP module engineering: TOF Module Distortion testing system, VR infrared tracking
module testing system

VIP equipment development: mobile phone tri-camera module optical axis calibration
assembly machine

Smart fitness equipment mass production

Development of Bluetooth communication testing fixture for smart fitness equipment
Design and development of embedded firmware for BLDC motor control

Robot model construction and key metrics calibration optimization

Autonomous mobile robot mileage recording and positioning technology

Unmanned vehicle jacking structure design, development and stress analysis;
combined structure design with AMR, to increase added value of product

Infineon TriCore microprocessor platform development (TC397)

Dual-channel PLC design for driving safety monitoring, compliant with ISO 13849
ISO 26262 functional safety design implementation and verification

New motor control method (FOC) hardware design and firmware development

VCU external reversing light, brake light, fan high/low relay control, P/R/N/D gear
position light, battery voltage monitoring, brake pressure sensing, acceleration pedal
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Year

Successfully Developed Technologies or Products

29.
30.
31.
32.
33.
34,
35.
36.
37.

38.
39.

40.
41.
42.
43.
44.
45.
46.
47.
48.
49.
50.
S1.
52.
53.
54.
56.

57.

8.

59.

60.

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.
66.
67.

position sensor, temperature sensing circuit design and function development
Automotive touch-sensitive screen and motor scheme design

Media player 5.7"" HD display development

Notebook 11.6"" 1366*768 HD display development, for entry-level notebook
2.8"" Medical testing chip development, for PCR testing

U.S. specification 65""/70""/75"" UHD no frame/quantum dot Smart Network TV
U.S. specification 80"" UHD touch-sensitive screen

India specification 2K 32""/43""and 4K 43""/50""/55""/65"" HD/UHD Android TV
Pan-Asia specification 2K 32""and 4K 43""/50""/55""/65"" HD/UHD Android TV

North America/Canada/Mexico specification 2K 32""and 4K 43""/50""/55""/65""
HD/UHD Android TV

Smart health care system

Wide color gamut professional display with ultra-high brightness, contrast and large
viewing angle

55/65 High quality LCM development

Gcore Sensor SM modules for flat panel products

8M FF/13M AF Camera Module for mobile phone product application

Stereo Camera for smart speaker product application

ToF Module(CCD) whole machine for warehouse counting

Sony Sensor 1.2M vehicle module for vehicle Around View Monitoring system
Tablet Camera face recognition testing system

TOF infrared module ROI Alignment testing system

Automotive ultra-large wide-angle module airtightness detection system
AR/VR structured light optical axis adjustment packaging technology
Development of automotive infrared lens LCM-002A (2G4P)

Video lens module

Composite DOE diffraction element assembly

Free-form lens design

Development of lens storage equipment

Image quality adjustment and assembly machine for super wide-angle modules for
vehicles

Virtual reality combined with augmented reality AR Glass development and mass
production

Facial expression projection/Wi-Fi/voice control service and interactive robot
development

Robot mobile platform obstacle detection and dynamic obstacle avoidance module
development

The development of the navigation restricted area setting function for AMR’s walking
route

Dynamic adjustment of maximum speed and acceleration function development of map
partitions

LIDAR detection data correction and backward obstacle avoidance algorithm closely
before and after AMR

Development of vehicle head direction control function for multi-target navigation
route

The development of lifting and positioning functions of AMR jacking module and the
verification of matching with real machine have been completed

Completed ISO26262 process certification of VCU vehicle controller
Completed VCU signal level dSPACE HIL construction and testing

Completed the development of VCU vehicle controller B sample, which can meet the
regulatory requirements such as vehicle power load and electromagnetic compatibility
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Year

Successfully Developed Technologies or Products

68.
69.

70.
71.

72.
73.

. Research and development for 2.4"" biochip

verification, reaching the real vehicle verification level
Zonal E/EA regionalized electronic and electrical architecture development

Completed the development and verification of RGMII 100/1000 base-T1 multi-
channel automotive Ethernet

Completed the development and design of the 17-inch central control rotating screen

Established the CAE HyperWorks system and completed the first automotive product
simulation

Obtained ISO26262 vehicle functional safety process certificate
Successfully completed the development of a 10.25"" display screen for vehicles

Jan - Mar 2022

ol e

AN

10.
11.
12.
13.
14.
15.
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.
21.

22.

23.
24.

25.

26.
27.

28.
29.
30.
31

32.

U.S. specification 65""/75"" UHD 120 Hz no frame/quantum dot Smart Network TV
India specification 2K 32""/43""and 4K 43""/50""/55""/65"" HD/UHD Android TV
Pan-Asia specification 2K 32""and 4K 43""'/50""/55""/65"" HD/UHD Android TV

North America/Canada/Mexico specification 2K 32""and 4K 55""/65"" HD/UHD
Android TV

Smart health care system
Development of 4K 120 Hz T-CON Board

U.S. specification 65/70/75 large-scale high-order 120 Hz quantum dot frameless LCM
development

ADI CMOS ToF module

ADI CMOS ultra-wide angle ToF module

Sensor 1.2M vehicle module

OV Sensor 50M AF module

Laser Module VCSEL performance testing system (VF)

Laser Module Optical Power & Beam Performance Integrated Detection System
Laser module work safety home defense system (Sub/DOE loop).
Design and development of AF Lens(6P+MEMS Lens)

Design and development of AF Lens(2G4P+MEMS Lens)
Design and development of ToF Lens(1G4P)

Design and development of ToF Lens(1G3P)

Lens and Coating Development of Eyepiece Lens XR

New turntable optical axis adjustment and assembly machine

Optimization development and verification of robot mobile platform navigation and
walking route

AMR real machine dynamic obstacle avoidance behavior optimization development
and verification

AMR self-made security module program logic design and development

Completed hardware development and functional verification of AMR's self-made
security module

Completed the verification of the mechanism of connecting the AMR robot mobile
platform to the charging pile

Completed the VCU vehicle simulation close loop HIL test

Completed the development of the Vector AUTOSAR platform for the VCU vehicle
controller

Completed ZCU BRING UP and basic function development
Several design proposals for cockpit Cluster and [IVI HM
Qualcomm platform realizes one-core multi-screen function

Design a modular hardware architecture, and cooperate with the regional controller
ZCU and the regional gateway ZGW for conceptual sample development

Established E/EA system design and development process based on Vector
PREEvision
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Successfully Developed Technologies or Products

33.

34.
35.
36.
37.

38.
39.

Design and development of bench verification environment for EE_Buck vehicle
electronic control system

EV rotating central control screen passed FMVSS-201 crash test
The unmanned truck passes the TUV regulatory test and goes into mass production
Development and design of modular shared structure for EEA vehicle

Introducing the process of vehicle software process improvement and capability
evaluation (ASPICE) coaching activities

Successfully completed 1.37"" uLED sample backplane design
Successfully completed the self-made QD film for reliability testing
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Long and Short-term Business Development Plans

()

(b)

Short-term Business Development Plans

The Company pursues continued excellence in operational management and cost control,
vertical integration, global footprint and provide a “One-Stop Shop” solution for global
leading brands. Our commitment is to maintain the high quality of service and related
added-value services enable computing, communication, consumer electronics (3C) to
enrich lives of the world population. In the future, the company will leverage ICT
advantage and integration capability to enter the electric vehicle market. At the same time,
in order to serve customers and create product differentiation, we are also enter the
semiconductor industry to provide more diversified services and strive for more business
opportunities. The Company will continue this pursuit and provide a diverse range of
services, capture business opportunities and deepen our relationships with international

brands.

In order to respond to the various economic and trade environment to provide customers
with more complete services and strengthen the company's competitiveness, the company
not only continues to expand investment but also strengthen our technology, production
capacity, automation and other capabilities, in order to match ICT and electric vehicles to
regional manufacturing trend. We are also deploying in Europe, America and Asia. In the
future, the company will continue to establish relevant production bases, design centers
and service centers around the world to meet the needs of customers for design,

manufacture and global assembly and delivery.

Long-term Business Development Plans

The Company has formulated transformation and upgrade plans, beginning the long-term
transformation from brawn-intensive to brain-intensive. The Company will take this
opportunity to upgrade its level of industry, improve profits, and commit to the
development of three main areas of electric vehicles, digital health, and robotics; and also
emphasize the three main core technologies of Al, semiconductors, and next generation
mobile communication technologies. The Company’s development and implementation
of the “3+3” new industry, technology fields have also are also an advanced deployment
of technologies and products for 3-5 years in advance; among them, the Company has
initiated the MIH Alliance in the field of electric vehicles, and will cooperate and strive
with more than 1,500 member Companies at home and abroad to become the Android

platform of the electric vehicle industry.

Last year, the company also established the Hon Hai Research Institute, with the goal of
focusing on key technologies in the next three to seven years. After the research and
development results are mature, it will be transferred to the business department for
commercialization. The heads of the five institutes of the Research Institute have already
been in place. In 2021, the first "lon Trap Laboratory" in Taiwan was established to invest
in the development of ion traps to seize the opportunity for the development of quantum

computing technology.
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B. Production and Sales Status

M

Market Analysis

()

(b)

(©)

Core Products (Services) and Sales (Supply) Areas

The Company’s products are divided into four categories: Consumer Electronic Products
(mainly smartphones, TVs, game consoles, etc.); Cloud Network Products (mainly servers,
network communications and related products); Computing End-products (mainly
computers, tablets, etc.); and Components and other product areas (mainly connectors,
mechanical parts, services, etc.). Core sales areas cover three continents: Europe, America

and Asia.
Market Share

According to Bloomberg, the Company ranks first in 2021 Electronics Manufacturing
Services (EMS), with market share of approximately 40%.

Future Industry Supply & Demand and Growth

The Company’s 4 main products are primarily used in industries such as communication
devices (smartphones, internet-enabled devices), consumer electronics, computers, and
related products, the industry developments for the respective product categories are as

follows:
1. Consumer Electronic Products (mainly smartphones, TVs, game consoles, etc.);

Among them, mainly from the perspective of smart phones, the United States and
Europe are already mature markets, and the growth of local phone shipments have
slowed. The growth momentum of the smart phone market in the future will come
from emerging regions, such as China. China has further increased the number of
5G smart phone users following the increase in 5G coverage. Chinese smart phone

brands have gradually matured, and their market share has gradually increased.

In addition, India is also a fast-growing region. As the local smartphone adoption
rate is still low; as local telecom companies continue to increase network coverage
outside of Tier 1 and Tier 2 cities, the region will attract major smartphone
manufacturers to actively invest. It is one of the main driving forces provide growth

for global smartphone shipments in the future.

Even with the many years of smartphone hardware developments behind us, the
high-end products are still continuing to differentiate and innovate. Leading brands
vie to increase added value for smartphones and attract additional income. Smart
accessories have become a lynchpin for many brands, accessories such as bracelets,
watches and external lenses. With the increasing demand for outsourcing of global
smartphone brands; the gradual reduction in the smartphone form factor; increase of

functionality, the internal components are more intricate than ever. Therefore,
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manufacturers with a proper vertical integration and manufacturing capacity can be

paramount to helping clients reduce cost, increase competitiveness, with many more

opportunities in the future.

2. Cloud Network Products (mainly servers, network communications and related

products)

M

@)

Servers/storage devices

With the advent of cloud computing, an abundance of corporate information
has shifted away from the confines of physical on-site storage, and embraced
cloud computing services. Coupled with the needs of calculation on the cloud,
server products have also begun to evolve. The main driver for this growth

being the tendency for enterprise units to be replaced.
Switches and Routers

With 4G/5G becoming universal, Big Data centers and developments in IoT,
brings about a increasing amounts of network traffic. Many countries have
been actively expanding their 4G/5G and fiber networks and reinforcing
related fundamental infrastructure. To ensure a seamless network traffic, lower
response times from databases, cloud service providers have continued to
invest in related infrastructure. Overall, this market is maintaining its healthy

growth.

3. Computing End-products (mainly computers, tablets, etc.)

M

@

Tablet PCs

According to IDC, tablets under 8” are susceptible to competition from large
form-factor smartphones, will continue to decline; the future of Tablet
products will focus on sizes above 8” or even 97, with the increased screen
real-estate and accompanying keyboard to satisfy the content-creation needs

of consumers.
Computer Products

Comparative to the smart devices industry, the Wintel camp of PC products
have lacked buzz in the recent years. The upgrade of Windows operating
system and Intel chips have struggled to captivate consumers to trade-up as it
used to. IDC believes that in a mature market, the PC product is reduced to
just needs of replacements. In developing regions, PC have also shown little
or no growth, because of the increase in functionalities from smartphones and
tablet computers filling up many of the functionalities the PC once used to
offer. Despite this, the PC has an irreplaceable hold on the corporate market,
especially in document processing, file editing, ease of content creation, are

all features that are difficult to replace with smart devices.
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The PC market have passed the growth stage, and the industry is slowly
consolidating, with many smaller brands being merged or forced out. The
ongoing competition between remaining brands are less fierce. Under this
macro environment, big brands with more resources and vertical integration

capabilities are likely to benefit.

Components and other product areas (mainly connectors, mechanical parts, services,

etc.)

Components include mechanical parts, heat dissipation modules, optics, electronics,
PCBs, and semiconductors. With the increasing demand for the products in the
abovementioned three categories, the demand for components will rise. In the related
components, the optical (touch module, camera module, dot-matrix projector
module, etc.) and semiconductor (package and test, semiconductor equipment, chip
design, testing and packaging etc.) will be important growth drivers for the Company

going forwards.

Competitive Niche

The company's competitive advantage lies in its complete global footprint, huge

production capacity, vertical integration, speed of mass production, and partnership with

customers. These are the reasons why we can maintain our leading position in the industry,

and are also the most important value for our customers. In the EMS business, we have

accumulated nearly 50 years of highly professional management capabilities in managing

people, money, logistics, and technology, and it is even more difficult to imitate. Other

competing niches are as follows:

Precision molding technology

Vertical integration and manufacturing capabilities of plastic molding, stamping,

mold-flow, to mechanical components.

Creation of internal high speed network systems
Mechanical and barebones computer design capabilities
Heat transfer and noise treatment capabilities

SMT soft/hardware testing capabilities

PCBA rapid mass production capabilities

Photoelectric consolidation capabilities

Management Global supply chain management know-how

Business Development Advantages, Disadvantages and Countermeasures

Advantages

L.

The structure of the global industry is still undergoing adjustment, and the ability of
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vertical integration help us to get more outsourcing business opportunities.

2. The turnaround for 3C product life cycle continue to be squeezed, and the
importance of timeliness continue to play a key factor, eCMMS is in a prime
position to provide speed, quality, engineering services, flexibility and cost

considerations, and can assist the Company’s opportunities.

3. A complete ecosystem of overseas manufacturing, marketing bases to increase the
flexibility and efficiency of global resource integration operations which is well

managed and can cater to clients’ needs.

4.  Globally deployed manufacturing and points of sale, increasing the consolidation of

global resources while providing flexibility.

5. Standardization, computerization, and automation, establish a cooperative operation
system of industrial management, quality control, production management, and

economic management.

6.  Establishment of series of synergistic managerial systems of industry, quality, and

operations.
7. A firm grasp key capabilities of mold development, and new product development.

8. The electric vehicle industry is growing rapidly, and will move towards division of
labor and ICT in the future, with advantages in design, manufacturing, vertical

integration, cost, and global layout.

9.  The stable supply of mature semiconductors has become the key, and it has the
advantages of vertical integration from design, fab, packaging plant, plant,

equipment, and customers.

Disadvantages and Countermeasures

1.  Slowly growth of the ICT industry

Countermeasure: Improve management capabilities, engage more key components,
and develop new products to ensure the long-term development of the existing ICT
field. At the same time, investing in new businesses such as electric vehicles and

semiconductors in the form of light asset BOL, creating a future growth engine.

2. Fiercely competition in core business

Countermeasures: With continuously competition, we are also constantly stabilizing
vertical integration, improving technical level, cost control and other production
capabilities. And the company can increase our leading position in the face of

industrial competitiveness.

3. Regional manufacturing pioneer

Countermeasures: Hon Hai has a diverse and wide range of product lines for many

years, so it has carried out regional production in accordance with product
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characteristics and customer requirements. The company's business experience
accumulated in more than 20 countries and more than 100 bases around the world

will be able to expand rapidly and show management advantages.

Geopolitics and pandenmic

Countermeasures: By flexibly adjust our capacity, supply chain management,
inventory management, we shall be able to mitigate short term impact. In the mid to
long term, we will leverage our R&D and capacity across major campuses t o

diverisfy the risk.
Inflation and raw material costs rising

Countermeasures: Inflation and raw material prices rising and have impact on t
assembly business and it will dilute the gross profit margin. We will still take
customer demand and maximizing EPS as the top priority. High inflation may also
affect the demand for low-end consumer products. The Company will continue to

focus on high-end products to reduce the impact of inflation.

Other costs increasing

Countermeasures: In response to the challenges of rising manpower and various
costs, we have established a collaborative operation system of industrial
management, quality control, production management, and management through
standardization, computerization, and automation. At the same time, the company
lavrrage our global layout for flexible capacity allocation, which is reflected in the

selling price in a timely manner to reduce the impact.

Environmental regulations and international trends

Countermeasure: Regarding the issue of global warming, the company has
responded to the 2050 net zero carbon emission target, introduced renewable energy,
invested in scientific carbon emission reduction plans, and join net zero carbon
emission action alliance, from energy saving, emission reduction, greening, We
continuously put efforts in recycling, green energy, etc., echoing global

environmental protection trends

Core Products, Main Applications, and Manufacturing Process

The product segments of the Company Consumer Electronic Products, Cloud Network Products,
Computing End-products, and Components and other product. These mainly are used in mobile
communication, entertainment, computing, storage, network and other consumer or commercial
fields. The company's production process is mainly based on EMS assembly products, and the
design, component development, manufacturing and assembly, quality control testing, shipment

and other processes are carried out in accordance with customer needs.
Status of Core Material Suppliers

The Company’s manufactured products such as connectors, foundations, and assembled
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products utilize materials such as copper, plastic pellets and auric salt, steel, and the status of

suppliers are as below:

Copper

Have strategic alliances with several suppliers, to ensure the stability of copper supply.

Plastic Pellets

Develop connector-specific materials with domestic and international manufacturers to
increase quality. Prices are negotiated annually, and leverages the Company’s economy

of scale for bulk purchases to ensure price competitiveness.

Auric Salt

Prices for auric salt are based on the international gold price, and calculated based on a
formula. The supplier ships directly to the manufacturing plant to shorten turnaround for

deliver, and lower transportation/storage related risks.

Steel

Required materials for computer foundation development with domestic and international
manufacturers. The Company utilizes market price or annual price negotiations for steel,

and leverages the Company’s buying power to maintain favorable prices.

Other material requirements for assembly or memory modules, or materials required for
IC board printing, capacitors, IC. Specific material needs can be acquired directly through

the customer.

(4) Production and Sales Status
(a) Key Accounts in the Past Two Years
1.  Key Vendors
Unit: NT$ Million
2020 2021
Item | Vendor | Vendor | Amount | Percentage | Relationship | Vendor | Amount | Percentage | Relationship
of total Net| with the of total Net | with the
Purchases issuer Purchases issuer
(%) (%)
1 Vendor L | Vendor L | 1,672,245 | 36.41% None Vendor L | 1,946,108 | 36.86% None
Others Others 2,920,225 | 63.59% - Others | 3,334,265| 63.14% -
Total Net | Total Net | 4,592,470 | 100.00% - Total Net | 5,280,373 | 100.00% -
Purchases | Purchases Purchases
2. Key Customers
Unit: NT$ Million
2020 2021
Item | Customer | Customer | Amount | Percentage | Relationship | Customer | Amount | Percentage | Relationship
of total with the of total with the
Net Sales issuer Net Sales issuer
(%) (%)
1 Customer | Customer | 2,891,396 53.96% None Customer | 3,418,003 57.02% None
E E E
Others Others | 2,466,627 | 46.04% - Others | 2,576,171 | 42.98% -
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Total Net | Total Net | 5,358,023 | 100.00% - Total Net | 5,994,174 | 100.00% -
Sales Sales Sales
(b) Production Value in the Most Recent Years
Unit: K pcs, NT$ Thousand
Quantity & 2020 2021
Value Capacity Quantity Value Capacity Quantity Value
Major Product
3C Electronics 7,128,762 6,443,688 | 2,996,168,19 6,427,512 5,809,828 | 3,580,036,44
1 7
(c¢) Sales Value in the Most Recent Years
Unit: K pes, NT§ Thousand
Quantity & 2020 2021
Value Domestic Export Domestic Export
Major Quantity | Value Quantity Value Quantity Value Quantity Value
Product
3C 25,40 | 13,085,363 | 5,835,584 | 3,005,425,059 | 20,953 | 13,353,319 | 5,651,604 |3,601,733,618
Electronics
Service and — — — 42,435,245 — — 28,589,710
Management
Fee Incomes

C. Taiwan Employee Data during the Past Two Years, Up to Apr. 30, 2021

Year 2020 2021 Up to March 31, 2022
Employee Number Staff 699,721 645,317 536,206
Operator 178,708 181,291 166,644
Total 878,429 826,608 702,850
Average Age 32.15 30.32 31.16
Average Seniority 4.34 3.28 3.69
Education PhD Degree 0.03% 0.03% 0.04%
Distribution % Master Degree 0.97% 1.40% 1.57%
College 16.01% 17.20% 18.79%
High School 39.42% 37.76% 38.80%
Below High School 43.57% 43.61% 40.80%
D. Information on Environmental Protection Costs
(a) The loss caused by environmental pollution during the latest year and up to the printing
date of this Annual Report:
None
(b) Information on Environmental Protection Matters

1.

The main workshops and production facilities of the Company are located in Tucheng

Industrial Park or Hsinchu Science Park. The Company takes environmental protection as

its priority, and carries out immediate correction once discovering any problem. It also

makes inspection on the existing preventive facilities. Apart from creating a good working

and living environment for its employees and the neighborhood, it strictly complies with

the discharge standard. For the pollution and wastes generated in the production process,

the Company takes the following steps to protect the environment:

1. Prevention of water pollution: set up wastewater treatment plants and water quality

analysis laboratory in Tucheng factory. Chemical method is applied in wastewater
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treatment, in which pollutants are removed from wastewater and discharged through
discharge outlets. The lab has various instruments to measure temperature, PH value,
chemical oxygen demand and suspended solid and analyze heavy metal, so that daily
inspection on discharging water can be made and water discharge can be well
controlled. The Company’s factories in Huyue, Minsheng and Hsinchu all received
a letter on permit to connect wastewater (or sewage) to the sewer system, under the
reference of TFZ No. 1065061681, 0955060439 and YLZ No. 1000004253, and
TFZ No. 1035060107 respectively; and have acquired water pollution permit: New
Tapei City SHZ No. 04774-01, 05854-00, 05855-00 for Taipei Tiger Leap (Huyao)
Factory, Dingpu No.1 Factory, and Dingpu No.2 Factory respectively.

ii.  Prevention of stationary pollution source: waste gas is collected by extraction pipes,
and released to the air after the pollutants are removed through the wet scrubber.
Every year, the external testing organization is commissioned to detect the viscosity
of pollutants in exhaust gas and reports the result to the competent authorities of
environmental protection. The Company obtained the Operating Permit of
Stationary Pollution Source in 1998 and extended it in June 2008. The permit No.
is: BXCZD No. F0447-02. Currently, the total consumption of acid and alkali does
not meet the control standards, and the Permit was returned to the authority per

Letter No. 1012095840 from the Environmental Protection Bureau.

iii.  Cleaning of wastes: Works are done in accordance with the Waste Cleaning Plan,
and the disposal of waste is reported online in a legal way, and wastes are legally

cleaned and recycled.

iv.  Management on toxic chemicals: Toxic chemicals are stored separately and strictly
controlled. Moreover, documents on use and inspection are obtained legally, and

periodically reported to the component department of environmental protection.

The Company has been adhering to the environmental policy of “pollution control and
prevention, continuous waste reduction, providing environment-friendly products,
protecting the earth, creating a green enterprise,” and strictly abiding by laws and
regulations on environmental protection and clients’ requirements by means of effectively
controlling raw materials, manufacturing process and delivery. Besides, it is dedicated to
continuous improvement in order to better product quality, make sure the products free
from restricted materials and promote the transformation of upstream suppliers to green

supplying chain so as to comply with RoHS requirements.

Current pollution status, the influence of improvement on the Company’s earnings,
competitive position and capital expenditure, estimated major expenditure on

environmental protection in the following two years:
1. Estimated expenditure on environmental protection in the next two years: None

i. Influence after improvement: None
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Labor Relations

Current important labor agreement and implementation:

The Company has been treating its employees with sincerity and established mutual trust with them

through its welfare system and good training system that guarantee a fulfilling and stable life for them.

Though there is no union in the Company, but the Company has established “Workers and Employers

Meeting” and have established comprehensive employee communication channels, its employees can

give full play to their team spirit, coordinate the Company’s decision, cooperate with each other to

create a harmonious environment for working. The Company pursuant to the relevant labor laws and

regulations, to protect the legitimate interests of employees, provides employees with safe and health
gu p g ployees, p ploy y

working environment, and set up an employee feedback and complaints mechanism. And we disclose

employee welfare measures, retirement system and implementation situation on the company's official

website. The Company adopts the followings measures to build a harmonious labor relation:

(1) Welfare Measures for Employees:

Founded in July 1985, apart from members appointed by each Business Unit, the remaining

members are proposed and elected by employees. The committee members are re-elected every

three years, and there are dedicated members appointed to deal with the routine administrative

works of the Committee. Meanwhile, the Company has established the Health Department,

which has developed a series of welfare measures to employees and their families in terms of

health improvement and health care.

At present, the welfare offerings by the Welfare Committee are as follows:

(a) Safe and healthy food service: establishment of staff canteen and food safety

inspection center.

(b) Comprehensive employee health management

1.

il.

iii.

1v.

Health promotion: Topical lectures, weight loss activities and setting up blind
masseuse service stations.

Health care: In addition to the annual health check and dental care and the
implementation of the workplace influenza vaccination plan; during the rapid
increase in the epidemic, the Company introduced rapid screening measures and
distributed home rapid screening kits, and planned overseas epidemic prevention
kits for employees internationally stationed or when on business trips. Disseminate
new knowledge on epidemic prevention every week to ensure the safety of
employees.

Health consultation: Establish a cross-function professional team including
physicians, nurses, pharmacists, nutritionists, sports coaches, and physical therapists
to provide integrated health management and health monitoring services, and
provide remote health consultations based on employee needs, and other medical
consultations to cater for employees’ health.

Health LOHAS: To maintain on-going health promotion services during the
pandemic, online health sessions are organized, covering four subjects including
nutrition, exercise, healthy living style, and food safety. We aim to facilitate a
healthy vibe by promoting healthy habits through a variety of online programs.

Cultural recreational activities: Construction of gym for employees and pairing
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professional trainers to provide fitness instruction.

vi.  Employee life service plan (EAPC): Covering eight aspects of consultations: career
planning, parenting, interpersonal relations, relationship issues, emotional issues,
legal issues, financial issues, health issues, for our employees.

Multi-faceted employee welfare

1. Employee group insurance.

ii.  Subsidies for employee club activities.

iii.  Subsidies for employee education and training.

iv.  Employee birthday gifts, seasonal gifts (cash gifts).

v.  Year-end activities and lucky draws.

vi. Employee wedding cash gifts, and funeral condolence payments.

vii. Birth encouragement (including spouses), in additional to birth and parenting
allowances, also provide transportation subsidies for pregnant employees, pregnant

courtesies and other health care measures.

Employee Communication Channels

The Company actively builds communication channels with employees and conducts two-way

communication through multiple channels to ensure immediate response and maintain labor-

management harmony. The relevant communication channels are as follows:

(@)

(b)

(©

(@

The Company's internal website/APP: announce the Company's major events and recent
promotional content. Assist employees to quickly obtain company-related information.
Labor-management meetings: labor-management meeting is held every quarter to
coordinate labor-management relations, promote labor-management cooperation, and
prevent various labor problems before they arise.

Employee feedback and whistleblowing: According to different matters, the company's
internal website and APP provide corresponding channels to allow employees to respond
to work, environment and other related issues and suggestions and immediate response to
ensure smooth feedback pipeline

Seminars and satisfaction surveys: From time to time, employee seminars and various
types of satisfaction surveys are conducted. Plans and improvements are implemented

based on the opinions of employees.
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Career Development and Training for Employees

Education and training are basic employee welfares provided by the Company. The Company

encourages employees to “take on-the-job-training, and apply what they’ve learned to work”.

The Company takes training as a means to improve employee quality and their work skills,

promote the group performance, facilitate the realization of its operation target of “long term,

stability, development, science and technology, internationality”. Based on this, the Company

provided 504,538 hours of trainings with the training fees reaching up to NT$10,162,262 in

2021. The main content of training includes:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(@

(e)

®

Orientation for new employees

New employees are guided to familiarize the corporate culture, organization development,
reformation history and working environment.

Management trainee program

The 6-month long Management trainee program includes three portions: Firstly, a team-
based training to familiarize trainees with the Company and business groups and
innovation and creative problem solving courses, to increase the trainees ‘soft-power’ and
adaptability; secondly a practical production line training, for trainees to understand
overseas manufacturing facilities and learn related know-how; lastly, departmental
training, a mentorship program that allows trainees to learn on the job.

Development of management skills

A tailored training program to meet different needs of different employees at different
management levels according to their management needs. The training prepares trainees
“organizational, people, and systemic” management skills.

Hon Hai Foxconn University

Training program prepared by Hon Hai Foxconn University, to create a systemic
management training and online learning platform. Taking a process-oriented, simplified,
logical, standardized, systemic, and information-based approach to training programs.
International lectures/seminars

The Company invites elites and successful entrepreneurs from different industries to
lecture and engage in discussion. Lecturers come from fields such as but are not limited
to industry trends and 3+3 new business, electric vehicles, digital health, robotics, artificial
intelligence, semiconductors, new generation communication technology and related
fields.

Health and well-being lectures

The health management center regularly invites physical and mental health experts to hold
appropriate courses during each season in order to help the colleagues to relax after work
and to receive in-depth health promotion related knowledge. Courses include exercise,
mental well-being, CPR, AED.

Code of Conduct or Ethics

In order to enable all employees to have a better understanding of ethics, rights, obligations and

the code of conduct, the Company hereby works out the relevant measures and regulations

to provide a basis for all employees. The relevant measures are briefed as follows:

()

Organizational Responsibility and Judgement of Authority
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viii. Rules on decision-making authority and authority decentralization: to improve work
efficiency, strengthen the management on authority decentralization.

ix.  Organizational structure of departments and responsibility of each position: clearly
regulate the organizational function of each unit and the scope of responsibility and
authority of employees.

Assist All Employees to Understand Relevant Measures and Regulations.

. Tutoring programs for new employees: to eliminate the new employees’ insecurity
towards the new environment and soon familiarize the corporate structure, work
environment, culture, and colleagues after reporting for duty, and help them to get
their mind and body ready for work and reduce new employee turnover rate.

ii.  Code of business ethics: to improve all employees’ behavioral quality, business
ethics and expertise and try to maximize the Company’s benefit within the legal
scope. Every employee has the responsibility to prevent the Company’s interests
from being lost or impaired and is obliged to maintain the Company’s reputation
so as to guarantee its sustainable growth and development.

iii. Employment rules and regulations: defines clearly working conditions, human
resources management principals, and lays out clear ground rules for being part of
the Company.

iv.  Leave-related measures for employees: to provide basis for employees to take and
ask for a leave.

i. Reward and punishment system: Rewards or punishment are given to employees
whose behavior or conduct has brought benefit or loss for the Company in operation.

v.  Employee/profession promotion: Motivate talents to grow with the company and
enhance personal accomplishment.

vi.  Performance assessment method for employees: employees’ working achievements
and performance are assessed as the basis for salary adjustment, promotion,

issuance of bonus and arrangement for training courses.

(5) Working Environment and Protective Measures for Employee’s Personal Safety

(@)

(b)

(c)

(@

Since 2019, the Company promoted the upgrade of occupational safety and health
management system, and passed the certification of SGS Company and obtained the
ISO45001 (received 2019/11/24, and valid through 2022/11/23), and CNS45001
certificates.

During the period of the COVID-19 pandemic, regular pandemic prevention meetings
were held to consider relevant measures to create a safe and healthy working environment
for colleagues.

The Company hosts regular safety committee meetings engages in evaluation with
employee Representatives to discuss the Company’s safety and health policy, with aims
to achieve the goal of zero injury, zero occupational disease and zero accident so as to
create a best working environment for all employees.

Plan and promote factory health and safety related agendas. In 2021, Approved by the
Ministry of Labor as the 109 "Occupational Safety and Health Excellent Unit Award" and
"Occupational Safety and Health Personnel Merit Award". In 2020, the Company was also
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(e)

®

(2

(h)

(@

awarded “Outstanding Work Safety Award” & “Professionalism and Health and Safety
Personnel Outstanding Award” by New Taipei City for 2019.

The Company has, according to the Implementation Rules for Public Institutions on
Records of Labor-hour without Occupational Injury, taken part in the competition of non-
occupational injury record. As of end-2021, the Company’s Taipei Tiger Leap (Huyao)
Factory has maintained 11,216,809 labor-hours without occupational injury; and Dingpu
factory has 2,369,469 labor-hours without occupational injury.

Industrial safety: A Safety and Disaster Prevention Center is set up at the Tucheng
headquarters. Each plant can exchange safety messages instantly, provide immediate
safety and disaster prevention information, and can establish dedicated response teams
based on disasters such as typhoons or pandemics. Emphasis is placed on emergency
response personnel training, thus strengthening the Hon Hai Group’s safety and disaster
prevention system.

Security and Fire Protection System Management: Managed the factory safety and
security equipment, and constructed the industrial safety cloud and other modules to
ensure that the software, hardware, and management mechanisms for the factories are in
normal operation. Implemented infrared thermal imaging detections for the electric plates
and other electrical equipment in the factory and established the infrared thermal imaging
promotional team trainings. A total of 21 seed employees have completed test reports,
identified and corrected the problems, and effectively reduced the fire risks in the factories.
Occupational health: Inventoried the physical and chemical hazards of the various units
according to the annual safety and health management plan, completed the sampling
strategy of the operating environment monitoring plan, and the monitoring results are in
compliance with the legal requirements. Complete four main plans (workplace
infringement, human-caused dangers, female health and protection, overworking)
according to relevant regulation guidelines, to protect employees from being victim to
occupational diseases and unlawful infringement.

In 2021, the Company performed a plant safety and health month in Taiwan, which include:
positive energy, practical experience, emergency response, health and topical lectures. A
accumulated number of 4,559 employees took part in the 11 sessions. Additionally, a total
of 120 health and safety suggestions were acted upon, as a collaborative effort to improve

workplace health and safety for employees.

Retirement System

The Company has formulated the retirement and pension plans for employees according to the

Labor Standards Act and the Labor Pension Act, including:

(@)

Qualification for Labor Standards Act (old system): defined benefit pension plan is

adopted.

1. Retirement application: a worker may apply for voluntary retirement under any of
the following conditions: where the worker attains the age of fifty-five and has
worked for fifteen years; where the worker has worked for more than twenty-five
years; where the worker attains the age of sixty and has worked for ten years.

ii.  Pension payment: the retirement pension base shall be one month’s average wage
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(b)

iii.

1v.

of the worker at the time when his or her retirement is approved. Two bases are
given for each full year of service. Those having served over 15 years are given one
base for each full year of service and the total number of bases shall be no more than
45. Length of services is calculated as half year when it is less than six months and
as one year when it is more than six months. As set forth in Article 54 of the Labor
Standards Act, an additional 20% on top of the amount calculated according to the
preceding shall be given to workers forced to retire due to conditions incurred from
the execution of their duties.

Employee retirement reserve allocation: The Company shall set aside 2% of the total
employee monthly salary amount and deposit them into the employee retirement
reserve account pursuant to the applicable retirement system provided by the Labor
Standards Act; and ensure that this amount cannot be used as a subject of transfer,
seizure, offset, or collateral. Before the end of each year, the employee retirement
reserve account balance shall be calculated. If the balance is insufficient to pay
employees with conditions specified in Article 53 or Subparagraph 1, Paragraph 1
of Article 54 of the Labor Standard Act for the next year, the Company shall make
up the differences before the end of March next year.

The supervision of pension funds: Since January 1987, the Company legally
established the Supervisory Committee of Workers’ Retirement Fund, which is re-
elected every three years and in charge of checking the amount, deposit and

withdrawal as well as payment of retirement fund so as to ensure employees’ rights.

Qualification for the Labor Pension Act (new system): defined contribution pension plan

is adopted.

1.

ii.

The Company grants 6% per month: according to the Monthly Appropriation Scale
of the Labor Pension issued by the Bureau of Labor, the Company appropriate 6%
of the worker’s monthly wage to his/her personal pension fund account.

Voluntary employee pension contribution: workers may also voluntarily contribute

within 6% of their wage to the labor pension.

Other Important Agreements

None

Loss suffered from labor disputes in the latest year and up to the printing date of this

Annual Report:

None
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F. Information Security Management

() Information security risk management framework, information security policy, management

plan and resources invested in information security management, etc.:

1. Information Security Risk Management Framework

(M

2

Information Security Governance Committee

The Information Security Governance Committee (hereinafter referred to as the
Committee) is established under the board of directors of the company. The
chairman of the committee is the chairman of the committee. The top executives
such as finance, legal affairs, auditing, etc., shall attend relevant projects. The
committee will designate the person in charge of each information security project,
provide the necessary support for project implementation, review the results of the
information security project; and regularly report information security governance
issues, directions and information security governance results to the board of
directors. To better assist the committee in grasping information security threats,
evaluating and verifying emerging information security technologies, the Office of
Secretariate is setup and represented by Hon Hai Research Institute as the appointee.

Responsibilities is as follows:

e Information Security Governance Working Group: plan information security
governance strategies and guidelines, information security policies and related

procedures, and ensure compliance with laws and regulations.

e Information Security Maintenance and Operations Working Group: implement
the construction and maintenance of information security structure and
equipment, and work on information security protection, risk assessment, etc.

to ensure the effectiveness of information security implementation.

Information Security Governance Organizational Chart

—‘ Board of Directors / Director I

I information security
| gOVernance report

i |
Governgnce 5 |
< : Information Securi
‘""“’”’1‘”" Information Security Governance ty |
m Committee Governance
| Committee |
| I '
| Oversight l Oversight l
|
: Information Security |, Information Security |
Governance Working | s | Maintenance and |
: Operations Working |
o Incident Grou
| Freoy netification s :

Incident
| Manages notification
R R LR L (R R SR (] [ orycd B S i R |

Central Information /
Central Information

®)

Provision of | security units of various
e business Groups

Information Security Risk Management

Risk assessment criteria have been established for information security risks. From

the organizational level, key information assets and core systems are managed and
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controlled according to the impact level and occurrence probability of risks such as
value, weakness, and threat; on the technical level, system and software architecture,
weakness scanning and review, setting and operation and maintenance management
to conduct information security technical reviews. Through this process of risk
management and continuous improvement, strive for the reduction of enterprise
information security threats, and achieve confidential information protection that

conforms to legal norms, customer needs, and enterprise operations.

The Company is in the process of purchasing information security insurance, in
order to better protect for information security risks and mitigate losses; relevant
policies have been formulated for contingency measures for various major
information security incidents to provide employees with a basis for handling
information security incidents. Regarding the crisis awareness of information
security risks, the Company regularly conducts information security risk inspections

to implement the effectiveness of information security management measures.

2. Information Security Policy

(1)

@

Information Security Management

To effectively implement information security management, regular meetings are
held monthly to review information security work according to the management
cycle mechanism of planning, execution, checking and action (Plan-Do-Check-Act,
PDCA). The Company takes ISO/IEC 27001 as the information security
management framework, implements the Information Security Management System
(ISMS), completed the self-assessment in May 2011, completed the third-party
verification company certification in July, and obtained ISO/IEC 27001

International information security management system certification.

The Company undertakes digital transformation to continuously strengthen
information security protection, establishing information security objectives and
strategies, network segmentation principles and standards, systematic monitoring of
information security, information security using cloud services, authentication and
privilege management, etc. and regularly simulate information security attacks,
penetration testing and other drills to maintain the confidentiality, integrity and

availability of the Company's assets.
Information Security Management Framework

Management frameworks from organizational control, personnel control, entity
control, and technology control are set with relevant policies and procedures. The
Company conducts regular review and implements information security measures,
education, training, and promotion based on performance indicators, risk
management, and information audit results, to ensure the safety of Company’s

confidential information.
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3.

Management Plan

The information security protection management plan is as follows:

(M

@

3)

“)

)

Cyber Security

e Network segmentation principles and standards to prevent computer viruses and

malicious attacks from spreading across factories.

e Establishment of the information security Purple Team; design the scope,
methods of simulated attack drills, and the management mechanism of the Red,

Blue and Purple Teams.

e Continuously strengthening of the network firewall, intrusion detection system,
DDoS defense, online behavior monitoring and other programs, and implement

anomaly reporting and handling.

End-Point Security

e Compliance monitoring (including network access systems) for operating
system updates, antivirus software updates, and scanning of endpoints such as

external devices and mobile devices.

e Establish endpoint detection for important computers and core systems to

strengthen monitoring of malware behavior.

Application Security

e Continue to strengthen the application security control mechanism and integrate

it into the development process and platform.

e [Establish a group single sign-on platform (SSO), and important application

systems require multi-factor authentication (MFA).

Data Security and Protection

e Using data labels according to the confidentiality level to encrypt data and
properly control with audit trail which can be effectively tracked through the

platform.

e Email anti-virus and anti-spam control; flexible policy adjustment according to

external malicious e-mail.

Information Security Notification and Awareness Enhancement

e Strengthen the monitoring of internal and external threat intelligence and
software weaknesses of the group, and immediately report and handle

information security.

e Conduct training and promotion regularly to enhance employees' awareness of

information security.
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e Enhance employees' vigilance against email social engineering attacks and

phishing websites.

4.  Invest in the Safety Control of Cyber Security Management

The Company continues to invest resources in information security-related fields, and has
formed a dedicated information security teams and personnel from central and business

units. The execution of information security measures promotion are as follows:

e More than 342 information security conferences attended by the executive and

management level throughout the year.

e 141 risk assessments and information security technical audits were completed

for core system.

e 15 units including the core and business units completed the annual information

security audit and information security maturity assessment.
e 61 information security management specifications were added and revised.

e 5 business groups (9 factories in the implementation scope) passed the ISO/IEC

27001 international information security management system certification.

e Hon Hai Research Institute collaborated with Taiwan University of Science and
Technology to provide special training for the Group to transform information
technology talents to information security talents to meet the group's talent

needs.

If, in the latest publication of the annual report, any losses, possible impacts and
countermeasures caused by major information security incidents cannot be reasonably estimated,

the facts that cannot be reasonably estimated shall be stated:

The Company has not experienced any major cyber attack incidents that impacted the

Company's operations in 2021.
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G. Significant Contracts

Nature of The Other Party Contract Dates Content Restrictions
Contract
Sales Apple Computer, 1999/12/07 onwards until one party decides to Sale of Reserves right to
Contract Inc. terminate based on terms listed in the contract products adjust delivery
dates and order
Sales Cisco Systems Inc. | From 2019/1/1 onwards, annually, automatically | Sale of Reserves right to
Contract renews for 1 year upon expiry if both parties do products adjust delivery
not express willingness to terminate dates and order
Sales Dell Products L.P. | 1999/12/01 to 2000/11/30, automatically renews | Sale of Reserves right to
Contract for 1 year upon expiry perpetually if both parties | products adjust delivery
do not express willingness to terminate dates and order
Sales Hewlett-Packard 2003/05/07 to 2008/05/06, automatically renews | Sale of Reserves right to
Contract Company for 2 year upon expiry perpetually if both parties | products adjust delivery
do not express willingness to terminate dates and order
Sales International 2008/07/07 onwards until one party decides to Sale of Reserves right to
Contract Business Machines | terminate based on terms listed in the contract products adjust delivery
Corporation dates and order
Sales Lenovo 2003/11/04 onwards until one party decides to Sale of Reserves right to
Contract (Singapore) Pte. terminate based on terms listed in the contract products adjust delivery
Ltd. dates and order
Sales Microsoft 2009/10/27 onwards for 5 years, contract Sale of Reserves right to
Contract Corporation renewal for 1 year will be initiated by Microsoft | products adjust delivery
120 days before expiry; Contract amended on dates and order
2017 to renewed upon expiry until one party
decides to terminate based on terms listed in the
contract
Patent MPEG LA 2009/12/28 onwards until the patent expires Technical Non-exclusive
authorization authorization | authorization,
contract prohibited from
transferring
authorization
Patent Qualcomm 2005/10/18 onwards until one party decides to Technical Non-exclusive
authorization | Incorporated terminate based on terms listed in the contract authorization | authorization,
contract prohibited from
transferring
authorization
Sales Sony Corporation | 2010/01/26 onwards, effective for 1 year, renews | Sale of Reserves right to
Contract automatically for 1 year upon expiry products adjust delivery
dates and order
Sales Vizio Inc. 2014/01/01 onwards, effective for 1 year, 90 Sale of Reserves right to
Contract days before expiry renews for 1 year upon expiry | products adjust delivery

perpetually if both parties do not express
willingness to terminate

dates and order
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VI. Financial Standing

A. Most Recent 5-Year Concise Financial Information

)

1. Concise Consolidated Balance Sheet

Concise Balance Sheet and Statement of Comprehensive Income

Unit: NT$ Thousand

Year Financial Information for the Most Recent 5 Years
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Item
Current Assets 2,746,136,117 | 2,706,482,746 | 2,573,692,923 | 2,884,649,302 | 3,034,417,28
6
Net property, Plant and 278,204,005 277,860,012 287,523,253 287,091,978 | 310,107,309
Equipment
Intangible Assets 9,552,444 30,357,025 41,380,353 44,760,083 45,352,837
Other Assets 373,324,047 366,655,644 418,345,169 457,774,227 | 519,000,962
Total Assets 3,407,216,613 | 3,381,355,427 | 3,320,941,698 | 3,674,275,590 | 3,908,878,39
4
Current Before 2,025,502,267 | 1,809,861,556 | 1,657,461,361 1,961,257,311 | 1,997,680,27
Liabilities | Distribution 1
After 2,060,159,744 | 1,865,313,518 | 1,715,685,922 | 2,016,709,273 | 2,069,767,82
Distribution 2
Non-current Liabilities 209,921,891 239,059,983 263,854,920 283,871,870 | 337,938,005
Total Before 2,235,424,158 | 2,048,921,539 | 1,921,316,281 | 2,200,129,181 | 2,335,618,27
Liabilities | Distribution 6
After 2,270,081,635 | 2,104,373,501 | 1,979,540,842 | 2,255,581,143 | 2,407,705,82
Distribution 7
Equity Attributed to 1,084,220,815 | 1,211,878,469 | 1,239,984,346 | 1,297,277,376 | 1,380,457,31
Owners of Parent 0
Share Capital 173,287,383 138,629,906 138,629,906 138,629,906 138,629,906
Capital Surplus 97,872,884 190,018,456 199,383,371 202,645,942 | 202,084,430
Retained | Before 840,618,759 943,555,228 | 1,004,437,983 138,629,906 | 1,129,264,06
Earnings | Distribution 1
After 805,961,282 888,103,266 946,213,422 202,645,942 | 1,057,176,51
Distribution 0
Other Equity Interests (27,539,310) (60,309,927) | (102,451,720) (87,315,126) | (89,505,893)
Treasury Shares (18,901) (15,194) (15,194) (15,194) (15,194)
Non-Controlling 87,571,640 120,555,419 159,641,071 176,869,033 192,802,808
Interests
Total Before 1,171,792,455 | 1,332,433,888 | 1,399,625,417 | 1,474,146,409 | 1,573,260,11
Equity Distribution 8
After 1,137,134,978 | 1,276,981,926 | 1,341,400,856 | 1,418,694,447 | 1,501,172,56
Distribution 7
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2. Concise Stand-alone Balance Sheet

Unit: NT$ Thousand

Year Financial Information for the Most Recent 5 Years
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Item
Current Assets 1,997,909,00 1,684,937,26 1,552,045,40 1,773,430,28 1,672,066,527
4 0 3 2
Net property, Plant and 5,570,886 4,513,316 4,210,766 4,137,352 6,606,000
Equipment
Intangible Assets - - - - -
Other Assets 1,267,133,95 1,395,012,79 1,472,404,67 1,545,808,36 1,677,457,869
4 7 2 5
Total Assets 3,270,613,84 | 3,084,463,37 | 3,028,660,84 | 3,323,375,99 | 3,356,130,396
4 3 1 9
Current Before 2,046,923,67 1,713,573,68 1,656,784,10 1,898,636,073 1,817,996,354
Liabilities | Distribution 2 9 5
After 2,081,581,14 1,769,025,65 1,715,008,66 1,954,088,035 1,890,083,905
Distribution 9 1 6
Non-current Liabilities 139,469,357 159,011,215 131,892,390 127,462,550 157,676,732
Total Before 2,186,393,02 1,872,584,90 1,788,676,49 | 2,026,098,623 1,975,673,086
Liabilities | Distribution 9 4 5
After 2,221,050,50 1,928,036,86 1,846,901,05 | 2,081,550,585 | 2,047,760,637
Distribution 6 6 6
Equity Attributed to - - - -
Owners ofParent
Share Capital 173,287,383 138,629,906 138,629,906 138,629,906 138,629,906
Capital Surplus 97,872,884 190,018,456 199,383,371 202,645,942 202,084,430
Retained Before 840,618,759 943,555,228 1,004,437,98 1,043,331,848 1,129,264,061
Earnings | Distribution 3
After 805,961,282 888,103,266 946,213,422 987,879,886 | 1,057,176,510
Distribution
Other Equity Interests (27,539,310) (60,309,927) | (102,451,720) (87,315,126) (89,505,893)
Treasury Shares (18,901) (15,194) (15,194) (15,194) (15,194)
Non-Controlling - - - -
Interests
Total Before 1,084,220,81 1,211,878,46 1,239,984,34 1,297,277,37 1,380,457,310
Equity Distribution 5 9 6 6
After 1,049,563,33 1,156,426,50 1,181,759,78 1,241,825,41 1,308,369,759
Distribution 8 7 5 4
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3.  Concise Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Unit: NT$ Thousand

Year Financial Information for the Most Recent 5 Years
Item
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Operating Revenue 4,706,736,09 | 5,293,803,02 | 5,342,810,99 | 5,358,023,06 | 5,994,173,882
6 2 5 5
Gross Profit (Loss) from 303,006,947 | 332,029,904 | 315,868,425 | 302,918,723 362,127,046
Operations
Net Operating Income 112,570,431 136,146,875 | 114,896,886 | 110,827,448 148,959,492
Non-Operating Income and 70,302,192 34,104,567 48,981,061 34,644,786 44,612,251
Expenses
Profit (Loss) from 182,872,623 | 170,251,442 | 163,877,947 | 145,472,234 193,571,743
ContinuingOperations
Before Tax
Profit (Loss) from 135,374,528 | 129,835,425 | 132,185,088 | 114,325,587 153,823,041
ContinuingOperations
Loss from Discontinuing - - - - -
Operations
Other comprehensive 135,374,528 | 129,835,425 | 132,185,088 | 114,325,587 153,823,041
income,net
Total comprehensive (56,392,558) | (28,938,481) | (44,620,309) 7,172,540 (3,911,702)
income
Profit (loss), attributable to 78,981,970 | 100,896,944 87,564,779 | 121,498,127 149,911,339
owners of parent
Profit (loss), attributable to 138,734,401 129,065,105 | 115,308,736 | 101,794,807 139,320,332
non-controlling interests
Comprehensive income, (3,359,873) 770,320 16,876,352 12,530,780 14,502,709
attributable to owners of
parent
Comprehensive income, 78,641,529 | 103,120,437 74,706,141 | 112,236,799 138,007,616
attributable to non-
controllinginterests
Basic earnings per share 340,441 (2,223,493) 12,858,638 9,261,328 11,903,723
(Note)
Other comprehensive 8.01 8.03 8.32 7.34 10.05
income,net
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4.  Concise Stand-alone Statement of Comprehensive Income

Unit: NT$ Thousand

Year Financial Information for the Most Recent 5 Years
2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Item
Operating Revenue 3,118,085,67 | 2,867,948,59 | 2,849,729,98 | 3,060,945,66 | 3,643,676,647
6 3 7 6
Gross Profit (Loss) from 95,229,487 60,793,295 29,138,323 60,425,788 56,245,193
Operations
Net Operating Income 66,590,226 40,834,033 10,676,675 43,836,907 37,110,931
Non-Operating Income and 93,826,873 104,758,804 109,984,599 70,188,344 117,219,795
Expenses
Profit (Loss) from 160,417,099 | 145,592,837 | 120,661,274 | 114,025,251 154,330,726
ContinuingOperations
Before Tax
Profit (Loss) from 138,734,401 | 129,065,105 | 115,308,736 | 101,794,807 139,320,332
ContinuingOperations
Loss from Discontinuing - - - - -
Operations
Other comprehensive 138,734,401 | 129,065,105 | 115,308,736 | 101,794,807 139,320,332
income, net
Total comprehensive (60,092,872) | (25,944,668) | (40,602,595) 10,441,992 (1,312,716)
income
Profit (loss), attributable to 78,641,529 | 103,120,437 74,706,141 112,236,799 138,007,616
ownersof parent
Profit (loss), attributable to - - - - -
non-controlling interests
Comprehensive income, - - - - -
attributableto owners of
parent
Comprehensive income, 78,641,529 | 103,120,437 74,706,141 | 112,236,799 138,007,616
attributableto non-
controlling interests
Basic earnings per share - - - - -
(Note)
Other comprehensive 8.01 8.03 8.32 7.34 10.05
income, net
(2) CPAs and Their Opinions for Most Recent 5-Years
Year Name of CPA Auditor’s Opinion Reason for Changing CPA
2017 | Yung-chien, Hsu; Ming-hui, Chang Modified unqualified
opinion
2018 | Yung-chien, Hsu; Chien-Hung, Chou Modified unqualified Internal administrative
opinion organizational changes
2019 | Yung-chien, Hsu; Chien-Hung, Chou Modified unqualified
opinion
2020 | Yung-chien, Hsu; Patrick Hsu Modified unqualified Internal administrative
opinion organizational changes
2021 | Yung-chien, Hsu; Patrick Hsu Modified unqualified
opinion

B. Most Recent 5-Year Financial Analysis

(1) Financial Analysis on Consolidated Financial Statements - IFRS

Year ’ Financial Information for the Most Recent 5 Years
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2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Item (Note)

Financial Total liabilities to total assets 65.61% 60.59% 57.85% 59.88% | 59.75%
Ratio(%) Long-term capital to PP&E 496.66% | 565.56% | 578.56% | 612.35% | 616.30%
Ability to Pay | Current ratio 135.58% | 149.54% | 155.28% | 150.54% | 151.90%
offDebt (%) Quick ratio 106.88% | 113.92% | 122.96% | 119.18% | 116.81%
Interest protection 6.36 4.10 348 4.62 9.88
Ability to A/R turnover (times) 4.77 4.60 5.08 5.39 5.66
Operate R umover days 77 79 7 68 64
Inventory turnover (times) 8.74 8.00 8.46 8.81 8.67
Account payable turnover 4.57 4.58 5.42 5.13 5.26

(times)
Days sales outstanding 42 46 43 41 42
Fixed assets turnover (times) 16.03 19.04 18.90 18.65 20.07
Total assets turnover (times) 1.57 1.56 1.59 1.53 1.58
Earning Return on assets (%) 5.47% 5.06% 5.54% 4.17% 4.51%
ability Return on equity (%) 11.74% | 1037% | 9.68% | 7.96% | 10.10%
PBT to pay-in capital % 105.53% | 122.81% | 118.21% | 104.94% | 139.63%
Net margin (%) 2.88% 2.45% 2.47% 2.13% 2.57%
EPS (NTS) 8.01 8.03 8.32 7.34 10.05
Cash flow % | Cash flow ratio (%) (1.94%) | (2.22%) 14.96% 19.71% | (4.92%)
Cash flow adequacy ratio (%) 73.19% | 46.83% 50.74% | 61.71% | 36.40%
Cash reinvestment ratio (%) (6.9%) | (3.91%) 9.24% 14.46% | (7.19%)
Leverage Operating leverage 5.32 4.34 4.90 491 3.93
Financial leverage 1.52 1.68 2.36 1.57 1.17

The reasons for all financial ratio changes within the most recent two years are as follows:

1. Interest protection: The increase in the interest protection in the current period is mainly due to the

decrease in the overall loan interest rate, which reduces the amount of interest paid in the current period.

2. Cash flow ratio: Due to the impact of the pandemic, the increase in shipments at the end of the year led to
an increase in the balance of accounts payable to suppliers, resulting in net cash inflows from operating
activities, resulting in a relatively high cash flow ratio. As a result, the cash flow adequacy ratio continues
to increase.

3. Cash reinvestment ratio: Net cash inflow from operating activities was mainly due to the significant
increase in the closing balance of accounts payable last year (compared with the previous year. While the
closing balance of inventory for the current period was slightly higher than that of last year, resulting in
net cash outflow from operating activities. Therefore, net cash from operating activities during the current
period was significantly higher than last year, and cash reinvestment ratio was higher.

4. Financial leverage: The decrease in financial leverage compared to last year was mainly due to the
decrease in interest expenses during the current period.

Note: Please refer to the Formulas section below, for the formulas of items analyzed.
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(2) Financial Analysis on Stand-alone Financial Statements - IFRS

Year Financial Information for the Most Recent 5 Years

Item (Note) 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021
Financial | Total liabilities to total assets 66.85% 60.71% 59.06% 60.97% 58.87%
Ratio (%) Long-term capital to PP&E 21965.81 | 30374.33 | 32580.22 | 4272.58% | 23,283.89%

% % %
Ability to | Current ratio 97.61% 98.33% 93.68% 93.41% 91.97%
Ife%b}; (()3;) Quick ratio 93.85% 93.67% 87.72% 88.87% 87.55%
Interest protection 61.57 38.03% 38.70% 39.58 69.92
Ability to | A/R turnover (times) 5.23 4.72 5.03 5.15 5.57
Operate 1= mover days 70 77 73 71 65
Inventory turnover (times) 33.16 33.97 31.00 32.6 43.42
Account payable turnover 2.60 2.47 2.55 2.48 2.90
(times)
Days sales outstanding 11 11 12 11 8
Fixed assets turnover (times) 161.29 568.80 653.30 733.33 678.31
Total assets turnover (times) 1.01 0.90 0.93 0.96 1.09
Earning | Return on assets (%) 4.56% 4.17% 3.87% 3.29% 4.23%
ability Return on equity (%) 12.83% 11.24% 9.41% 8.02% 10.41%
PBT to pay-in capital % 92.57% 105.02% 87.04% 82.25% 111.33%
Net margin (%) 4.45% 4.50% 4.05% 3.33% 3.82%
EPS (NT$) (Note 1) 8.01 8.03 8.32 7.34 10.05
Cash flow | Cash flow ratio (%) (3.91%) 3.14% (5.46%) 8.60% (11.51%)
% Cash flow adequacy ratio 132.62% 130.33% 61.93% 41.60% (38.25%)
0

E?fl):h reinvestment ratio (%) (12.86%) 1.39% | (10.63%) 7.37% (17.21%)
Leverage | Operating leverage 1.42 1.46 3.02 1.35 1.46
Financial leverage 1.04 1.11 1.43 1.07 1.06

The reasons for all financial ratio changes within the most recent two years are as follows (exempt from

analysis if less than 20%):

1. Cash flow ratio: the increase in cash flow ratio was mainly due to the increase in cash inflow from
operating activities during current period (accounts payable).

2. Cash flow adequacy ratio: Decrease in cash flow adequacy was mainly due to the increase in cash inflow
from operating activities (increased accounts payable) and the decrease in inventories of the current period
last year.

3. Cash reinvestment ratio: increase mainly due to the cash inflow from operating activities during the current
period.

4. Operating leverage: decreased mainly due to the increase in operating income during the current period is
greater than variable costs, and also the increase in operating net profit.

5. Financial leverage: financial leverage decreased mainly due to the increase in operating net profit and the
decrease in interest expenses during the current period.

Note: Please refer to the details (1-6) below for the formulas of items analyzed
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Formula:

(1) Financial Ratio
1. Total liabilities to Total assets = Total liabilities / Total assets
2. Long-term debts to fixed assets = (Net equity + Long-term debts) / Net fixed assets

(2) Ability to Pay off Debt
1. Current ratio = Current Assets / Current liability
2. Quick ratio = (Current assets - Inventory - Prepaid expenses) / Current liability
3. Interest protection = Net income before income tax and interest expense / Interest expense

(3) Ability to Operate
1. Account receivable (including account receivable and notes receivable from operation) turnover =
Net sales / the Average of account receivable (including account receivable and notes receivable
from operation) balance
2. A/R turnover day = 365 / account receivable turnover
Inventory turnover = Cost of Goods Sold / the average of inventory
4.  Account payable (including account payable and notes payable from operation) turnover = Cost of
goods sold / the average of account payable (including account payable and notes payable from
operation) balance
5. Inventory turnover day = 365 / Inventory turnover
6.  Fixed assets turnover = Net sales / Net Fixed Assets
7.  Total assets turnover = Net sales / Total assets

W

(4) Earning Ability
1.  Return on assets = [PAT + Interest expense x (1 - interest rate)] / the average of total assets
2. Return on equity = PAT / the average of net equity
3. Netincome ratio = PAT / Net sates
4 EPS = (PAT - Dividend from prefer stock) / weighted average outstanding shares

(5) Cash Flow
1. Cash flow ratio = Cash flow from operating activities / Current liability
2. Cash flow adequacy ratio = Most recent 5-year Cash flow from operating activities / Most recent 5-
year (Capital expenditure + the increase of inventory + cash dividend)
3. Cash investment ratio = (Cash flow from operating activities - cash dividend) / (Gross fixed assets +
long-term investment + other assets + working capital)

(6) Leverage
1.  Operating leverage = (Net revenue - variable cost of goods sold and operating expense) / operating
income
2. Financial leverage = Operating income / (Operating income - interest expenses)
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C. Audit Committee’s Review Report

The Board of Directors has prepared the Company’s Financial Statements, 2021 Business Report and
proposal for distribution of 2021 earnings. Of which, the Financial Statements have been audited by
PricewaterhouseCoopers Taiwan. The Financial Statements, 2021 Business Report and proposal for
distribution of 2021 earnings have been audited by us as Audit Committee of the Company. We deem
no inappropriateness on these documents. Pursuant to Article 14-4 of the Securities and Exchange Act

and Article 219 of the Company Act, we hereby submit this report. Please review.

Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd.

Chairman of the Audit Committee: James Wang

On the date of April 20, 2022
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D. 2021 Consolidated Financial Statements with Subsidiaries Audited by
CPA

HON HAI PRECISION INDUSTRY CO., LTD.
AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

For the convenience of readers and for information purpose only, the auditors’ report and the accompanying
financial statements have been translated into English from the original Chinese version prepared and used in
the Republic of China. In the event of any discrepancy between the English version and the original Chinese
version or any differences in the interpretation of the two versions, the Chinese-language auditors’ report and
financial statements shall prevail.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT TRANSLATED FROM CHINESE

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Hon Hai Precision Industry Co.,
Ltd. and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and the related consolidated
statements of comprehensive income, of changes in equity and of cash flows for the years then ended,
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, based on our audits and the reports of other independent auditors, the accompanying
consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial
position of the Group as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, and its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with the Regulations Governing
the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting
Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as

endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with the Regulations Governing Auditing and Attestation
of Financial Statements by Certified Public Accountants and generally accepted auditing standards in
the Republic of China. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the Norm of Professional Ethics for Certified Public
Accountant of the Republic of China, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements. Based on our audits and the reports of other independent auditors,
we believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for

our opinion.

Key audit matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance
in our audit of the Group’s 2021 consolidated financial statements. These matters were addressed in the

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole and, in forming our opinion
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thereon, we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters for the Group’s 2021 consolidated financial statements are stated as follows:

Cut-off of hub sales revenue
Description

Refer to Note 4(35) for accounting policies on revenue recognition.

The Group recognises revenue upon acceptance of the goods by the customers (when control of the
products is transferred) if picked up from hub. For pick-ups from hub, the Group recognises sales
revenue based on movements of inventories contained in the statements or other information provided
by the hub custodians. As the hubs are located around the world with numerous custodians, the frequency
and contents of statements provided by custodians vary, and the process of revenue recognition involves
numerous manual procedures, these factors may potentially result in inaccurate timing of sales revenue
recognition and the discrepancy in inventory quantities between the physical inventory and system
records.

As there are numerous daily sales revenue transactions from hubs and the transaction amounts prior
to and after the balance sheet date are significant to the financial statements, we identified the cut-off of
hub sales revenue as a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures in respect of the above key audit matter:

A. Assessed and tested the appropriateness of internal controls over cut-off of hub sales revenue for a
specific period prior to and after the balance sheet date, including agreeing to respective supporting
documents provided by hub custodians, and validated the proper timing of recognising movements
of inventories and respective transfer of cost of goods sold.

B. Observed the physical count of inventory quantities held at hubs and agreed to accounting records.

Allowance for inventory valuation losses
Description

Refer to Note 4(14) for accounting policies on inventory valuation, Note 5(2)3 for uncertainty of
accounting estimates and assumptions in relation to inventory valuation losses, and Note 6(8) for details
of inventories. As of December 31, 2021, the Group’s inventories and allowance for inventory valuation
losses amounted to NT$690,728,262 thousand and NT$18,582,897 thousand, respectively.

The Group is primarily engaged in manufacturing and sales of 3C electronic products. Due to rapid
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technological innovations, short lifespan of electronic products and fluctuations in market prices, there
is a higher risk of inventory losses arising from market value decline or obsolescence. The Group
recognises inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value, and the net realisable value is
estimated based on historical experience. An allowance for inventory valuation losses is provided for
those inventories aged over a certain period and those individually identified as obsolete or damaged.

As the amounts of inventories are material, the types of inventories vary, and the estimation of net
realisable value for individually obsolete or damaged inventories is subject to management’s judgment,
we considered the allowance for inventory valuation losses a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures in relation to the provision for inventory valuation
losses for individually obsolete or damaged inventories:

A. Ensured consistent application of accounting policies in relation to allowance for inventory valuation
losses and assessed the reasonableness of these policies.

B. Validated the appropriateness of system logic of inventory aging report utilised by management to
ensure proper classification of inventories aged over a certain period.

C. Evaluated the reasonableness of inventories individually identified as obsolete or damaged by
checking the related supporting documents and comparing with the information obtained from
physical inventory.

D. Discussed with management the net realisable value of inventories aged over a certain period and
individually identified as obsolete or damaged, validated respective supporting documents and

reperformed the calculation.

Impairment assessment on goodwill arising from the acquisition of Belkin International Inc.
(“Belkin”) and its subsidiaries
Description

Refer to Note 4(20) for accounting policy on impairment assessment of non-financial assets, Note
5(2)2 for the critical accounting estimates and assumptions in relation to impairment assessment of
goodwill, and Note 6(14) for the details of impairment loss.

As of December 31, 2021, the Group had goodwill arising from the acquisition of Belkin and its
subsidiaries for NT$10,531,410 thousand.

Impairment assessment is performed based on the value in use calculation using the discounted

cash flow model to determine the recoverable amounts of the cash-generating unit (“CGU”). As the key
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assumptions, including expected growth rate and discount rate, used in the calculation of expected future
cash flows involve significant judgment and estimation uncertainty and have a significant impact in
assessing goodwill impairment, we considered the impairment assessment on goodwill arising from the
acquisition of Belkin and its subsidiaries a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed the matter

We performed the following audit procedures in respect of the above key audit matter:

A. Understanding and validating the key control procedures performed by management, including
review and approval of financial budgets and assumptions.

B. Assessing the appropriateness of the valuation methodology used in determining the recoverable
amount.

C. Involved valuation specialists to assess the reasonableness of the key assumptions, including
expected growth rate, expected gross margin and discount rate used as follows:

(a) Evaluated the assumptions used, mainly expected growth rate and expected gross margin used
in the impairment assessment by comparing them to historical results, economic and industry
forecast;

(b) Benchmarked the discount rate range which is used in determining the recoverable amount
against certain market data and industry research; and

(c) Performed sensitivity analysis over key assumptions used in the model to evaluate the potential

impact on the recoverable amounts.

Other matter — Reference to audits of other independent auditors

We did not audit the financial statements of certain consolidated subsidiaries. Those financial
statements were audited by other independent auditors, whose reports thereon have been furnished to us,
and our opinion expressed herein, insofar as it relates to the amounts included in the consolidated
financial statements relative to these consolidated subsidiaries was based solely on the reports of other
independent auditors. Total assets of those consolidated subsidiaries amounted to NT$145,992,392
thousand and NT$151,573,867 thousand, constituting 3.73% and 4.13% of the consolidated total assets
as of December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and total operating revenues amounted to
NT$202,530,777 thousand and NT$232,746,063 thousand, constituting 3.38% and 4.34% of the
consolidated total operating revenues for the years then ended, respectively.
Other matter — Parent company only financial reports

We have audited and expressed an unqualified opinion on the parent company only financial
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statements of Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd. as at and for the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the consolidated financial
statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in accordance with the Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by
Securities Issuers and the International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC Interpretations as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory
Commission, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance, including the Audit Committee, are responsible for overseeing the

Group’s financial reporting process.

Auditors’ responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial
statements are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with the generally accepted auditing standards in the Republic of
China will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken based on these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards in the Republic of
China, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

A. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,

whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
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obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal controls.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors’
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure, and content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision, and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned

scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in

internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with

relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships

and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,

related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters
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that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of

doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

Hsu, Yung-Chien Hsu, Sheng-Chung
for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers, Taiwan
March 23, 2022

The accompanying consolidated financial statements are not intended to present the financial position and results of
operations and cash flows in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other
than the Republic of China. The standards, procedures and practices in the Republic of China governing the audit of such
financial statements may differ from those generally accepted in countries and jurisdictions other than the Republic of China.
Accordingly, the accompanying consolidated financial statements and independent auditors’ report are not intended for use
by those who are not informed about the accounting principles or auditing standards generally accepted in the Republic of
China, and their applications in practice.

As the financial statements are the responsibility of the management, PricewaterhouseCoopers cannot accept any liability for
the use of, or reliance on, the English translation or for any errors or misunderstandings that may derive from the translation.
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HON HAI PRECISION INDUSTRY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

Assets Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current assets

1100 Cash and cash equivalents 6(1) $ 1,059,417,011 27 % 1,232,794,015 34
1110 Financial assets at fair value through  6(2)

profit or loss - current 1,332,824 - 6,285,594 -
1120 Current financial assets at fair value ~ 6(3)

through other comprehensive income 130,622 - - -
1136 Financial assets at amortised cost, 6(4) and 8

net-current 48,008,438 1 38,783,566 1
1139 Current financial assets for hedging ~ 6(5) 1,068,785 - - -
1170 Accounts receivable, net 6(6) 1,125,762,611 29 903,070,230 25
1180 Accounts receivable - related parties 7 35,455,895 1 39,414,164 1
1200 Other receivables 6(7)(12) 59,510,406 2 58,237,719 2
1210 Other receivables - related parties 7 2,777,421 - 5,285,774 -
130X Inventory 6(8) 672,145,365 17 582,113,735 16
1410 Prepayments 7 18,057,414 1 18,664,505 -
1470 Other current assets 6(4) 10,750,494 - - -
11XX Total current assets 3,034,417,286 78 2,884,649,302 79

Non-current assets

1510 Financial assets at fair value through  6(2)

profit or loss - non-current 88,481,743 2 83,681,186 2
1517 Financial assets at fair value through  6(3)

other comprehensive income - non-

current 112,718,725 3 87,074,089 2
1535 Financial assets at amortised cost, net 6(4) and 8

- non-current 23,449,084 1 18,786,030 1
1550 Investments accounted for using 6(9)

equity method 194,593,652 5 175,199,441 5
1600 Property, plant and equipment 6(10) and 8 310,107,309 8 287,091,978 8
1755 Right-of-use assets 6(11) and 7 40,260,192 1 46,268,685 1
1760 Investment property - net 6(13) 10,356,499 - 11,083,273 -
1780 Intangible assets 6(14) 45,352,837 1 44,760,083 1
1840 Deferred income tax assets 20,443,452 - 19,946,852 1
1900 Other non-current assets 6(12)(15) and 8 28,697,615 1 15,734,671 -
15XX Total non-current assets 874,461,108 22 789,626,288 21
IXXX  Total assets $ 3,908,878,394 100§ 3,674,275,590 100

(Continued)
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HON HAI PRECISION INDUSTRY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Liabilities and Equity Notes AMOUNT % AMOUNT %
Current liabilities
2100 Short-term loans 6(17) $ 546,372,008 14 % 446,422,100 12
2110 Short-term notes and bills payable 6(16) 23,999,117 1 39,101,893 1
2120 Financial liabilities at fair value 6(2)
through profit or loss - current 964,015 - 2,291,221 -
2170 Accounts payable 1,055,155,222 27 1,037,912,518 28
2180 Accounts payable - related parties 7 21,022,980 - 27,680,046 1
2200 Other payables 6(18) and 7 213,094,933 5 220,177,215 6
2230 Current tax liabilities 26,474,025 1 24,004,318 1
2250 Provisions for liabilities - current 6(25) 2,876,585 - 4,136,517 -
2280 Current lease liabilities 7 7,364,055 - 9,058,272 -
2320 Long-term liabilities, current portion  6(20)(21) 38,586,760 1 56,950,211 2
2399 Other current liabilities 6(19) 61,770,571 2 48,523,000 1
21XX Total current liabilities 1,997,680,271 51 1,916,257,311 52
Non-current liabilities
2530 Corporate bonds payable 6(20) 226,258,790 6 201,691,563 5
2540 Long-term loans 6(21) 49,340,778 1 31,593,197 1
2550 Provisions for liabilities - non-current 6(25) 430,648 - 407,915 -
2570 Deferred income tax liabilities 32,228,229 1 18,805,119 1
2580 Non-current lease liabilities 7 18,217,030 1 20,390,740 1
2600 Other non-current liabilities 6(24) 11,462,530 - 10,983,336 -
25XX Total non-current liabilities 337,938,005 9 283,871,870 8
2XXX Total liabilities 2,335,618,276 60 2,200,129,181 60
Equity
Equity attributable to owners of
parent
Share capital 6(26)
3110 Common stock 138,629,906 4 138,629,906 4
Capital reserve 6(27)
3200 Capital surplus 202,084,430 5 202,645,942 5
Retained earnings 6(28)
3310 Legal reserve 170,755,591 161,043,748 4
3320 Special reserve 87,315,126 2 102,451,720 3
3350 Unappropriated retained earnings 871,193,344 22 779,836,380 21
Other equity interest 6(29)
3400 Other equity interest 89,505,893) ( 2) ( 87,315,126) ( 2)
3500  Treasury stocks 6(26) 15,194) - ( 15,194) -
31XX Equity attributable to owners of
the parent 1,380,457,310 35 1,297,277,376 35
36XX Non-controlling interest 6(30) 192,802,808 5 176,869,033 5
3XXX Total equity 1,573,260,118 40 1,474,146,409 40
Commitments and Contingent 9
Liabilities
Subsequent Events 11
3X2X Total liabilities and equity $ 3,908,878,394 100 $ 3,674,275,590 100

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.




HON HAI PRECISION INDUSTRY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT FOR EARNINGS PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

Year ended December 31
2021 2020
Items Notes AMOUNT AMOUNT %
4000  Operating revenue 6(31)and 7 $ 5,994,173,882 100 $ 5,358,023,065 100
5000  Operating costs 6(8)(35)(36) and 7 ( 5,632,046,836) ( 94) ( 5,055,104,342) ( 94)
5900 Net operating margin 362,127,046 6 302,918,723 6
Operating expenses 6(35)(36)
6100 Selling expenses ( 30,505,863) ( 1) ( 27,243 ,581) ( 1)
6200 General and administrative expenses ( 77,592,927) ( 1) ( 70,737,182) ( 1)
6300 Research and development expenses ( 105,068,764) ( 2) ( 94,110,512) ( 2)
6000 Total operating expenses ( 213,167,554) ( 4) ( 192,091,275) ( 4)
6900  Operating profit 148,959,492 2 110,827,448 2
Non-operating income and expenses
7100 Interest income 6(32) 32,456,041 1 47,934,352 1
7010 Other income 6(33) 15,183,191 - 11,887,533 -
7020 Other gains and losses 6(34) 526,797 - 7,314,465 -
7050 Finance costs 6(37) ( 21,958,495) - ( 40,317,013) -
7060 Share of profit of associates and 6(9)
joint ventures accounted for using
equity method 18,404,717 - 7,825,449 -
7000 Total non-operating income and
expenses 44,612,251 1 34,644,786 1
7900  Profit before income tax 193,571,743 3 145,472,234 3
7950 Income tax expense 6(38) ( 39,748,702) - ( 31,146,647) ( 1)
8200  Profit for the year $ 153,823,041 3 114,325,587 2

(Continued)
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(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS, EXCEPT FOR EARNINGS PER SHARE AMOUNTS)

Items

HON HAI PRECISION INDUSTRY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

Year ended December 31

2021

2020

Notes

AMOUNT

%

AMOUNT

8311

8316

8320

8349

8310

8361

8368
8370

8399

8360

8300

8500

8610
8620

8710
8720

9750
9850

Other comprehensive income
Components of other comprehensive
income that will not be reclassified to

profit or loss

Gain (loss) on remeasurement of 6(22)
defined benefit plans $

Unrealised gain on valuation of

6(3)(29)(30)

financial assets at fair value through

other comprehensive income

Share of other comprehensive 6(29)
income of associates and joint

ventures accounted for using equity

method

Income tax related to components of 6(38)
other comprehensive income that
will not be reclassified to profit or

loss

102,846

21,768,401

1,382,226

4,162,768)

47,626)

19,999,225

497,658

9,525

Other comprehensive income that
will not be reclassified to profit or

loss

19,090,705

20,458,782

Components of other comprehensive
income that will be reclassified to

profit or loss

Financial statements translation

6(29)(30)

differences of foreign operations (
Gains on hedging instrument 6(5)

Share of other comprehensive (loss) 6(29)

income of associates and joint

ventures accounted for using equity

method

Income tax related to components of 6(5)
other comprehensive income (
Other comprehensive loss that will
be reclassified to profit or loss (
Other comprehensive (loss) income

for the year

16,100,213)
230,467

7,098,091)

34,570)

15,380,879)

2,094,637

23,002,407)

13,286,242)

3,911,702)

7,172,540

Total comprehensive income for the

year

149,911,339

121,498,127

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the parent $
Non-controlling interest

139,320,332
14,502,709

101,794,807
12,530,780

153,823,041

114,325,587

Comprehensive income attributable to:
Owners of the parent $
Non-controlling interest

138,007,616
11,903,723

112,236,799
9,261,328

149,911,339

121,498,127

Earnings per share (in dollars) 6(39)
Basic earnings per share $

10.05

7.34

Diluted earnings per share $

9.91

7.28

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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2020
Balance at January 1, 2020
Profit
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Total comprehensive income (loss)
Appropriations of 2019 earnings:
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Cash dividends
Changes in equity of associates and joint ventures
accounted for under the equity method
Adjustments arising from changes in percentage of
ownership in subsidiaries
Increase in non-controlling interests
Disposal of equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income
Balance at December 31, 2020

2021
Balance at January 1, 2021
Profit
Other comprehensive income (loss)
Total comprehensive income (loss)
Appropriations of 2020 earnings:
Legal reserve
Special reserve
Cash dividends

Changes in equity of associates and joint ventures
accounted for using the equity method

Adjustments arising from changes in percentage of
ownership in subsidiaries

Increase in non-controlling interests
Disposal of equity instruments at fair value through
other comprehensive income

HON HAI PRECISION INDUSTRY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

Equity attributable to owners of the parent

Retained Earnings

Other Equity Interest

Unrealised gains
(losses) from
financial assets

Due to recognition of equity component of convertible 6(20)(27)

bonds issued
Balance at December 31, 2021

Financial measured at fair
statements value through
translation other Gains (losses) on
Share capital - Unappropriated differences of comprehensive hedging Treasury Non-controlling
Notes common stock Capital Reserve Legal reserve Special reserve  _retained earnings  foreign operations income instruments stocks Total interest Total equity
$ 138,629,906  § 199,383,371 $149,512,874  $ 60,309,927  $794,615,182 ($113,889,466) §$ 11,437,746 §$ - (% 15,194) $ 1,239,984,346  $§ 159,641,071 $  1,399,625,417
- - - - 101,794,807 - - - - 101,794,807 12,530,780 114,325,587
6(29) - - - - ( 38,101) ( 10,662,513) 21,142,606 - - 10,441,992 ( 3,269,452) 7,172,540
- - - - 101,756,706 ( 10,662,513) 21,142,606 - - 112,236,799 9,261,328 121,498,127
6(28)
- - 11,530,874 - ( 11,530,874) - - - - - - -
- - - 42,141,793  ( 42,141,793) - - - - - - -
- - - - (0 58,224,561) - - - - 58,224,561) - ( 58,224,561)
6(27)

- 10,032 - - 22,673 - - - - 32,705 - 32,705
6(27)

- 3,252,539 - - ( 4,452) - - - - 3,248,087 - 3,248,087
6(30) - - - - - - - - - - 7,966,634 7,966,634
6(3)

- - - - ( 4,656,501) - 4,656,501 - - - - -
$ 138,629,906  $§ 202,645,942  §$161,043,748  $102,451,720  $779,836,380 ($124,551,979) $ 37,236,853 § - ($ 15,194) $  1,297,277,376  $ 176,869,033 §  1,474,146,409
$ 138,629,906  $ 202,645,942  $161,043,748  $102,451,720  $779,836,380 ($124,551,979) $ 37,236,853 § - ($ 15,194) $  1,297,277,376  $ 176,869,033 $§ 1,474,146,409

- - - - 139,320,332 - - - - 139,320,332 14,502,709 153,823,041

6(29) - - - 82,277 ( 21,760,979) 20,200,341 165,645 - 1,312,716) ( 2,598,986) ( 3,911,702)
- - - 139,402,609 ( 21,760,979) 20,200,341 165,645 - 138,007,616 11,903,723 149,911,339
6(28)
- 9,711,843 - (0 9,711,843) - - - - - - -
- - (0 15,136,594) 15,136,594 - - - - - - -
- - - 55,451,962) - - - - 55,451,962) - ( 55,451,962)
6(27)
( 4,642,079 ) - - 1,185,792 - - - - 3,456,287) - 3,456,287)
6(27)
3,744,555 - - - - - - - 3,744,555 - 3,744,555
6(30) - - - - - - - - - 4,030,052 4,030,052
6(3)
- - - 795,774 - 795,774) - - - - -

- 336,012 - - - - - - - 336,012 - 336,012

$ 138,629,906  § 202,084,430  $ 170,755,591 $ 87,315,126  $871,193,344 ($146,312,958) $ 56,641,420 $ 165,645 ($ 15,194) § 1,380,457,310 § 192,802,808 $ 1,573,260,118

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HON HATI PRECISION INDUSTRY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2021 AND 2020

(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax

Adjustments

Adjustments to reconcile profit (loss)
Depreciation
Amortisation
Cost of share-based payments

(Reversal of allowance) provision for doubtful accounts and

sales discount

Impairment loss

(Gain) loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment, net
Gain on financial assets or liabilities at fair value through

profit or loss, net

Share of profit of associates and joint ventures accounted for

using equity method
Gain on disposal of investments
Interest expense
Interest income
Dividend income

Changes in operating assets and liabilities
Changes in operating assets

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,

mandatorily measured at fair value
Hedging instruments
Notes receivable
Accounts receivable
Accounts receivable due from related parties
Other receivables
Inventories
Prepayments
Changes in operating liabilities
Accounts payable
Accounts payable to related parties
Other payables
Provisions for liabilities
Contract liabilities
Other current liabilities
Accrued pension liabilities
Cash (outflow) inflow generated from operations

Income taxes paid

Net cash flows (used in) from operating activities

Year ended December 31
Notes 2021 2020
193,571,743 145,472,234
6(35) 70,125,301 60,952,265
6(35) 5,355,858 4,161,469
6(36) 2,462,747 4,403,815
12(2)
( 658,060 ) 1,705,559
6(34) 340,910 959,481
6(34) ( 1,403,856 ) 873,283
6(34)
( 2,531,148 ) ( 13,727,567 )
6(9)
( 18,404,717 ) ( 7,825,449 )
6(34) ( 2,938,622 ) ( 633,645 )
6(37) 21,802,778 40,148,900
6(32) ( 32,456,041 ) ( 47,934,352 )
6(33) ( 10,255,146 ) ( 4,891,042 )
2,084,199 9,572,395
( 872,887 ) _
( 474,576 ) 190,805
( 222,942,664 ) 83,147,102
3,959,755 6,788,779
( 2,486,599 ) ( 5,026,811 )
( 92,416,772 ) ( 66,341,558 )
607,091 1,231,069
16,082,865 167,233,525
( 6,657,066 ) ( 7,829,082 )
( 2,824,458 ) 18,463,204
( 1,237,199 ) 1,449,186
( 3,869,649 ) 1,751,652
17,057,120 9,687,771
( 107,570 ) 16,324
( 69,086,663 ) 403,999,312
( 29,125,721 ) ( 26,375,395)
( 98,212,384 ) 377,623,917
(Continued)
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HON HATI PRECISION INDUSTRY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,2021 AND 2020
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS)

Year ended December 31
Notes 2021 2020
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (% 12,937,297 ) ($ 12,793,651 )
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss 895,727 14,729,300
(Acquisition) disposal of financial assets at amortised cost-
current ( 11,040,305 ) 14,171,311
Acquisition of financial assets at amortised cost-non-current ( 6,841,404 ) ( 7,420,291 )
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at amortised cost 2,177,550 1,279,800
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income ( 6,588,694 ) ( 5,150,525 )
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income 2,854,295 3,326,838
Decrease in other receivables due from related parties 3,818,959 17,101,208
Decrease in other receivables 1,478,468 -
Increase in other current assets ( 8,935,061 ) -
Net cash flow from acquisition of subsidiaries ( 4,880,142 ) ( 1,211,884 )
Proceeds from disposal of subsidiaries ( 879,654 ) -
Acquisition of investments accounted for using equity method ( 8,914,530 ) ( 3,131,377)
Proceeds from disposal of investments accounted for using equity
method 1,252,721 657,350
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment 6(41) ( 92,295,684 ) ( 65,500,041 )
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 6(41) 7,769,102 6,104,599
Proceeds from disposal of investment property 341,796 -
Acquisition of right-of-use assets ( 1,193,845 ) ( 1,495,068 )
Proceeds from disposal of right-of-use assets - 397,145
Acquisition of intangible assets ( 1,009,445 ) ( 541,250 )
Decrease in other non-current assets ( 15,702,745 ) ( 375,283 )
Dividends received 23,298,892 10,168,019
Interest received 35,109,420 62,711,773
Investing activities 139,314 1,557,802
Net cash flows (used in) from investing activities ( 92,082,562 ) 34,585,775
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Increase in short-term loans 99,435,408 65,556,050
(Decrease) increase in short-term notes and bills payable ( 15,129,779 ) 8,549,712
Proceeds from issuing bonds 62,180,438 72,922,000
Repayments of bonds ( 40,506,000 ) ( 40,199,748 )
Proceeds from long-term debt 23,144,614 1,877,645
Repayments of long-term debt ( 16,526,100 ) ( 12,043,607 )
Increase in other non-current liabilities 507,550 449,683
Payment of lease liabilities ( 10,805,466 ) ( 7,701,599 )
Changes in non-controlling interests 6(30) 2,322,773 3,110,549
Cash dividends paid to non-controlling interest 6(30) ( 3,292,721 ) «( 2,685,915 )
Proceeds from issuing shares by subsidiaries to non-controlling 6(30)
interests 5,000,000 -
Interest paid ( 26,597,352 ) ( 56,728,260 )
Cash dividends paid 6(28) ( 55,451,962 ) ( 58,224,561 )
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities 24,281,394 ( 25,118,051)
Net effect of changes in foreign currency exchange rates ( 7,363,452 ) ( 12,161,988 )
Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents ( 173,377,004 ) 374,929,653
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 1,232,794,015 857,864,362
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year $ 1,059,417,011 $ 1,232,794,015

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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HON HAI PRECISION INDUSTRY CO., LTD. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2021 AND 2020
(EXPRESSED IN THOUSANDS OF NEW TAIWAN DOLLARS,
EXCEPT AS OTHERWISE INDICATED)

1. HISTORY AND ORGANISATION

Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd. (the “Company’’) was incorporated as a company limited by shares

under the provisions of the Company Act of the Republic of China (R.O.C.). The Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred herein as the “Group”) are primarily engaged in the manufacture, sales
and service of connectors, case, thermal module, wired/wireless communication products, optical
products, power supply modules, and assemblies for use in the IT, communications, automotive
equipment, precision molding, automobile, and consumer electronics industries.

2. THE DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUANCE OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND PROCEDURES FOR AUTHORISATION
These consolidated financial statements were authorized for issuance by the Board of Directors on March
23, 2022.

3. APPLICATION OF NEW STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS

(1) Effect of the adoption of new issuances of or amendments to International Financial Reporting

Standards (“IFRS”) as endorsed by the Financial Supervisory Commission (“FSC”)

New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC effective from 2021 are as

follows:
Effective date by
International
Accounting
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IFRS 4, ‘Extension of the temporary exemption from January 1, 2021

applying IFRS 9’

Amendments to IFRS 9, TAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16, ‘Interest Rate ~ January 1, 2021
Benchmark Reform— Phase 2’

Amendment to IFRS 16, ‘Covid-19-related rent concessions beyond 30 June April 1, 2021 (Note)
2021°

Note: Earlier application from January 1, 2021 is allowed by the FSC.
The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition
and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.

(2) Effect of new issuances of or amendments to IFRSs as endorsed by the FSC but not yet adopted by

the Group
New standards, interpretations and amendments endorsed by the FSC effective from 2022 are as

follows:

-160-



Effective date by

International
Accounting
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to [FRS 3, ‘Reference to the conceptual framework’ January 1, 2022
Amendments to IAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment: proceeds before January 1, 2022
intended use’
Amendments to IAS 37, ‘Onerous contracts—cost of fulfilling a contract’ January 1, 2022
Annual improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 January 1, 2022

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition
and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.
(3) IFRSs issued by IASB but not yet endorsed by the FSC

New standards, interpretations and amendments issued by IASB but not yet included in the IFRSs as

endorsed by the FSC are as follows:

Effective date by
International
Accounting
New Standards, Interpretations and Amendments Standards Board
Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28, “Sale or contribution of assets between To be determined by
an investor and its associate or joint venture’ International
Accounting Standards
Board
IFRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IFRS 17, 'Insurance contracts' January 1, 2023
Amendment to IFRS 17, 'Initial application of IFRS 17 and IFRS 9 — January 1, 2023
comparative information'
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Classification of liabilities as current or non-current’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IAS 1, ‘Disclosure of accounting policies’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to IAS 8, ‘Definition of accounting estimates’ January 1, 2023
Amendments to TAS 12, ‘Deferred tax related to assets and liabilities arising January 1, 2023

from a single transaction’

The above standards and interpretations have no significant impact to the Group’s financial condition
and financial performance based on the Group’s assessment.
4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Unless otherwise stated, the principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated

financial statements set out below have been consistently applied to all the periods presented.

(1) Compliance statement

The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in accordance with the
“Regulations Governing the Preparation of Financial Reports by Securities Issuers”, International

Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting Standards, IFRIC Interpretations, and SIC
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Interpretations as endorsed by the FSC (collectively referred herein as the “IFRSs”).
(2) Basis of preparation

A. Except for the following items, these consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost convention:

(a) Financial assets and financial liabilities (including derivative instruments) at fair value through
profit or loss.

(b) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

(c) Defined benefit liabilities recognised based on the net amount of pension fund assets less
present value of defined benefit obligation.

B. The preparation of financial statements in conformity with [FRSs requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process
of applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or
complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in Note 5.

(3) Basis of consolidation

A. Basis for preparation of consolidated financial statements:

(a) All subsidiaries are included in the Group’s consolidated financial statements. Subsidiaries are
all entities (including structured entities) controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Consolidation
of subsidiaries begins from the date the Group obtains control of the subsidiaries and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiaries.

(b) Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised gains or losses on transactions between
companies within the Group are eliminated. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

(c) Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are attributed to the owners
of the parent and to the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income is attributed to
the owners of the parent and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

(d) Changes in a parent’s ownership interest in a subsidiary that do not result in the parent losing
control of the subsidiary (transactions with non-controlling interests) are accounted for as
equity transactions, i.e. transactions with owners in their capacity as owners. Any difference
between the amount by which the non-controlling interests are adjusted and the fair value of
the consideration paid or received is recognised directly in equity.

(e) When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the Group remeasures any investment retained
in the former subsidiary at its fair value. That fair value is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition of a financial asset or the cost on initial recognition of the associate or joint venture.

Any difference between fair value and carrying amount is recognised in profit or loss. All
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amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the subsidiary
should be reclassified from equity to profit or loss or transferred to another category of equity
as specified by applicable IFRSs.

B. Subsidiaries included in the consolidated financial statements:

Ownership (%)

December 31, December 31,

Investor Subsidiary Main Business Activities 2021 2020 Note
Hon Hai  Foxconn Investment holdings in 100 100 (b)
Precision  (Far East) companies in Mainland (c)
Industry ~ Limited and China, Hong Kong, Europe (e)
Co., Ltd.  subsidiaries and America primarily )
engaged in manufacturing, (2)
sale, research and (h)

development of computer
cases, connectors and
computer components

" Foxconn Investment holdings in 100 100
Holding hi-tech companies in
Ltd. and Asia-Pacific and
subsidiaries America

" Hyield Venture capital investments 100 100
Venture and provides planning,
Capital Co., advisory and business
Ltd. and operation and management

subsidiaries services; its investees are
primarily engaged in
manufacturing and sale of
computer terminal
monitors and related
components, data storage
and processing equipment

" Bao Shin Domestic investments in 100 100
International ~ companies primarily
Investment engaged in manufacturing
Co., Ltd. of computer terminal
and monitors and related
subsidiaries components and computers

and peripheral equipment
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Ownership (%)

December 31,

December 31,

Investor Subsidiary Main Business Activities 2021 2020 Note
HonHai  Hon Yuan Domestic investments in 100 100
Precision  International = companies primarily
Industry Investment engaged in manufacturing
Co.,Ltd. Co., Ltd. of computer terminal
and monitors and related
subsidiaries components and integrated
circuit design
" Hon Chi Domestic investments in 100 100
International ~ companies primarily
Investment engaged in manufacturing
Co., Ltd. of computer terminal
and monitors and related
subsidiaries components and integrated
circuit design
" Lin Yih Domestic investments in 100 100
International ~ companies primarily
Investment engaged in providing
Co., Ltd. FTTH broadband rental
and service, researching and
subsidiaries manufacturing of routers
" Hon Hai/ Logistics services in 100 100
Foxconn America
Logistics
California
LLC.
" Hon Hai/ Logistics services in 100 100
Foxconn America
Logistics
Texas LLC.
" Ambit Investment holdings in 100 100
International ~ companies in Mainland
Ltd. and China primarily engaged
subsidiaries in manufacturing and sale

of power supply modules,
application modules and

network cables
assemblies
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Ownership (%)

December 31,

December 31,

Investor Subsidiary Main Business Activities 2021 2020 Note
Hon Hai  Foxconn Asia-Pacific sales 100 100
Precision  Singapore company and
Industry (Pte) Ltd. and development of
Co., Ltd.  subsidiaries educational technology
" Foxconn Patent applications in 100 100
International ~ America
Inc.
" Altus Leasing services 100 100
Technology
Inc.
" Premier Image Investment holdings in 99.96 99.96
Technology companies in Mainland
-Hong Kong  China, primarily engaged
Limited and in manufacturing and
subsidiaries trading of portable
cameras
" Foxconn SA  Investment holdings in 100 100
B.V.and Russian domestic sales
subsidiaries companies
" Margini Investment holdings in 100 100
Holdings Vietnam export processing
Limited and and construction services
subsidiaries companies and Brazil
domestic sales companies
" Hong Jin Investment holdings and 100 100
Chang reinvestment in businesses
Holdings relating to robots, automatic
Co., Ltd. equipment, moulds, parts,
-Hong Kong  accessories and
corresponding services
" Foxconn Investment holdings in 100 100
Holdings companies in Europe
B.V.
- Netherlands
and
subsidiaries
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Ownership (%)

December 31,

December 31,

Investor Subsidiary Main Business Activities 2021 2020 Note
Hon Hai  Syntrend Retail of office machinery 74.80 74.80
Precision  Creative and equipment and
Industry Park Co., electronic appliances, and
Co., Ltd. Ltd. mformation/software
services
" Perobot Co.,  Sale, software 100 100
Ltd. development, repair
services, after-sale services
and rental services of
robots
" ECMMS Manufacturing and sales 100 100
Precision of computers and data
Singapore processing equipment
Pte. Ltd.
" Fenix Manufacturing WIFI 100 100
Industria De cards and modules
Electronicos
Ltda.
" Foxconn CFTV, DVR, bluetooth 100 100
MOEBG module, set-top box
Industria De and optical network
Eletronicos terminal
Ltda.-Brazil
" Asia Pacific Telecom industry, 36.02 40.74
Telecom storage of data
Co., Ltd. and manufacturing of

wire or wireless
communication,
installation of computer
and satellite TV
channels and
telecom-related
business, and providing
3rd-Generation of
mobile phone services
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Ownership (%)
December 31, December 31,

Investor Subsidiary Main Business Activities 2021 2020 Note
Hon Hai  Foxtron Complete electric 51 51 (a)

Precision  Vehicle vehicles design

Industry ~ Technologies  and development,

Co., Ltd. Co., Ltd. including technical

authorisation and transfer.
Also offering complete
solutions for autonomous
driving systems,
new energy power
and IoV systems
Socle Design, manufacture and 100 100
Technology  sale of electronic
Corporation  components and
software
Hon Young Design, manufacture and 100 - (d)
Semiconductor sale of electronic

Corporation  components and
software

(a) The Group established Foxtron Vehicle Technologies Co., Ltd. with Hua-Chuang Automobile
Information Technical Center Co., Ltd. (the “Hua-Chuang”) on November 6, 2020. Hua-
Chuang contributed assets with value of $7,542,000 as capital, while the Group contributed
cash of $7,850,321 as capital and owned 51% equity interest. It was included in the
consolidated financial statements since the setup date.

(b) The Company’s subsidiary, Lankao YuFu Precision Technology Co., Ltd., merged with a
100% subsidiary, LanKao YuDe Environment Material Technology Inc., due to reorganization
in the first quarter of 2021. Lankao YuFu Precision Technology Co., Ltd. was the surviving
company.

(c) The Group sold 33.13% Class A shares of Cybertan Technology Corporation in the second
quarter of 2021 in order to indirectly dispose the Mainland China investee, Fuyu Properties
(Shanghai) Co., Ltd. As the Group lost control over Cybertan Technology Corporation, the
Group remeasured any investment retained in the investee at its fair value. The fair value
amounting to $2,231,300 was regarded as the cost on initial recognition of an investment in
the associate, and a gain on disposal amounting to $759,188 was recognised.

(d) The subsidiary is the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary newly established on September 24,
2021.

(e) Linksys Holdings, Inc. (“Linksys”), a 67%-owned subsidiary of the Group’s subsidiary,

Foxconn Interconnect Technology Limited (“FIT”), entered into a share purchase agreement
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with Fortinet Inc. (“Fortinet”) which is a listed company in U.S. NASDAQ as approved by the
Board of Directors of FIT in August 2021. Fortinet subscribed new preference shares of
Linksys for a consideration of USD 85 million and acquired additional 18% equity interest in
Linksys. All conditions precedent in the share purchase agreement were satisfied and the
closing took place on September 25, 2021. As of September 25, 2021, the Group’s
shareholding ratio in Linksys decreased to 49% while Fortinet held a 51% equity interest in
Linksys. As a result, the Group lost control over Linksys and was not anymore included in the
consolidated financial statements. A gain on deemed disposal amounting to $144,167 was
recognised at the date when control was lost. Also, the Group remeasured any investment
retained in the investee at its fair value. That fair value amounting to $4,350,850 was regarded
as the cost on initial recognition of an investment in the associate.

(f) Jusda Supply Chain Management International Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, acquired
a 100% equity interest in Guangxi Yuchai Logistics Co., Ltd. and its subsidiaries for a
consideration of RMB 1 billion in July 2021. The acquirees have been included in the
consolidated financial statements since the acquisition date.

(g) Foxconn Interconnect Technology Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, issued 175,787
thousand new shares to acquire a 100% equity interest in Sound Legend Limited and its
subsidiaries in October 2021. The acquirees have been included in the consolidated financial
statements since the acquisition date.

(h) FIH Mobile Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, and Mobile Drive Netherlands B.V. (“Mobile
Drive”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of FIH Mobile Limited, entered into a joint venture
agreement with Stellantis N.V. (“Stellantis™), a listed company in NYSE, in August 2021,
whereby Stellantis acquired a 50% equity interest in Mobile Drive for a consideration of USD
40 million, and FIH Mobile Limited and its subsidiaries transferred part of its assets and
liabilities to Mobile Drive for the remaining 50% equity interest. The closing of the joint
venture agreement took place on December 31, 2021. As of December 31, 2021, the Group
lost control over Mobile Drive and was not anymore included in the consolidated financial
statements. A gain on deemed disposal amounting to $977,969 was recognised at the date
when control was lost. Also, the Group remeasured the remaining 50% equity interest at its
fair value. The fair value amounting to $1,107,200 was regarded as the cost on initial
recognition of an investment in the associate or joint venture.

Subsidiaries not included in the consolidated financial statements: None.

Adjustments for subsidiaries with different balance sheet dates: None.

Significant restrictions: None.

Subsidiaries that have non-controlling interests that are material to the Group:

The information on non-controlling interest and respective subsidiaries are as follows:
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Non-controlling interest

Non-controlling interest

Principal December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Name of place of Ownership Ownership
subsidiary business Amount % Amount % Description
FIH Mobile Limited Cayman § 21,848,824 37% $ 22,199,143 38%
Foxconn Ventures Pte. Ltd. Singapore 24,232,208 46% 23,229,225 46%
Foxconn Interconnect
Technology Limited Cayman 18,134,896 27% 15,483,980 25%
Foxconn Industrial
Internet Co., Ltd. China 82,940,552 16% 72,472,774 16%
Asia Pacific Telecom
Co., Ltd. Taiwan 20,254,098 64% 18,972,448 59%

$167,410,578

$152,357,570

Summarised financial information of the subsidiary:

Balance sheets

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total net assets

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total net assets

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Total net assets

FIH Mobile Limited
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
$ 131,508,372 $ 135,501,090
34,009,475 36,292,395
( 104,582,929) ( 111,336,542)
( 944.912) ( 1,159,695)
$ 59,990,006 $ 59,297,248

Foxconn Interconnect Technology Limited
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

$ 83,977,909 $ 81,114,425
54,606,550 51,002,668

( 53,621,059) ( 50,978,118)

( 18,653,663) ( 18,756,900)
$ 66,309,737 $ 62,382,075

Foxconn Ventures Pte. Ltd.
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

$ 31,119,029 $ 26,545,134
22,142,180 24,903,894

( 3,608) ( 4,025)

$ 53,257,601 $ 51,445,003
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Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total net assets

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Total net assets

Statements of comprehensive income (loss)

Revenue and other operating revenue

Profit (loss) for the year from continuing
operations

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Total comprehensive income (loss) for
the year

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable
to non-controlling interest

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest

Revenue and other operating revenue

Profit for the year from continuing operations

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interest

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest
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Foxconn Industrial Internet Co., Ltd.

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

$ 1,078,758,555 $ 932,125,404
84,233,218 62,506,190
615,401,243) ( 528,560,676)
25,221,357) ( 10,377,869)

$ 522,369,173 $ 455,693,049

Asia Pacific Telecom Co., Ltd.

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

$ 3,735,274 $ 8,171,700
41,923,322 31,504,947
10,614,860) ( 6,974,568)

5,660,621) ( 2,962,107)

$ 29,383,115 § 29,739,972

FIH Mobile Limited
Years ended December 31,
2021 2020
250,449,174 § 274,842,128
1,580,408 ( 5,136,859)
1,286,387 4,883,944
2,866,795 ($ 252,915)
1,040,796 ($ 195,740)
-3 -

Foxconn Interconnect Technology Limited

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
121,671,014 § 126,032,636
3,831,292 1,257,219
916,291 2,082,995
4,747,583 ' $ 3,340,214
1,307,600 $ 900,428
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Revenue and other operating revenue

Profit for the year from continuing operations

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interest

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest

Revenue and other operating revenue

Profit for the year from continuing operations

Other comprehensive loss, net of tax

Total comprehensive income for the year

Comprehensive income attributable to
non-controlling interest

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest

Revenue and other operating revenue

Loss for the year from continuing operations

Other comprehensive income, net of tax

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Comprehensive loss attributable to
non-controlling interest

Dividends paid to non-controlling interest
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Foxconn Ventures Pte. Ltd.

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
$ - 8 -
3,733,804 10,632,011
( 85,383) ( 2,303,007)
$ 3,648,421 $ 8,329,004
$ 1,660,032 $ 3,789,697
$ - 5 -
Foxconn Industrial Internet Co., Ltd.
Years ended December 31,
2021 2020
$ 1,906,776,870 $ 1,846,851,234
86,546,404 74,980,558
( 2,019,594) ( 37,959)
$ 84,526,810 $ 74,942,599
$ 13,434,187 § 11,792,663
$ 3,292,721 $ 2,685,915
Asia Pacific Telecom Co., Ltd.
Years ended December 31,
2021 2020
$ 12,646,665 $ 13,587,443
( 5,374,141) ( 5,819,980)
16,998 858
($ 5,357,143) ($ 5,819,122)
($ 3,250,027) ($ 3,669,850)
$ - 8 -




Statements of cash flows

FIH Mobile Limited
Years ended December 31,
2021 2020
Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities $ 7,879,437 ($ 17,603,061)
Net cash (used in) provided by investing
activities ( 2,440,735) 14,737,118
Net cash (used in) provided by financing
activities ( 3,105,805) 7,932,819
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash
equivalents 618,993 1,599,237
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 2,951,890 6,666,113
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
of year 49,839,089 46,079,951
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 52,790,979 $ 52,746,064
Foxconn Interconnect Technology Limited
Years ended December 31,
2021 2020
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2,377,937 $ 3,400,496
Net cash used in investing activities ( 6,113,379) ( 10,507,921)
Net cash provided by financing activities 3,310,138 2,105,467
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash
equivalents 518,717 1,413,507
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 93,413 ( 3,588,451)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
of year 21,458,797 25,407,321
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 21,552,210 $ 21,818,870
Foxconn Ventures Pte. Ltd.
Years ended December 31,
2021 2020
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 15,159 $ 82,297
Net cash provided by investing activities 5,367,802 12,167,737
Net cash provided by financing activities - -
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash
equivalents - -
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 5,382,961 12,250,034
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
of year 26,100,973 15,425,649
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 31,483,934 $ 27,675,683

-172-



Foxconn Industrial Internet Co., Ltd.

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
Net cash provided by operating cactivities $ 37,903,091 $ 32,943,047
Net cash used in investing activities ( 30,844,367) ( 27,659,807)
Net cash provided by financing activities 20,706,262 34,921,791
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash
equivalents ( 2,663,560) ( 2,860,756)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents 25,101,426 37,344,275
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
of year 327,103,839 283,994,561
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 352,205,265 $ 321,338,836
Asia Pacific Telecom Co., Ltd.
Years ended December 31,
2021 2020
Net cash (used in) provided by ($ 61,176) $ 1,107,170
operating activities
Net cash used in investing activities ( 14,265,561) ( 1,094,815)
Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities 9,159,018 ( 2,344,696)
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash
equivalents - 30
Decrease in cash and cash equivalents ( 5,167,719) ( 2,332,311)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning
of year 5,871,722 8,204,093
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year $ 704,003 $ 5,871,782

Note: The summarised financial information of the subsidiaries stated above were based on each
subgroup's consolidated balance sheets, consolidated statements of comprehensive income
and consolidated statements of cash flows in the presentation currencies of their own and
translated into New Taiwan Dollars at the closing exchange rate at the corresponding
balance sheet date and average exchange rates of the corresponding period, respectively.

(4) Foreign currency translation

A. The consolidated financial statements are presented in New Taiwan Dollars, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.
B. Foreign currency transactions and balances
(a) Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items are remeasured.
Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise, except when deferred in other

comprehensive income as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment hedges.
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(b) Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at the period end are re-
translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences
arising upon re-translation at the balance sheet date are recognised in profit or loss.

(c) Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value
through profit or loss are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet
date; their translation differences are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies held at fair value through other comprehensive
income are re-translated at the exchange rates prevailing at the balance sheet date; their
translation differences are recognised in other comprehensive income. However, non-
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are not measured at fair
value are translated using the historical exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.

(d) All foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in the statement of comprehensive income
within “other gains and losses”.

C. Translation of foreign operations

(a) The operating results and financial position of all the group entities and associates that have a
functional currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

1. Assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at the closing exchange
rate at the date of that balance sheet;

ii. Income and expenses for each statement of comprehensive income are translated at average
exchange rates of that period; and

iii. All resulting exchange differences are recognised in other comprehensive income.

(b) When the foreign operation of an associate is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in other comprehensive income are proportionately reclassified
to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on sale. In addition, if the Group still retains partial
interest in the former foreign associate after losing significant influence over the former
foreign associate, such transactions should be accounted for as disposal of all interest in these
foreign operations.

(c) When the foreign operation partially disposed of or sold is a subsidiary, cumulative exchange
differences that were recorded in other comprehensive income are proportionately transferred
to the non-controlling interest in this foreign operation. In addition, even when the Group
retains partial interest in the former foreign subsidiary after losing control of the former foreign
subsidiary, such transactions should be accounted for as disposal of all interest in the foreign
operation.

(d) Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a foreign entity are treated
as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the closing exchange rates at the

balance sheet date.
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(5) Classification of current and non-current items

A. Assets that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current assets; otherwise they are

classified as non-current assets:

(a) Assets arising from operating activities that are expected to be realised, or are intended to be
sold or consumed within the normal operating cycle;

(b) Assets held mainly for trading purposes;

(c) Assets that are expected to be realised within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(d) Cash and cash equivalents, excluding restricted cash and cash equivalents and those that are
to be exchanged or used to settle liabilities more than twelve months after the balance sheet
date.

. Liabilities that meet one of the following criteria are classified as current liabilities; otherwise

they are classified as non-current liabilities:

(a) Liabilities that are expected to be settled within the normal operating cycle;

(b) Liabilities arising mainly from trading activities;

(c) Liabilities that are to be settled within twelve months from the balance sheet date;

(d) Liabilities for which the repayment date cannot be extended unconditionally to more than
twelve months after the balance sheet date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the
counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect its
classification.

(6) Cash equivalents

Cash equivalents refer to short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known

amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. Time deposits that

meet the above criteria and are held for the purpose of meeting short-term cash commitment in

operations are classified as cash equivalents.

(7) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

A. Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets that are not measured at

B.

amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income.
On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are

recognised and derecognised using trade date accounting.

. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial assets at fair value and recognises the

transaction costs in profit or loss. The Group subsequently measures the financial assets at fair

value, and recognises the gain or loss in profit or loss.

. The Group recognises the dividend income when the right to receive payment is established,

future economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of

the dividend can be measured reliably.

(8) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

A. Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income comprise equity securities

which are not held for trading, and for which the Group has made an irrevocable election at initial
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recognition to recognise changes in fair value in other comprehensive income and debt instruments

which meet all of the following criteria:

(a) The objective of the Group’s business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash
flows and selling financial assets.

(b) The assets’ contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.

B. On aregular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive

income are recognised and derecognised using trade date accounting.

C. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial assets at fair value plus transaction costs.

The Group subsequently measures the financial assets at fair value:

(a) The changes in fair value of equity investments that were recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to retained earnings and are not reclassified to profit or loss following
the derecognition of the investment. Dividends are recognised as dividend income when the
right to receive payment is established, future economic benefits associated with the dividend
will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

(b) Except for the recognition of impairment loss, interest income and gain or loss on foreign
exchange which are recognised in profit or loss, the changes in fair value of debt instruments
are taken through other comprehensive income. When the financial asset is derecognised, the
cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
from equity to profit or loss.

(9) Financial assets at amortised cost

A. Financial assets at amortised cost are those that meet all of the following criteria:

B.

(a) The objective of the Group’s business model is achieved by collecting contractual cash flows.
(b) The assets’ contractual cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest.
On a regular way purchase or sale basis, financial assets at amortised cost are recognised and

derecognised using trade date accounting.

C. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial assets at fair value plus transaction costs.

Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance income using the effective
interest method. A gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised or

impaired.

D. The Group’s time deposits which do not fall under cash equivalents are those with a short maturity

period and are measured at initial investment amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

(10) Accounts and notes receivable

A.

B.

Accounts and notes receivable entitle the Group a legal right to receive consideration in exchange
for transferred goods or rendered services.
The short-term accounts and notes receivable without bearing interest are subsequently measured

at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.

. The Group’s operating pattern of accounts receivable that are expected to be factored is for the

purpose of receiving contract cash flow and selling, and the accounts receivable are subsequently
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measured at fair value, with any changes in fair value recognised in other comprehensive income.

(11) Impairment of financial assets

For debt instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income and financial
assets at amortised cost including accounts receivable that have a significant financing component,
at each reporting date, the Group recognises the impairment provision for 12 months expected credit
losses if there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or recognises
the impairment provision for the lifetime expected credit losses (ECLs) if such credit risk has
increased since initial recognition after taking into consideration all reasonable and verifiable
information that includes forecasts. On the other hand, for accounts receivable or contract assets that
do not contain a significant financing component, the Group recognises the impairment provision
for lifetime ECLs.

(12) Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset when one of the following conditions is met:

A. The contractual rights to receive the cash flows from the financial asset expire.

B. The contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset have been transferred and the
Group has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset.

C. The contractual rights to receive cash flows of the financial asset have been transferred; and the
Group has not retained control of the financial asset.

(13) Leasing arrangement (lessor) — Lease receivables / Operating leases

A. Based on the terms of a lease contract, a lease is classified as a finance lease if the lessee assumes
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the leased asset.

(a) At commencement of the lease term, the lessor should record a finance lease in the balance
sheet as ‘lease receivables’ at an amount equal to the net investment in the lease (including
initial direct costs). The difference between gross lease receivable and the present value of
the receivable is recognised as ‘unearned finance income of finance lease’.

(b) The lessor should allocate finance income over the lease term based on a systematic and
rational basis reflecting a constant periodic rate of return on the lessor’s net investment in the
finance lease.

(c) Lease payments (excluding costs for services) during the lease term are applied against the
gross investment in the lease to reduce both the principal and the unearned finance income.

B. Lease income from an operating lease (net of any incentives given to the lessee) is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.
(14) Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the
weighted-average cost method. The cost of finished goods and work in process comprises raw
materials, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (allocated based on
normal operating capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. The item by item approach is used in

applying the lower of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
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in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated cost of completion and applicable variable
selling expense.

(15) Investments accounted for under the equity method / associates

A. Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but not control. In
general, it is presumed that the investor has significant influence, if an investor holds, directly
or indirectly 20 percent or more of the voting power of the investee. Investments in associates
are accounted for using the equity method and are initially recognised at cost.

B. The Group’s share of its associates’ post-acquisition profits or losses is recognised in profit or
loss, and its share of post-acquisition movements in other comprehensive income is recognised
in other comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the associate.

C. When changes in an associate’s equity do not arise from profit or loss or other comprehensive
income of the associate and such changes do not affect the Group’s ownership percentage of the
associate, the Group recognises change in ownership interests in the associate in ‘capital surplus’
in proportion to its ownership.

D. Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group and its associates are eliminated to the
extent of the Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
associates have been adjusted where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted
by the Group.

E. In the case that an associate issues new shares and the Group does not subscribe or acquire new
shares proportionately, which results in a change in the Group’s ownership percentage of the
associate but maintains significant influence on the associate, then ‘capital surplus’ and
‘investments accounted for under the equity method’ shall be adjusted for the increase or
decrease of its share of equity interest. If the above condition causes a decrease in the Group’s
ownership percentage of the associate, in addition to the above adjustment, the amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the associate are reclassified
to profit or loss proportionately on the same basis as would be required if the relevant assets or
liabilities were disposed of.

F. Upon loss of significant influence over an associate, the Group remeasures any investment
retained in the former associate at its fair value. Any difference between fair value and carrying
amount is recognised in profit or loss.

G. When the Group disposes its investment in an associate and loses significant influence over this
associate, the amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the
associate are reclassified to profit or loss, on the same basis as would be required if the relevant

assets or liabilities were disposed of. If it retains significant influence over this associate, the
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amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive income in relation to the associate are
reclassified to profit or loss proportionately in accordance with the aforementioned approach.

When the Group disposes its investment in an associate and loses significant influence over this
associate, the amounts previously recognised as capital surplus in relation to the associate are
transferred to profit or loss. If it retains significant influence over this associate, the amounts
previously recognised as capital surplus in relation to the associate are transferred to profit or

loss proportionately.

(16) Property, plant and equipment

A.

B.

Property, plant and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Borrowing costs incurred during the
construction period are capitalised.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset,
as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item
will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount
of the replaced part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or

loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.

. While land is not depreciated, other property, plant and equipment that apply cost model are

depreciated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost over their estimated useful lives.
Each component of property, plant and equipment that is significant in relation to the total cost

of the item is depreciated separately.

. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are reviewed, and adjusted if

appropriate, at each financial year-end. If expectations for the assets’ residual values and useful
lives differ from previous estimates or the patterns of consumption of the assets’ future economic
benefits embodied in the assets have changed significantly, any change is accounted for as a
change in estimate under IAS 8, ‘Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors’, from the date of the change.

The estimated useful lives of property, plant and equipment are as follows:

Buildings 15 ~ 51 years
(Auxiliary buildings 5 ~ 11 years)
Machinery and equipment 3 ~ 9 years
Computer and communication equipment 3 ~ 25 years
Other equipment 1 ~ 25 years

(17) Leasing arrangements (lessee) —right-of-use assets / lease liabilities

A.

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a corresponding lease liability at the date at
which the leased asset is available for use by the Group. For short-term leases or leases of low-
value assets, lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease
term.

Lease liabilities include the net present value of the remaining lease payments at the

commencement date, discounted using the incremental borrowing interest rate. Lease payments
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are comprised of the following:

(a) Fixed payments, less any lease incentives receivable;

(b) Variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate;

(c) Amounts expected to be payable by the lessee under residual value guarantees;

(d) The exercise price of a purchase option, if the lessee is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

(e) Payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects the lessee exercising
that option.

The Group subsequently measures the lease liability at amortised cost using the interest method

and recognises interest expense over the lease term. The lease liability is remeasured and the

amount of remeasurement is recognised as an adjustment to the right-of-use asset when there are

changes in the lease term or lease payments and such changes do not arise from contract

modifications.

C. At the commencement date, the right-of-use asset is stated at cost comprising the following:

(a) The amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;

(b) Any lease payments made at or before the commencement date;

(c) Any initial direct costs incurred by the lessee; and

(d) An estimate of costs to be incurred by the lessee in dismantling and removing the underlying
asset, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the underlying asset to the condition
required by the terms and conditions of the lease.

The right-of-use asset is measured subsequently using the cost model and is depreciated from the

commencement date to the earlier of the end of the asset’s useful life or the end of the lease term.

When the lease liability is remeasured, the amount of remeasurement is recognised as an

adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

D. For lease modifications that decrease the scope of the lease, the lessee shall decrease the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset to reflect the partial or full termination of the lease, and recognise
the difference between remeasured lease liability in profit or loss.

(18) Investment property

An investment property is stated initially at its cost and measured subsequently using the cost model.
Investment property is depreciated on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 6 to 51
years.

(19) Intangible assets

A. Trademark is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 3 to 20 years.

B. Goodwill is generated by adopting the acquisition method when merger and acquisition occurs.

C. Patent is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 2 to 20 years.

D. The developed technologies are obtained from business combination. They are included
application technology such as home networking, Internet of Things, model platforms and

electric vehicle power systems. Part of the developed technologies are available for use and be
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amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 4 to 10 years. The remaining is
the developed technologies that is not yet available for use, will be amortised from the date it is
available for use on a straight-line basis over its estimated useful life of 7 years.

E. Customer relationship and Supplier relationship are obtained as a result of a business combination,
and are amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated life of 15 to 16 years.

F. Software is stated initially at its costs and is amortised on a straight-line basis over its estimated
useful life of 3 to 10 years.

G. Concession obtained individually is stated initially at its costs and is amortised on a straight-line
basis over its useful life of 15 to 16 years.

(20) Impairment of non-financial assets

A. The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the recoverable amounts of those assets where
there is an indication that they are impaired. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell or value in use. Except for goodwill, when the
circumstances or reasons for recognising impairment loss for an asset in prior periods no longer
exist or diminish, the impairment loss is reversed. The increased carrying amount due to reversal
should not be more than what the depreciated or amortised historical cost would have been if the
impairment had not been recognised.

B. The recoverable amount of goodwill shall be evaluated annually. An impairment is recognised
when recoverable amount is lower than carrying amount. Impairment loss should not be reversed
in the future.

C. For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated
to each of the cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units, that is/are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the business combination. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within the entity at which the goodwill is
monitored for internal management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the operating segment
level.

(21) Borrowings

Borrowings comprise long-term and short-term bank borrowings. Borrowings are recognised

initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently stated at

amortised cost; any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised in profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

(22) Notes and accounts payable

A. Accounts payable are liabilities for purchases of raw materials, goods or services and notes
payable are those resulting from operating and non-operating activities.
B. The short-term notes and accounts payable without bearing interest are subsequently measured

at initial invoice amount as the effect of discounting is immaterial.
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(23) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

A. Financial liabilities are classified in this category of held for trading if acquired principally for
the purpose of repurchasing in the short-term. Derivatives are also categorised as financial
liabilities held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Financial liabilities that meet one
of the following criteria are designated as at fair value through profit or loss at initial recognition:
(a) Hybrid (combined) contracts; or
(b) They eliminate or significantly reduce a measurement or recognition inconsistency; or
(c) They are managed and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance

with a documented risk management policy.

B. At initial recognition, the Group measures the financial liabilities at fair value. All related
transaction costs are recognised in profit or loss. The Group subsequently measures these
financial liabilities at fair value with any gain or loss recognised in profit or loss.

C. If the credit risk results in fair value changes in financial liabilities designated as at fair value
through profit or loss, they are recognised in other comprehensive income in the circumstances
other than avoiding accounting mismatch or recognising in profit or loss for loan commitments
or financial guarantee contracts.

(24) Bonds payable

Ordinary corporate bonds issued by the Group are initially recognised at fair value less transaction

costs. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is

presented as an addition to or deduction from bonds payable, which is amortised to profit or loss
over the period of bond circulation using the effective interest method as an adjustment to ‘finance
costs’.

(25) Convertible bonds payable

Convertible bonds issued by the Group contain conversion options (that is, the bondholders have

the right to convert the bonds into the Group’s common shares by exchanging a fixed amount of

cash for a fixed number of common shares), call options and put options. The Group classifies the

bonds payable upon issuance as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in
accordance with the contract terms. They are accounted for as follows:

(a) The embedded call options and put options are recognised initially at net fair value as ‘financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss’. They are subsequently
remeasured and stated at fair value on each balance sheet date; the gain or loss is recognised as
‘gain or loss on valuation of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss’.

(b) The host contracts of bonds are initially recognised at fair value. Any difference between the
initial recognition and the redemption value is accounted for as the premium or discount on bonds
payable and subsequently is amortised in profit or loss as an adjustment to ‘finance costs’ over
the period of circulation using the effective interest method.

(c) The embedded conversion options which meet the definition of an equity instrument are initially
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recognised in ‘capital surplus—share options’ at the residual amount of total issue price less the
amount of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and bonds
payable as stated above. Conversion options are not subsequently remeasured.

(d) Any transaction costs directly attributable to the issuance are allocated to each liability or equity
component in proportion to the initial carrying amount of each abovementioned item.

(¢) When bondholders exercise conversion options, the liability component of the bonds shall be
remeasured on the conversion date. The issuance cost of converted common shares is the total
book value of the abovementioned liability component and ‘capital surplus—share options’.

(26) Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation specified in the contract is either discharged
or cancelled or expires.

(27) Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and reported in the net amount in the balance sheet when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle
on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
(28) Non-hedging and embedded derivatives

Non-hedging derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative contract is
entered into and recorded as financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss.
They are subsequently remeasured at fair value and the gains or losses are recognised in profit or
loss.

(29) Hedge accounting

A. At the inception of the hedging relationship, there is formal designation and documentation of
the hedging relationship and the Group’s risk management objective and strategy for undertaking
the hedge. That documentation shall include identification of the hedging instrument, the hedged
item, the nature of the risk being hedged and how the Group will assess whether the hedging
relationship meets the hedge effectiveness requirements.

B. The Group designates the hedging relationship as follows:

Cash flow hedge: a hedge of the exposure to variability in cash flows that is attributable to a
particular risk associated with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast
transaction.

C. Cash flow hedges
(a)The cash flow hedge reserve associated with the hedged item is adjusted to the lower of the

following (in absolute amounts):

1. the cumulative gain or loss on the hedging instrument from inception of the hedge; and

ii.the cumulative change in fair value of the hedged item from inception of the hedge.
(b)The effective portion of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised in other

comprehensive income. The gain or loss on the hedging instrument relating to the ineffective

portion is recognised in profit or loss.
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(c)The amount that has been accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve in accordance with (a)
is accounted for as follows:

i. If a hedged forecast transaction subsequently results in the recognition of a non-financial
asset or non-financial liability, or a hedged forecast transaction for a non-financial asset or
non-financial liability becomes a firm commitment for which fair value hedge accounting
is applied, the Group shall remove that amount from the cash flow hedge reserve and
include it directly in the initial cost or other carrying amount of the asset or liability.

ii. For cash flow hedges other than those covered by 1. above, that amount shall be reclassified
from the cash flow hedge reserve to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment in the
same period or periods during which the hedged expected future cash flows affect profit
or loss.

ii1. If that amount is a loss and the Group expects that all or a portion of that loss will not be
recovered in one or more future periods, it shall immediately reclassify the amount that is
not expected to be recovered into profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

(d) When the hedging instrument expires, or is sold, terminated, exercised or when the hedging
relationship ceases to meet the qualifying criteria, if the forecast transaction is still expected
to occur, the amount that has been accumulated in the cash flow hedge reserve shall remain
in the cash flow hedge reserve until the forecast transaction occurs; if the forecast transaction
is no longer expected to occur, the amount shall be immediately reclassified from the cash
flow hedge reserve to profit or loss as a reclassification adjustment.

(30) Provisions
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of past events, and it is probable that an outflow of economic resources will be required to settle the
obligation and the amount of the obligation can be reliably estimated. Provisions are measured at
the present value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation on the balance
sheet date, which is discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. When discounting
is used, the increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

(31) Employee benefits
A. Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are measured at the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid in respect of service rendered by employees in a period and should be recognised as
expense in that period when the employees render service.
B. Pensions
(a) Defined contribution plans
For defined contribution plans, the contributions are recognised as pension expense when

they are due on an accrual basis. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the
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extent of a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments.
(b) Defined benefit plans
i. Net obligation under a defined benefit plan is defined as the present value of an amount
of pension benefits that employees will receive on retirement for their services with the
Group in current period or prior periods. The liability recognised in the balance sheet in
respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the balance sheet date less the fair value of plan assets. The net defined
benefit obligation is calculated annually by independent actuaries using the projected
unit credit method. The rate used to discount is determined by using interest rates of high-
quality corporate bonds that are denominated in the currency in which the benefits will
be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related pension
liability; when there is no deep market in high-quality corporate bonds, the Group uses
interest rates of government bonds (at the balance sheet date) instead.
1. Remeasurements arising on defined benefit plans are recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they arise and are recorded as retained earnings.
1ii. Past service costs are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
C. Employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration
Employees’ compensation and directors’ and supervisors’ remuneration are recognised as
expense and liability, provided that such recognition is required under legal or constructive
obligation and those amounts can be reliably estimated. Any difference between the resolved
amounts and the subsequently actual distributed amounts is accounted for as changes in estimates.
If employee compensation is paid by shares, the Group calculates the number of shares based on
the closing price at the previous day of the board meeting resolution.
(32) Employee share-based payment

A. For the equity-settled share-based payment arrangements, the employee services received are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted at the grant date, and are recognised
as compensation cost over the vesting period, with a corresponding adjustment to equity. The
fair value of the equity instruments granted shall reflect the impact of market vesting conditions
and non-vesting conditions. Compensation cost is subject to adjustment based on the service
conditions that are expected to be satisfied and the estimates of the number of equity instruments
that are expected to vest under the non-market vesting conditions at each balance sheet date.
Ultimately, the amount of compensation cost recognised is based on the number of equity
instruments that eventually vest.

B. Restricted stocks:

(a) Restricted stocks issued to employees are measured at the fair value of the equity instruments
granted at the grant date, and are recognised as compensation cost over the vesting period.
(b) For restricted stocks where those stocks do not restrict distribution of dividends to employees

and employees are not required to return the dividends received if they resign during the
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vesting period, the Group recognises the fair value of the dividends received by the
employees who are expected to resign during the vesting period as compensation cost at the
date of dividends declared.

(c) For restricted stocks where employees have to pay to acquire those stocks, if employees resign
during the vesting period, they must return the stocks to the Group and the Group must refund
their payments on the stocks, the Group recognises the payments from the employees who
are expected to resign during the vesting period as liabilities at the grant date, and recognises
the payments from the employees who are expected to be eventually vested with the stocks

in ’capital surplus — others’.

(33) Income tax

A.

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
items recognised directly in equity, in which cases the tax is recognised in other comprehensive
income or equity.

The current income tax expense is calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries where the Company and its subsidiaries operate
and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in accordance with applicable tax regulations. It establishes provisions
where appropriate based on the amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities. An additional
tax is levied on the unappropriated retained earnings and is recorded as income tax expense in

the year the stockholders resolve to retain the earnings.

. Deferred income tax is recognised, using the balance sheet liability method, on temporary

differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in
the consolidated balance sheet. However, the deferred income tax is not accounted for if it arises
from initial recognition of goodwill or of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences arising on investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference
is controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been
enacted or substantially enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the

related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

. Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable

profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized. At each balance
sheet date, unrecognised and recognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an

intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset on the balance sheet when the entity has the
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities and they are
levied by the same taxation authority on either the same entity or different entities that intend to
settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

F. A deferred tax asset shall be recognised for the carryforward of unused tax credits resulting from
acquisitions of equipment or technology, research and development expenditures and equity
investments to the extent that it is possible that future taxable profit will be available against
which the unused tax credits can be utilized.

(34) Dividends

Dividends are recorded in the Company’s financial statements in the period in which they are

approved by the Company’s shareholders. Cash dividends are recorded as liabilities; stock dividends

are recorded as stock dividends to be distributed and are reclassified to ordinary shares on the
effective date of new shares issuance.

(35) Revenue recognition

A. The Group manufactures and sells consumer electronics products. Sales are recognised when
control of the products have transferred, being when the products are delivered to or picked by
the customers, the customers has full discretion over the channel and price to sell the products,
and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customer’s acceptance of the products.
Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to the specific location, the risks of
obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the customers, and either the customers has
accepted the products in accordance with the sales contract, or the Group has objective evidence
that all criteria for acceptance have been satisfied.

B. Sales revenue is recognised based on the price specified in the contract, net of the estimated sales
discounts and allowances. Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that
a significant reversal will not occur. The estimation is subject to an assessment at each reporting
date. The contract cost does not include a significant financing component as the sales are made
with credit term consistent with market practice.

C. A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the point in time that the
consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required before the payment
is due.

D. The Group’s obligation to provide a refund for faulty products under the standard warranty terms
is recognised as a provision.

E. The customer pays at the time specified in the payment schedule. If the products sold exceed the
payment, a contract asset is recognised. If the payments exceed the products sold, a contract

liability is recognised.

(36) Government grants
Government grants are recognised in profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods in which

the Group recognises expenses for the related costs for which the grants are intended to compensate.
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Government grants related to property, plant and equipment are recognised as non-current liabilities
and are amortised to profit or loss over the estimated useful lives of the related assets using the
straight-line method.

(37) Business combinations

A. The Group uses the acquisition method to account for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for an acquisition is measured as the fair value of the assets transferred, liabilities
incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued at the acquisition date, plus the fair value of
any assets and liabilities resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement. All acquisition-
related costs are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the
acquisition date. For each business combination, the Group measures at the acquisition date
components of non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership interests and
entitle their holders to the proportionate share of the entity’s net assets in the event of liquidation
at either fair value or the present ownership instruments’ proportionate share in the recognised
amounts of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other non-controlling interests should be
measured at the acquisition-date fair value.

B. The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquiree and the fair value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair value of
the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed is recorded as goodwill at the
acquisition date. If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest in the acquiree
recognised and the fair value of previously held equity interest in the acquiree is less than the
fair value of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed, the difference is
recognised directly in profit or loss on the acquisition date.

(38) Operating segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments.

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS ON UNCERTAINTY

The preparation of these consolidated financial statements requires management to make critical

judgments in applying the Group’s accounting policies and make critical assumptions and estimates
concerning future events. Assumptions and estimates may differ from the actual results and are
continually evaluated and adjusted based on historical experience and other factors. The above
information is addressed below:

(1) Critical judgments in applying the Group’s accounting policies

A. Revenue recognition
The Group determines whether the nature of its performance obligation is to provide the specified
goods or services itself (i.e. the Group is a principal) or to arrange for the other party to provide

those goods or services (i.e. the Group is an agent) based on the transaction model and its economic

-188-



substance. The Group is a principal if it controls a promised good or service before it transfers the
good or service to a customer. The Group recognises revenue at gross amount of consideration to
which it expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services transferred. The Group is
an agent if its performance obligation is to arrange for the provision of goods or services by another
party. The Group recognises revenue at the amount of any fee or commission to which it expects
to be entitled in exchange for arranging for the other party to provide its goods or services.
After receiving the materials or services procured, the Group directs the use of the goods and
services and provides critical manufacturing processing technique, in order to produce and
significantly integrate various goods and services into the combined output as the resulting
devices and transfers to a customer. The following indicators are used to determine whether the
Group controls the good or service before it is transferred to a customer and considers itself as a
principal:
(a) The Group is primarily responsible for the provision of goods or services;
(b) The Group assumes the inventory risk before transferring the specified goods or services to
the customer or after transferring control of the goods or services to the customer.

(c) The Group has discretion in establishing prices for the goods or services.

B. Offsetting financial instruments
The Company’s financial assets and liabilities are offset and reported in the net amount in the
balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

(2) Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions based on the expectation of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances at the end of the reporting period. The resulting
accounting estimates might be different from the actual results. The estimates and assumptions that
may significantly adjust the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year
are addressed below:
A. Impairment assessment of tangible and intangible assets (excluding goodwill)
The Group assesses impairment based on its subjective judgement and determines the separate
cash flows of a specific group of assets, useful lives of assets and the future possible income and
expenses arising from the assets depending on how assets are utilized and industrial characteristics.
Any changes of economic circumstances or estimates due to the change of Group strategy might
cause adjustments on impairment of assets.
B. Impairment assessment of goodwill
The Group assesses impairment of goodwill based on subjective judgment which includes
identifying and allocating assets, liabilities and goodwill to related cash-generating unit to
determine recoverable amount of this unit. Details of impairment assessment of goodwill is
provided in Note 6(14).

As of December 31, 2021, the Group recognised goodwill after impairment assessment of
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$16,186,060.
C. Evaluation of inventories

As inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value, the Group must determine
the net realisable value of inventories on balance sheet date based on judgments and estimates.
Due to the rapid technology innovation, the Group evaluates the amounts of normal inventory
consumption, obsolete inventories or inventories without market selling value on balance sheet
date, and writes down the cost of inventories to the net realisable value. Such an evaluation of
inventories is principally based on the demand for the products within the specified period in the
future. Therefore, there might be significant changes to the evaluation.
As of December 31, 2021, the carrying amount of inventories was $672,145,365.

6. DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTS

(1) Cash and cash equivalents

December 31, 2021

Cash on hand and revolving funds $ 51,098 $
Checking accounts and

December 31, 2020
146,814

demand deposits 863,465,237 1,008,741,819
Cash equivalents - Time deposits 195,900,676 215,392,563
Cash equivalents - Repo bonds - 8,512,819

$ 1,059,417,011 $ 1,232,794,015

A. The Group transacts with a variety of financial institutions with high credit quality for the purpose
of dispersing credit risk, so it expects that the probability of counterparty default is low.
B. The Group’s time deposits pledged to others as collateral and with maturity of over three months
had been transferred to “Financial assets at amortised cost”. Please refer to Note 6(4) for details.
(2) Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss
December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

Assets
Current items:
Financial assets mandatorily measured at
fair value through profit or loss

Beneficiary certificates $ 692,429 $ 535,164
Derivatives 640,395 5,750,430
1,332,824 $ 6,285,594
Non-current items:
Financial assets mandatorily measured at

fair value through profit or loss
Equity instruments 2,686,506 $ 3,187,930
Beneficiary certificates 84,082,306 79,443,386
Derivatives 1,712,931 1,049,870
88,481,743 $ 83,681,186
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Liabilities December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Current items:
Financial assets mandatorily measured at

fair value through profit or loss
Derivatives ($ 964,015) ($ 2,291,221)

A. The descriptions of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are as follows:
(a) Equity instruments: Including listed, unlisted and emerging stocks.
(b) Beneficiary certificates: Including investment in open-end funds and private equity fund.
(c) Derivatives: Including cross currency swap contracts, forward exchange contracts, stock option
and convertible bonds payable.
B. Amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are listed below:

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
Equity instruments $ 561,876 $ 1,975,357
Beneficiary certificates 2,139,084 9,686,785
Derivatives ( 169,812) 2,065,425
$ 2,531,148 $ 13,727,567

C. The non-hedging derivative instruments transaction and contract information are as follows:

December 31, 2021

Contract amount

(Nominal Principal in thousands) Contract period
Derivative Financial Assets
Current items:
Cross currency swap contracts ~ USD (BUY) 260,000 2021.06.11~2022.05.16
TWD (SELL) 7,199,800 2021.06.11~2022.05.16
Foreign exchange forward RMB (BUY) 18,560,709 2021.10.08~2022.05.20
contracts MXN (BUY) 1,814,646 2021.12.24~2022.02.25
KRW (BUY) 536,470,000 2021.12.21~2022.01.24
USD (BUY) 321,000 2021.12.09~2022.02.18
THB (BUY) 1,340,560 2021.12.27~2022.01.19
RMB (SELL) 639,880 2021.12.15~2022.02.18
BRL (SELL) 1,229,453  2021.12.09~2022.01.13
USD (SELL) 3,465,500 2021.10.08~2022.05.20

Non-current items:
Cross currency swap contracts ~ USD (BUY) 400,000 2016.09.13~2026.09.24
JPY (SELL) 41,064,000 2016.09.13~2026.09.24
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Derivative Financial Liabilities

Current items:

Cross currency swap contracts

Foreign exchange forward

contracts

Derivative Financial Assets

Current items:

Cross currency swap contracts

Foreign exchange forward

contracts

Convertible bonds payable
Non-current items:
Cross currency swap contracts

December 31, 2021

Contract amount
(Nominal Principal in thousands)

Contract period

USD (BUY)
JPY (BUY)
RMB (BUY)
TWD (SELL)
USD (BUY)
RMB (BUY)
USD (SELL)
CZK (SELL)
RMB (SELL)
MXN (SELL)
INR (SELL)

1,390,000
20,000,000
407,000
45,543,941
2,909,970
1,171,676
183,000
6,606,134
12,150,153
4,457,349
37,827,250

2021.04.23~2022.08.24
2021.12.07~2022.06.28
2021.12.06~2022.01.14
2021.04.23~2022.08.24
2021.11.16~2022.04.29
2021.12.02~2022.02.28
2021.12.02~2022.02.28
2021.12.16~2022.02.22
2021.11.26~2022.02.22
2021.12.22~2022.04.29
2021.11.16~2022.02.22

December 31, 2020

Contract amount
(Nominal Principal in thousands)

Contract period

USD (BUY)
JPY (BUY)
TWD (SELL)
JPY (SELL)
RMB (BUY)
CZK (BUY)
BRL (BUY)
JPY (BUY)
USD (BUY)
RMB (SELL)
USD (SELL)
USD

USD (BUY)
JPY (SELL)
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1,600,000
38,000,000
38,582,000
61,555,000
59,779,402

1,070,550

262,540
14,216,752
50,000
325,505
9,208,233
30,000

400,000
41,064,000

2016.09.13~2021.09.24
2020.12.11~2021.06.28
2020.12.11~2021.06.28
2016.09.13~2021.09.24
2020.10.26~2021.06.23
2020.12.28~2021.02.26
2020.12.28~2021.01.29
2020.11.04~2021.02.08
2020.12.31~2021.01.06
2020.12.31~2021.01.06
2020.10.26~2021.06.23
2016.12.19~2021.12.15

2016.09.13~2026.09.24
2016.09.13~2026.09.24



Derivative Financial Liabilities

Current items:

December 31, 2020

Contract amount
(Nominal Principal in thousands)

Contract period

Cross currency swap contracts USD (BUY) 3,050,000 2020.03.03~2021.07.14
TWD (SELL) 88,925,000 2020.03.03~2021.07.14

Foreign exchange forward USD (BUY) 420,128 2020.06.08~2021.04.30
contracts BRL (BUY) 260,490 2020.12.28~2021.01.29
MXN (BUY) 3,619,834 2020.12.09~2021.02.26

RMB (BUY) 4,070,580 2020.12.17~2021.05.31

USD (SELL) 852,000 2020.12.09~2021.05.31

RMB (SELL) 2,616,495 2020.12.04~2021.02.09

MXN (SELL) 452,693 2020.06.08~2021.04.30

(a) Cross currency swap contracts

The cross currency swap contracts signed by the Company are to fulfill capital movement. For
exchange rate, principals denominated in two currencies are exchanged at the same exchange
rate at the initial and final exchanges. Thus, there is no foreign exchange risk. For interest rate,
the fixed rate between two currencies is used to exchange. Thus, there is no interest rate risk.
(b) Forward foreign exchange contracts

The Group enters into foreign exchange forward transactions to reduce the following risk of
exchange rate:

A. Operating activities: Import of raw materials and export sales.

B. Investing activities: Import of machinery and equipment.

C. Financing activities: Long-term and short-term foreign currency assets and liabilities.

(c) Convertible bonds payable

The Group’s indirect subsidiary, PCE Paragon Solutions Kft., acquired convertible bonds
issued by Nanthealth, Inc. in the amount of US$30 million. The convertible bonds are
embedded derivatives. Based on the contract, PCE Paragon Solutions Kft. has the right to
require conversion from the issue date to the maturity date if the written consent is submitted
in advance. Nanthealth, Inc. repaid in advance in the amount of USD 30,733 thousand in June
2021. The gains (losses) of settlement were recognised in accordance with the requirements
of IFRS:s.

D. Details of the Group’s investments in equity instruments and beneficiary certificates are provided

in Table 3.

E. The Group has no financial assets at fair value through profit or loss pledged to others.

F. Information relating to credit risk of financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or

loss is provided in Note 12(2).
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(3) Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Items December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Current items:
Debt instruments $ 130,622 $ -
Non-current items:
Debt instruments $ 43,542  $ 174,184
Equity instruments 58,213,437 55,311,926
Fair value adjustments 54,461,746 31,587,979
$ 112,718,725  $ 87,074,089

A. The Group has elected to classify equity investments that are considered to be strategic investments
as financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

B. Amounts recognised in profit or loss and other comprehensive income in relation to the financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income are listed below:

Years ended December 31,
2021 2020

Equity instruments at fair value through

other comprehensive income

Fair value change recognised in other
comprehensive income $

Cumulative gains (losses) reclassified to
retained earnings due to derecognition $

Dividend income recognised in profit or
loss $

21,768,401 § 19,999,225

795,774 ($ 4,656,501)

557,146 § 544,687

C. The Group has no financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income pledged to
others.
D. Details of the Group’s investments in equity instruments are provided in Table 3.

(4) Financial assets at amortised cost

Items December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Current items:
Time deposits with maturity over three

months $ 47,684,955 $ 36,252,968
Refundable deposits - 1,815,433
Restricted bank deposits 146,545 468,414
Pledged time deposits 176,938 246,751

$ 48,008,438 $ 38,783,566
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Items December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Non-current items:

Financial bonds-trust fund $ 9,143,610 $ 11,321,960
Time deposits with maturity over twelve

months 14,194,221 6,010,077

Restricted bank deposits 57,901 1,400,641

Pledged time deposits 53,352 53,352

$ 23,449,084 $ 18,786,030

Other current assets $ 10,750,494 $ -

A. Amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to financial assets at amortised cost are listed

below:
Years ended December 31,
2021 2020
Interest income $ 2,710,396 $ 3,867,799

B. The Group invested in the trust fund named Guangdong Finance Trust - Peng Yun Tian Hua
Collection Fund Trust in December 2017 which was mainly created for the investment in
Guangzhou Guangyin Nanyue Intelligent Technology Industrial Investment Partnership. As of
December 31, 2021, the Group has invested a total of RMB 35 billion and has redeemed RMB 14
billion. Under the agreement, the Group will take over the share in the trust of the preferred
beneficiary, Bank of Guangzhou, in case it initiates a redemption.

C. The counterparties of the Group’s investments have good credit quality.

D. Information relating to financial assets at amortised cost pledged as collateral is provided in Note
8.

E. The other current assets are mainly investment performance bond.

(5) Hedging financial assets and liabilities

December 31, 2021
Current assets

Cash flow hedges:
Exchange rate risk
Foreign exchange forward contracts $ 1,068,785

A. Hedge accounting is applied to remove the accounting inconsistency between the hedging
instrument and the hedged item. As the Group’s US dollar denominated accounts receivable are
exposed to the impact of variable exchange rate, the Group uses the risk exposed during the next
12 months with 1:1 hedge ratio to control the exchange rate risk under the acceptable range based
on the Group’s risk management policies.

B. The forecast transactions which are highly probable incurred in the Group’s companies are
designated as hedged item, and the intrinsic value of foreign exchange options is designated as

cash flow hedge. Changes in fair value of foreign exchange options are included in other
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comprehensive income and are amortised and recognised in profit or loss during the contract
period. There are economic relations between the hedging instrument and the hedged item, and
the foreign exchange options are in line with major terms, such as monetary items, foreign
currency borrowings or the currency and amount of bonds.

C. Transaction information associated with the Group adopting hedge accounting is as follows:

December 31, 2021

Hedged items Hedging instruments Notional amount Contract period

Financial assets

Cash flow hedges:
Forecast transaction Foreign exchange = RMB (BUY) 23,259,750 2021.10.21~2022.05.26
forward contracts USD (SELL) 3,590,000 2021.10.21~2022.05.26

D. Cash flow hedge
2021

Other equity - cash flow hedge reserve
At January 1 $ -
Add: Gains on hedge effectiveness-amount recognised in other

comprehensive income 1,580,536
Less: Reclassified to profit or loss as the hedged item has affected

profit or loss ( 1,384,639)
At December 31 $ 195,897

(a) To hedge exposed exchange rate risk arising from forecast sales of goods and collections, the
Group entered into a forward forecast sales agreement of US dollar, and the hedge ratio is 1:1.
The effective portion with respect to the changes in the fair value of the hedging instruments
is deferred and recognised in the cash flow hedge reserve, which is under other comprehensive
income, and will be directly included in the sales revenue when the hedged items are
subsequently recognised in accounts receivable.

(b) The Group separates changes in spot price and time value, only change in spot price is
designated as hedging instruments. Changes in fair value, which is associated with hedged
item, are recognised in other comprehensive income. Meanwhile, time value at hedging
commencement date, which is associated with hedged items, are amortised during the period
the hedging instrument affects profit or loss. The amortisation will be recognised in profit or
loss from other comprehensive income or loss.

E. Information relating to fair value risk of hedging financial assets and liabilities is shown in Note

12(3).
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(6) Notes and accounts receivable

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Notes receivable $ 724,077 $ 249,501
Accounts receivable 1,132,576,254 909,750,714
Less: Allowance for uncollectible
accounts ( 7,537,720) ( 6,929,985)
$ 1,125,762,611 $ 903,070,230

A. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, accounts receivable and notes receivable were all from
contracts with customers. As of January 1, 2020, the balance of receivables from contracts with
customers amounted to $1,037,840,337.

B. On December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group had accounts receivable classified as financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income in the amounts of $97,923,986 and
$109,052,508, respectively.

C. The Group entered into a factoring agreement with the following banks to sell its accounts
receivable. Under the agreement, the Group is not obligated to bear the default risk of the
transferred accounts receivable, but is liable for the losses incurred on any business dispute. The
Group does not have any continuing involvement in the transferred accounts receivable. Thus, the
Group derecognised the transferred accounts receivable.

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the relevant information of accounts receivable factored but

unsettled were as follows:

December 31, 2021

Accounts receivable Amount of accounts Amount of consideration
factoring not yet due receivable derecognised Amount advanced retained
$ 47,478,385 $ 47,478,385 § 47,478,385 § -
December 31, 2020
Accounts receivable Amount of accounts Amount of consideration
factoring not yet due receivable derecognised Amount advanced retained
$ 37,739,204 $ 37,739,204 $ 37,739,204 $ -

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group has no retention for the factoring of accounts
receivable.

D. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group has not signed promissory notes as guarantee for
accounts receivable in commercial dispute.

E. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the information on the financing charges
incurred from accounts receivable factoring is provided in Note 6(37).

F. The Group does not hold any collateral as security.

G. Information relating to credit risk is provided in Note 12(2).
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(7) Other receivables

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Tax refund receivable $ 34,931,286 $ 30,296,437
Interest receivable 10,593,862 13,230,731
Loans to others 703,187 2,181,655
Others 13,282,071 12,528,896
$ 59,510,406 $ 58,237,719

The Group’s other receivables are due from entities with good credit quality and government agencies.
There is no significant credit risk as default is unlikely to occur.

(8) Inventories

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Raw materials $ 277,215,967 $ 184,832,767
Work in process 130,957,036 124,724,802
Finished goods 224,581,205 268,629,479
Inventory in transit 57,974,054 30,145,057
690,728,262 608,332,105
Less: Allowance for inventory obsolescence
and market price decline ( 18,582,897) ( 26,218,370)
$ 672,145,365 § 582,113,735
Expenses and losses incurred on inventories for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were
as follows:
For the years ended December 31,
2021 2020
Cost of inventories sold $ 5,650,193,666 $ 5,057,980,656
(Gain from price recovery) loss on inventory
obsolescence and market price decline ( 5,237,663) 2,441,825
Revenue from sale of scraps ( 13,338,531) ( 5,711,177)
Others 429,364 393,038
$ 5,632,046,836 $ 5,055,104,342

As the Group sold some inventory with net realisable value lower than its cost, the allowance for

inventory obsolescence and market price decline was reversed for the year ended December 31, 2021.
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(9) Investments accounted for using equity method

At January 1

Addition of investments accounted for using

equity method

Deemed disposal of
investments accounted for using

equity method

Disposal of investments accounted for using

equity method

Earnings distribution of investments accounted

for using equity method

Share of profit or loss of investments
accounted for using equity method

Changes in retained earnings
Changes in capital surplus
Changes in other equity items

Others
At December 31

2021 2020

$ 175,199,441 $ 168,631,642
10,000,630 3,131,377

7,689,350 -
( 379,750) ( 23,705)
( 4,984,744) ( 5,262,181)
18,404,717 7,825,449

1,185,792 22,673

( 4,642,079) 10,032
( 5,715,865) 2,592,295
( 2,163,840) ( 1,728,141)
$ 194,593,652 $ 175,199,441

A. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the Group either disposed its equity interest or did not

participate in the capital increase of certain subsidiaries proportionally to its interest, thereby

reducing its shareholding ratios in the subsidiaries, Cybertan Technology Corporation, Linksys
Holdings, Inc. and Mobile Drive Netherlands B.V. As a result, the Group lost control over the

aforementioned subsidiaries, and remeasured any investment retained in the investees at their fair

values totalling $7,689,350. The related gain on deemed disposals amounting to $1,881,324 was

recognised for the year ended December 31, 2021. Details are provided in Note 4(3).

B. Associates

(a) The basic information of the associates that are material to the Group is as follows:

Principal Shareholding ratio
Company place of December 31, December 31, Nature of Method of
name business 2021 2020 relationship measurement
Sharp Corporation Japan 36% 42% Strategic  Equity method
Investment
Foxconn Technology Taiwan 29% 29% Supplier Equity method
Co., Ltd.
Zhen Ding Technology Cayman 32% 32% Supplier Equity method
Holding Limited
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(b) The summarised financial information of the associates that are material to the Group is as
follows:

Balance sheet

Sharp Corporation
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Current assets $ 297,235,153  § 328,978,941
Non-current assets 176,118,468 206,441,054
Current liabilities ( 205,544,287) ( 258,063,115)
Non-current liabilities ( 163,303,108) ( 191,282,832)
Total net assets 104,506,226 86,074,048
Effect of accounting principles 1,595,032 ( 5,682,633)
Fair value adjustment of trademarks,

other intangible net assets and tangible

net assets 94,474,710 110,989,019
Total net assets after adjustment $ 200,575,968 $ 191,380,434
Share in associate's net assets (Note) $ 71,625,206 $ 73,338,398
Goodwill 12,061,814 12,197,171
Others ( 2,476,211) ( 670,048)
Carrying amount of the associate $ 81,210,809 $ 84,865,521

Note 1: In February 2021, Sharp Corporation retired all its Class C shares and issued common
shares to ES Platform Limited. Consequently, the Group’s equity interest in Sharp
Corporation decreased from 42% to 36%, and the Group decreased capital surplus and
investments accounted for using equity method amounting to $6,442,516 due to the
change in net equity of associate as the Group did not subscribe to the issuance of new
shares in proportion to its ownership.

Note 2:As of December 31, 2020, share in associate’s net assets is determined based on the

equity of ordinary shares, excluding Class C shares of Sharp Corporation.
Foxconn Technology Co., Ltd.

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Current assets $ 118,841,902 §$ 113,612,184
Non-current assets 55,529,325 55,497,536
Current liabilities ( 61,926,993) ( 58,012,616)
Non-current liabilities ( 1,480,365) ( 828,349)
Total net assets $ 110,963,869 $ 110,268,755
Share in associate's net assets $ 32,706,669 $ 32,501,783
Goodwill 338,190 338,190
Others 49,938 ( 592,437)
Carrying amount of the associate $ 33,094,797 $ 32,247,536
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Zhen Ding Technology Holding Limited

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Current assets $ 95,935,034 $ 99,312,005
Non-current assets 99,820,260 81,808,482
Current liabilities ( 56,879,726) ( 63,423,798)
Non-current liabilities ( 25,355,629) ( 13,658,813)
Total net assets $ 113,519,939 §$ 104,037,876
Share in associate's net assets $ 27,214,691 $ 25,297,197
Others 22,225 122,937
Carrying amount of the associate $ 27,236,916 § 25,420,134
Statement of comprehensive income
Sharp Corporation
Years ended December 31,
2021 2020
Revenue $ 639,290,372 $ 645,878,758
Income for the year from
continuing operations 20,456,203 2,500,510
Other comprehensive income,
net of tax 15,590,382 865,144
Total comprehensive income 36,046,585 3,365,654
Effect of accounting principles 6,245,393 5,383,833
Total comprehensive income
after adjustment $ 42,291,978 $ 8,749,487
Dividends received from associates $ 1,689,236 $ 1,105,471
Foxconn Technology Co., Ltd.
Years ended December 31,
2021 2020
Revenue $ 104,855,725  $ 104,789,599
Income for the year from continuing
operations 4,414,636 4,686,123
Other comprehensive (loss) income,
net of tax ( 1,124,558) 513,048
Total comprehensive income $ 3,290,078 $ 5,199,171
Dividends received from associates $ 750,457 $ 1,042,301
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Zhen Ding Technology Holding Limited
Years ended December 31,

2021 2020

Revenue $ 155,022,197 $ 131,278,537
Income for the year from continuing

operations 13,694,368 11,508,290
Other comprehensive (loss) income,

net of tax ( 1,113,422) 1,194,101
Total comprehensive income $ 12,580,946 $ 12,702,391
Dividends received from associates $ 1,377,838 $ 1,374,359

(c) The carrying amount of the Group’s interests in all individually immaterial associates and the
Group’s share of the operating results are summarised below:
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the carrying amount of the Group’s individually
immaterial associates amounted to $53,051,130 and $32,666,250, respectively.

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
Income for the year from continuing $ 11,180,528 $ 7,256,748
operations
Other comprehensive income, net
of tax 445,829 1,371,830
Total comprehensive income $ 11,626,357 $ 8,628,578

(d) The fair value of the Group’s material associates which have quoted market price was as

follows:
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Sharp Corporation $ 70,459,734 $ 95,941,221
Foxconn Technology Co., Ltd. 27,058,132 22,263,548
Zhen Ding Technology Holding
Limited 30,704,321 32,828,781
$ 128,222,187  $ 151,033,550

(e) The Group is the single largest shareholder of the following companies, and has no control,
but only has a significant influence on the company as described below.

1. The Group is the single largest shareholder of Sharp Corporation with a 36% equity interest.
Given that the Group does not hold the voting rights of more than half of its shareholders
attendance rate, which indicates that the Group has no current ability to direct the relevant
activities of Sharp Corporation, the Group has no control, but only has significant influence,
over the investee.

ii. The Group is the single largest shareholder of Foxconn Technology Co., Ltd. with a 29%
equity interest. Given that the Group does not hold the voting rights of more than half of its

shareholders attendance rate, which indicates that the Group has no current ability to direct
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the relevant activities of Foxconn Technology Co., Ltd., the Group has no control, but only
has significant influence, over the investee.

iii. The Group is the single largest shareholder of Zhen Ding Technology Holding Limited with
a 32% equity interest. Given that the Group does not hold the voting rights of more than half
of its shareholders attendance rate, which indicates that the Group has no current ability to
direct the relevant activities of Zhen Ding Technology Holding Limited, the Group has no

control, but only has significant influence, over the investee.
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(10) Property, plant and equipment

2021
Equipment
Computer and under installation
Machinery and ~ communication and construction

At January 1, 2021 Land Buildings equipment equipment Others in progress Total
Cost $ 12,330,536 $ 214,266,695 $ 279,733,859 $§ 46,751,910 $§ 168,556,642 $ 35,885,708 § 757,525,350
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment - ( 98,706,875) ( 215,301,244) ( 37,088,779) ( 119,336,474) - ( 470,433,372)

$ 12,330,536 $ 115,559,820 $§ 64,432,615 $ 9,663,131 § 49,220,168 $ 35,885,708 $§ 287,091,978

2021
Opening net book amount

as at January 1 § 12,330,536 $ 115,559,820 $ 64,432,615 $ 9,663,131 § 49,220,168 § 35,885,708 § 287,091,978
Additions 46,848 5,014,152 37,754,895 1,991,809 23,279,488 25,649,927 93,737,119
Transfers - 14,229,203 5,066,559 616,245 7,176,543 ( 28,833,502) ( 1,744,952)
Acquired from business

combinations - 43,627 1,120,760 24,793 18,342 1,001 1,208,523
Disposals ( 687,913) ( 196,392) ( 3,940,609) ( 301,955) ( 1,584,466) ( 387,868) ( 7,099,203)
Depreciation charge - ( 12,016,267) ( 23,778,002) ( 3,414,298) ( 20,277,199) - ( 59,485,766)
Impairment loss - ( 340,910) - - - - ( 340,910)
Net exchange differences ( 601,172) ( 810,913) ( 801,911) ( 19,481) ( 1,686) ( 1,024,317) ( 3,259,480)
Closing net book amount

as at December 31 § 11,088,299 § 121,482,320 $ 79,854,307 $ 8,560,244 § 57,831,190 § 31,290,949 § 310,107,309
At December 31, 2021
Cost $ 11,088,299 §$ 230,689,468 $ 287,474,102 $§ 47,391,725 § 179,441,556 $ 31,290,949 § 787,376,099
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment - (109,207,148) ( 207,619,795) ( 38,831,481) ( 121,610,366) - ( 477,268,790)

$ 11,088,299 § 121,482,320 $ 79,854,307 § 8,560,244 § 57,831,190 § 31,290,949 § 310,107,309
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2020

Computer and

Equipment
under installation

Machinery and communication and construction

At January 1, 2020 Land Buildings equipment equipment Others In progress Total
Cost $ 14,233,757 $208,869,510 $275,816,855 $ 39,326,807 $160,547,139 § 28,415,269 § 727,209,337
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment - ( 88,283,906) ( 208,403,723) (  29,795,877) ( 113,202,578) - ( 439,686,084)

$ 14,233,757 $120,585,604 § 67,413,132 § 9,530,930 §$§ 47,344,561 § 28,415,269 § 287,523,253

2020
Opening net book amount

as at January 1 $ 14,233,757 $120,585,604 $ 67,413,132 § 9,530,930 § 47,344,561 § 28,415,269 § 287,523,253
Additions 185,346 3,069,325 20,683,563 1,352,450 16,620,782 23,985,927 65,897,393
Transfers 1,181 2,471,466 3,424,276 1,137,498 3,732,238 ( 16,962,187) ( 6,195,528)
Acquired from business

combinations - 2,396 147 - 1,384,078 1,195,685 2,582,306
Disposals ( 58,861) ( 600,188) ( 3,891,260) ( 208,172) ( 1,838,861) ( 330,269) ( 6,927,611)
Depreciation charge - ( 10,388,031) ( 22,493,118) ( 3,162,970) ( 15,487,260) - ( 51,531,379)
Impairments - - ( 959,481) - - - ( 959,481)
Net exchange differences (  2,030,887) 419,248 255,356 ( 51,421) ( 1,470,554) ( 418,717) ( 3,296,975)
Closing net book amount

as at December 31 $ 12,330,536 $115,559,820 § 64,432,615 $ 8,598,315 § 50,284,984 § 35,885,708 § 287,091,978
At December 31, 2020
Cost $ 12,330,536 $214,266,695 $279,733,859 $§ 41,002,101 $174,306,451 § 35,885,708 § 757,525,350
Accumulated depreciation and

impairment - ( 98,706,875) ( 215,301,244) ( 32,403,786) ( 124,021,467) - ( 470,433,372)

$ 12,330,536 $115,559,820 § 64,432,615 §

8,598,315 § 50,284,984 §

35,885,708 §

287,091,978
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A.

Details of the aforementioned property, plant and equipment acquired from business

combinations are provided in Note 6(40).

B. Details of property, plant and equipment pledged as collateral are provided in Note 8.

(11) Leasing arrangements — lessee

A.

B.

The Group leases various assets including land, land use right, buildings and other equipment.
The periods of lease contracts are as follows:

Land and land use right: 3~50 years

Buildings: 1~20 years

Other equipment: 1~6 years

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. It does not enjoy the right to extend the lease term. The lease agreements do not
impose covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing purposes.
Short-term leases with a lease term of 12 months, include dormitories, business vehicles and

office.

C. The carrying amount of right-of-use assets and the depreciation charge are as follows:

D.

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Carrying amount Carrying amount
Land and land use right $ 17,078,178  $ 18,525,528
Buildings 22,338,115 25,881,653
Other equipment 843,899 1,861,504
$ 40,260,192 § 46,268,685

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
Depreciation charge Depreciation charge
Land and land use right $ 1,012,696 $ 821,887
Buildings 8,813,673 8,194,638
Other equipment 813,166 404,361
$ 10,639,535 $ 9,420,886

For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the additions to right-of-use assets were
$11,931,110 and $16,428,979, respectively.

E. The information on income and expense accounts relating to lease contracts is as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
Items affecting profit or loss
Interest expense on lease liabilities $ 1,300,151 $ 1,193,246
Expense on short-term lease contracts $ 3,967,179 $ 4,084,492

F. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group’s total cash outflow for leases were

$17,266,641 and $14,077,260, respectively.
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(12) Leasing arrangements — lessor

A. The Group mainly leases machinery and equipment. Rental contracts are typically made for 5

years.
B. The maturity analysis of the undiscounted lease payments in the finance lease is as follows:
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
No later than one year $ 456,976 $ 467,917
Later than one year but not later than
five years 1,015,846 1,517,607
$ 1,472,822 $ 1,985,524

C. Reconciliation of the undiscounted lease payments and the net investment in the finance lease is

provided as follows:

December 31, 2021

Current Non-current
Undiscounted lease payments $ 456,976 $ 1,015,846
Unearned finance income ( 17,016) ( 21,611)
Net investment in lease $ 439960 $ 994,235

December 31, 2020

Current Non-current
Undiscounted lease payments $ 467917 $ 1,517,607
Unearned finance income ( 8,636) ( 58,441)
Net investment in lease $ 459,281 § 1,459,166

The net investment in the financial lease is shown as “other receivables” and “other non-current

assets”, respectively.
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(13) Investment property

Land and buildings
2021 2020

At January 1
Cost $ 15,528,707 $ 8,015,199
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ( 4,445,434) ( 3,595,287)

$ 11,083,273 § 4,419,912
For the year ended December 31
Opening net book amount as at January 1 $ 11,083,273 $ 4,419,912
Transfer in 452,211 7,411,747
Transfer out ( 220,594) -
Disposal of subsidiaries ( 66,043) -
Depreciation charge ( 841,596) ( 737,696)
Net exchange differences ( 50,752) ( 10,690)
Closing net book amount as at December 31 $ 10,356,499 $ 11,083,273
At December 31
Cost $ 15,688,409 $ 15,528,707
Accumulated depreciation and impairment ( 5,331,910) ( 4,445,434)

$ 10,356,499 $ 11,083,273

A. Rental income from the lease of the investment property and direct operating expenses arising
from the investment property are shown below:

Years ended December 31,
2021 2020

Rental income from the lease of the

investment property $ 1,000,030 $ 894,888
Direct operating expenses arising from

the investment property that generated

rental income for the year $ 841,596 $ 737,696

B. The Group assesses the recoverable amounts of those assets where there is an indication that they
are impaired. There were no impairment losses during the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020.

C. The fair value of the investment property held by the Group as at December 31, 2021 and 2020
was $31,642,398 and $28,531,066, respectively, which was revalued by independent appraisers.
The valuation is based on latest market price of similar investment property in the same area and
condition which is categorized within Level 3 in the fair value hierarchy.
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(14) Intangible assets

At January 1
Cost

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Opening net book amount
as at January 1

Transfers

Additions

Acquired from business

combinations

Disposals

Disposal of subsidiaries

Amortisation charge

Net exchange differences

Closing net book amount
as at December 31

At December 31

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

(

2021
Developed Customer

Goodwill Concession Patents Trademarks technology relationships Software Total
$17,266,764 $14,581,255 § 4,323,547 § 9,447,950 $10,386,924 §$ 1,657,536 § - $57,663,976
( 2,349,869) ( 4,719,570) ( 2,945,509) (  519,023) ( 2,012,836) (  357,086) - ( 12,903,893)
$14,916,895 § 9,861,685 § 1,378,038 $ 8,928,927 § 8,374,088 § 1,300,450 $ - $44,760,083
$14,916,895 § 9,861,685 § 1,378,038 $ 8,928,927 § 8,374,088 § 1,300,450 $ - $44,760,083
- - - - - - 2,369,522 2,369,522
- - 91,999 - - - 1,007,446 1,099,445
3,479,980 - - - 57,371 - - 3,537,351
- - ( 1,031) ( 241,244) - - ( 70,315) ( 312,590)
1,820,650) - - - ( 140,190) - - ( 1,960,840)
- ( 924,746) ( 284,932) ( 440,931) ( 599,022) ( 154,635) ( 1,027,292) ( 3,431,558)
390,165) - ( 30,332) ( 172,328) ( 48,217) ( 34,707) ( 32,827) ( 708,576)

(

$16,186,060 § 8,936,939 § 1,153,742 § 8,074,424 § 7,644,030 § 1,111,108 § 2,246,534 $45,352,837

$18,469,923 $14,581,255 § 4,301,379 $ 9,009,831

( 2,283,863) (_ 5,644,316) (_ 3,147,637) (
$16,186,060 $ 8,936,939 § 1,153,742 §$ 8,074,424 § 7,644,030 § 1,111,108 $ 2,246,534 $45,352,837

$10,192,291 §$ 1,610,976 $ 8,174,975

935,407) ( 2,548261) ( 499,868) ( 5,928,441) (

$66,340,630

20,987,793)
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At January 1, 2020

Cost

Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

Opening net book amount
as at January 1

Acquired through business
combinations

Additions

Amortisation charge

Purchase price allocation

Net exchange differences

Closing net book amount
as at December 31

At December 31

Cost
Accumulated amortisation
and impairment

2020

(

Developed Customer

Goodwill Concession Patents Trademarks technology relationships Total
$ 17,880,175 § 14,169,255 § 4,805,694 § 9,721,511 § 4,239,016 $ 1,744,836 $ 52,560,487
2,473,634) (_ 3,810,083) ( 2,911,823) ( 305,822) ( 1,468,219) ( 210,553) ( 11,180,134)
§ 15,406,541 § 10,359,172 § 1,893,871 $ 9,415,689 $§ 2,770,797 $§ 1,534,283 § 41,380,353
$ 15,406,541 §$ 10,359,172 $§ 1,893,871 $ 9,415,689 $ 2,770,797 $ 1,534,283 $§ 41,380,353
- - 142,697 - 6,360,000 - 6,502,697
- 412,000 26,487 102,763 - - 541,250
- ( 909,487) ( 352,563) ( 236,257) ( 641,298) ( 162,968) ( 2,302,573)
187,712 - - - - - 187,712
677,358) - ( 332,454) ( 353,268) ( 115,411) ( 70,865) ( 1,549,356)
$§ 14,916,895 § 9,861,685 $ 1,378,038 $ 8,928,927 § 8,374,088 $§ 1,300,450 § 44,760,083
$ 17,266,764 § 14,581,255 § 4,323,547 § 9,447,950 $ 10,386,924 § 1,657,536 $ 57,663,976
2,349,869) ( 4,719,570) (_ 2,945,509) ( 519,023) ( 2,012,836) ( 357,086) ( 12,903,893)
$ 14916895 § 9,861,685 § 1,378,038 § 8,928,927 § 8,374,088 § 1,300,450 § 44,760,083
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A. Details of the aforementioned intangible assets acquired from business combinations are

B.

provided in Note 6(40).

The amounts of disposal of subsidiaries stated above is mainly from Linksys, an originally 67%-
owned subsidiary of the Group’s subsidiary, Foxconn Interconnect Technology Limited, which
issued new shares for a cash capital increase in the third quarter of 2021, but the Group did not
participate in the capital increase. As the shareholding percentage of the Group in Linksys
decreased to 49%, the Group lost control over Linksys and it ceased to be included in the
consolidated financial statements. Refer to Note 6(9) for details.

. Impairment assessment for goodwill of Belkin International Inc.

The Group acquired Belkin International Inc. (referred herein as “Belkin”) which generated
goodwill of $13,563,157. The Group subsequently reduced the goodwill due to the disposal of
Linksys, a subsidiary of Belkin. As of December 31, 2021, the balance of goodwill from the
acquisition of Belkin amounted to $10,531,410. Impairment assessment of goodwill is allocated
to Belkin’s CGU. The recoverable amount of the CGU relating to the goodwill arising from
acquisition of Belkin was determined based on value-in-use calculation. The calculation uses
projected cash flows based on financial budgets for the next five-year period.

Management determined expected revenue growth rate based on past performance and their
expectations of market development. The long-term weighted average growth rates used are
consistent with the projection included in industry reports. Pre-tax discount rate used reflects the
risk premium of the segment and operating region.

The assumptions used in the main assessment as of December 31, 2021 are as follows:

Five-year compound revenue growth rate 9.7%
Long-term growth rate 2%
Pre-tax discount rate 17.2%

Based on the above assessment, there is no impairment loss on goodwill as of December 31,
2021.

. The details of amortisation are as follows:

Years ended December 31,
2021 2020
Operating costs and operating expenses ~ $ 3,431,558 § 2,302,573
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(15) Other non-current assets

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

Utility duct access $ 730,558 $ 913,198
3.5GHz frequency band
through MOCN 11,181,732 -
Computer software cost - 2,369,522
Refundable deposits 1,987,126 2,483,407
Assets recognised for incremental costs
of obtaining contract with customers 2,405,061 2,146,582
Prepayments for equipment 4,855,392 1,748,399
Net investment in lease 994,235 1,459,166
Others 6,543,511 4,614,397
$ 28,697,615 § 15,734,671

A. 3.5GHz frequency band through Multi Operator Core Network (MOCN)

A subsidiary of the Group, Asia Pacific Telecom Co., Ltd., entered into a cooperation agreement
on 3.5GHz frequency band through MOCN with Far EasTone Telecommunications Co., Ltd.
(FET). The period of the agreement is from September 4, 2020 to December 31, 2040. This
cooperation agreement was approved with conditions by the National Communications
Commission (NCC) Committee and the Fair Trade Commission. Both signing parties agreed that
the Group will share two-ninths of the network deployment cost of FET’s 3.5GHz frequency band
in order to obtain use right capacity, of which the cost of spectrum sharing amounted to $9,473,000.
B. Incremental costs of obtaining a contract

A subsidiary of the Company, Asia Pacific Telecom Co., Ltd., recognises the incremental costs
(mainly comprised of sales commissions) of obtaining a contract with a customer as an asset if
the Group expects to recover those costs. The recognised asset is amortised on a systematic basis
that is consistent with the transfers to the customer of the goods or services to which the asset
relates. The Group recognised amortised costs of $1,924,300 and $1,858,896 in profit or loss for

the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

C. Details of net investment in lease is provided in Note 6(12).

D. Details of other non-current assets pledged as collateral are provided in Note 8.

(16) Short-term notes and bills payable

Commercial paper

Less: Unamortized discount

Interest rates per annum

December 31, 2021

December 31, 2020

$ 24,010,000 $ 39,139,779
( 10,883) ( 37,886)
$ 23,999,117 $ 39,101,893

0.328%~1.10%

0.498%~1.238%

-212-



(17) Short-term loans

Type of loans December 31, 2021 Interest rate range Collateral
Bank loans
Credit loans $ 546,372,008 0%~6.4% None
Type of loans December 31, 2020 Interest rate range Collateral
Bank loans
Credit loans $ 446,422,100 0.08%~8% None

The Group has signed an agreement to offset financial assets and liabilities with financial institutions.
The agreement meets the offsetting criteria of IAS 32, whereby the financial assets and liabilities
are offset and reported in the net amount in the balance sheet. Details of the offset as of December
31,2021 and 2020 are as follows:

December 31, 2021

Gross amount of Gross amount of Net amount of
recognised recognised financial financial assets and
financial assets ~ assets and liabilities offset  liabilities presented
Description and liabilities in the balance sheet in the balance sheet
Bank deposits and loans  $ 1,038,395,341 § 1,038,395,341 $ -
December 31, 2020
Gross amount of Gross amount of Net amount of
recognised recognised financial financial assets and
financial assets ~ assets and liabilities offset  liabilities presented
Description and liabilities in the balance sheet in the balance sheet
Bank deposits and loans  $ 1,259,254,404 § 1,259,254,404 $ -
(18) Other payables
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Awards and salaries payable $ 52,449.475 $ 54,865,333
Payables for equipment 24,349,399 22,979,363
Employees’ bonuses payable 19,956,295 20,510,641
Consumption goods expense payable
(including indirect materials) 13,908,782 12,695,792
Accrued interest payable 6,960,013 11,989,073
Royalty fees payable 5,570,915 6,186,346
Tax payable 4,917,458 6,074,678
Restricted stock repurchase obligation 2,220,250 3,436,024
Others 82,762,346 81,439,965
$ 213,094,933 $ 220,177,215

A subsidiary of the Company, Foxconn Industrial Internet Co., Ltd., issued employees’ restricted
shares in 2019. Employees must pay to acquire those stocks, and if employees resign during the

vesting period, they must return the stocks to the Group and the Group must refund payments made
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on the stocks. The Group recognises the payments from the employees who are expected to resign
during the vesting period as liabilities at the grant date.
(19) Other current liabilities

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Receipts in advance of payments for

equipment on behalf of others $ 20,350,055 $ 17,510,796
Deposits received 15,085,440 2,233,396
Contract liabilities - advance payment 13,600,629 17,761,388
Contract liabilities - deferred income 7,742,255 7,451,145
Others 4,992,192 3,566,275

$ 61,770,571 § 48,523,000

(20) Bonds payable

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Convertible bonds payable $ 33,961,558 $ 14,778,442

Add: Premium on bonds payable 7,500 7,500
Less: Discount on bonds payable ( 208,114) ( 442.599)

33,760,944 14,343,343

Corporate bonds payable 146,300,000 130,400,000

Foreign unsecured corporate bonds 82,595,736 99,180,176

262,656,680 243,923,519

Less: Current portion (shown as

“Long-term liabilities, current portion”) ( 36,397,890) ( 42,231,956)

$ 226,258,790 $ 201,691,563

A. First overseas convertible bond issue of 2017

(a) The Company issued the first overseas unsecured convertible bonds totaling USD 500 million
with the approval of the competent authority on August 22, 2017. The bonds carry zero
coupon rate over five years. The circulation period is from November 6, 2017 to November
6, 2022.

(b) The conversion price is adjusted in line with the model specified in the conversion rules. For
the year ended December 31, 2021, no bonds were converted into common stock at the
conversion price of NT$151.583 (using the exchange rate of 1 USD: 30.192 TWD) which
was adjusted by the Company on July 30, 2021 based on the conversion rules of the first
overseas convertible bond issue of 2017.

(c) In accordance with the conversion rules, if the convertible bond is purchased (including
purchased from the secondary market), early redeemed, or repaid at maturity by the Company,
or if the convertible bond is converted into common stocks or redeemed by the bondholder,
the bond is to be retired and will not be reissued.

(d) In accordance with the conversion rules, the rights and obligations of common stocks
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converted are the same as the outstanding ones previously subscribed.

(e) The conversion options for the first overseas convertible bond issue of 2017 are separated
from the liabilities and recorded as ‘capital surplus — share options” amounting to $1,099,253.

(f) In accordance with the conversion rules, bondholders have the right to request the Company
to redeem any bonds at the price of the bonds’ par value upon three years from the issue date.
On November 6, 2020, bondholders requested to redeem bonds totaling $1,817,558 (USD
60,200 thousand).

B. First unsecured convertible bond issue of 2018

(a) ShunSin Technology Holdings Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, issued the first
unsecured convertible bonds totaling $1,500 million with the approval of the competent
authority on January 10, 2018. The bonds carry zero coupon rate over five years. The
circulation period is from February 12, 2018 to February 12, 2023.

(b) The conversion price is NT$165.4 after adjusting in line with the model specified in the
conversion rules.

(c) As the bondholders have the right to request the Company to redeem the bond at the price of
the bond’s par value after three years from the bonds’ issue date (February 12, 2021 is the
selling base day of the bondholders), the subsidiary, ShunSin Technology Holdings Limited,
needs to redeem the bonds at par value. In the first quarter of 2020, the corporate bonds
payable and the financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss-non-current
were reclassified into other current liabilities. Nevertheless, the bonds payable is not required
to be fully paid off within one year. On February 12, 2021, no bondholder has requested to
redeem the bonds. Therefore, the corporate bonds were reclassified to non-current liabilities.

(d) The conversion options of the bonds were separated from liabilities and recognised

respectively as equity and liabilities at its issuance as follows:

Convertible bonds’ present value at compound interest $ 1,357,350
Embedded derivatives (i.e. put options and redemption rights) 13,650
Components of equity at issuance 129,000
$ 1,500,000
(e) The details of financial asset (liabilities) at fair value through profit or loss are as follows:
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Embedded derivatives (i.e. put options  $ 2,550 S 2,250
and redemption rights)
Valuation (loss) gain ( 2,550) 300
$ - § 2,550

C. First overseas unsecured convertible bond issue of 2021
(a) The Company issued the first overseas unsecured convertible bonds totaling USD 700 million
with the approval of the competent authority on May 26, 2021. The bonds carry zero coupon
rate over five years. The circulation period is from August 5, 2021 to August 5, 2026. The
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Company will fully redeem the bonds at the price of the bonds’ face value plus -0.41% of the
face value at the maturity date.

(b) The conversion price is adjusted in line with the model specified in the conversion rules. As
of December 31, 2021, no bonds were converted into common stock at the conversion price
of NT$163.17 in dollars (using the exchange rate of 1 USD: 27.978 TWD) which was
adjusted by the Company on August 5, 2021 based on the conversion rules of the first
overseas convertible bond issue of 2021.

(c) In accordance with the conversion rules, if the convertible bond is purchased (including
purchased from the secondary market), early redeemed, or repaid at maturity by the Company,
or if the convertible bond is converted into common stocks or redeemed by the bondholder,
the bond is to be retired and will not be reissued.

(d) In accordance with the conversion rules, the rights and obligations of common stocks
converted are the same as the outstanding ones previously subscribed.

(e) The conversion options for the first overseas convertible bond issue of 2021 are separated
from the liabilities and recorded as ‘capital surplus - share options’ amounting to $336,012.

(f) In accordance with the conversion rules, bondholders have the right to request the Company
to redeem any bonds at the price of the bonds’ par value upon three years from the issue date.

D. For details of principal, interest rate, maturity and other information of corporate bonds payable

and foreign unsecured corporate bonds, please refer to Table 12.
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(21) Long-term loans
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Interest
Institution Loan period rate Collateral  December 31, 2021
Long-term loans
Mizuho Corporate Bank Ltd., etc. 2019/03/19~  0.9519%~ None $ 15,916,000
syndicated loan 2024/03/19 1.0019%
Mizuho Corporate Bank Ltd., etc. 2020/11/21~  0.4800% None 4,698,000
syndicated loan 2025/11/28
First Commercial Bank 2011/11/30~  1.2791% Yes 1,902,857
2030/11/30
First Commercial Bank 2013/09/06~ 1.4905% Yes 1,059,097
2033/09/06
First Commercial Bank 2015/04/09~  1.5433% None 386
2022/03/10
The Shanghai Commercial 2013/06/17~  1.6700% Yes 8,019
& Savings Bank, Ltd. 2028/04/15
The Shanghai Commercial 2021/06/25~  1.4950% None 139,167
& Savings Bank, Ltd. 2024/09/16
Bank of Shanghai Co., Ltd. 2018/06/28~  6.6500% None 34,072
2023/06/28
Jincheng Bank Company Limited 2019/07/12~  9.1000% Yes 87,082
2022/01/25
Jih Sun International Bank Ltd. 2019/11725~  0.9300% None 1,000,000
2022/11/25
Agricultural Bank of China 2017/05/23~  4.4100%~ None 5,579,879
Limited 2027/12/26 4.900%
Taiwan Cooperative Bank 2019/12/16~  1.5000% None 6,600
2024/12/16
SG Equipment Finance Czech 2017/10/19~  1.4905% None 929
Republic s.r.o. 2022/08/15
ChinaTrust Commercial Bank Ltd., 2020/10/29~  1.8499% None 840,000
etc. syndicated loan 2022/12/26
E.SUN Commercial Bank, Ltd. 2021/12/20~ 1.1900% None 332,160
2024/12/20
Industrial and Commercial Bank 2021/02/04~  1.3444%~ None 16,608,000
of China Raffles Place 2023/11/24 1.3696%
Sub-Branch
Taishin International Bank 2021/12/27~  1.8817%~ None 2,565,000
2026/12/27 1.9874%
Mitsubishi UFJ Financial 2021/12/20~ 1.1100% None 775,040
Group Bank 2024/12/20
Other loan Yes 32,467
51,584,755
Less: Current portion 2,188,870)
(shown as “Long-term liabilities, current portion”)
Administration fee of syndicated loans 55,107)
$ 49,340,778




Interest

Institution Loan period rate Collateral December 31, 2020
Long-term loans
Mizuho Corporate Bank Ltd., etc. 2019/03/19~  0.9952%~ None 16,376,000
syndicated loan 2022/02/26 1.0452%
Mizuho Corporate Bank Ltd., etc. 2020/11/21~  0.4800% None 4,552,600
syndicated loan 2025/11/25
First Commercial Bank 2011/11/30~  1.2791% Yes 2,022,857
2030/11/30
First Commercial Bank 2013/09/06~ 1.4905% Yes 1,147,355
2033/09/06
First Commercial Bank 2015/04/09~ 1.5433% None 1,929
2022/03/10
The Shanghai Commercial 2013/06/17~  1.6700% Yes 11,400
& Savings Bank, Ltd. 2028/04/15
Jincheng Bank Company Limited 2019/01/29~  9.1000% Yes 322,240
2022/01/25
Jih Sun International Bank Ltd. 2019/11/25~ 1.0300% None 1,000,000
2022/11/25
Agricultural Bank of China 2017/05/23~ 4.4100%~ None 6,549,138
Limited 2027/12/26  4.900%
Taiwan Cooperative Bank 2019/12/16~  1.5000% None 8,737
2024/12/16
SG Equipment Finance Czech 2017/11/09~  3.4700% Yes 2,404
Republic s.t.0. 2022/08/15
ChinaTrust Commercial Bank Ltd., 2020/10/29~ 1.8499% None 840,000
etc. syndicated loan 2022/12/26
Other loan
China Bills Finance Corporation 2018/08/22~  1.038%~ None
etc. syndicated loan 2021/08/21 1.046% 13,500,000
46,334,660
Less: Current portion 14,718,255)
(shown as “Long-term liabilities, current portion”)
Administration fee of syndicated loans 12,555)
Unamortised discount ( 10,653)

$ 31,593,197

A. Throughout the term of Mizuho Corporate Bank Ltd., JihSun International Commercial Bank
Co., Ltd., ING Bank, N.V., First Commercial Bank and ChinaTrust Commercial Bank Ltd., etc.
syndicated long-term loan agreements, the Group shall maintain certain financial ratios including
current ratio, net debt to tangible assets and interest coverage ratio, to be tested semi-annually
and annually on consolidated basis. The Group’s financial ratios in the consolidated financial
statements as of December 31, 2021 met the financial covenants of abovementioned syndicated

long-term agreements.
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B. Details of assets pledged as collateral for long-term loans are provided in Note 8.
(22) Pensions
A. Defined benefit plans
(a) The Company has a defined benefit pension plan in accordance with the Labor Standards Law
of Taiwan, covering all regular employees’ service years prior to the enforcement of the
Labor Pension Act on July 1, 2005 and service years thereafter of employees who chose to
continue to be subject to the pension mechanism under the Law. Under the defined benefit
pension plan, two units are accrued for each year of service for the first 15 years and one unit
for each additional year thereafter, subject to a maximum of 45 units. Pension benefits are
based on the number of units accrued and the average monthly salaries and wages of the last
6 months prior to retirement. The Company contributes monthly an amount equal to 2% of
the employees’ monthly salaries and wages to the retirement fund deposited with Bank of
Taiwan, the trustee, under the name of the independent retirement fund committee. Also, the
Company would assess the balance in the aforementioned labor pension reserve account by
December 31, every year. If the account balance is insufficient to pay the pension calculated
by the aforementioned method to the employees expected to qualify for retirement in the
following year, the Company will make contributions for the deficit by next March.
(b) The amounts recognised in the balance sheet are as follows (shown as “other non-current

liabilities™):

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Present value of defined benefit $ 1,802,651 $ 1,944,761
obligations
Fair value of plan assets ( 536,491) ( 543,215)
Net defined benefit liability $ 1,266,160 $ 1,401,546
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(c) Movements in net defined benefit liabilities are as follows:

2021
Present value of
defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligations plan assets benefit liability
At January 1 $ 1,944,761 $ 543215 § 1,401,546
Current service cost 6,950 - 6,950
Interest income - 2,173 ( 2,173)
Interest expense 7,779 - 7,779
1,959,490 545,388 1,414,102
Remeasurements:
Return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included
in interest income or
expense) - 8,137 ( 8,137)
Change in population
assumptions 2,051 - 2,051
Change in financial
assumptions ( 66,734) - ( 66,734)
Experience adjustments ( 30,026) - ( 30,026)
94,709) 8,137 ( 102,846)
Pension fund contribution - 14,852 ( 14,852)
Paid pension ( 62,130) ( 31,886) ( 30,244)
At December 31 $ 1,802,651 $ 536,491 § 1,266,160
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2020

Present value of

defined benefit Fair value of Net defined
obligations plan assets benefit liability
At January 1 $ 1,954,134 $ 566,295 $ 1,387,839
Current service cost 8,223 - 8,223
Interest income - 4,530 ( 4,530)
Interest expense 15,633 - 15,633
1,977,990 570,825 1,407,165
Remeasurements:
Return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included
in interest income or
expense) - 21,537 ( 21,537)
Change in financial
assumptions 94,390 - 94,390
Experience adjustments ( 25,227) - ( 25,227)
69,163 21,537 47,626
Pension fund contribution - 15,947 ( 15,947)
Paid pension ( 102,392) ( 65,094) ( 37,298)
At December 31 $ 1,944,761 $ 543,215 % 1,401,546

(d) The Bank of Taiwan was commissioned to manage the Fund of the Company’s defined benefit
pension plan in accordance with the Fund’s annual investment and utilisation plan and the
“Regulations for Revenues, Expenditures, Safeguard and Utilisation of the Labor Retirement
Fund” (Article 6: The scope of utilisation for the Fund includes deposit in domestic or foreign
financial institutions, investment in domestic or foreign listed, over-the-counter, or private
placement equity securities, investment in domestic or foreign real estate securitization
products, etc.). With regard to the utilisation of the Fund, its minimum earnings in the annual
distributions on the final financial statements shall be no less than the earnings attainable
from the amounts accrued from two-year time deposits with the interest rates offered by local
banks. If the earnings is less than aforementioned rates, government shall make payment for
the deficit after being authorized by the Regulator. The Company has no right to participate
in managing and operating that fund and hence the Company is unable to disclose the
classification of plan assets fair value in accordance with IAS 19 paragraph 142. The
composition of fair value of plan assets as of December 31, 2021 and 2020 is given in the
Annual Labor Retirement Fund Utilisation Report announced by the government.

(e) The principal actuarial assumptions used were as follows:

2021 2020
Discount rate 0.7% 0.4%
Future salary increases 3.5% 3.5%
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Assumptions regarding future mortality rate are set based on actuarial advice in accordance
with published statistics and experience in each territory.

Because the main actuarial assumption changed, the present value of defined benefit
obligation is affected. The analysis was as follows:

Discount rate Future salary increases
Increase Decrease Increase Decrease
0.25% 0.25% 0.25% 0.25%

December 31, 2021
Effect on present value of
defined benefit obligation ($ 51,622) § 53,689 $§ 47,774 (§  46,292)

December 31, 2020
Effect on present value of
defined benefit obligation ($ 59,721) $ 62,244 $ 55505 ($  53,680)

The sensitivity analysis above is based on one assumption which changed while the other
conditions remain unchanged. In practice, more than one assumption may change all at once.
The method of analysing sensitivity and the method of calculating net pension liability in the
balance sheet are the same.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not
change compared to the previous period

(g) Expected contributions to the defined benefit pension plans of the Group for the year ending
December 31, 2021 amount to $15,845.

(h) As of December 31, 2021, the weighted average duration of the retirement plan is 12 years

B. Defined contribution plans

(a) Effective July 1, 2005, the Company and its domestic subsidiaries have established a defined
contribution pension plan (the “New Plan”) under the Labor Pension Act (the “Act”),
covering all regular employees with R.O.C. nationality. Under the New Plan, the Company
and its domestic subsidiaries contribute monthly an amount based on 6% of the employees’
monthly salaries and wages to the employees’ individual pension accounts at the Bureau of
Labor Insurance. The benefits accrued are paid monthly or in lump sum upon termination of
employment.

(b) The subsidiaries in mainland China have defined contribution pension plans and contribute
an amount monthly based on 8%~9% of employees’ monthly salaries and wages to an
independent fund administered by a government agency. The plan is administered by the
government of mainland China. Other than the monthly contributions, the Group does not
have further pension liabilities.

(c) The pension costs under the defined contribution pension plans of the Group for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were $16,463,143 and $10,737,739, respectively. As a

result of the coronavirus pandemic in China in early 2020, the local government reduced by
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half the pension insurance for a period of six months from February 2020.
(23) Share-based payment

As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the share-based payment transactions of Foxconn Interconnect
Technology Limited and Foxconn Industrial Internet Co., Ltd., Bharat FIH Limited and FIH Mobile

Limited, subsidiaries of the Company, are set forth below:

Quantity Vesting
Type of arrangement Grant date granted conditions

Senior management share grant plan January 1, 2015 349,440,000 Note (1)
Restricted share plan December 6, 2017 259,240,433 Note (2)
Restricted share plan April 30, 2019 149,183,352 Note (2)
Restricted share plan September 11, 2019 10,348,325 Note (2)
Restricted share plan December 31, 2019 18,881,226 Note (2)
Employee stock options April 30, 2019 25,947,021 Note (3)
Employee stock options September 11, 2019 473,000 Note (3)
Employee stock options December 31, 2019 6,013,755 Note (3)
Share award program December 31, 2021 200,000 Note (4)
Share award program December 31, 2021 4,500,000 Note (4)
Employee stock options December 28, 2018 41,763,000 Note (5)
Stock options plan December 31, 2021 83,110,000 Note (6)
Share award program December 31, 2021 7,328,361 Note (7)

Note 1:

Note 2:

Note 3:

Note 4:

Note 5:
Note 6:

Note 7:

Grantees do not need to pay to acquire those shares. Such vesting schedule was
subsequently revised by the Company in May 2017, under which the shares will be vested
from March 31, 2018 in accordance with the number of the grantees’ shares at 12% in each
quarter of 2018 and 3.25% in each quarter from 2019 to 2022.

The employees can only exercise the rights after fulfilling the stipulated term of service
under the limited partnership agreement. The difference between the fair value of the equity
instrument and the consideration paid by the employee to acquire the instrument is
amortised over a service period of 3 to 5 years starting from the grant date.

From the date of grant that exercises issue annually in five years, each issue exercises 20%
equally.

Vested immediately.

Vesting period is over 1 to 4 years starting from grant date which was December 28, 2018.
Grantees need to pay to acquire those shares. Vesting period is over 1 to 3 years starting
from the grant date. Exercise period is starting from December 1, 2022 to November 30,
2029.

Grantees do not need to pay to acquire those shares. Vesting period is starting from the
grant date to January 10, 2022.

A. Senior management share grant plan-Foxconn Interconnect Technology Limited

The weighted average fair value of shares granted under this plan determined using the H-model

was USD 0.25 per share. The significant inputs into the model were weighted average cost of
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capital of 13.4%, perpetuity growth rate of 3%, discount for lack of marketability of 20% and
control premium of 20%. The volatility is measured at the standard deviation of continuously
compounded share returns based on statistical analysis of daily share prices of comparable
companies in the market. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, expenses incurred
on senior management share grant plan were $70,379 (USD2,512 thousand) and $129,724
(USD4,390 thousand), respectively.

B. Restricted share plan-Foxconn Industrial Internet Co., Ltd.

The fair value of shares granted was RMB3,873,301 thousand. For the years ended December
31, 2021 and 2020, expenses incurred on restricted share plan were $2,192,527 (RMB504,679
thousand) and $3,894,434 (RMB909,532 thousand), respectively.

C. Employee stock options-Foxconn Industrial Internet Co., Ltd.

The increment of fair value related to the Options determined using the Black-Scholes model
was RMB217,098 thousand.
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, expenses incurred on employee stock options
were reversed amounting to $125,427 (RMB28,871 thousand) and $274,570 (RMB64,125
thousand), respectively.

D. Share incentive plan - Foxconn Interconnect Technology Limited

The share incentive plan is to purchase treasury shares from the market in 2017 and hold them
in trust form until employees reach the conditions of grant set by the plan. For the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, expenses incurred on the share incentive plan were $26,203
(USD935 thousand) and $63,096 (USD2,135 thousand), respectively.

E. Employee stock options-Foxconn Interconnect Technology Limited

On December 28, 2018, the Company granted certain eligible employees an aggregated
41,763,000 share options at an exercise price of HKD3.422 per share and will be vested over
1-year to 4-year period. The share options granted are subject to performance related adjustment.
The fair value of the options determined using the Black-Scholes model was $185,091
(USD6,139 thousand), and the share-based payment expenses incurred under this transaction for
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were $20,145 (USD720 thousand) and $41,991
(USD1,421 thousand), respectively.
F. Stock option plan - Bharat FIH Limited
For the year ended December 31, 2021, the subsidiary granted certain eligible employees and

professionals an aggregated 83,110,000 units of options at an exercise price of INR 20 per unit
and will be vested over 1-year to 3-year period. The fair value of the options determined using
the Black-Scholes model was INR 11 per unit. The main assumptions used are expected price
volatility of 52.46%, expected option life of 5.1 years, risk-free interest rate of 5.68% and
dividend rate of 0%. The share-based payment expense incurred under this transaction for the
year ended December 31, 2021 was $13,697 (USD 489 thousand).

G. Share incentive plan - FIH Mobile Limited
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In December 2021, the subsidiary granted specific persons an aggregated 7,328,361 ordinary
shares, which are only allowed to be sold before January 2022. Those shares were repurchased
from the market and deposited at the trust. The share-based payment expense incurred under this
transaction for the year ended December 31, 2021 was $14,369 (USD 513 thousand).

(24) Other non-current liabilities

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Deferred government grants $ 4,737,830 $ 4,598,516
Reserve for retirement pension 1,352,590 1,460,160
Advanced rent receipts 1,632,908 1,693,008
Others 3,739,202 3,231,652
$ 11,462,530 $ 10,983,336
(25) Provisions
Decommissioning
Warranty liabilities Others Total

At January 1, 2021 $ 4,128,480 $ 407,915 $ 8,037 $§ 4,544,432
Provisions during the

year 449,077 22,733 - 471,810
Used during the year ( 232,111) - - ( 232,111)
Unused amounts

reversed ( 1,330,180) - ( 8,037) ( 1,338,217)
Exchange differences ( 138,681) - - ( 138,681)
At December 31, 2021 $ 2,876,585 § 430,648 $ - $ 3,307,233
Analysis of total provisions:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Current $ 2,876,585 % 4,136,517
Non-current $ 430,648 $ 407,915

A. The Group provides warranties on 3C products sold. Provision for warranty is estimated based
on historical warranty data of 3C products.

B. In accordance with the applicable agreements or the law/regulation requirements, the Group bears
dismantling, removing the asset and restoring the site obligations for certain base stations.
Provision was recognised at the present value of costs which was estimated to be incurred for
dismantling, removing the asset and restoring the site. The decommissioning activities are
ongoing.

(26) Share capital-common stock

A. As of December 31, 2021, the Company’s authorised capital was $180,000,000, consisting of

18 billion shares of ordinary stock, and the paid-in capital was $138,629,906, consisting of

13,862,991 thousand shares with a par value of $10 (in dollars) per share. All proceeds from
shares issued have been collected.
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B. Pursuant to the resolution adopted at the stockholders' meeting held on June 1, 1999, and after

obtaining approval from the SFC, the Company issued 50 million ordinary shares so as to issue

25 million units of global depository receipts (GDRs) in Europe, Asia and the USA. The issuance

amounted to USD 347,250 thousand, and the main terms and conditions of the GDRs are as

follows:

(a) Voting
Holders of GDRs have no right to directly exercise voting rights or attend the Company’s
stockholders' meeting, except when a motion is on the election of directors or supervisors.
A holder or holders together holding at least 51% of the GDRs outstanding at the relevant
record date of the stockholders' meeting can instruct the Depositary to vote in the same
direction in respect of one or more resolutions to be proposed at the meeting.

(b) Sale and withdrawal of GDRs
Under the current R.O.C. law, shares represented by the GDRs may be withdrawn by holders
of GDRs commencing three months after the initial issue of GDRs. A holder of a GDR may,
provided that the Company has delivered to the custodian physical share certificates in respect
of the Deposited Shares, request the Depositary to sell or cause to be sold on behalf of such
holder the shares represented by such GDRs.

(c) Dividends
GDR holders are entitled to receive dividends to the same extent as the holders of common
stock.

(d) As of December 31, 2021, 90,070 thousand units of GDRs were outstanding, which
represents 180,141 thousand shares of common stock.

C. Treasury stocks

The Company's subsidiary, Hon Jin International Investment Co., Ltd., acquired ordinary shares

issued by the Company in 1998. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the subsidiary all owned a

total of 1,483,078 shares. The original cost of treasury stocks was $18,901, and the cost after

capital reduction was $15,194.

(27) Capital surplus

Pursuant to the R.O.C. Company Act, capital reserve arising from paid-in capital in excess of par

value on issuance of common stocks and donations can be used to cover accumulated deficit or to
issue new stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their share ownership, provided that the
Company has no accumulated deficit. Further, the R.O.C. Securities and Exchange Act requires that
the amount of capital reserve to be capitalised mentioned above should not exceed 10% of the paid-
in capital each year. Capital reserve should not be used to cover accumulated deficit unless the legal

reserve is insufficient.
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2021

Changes in
ownership Net change
Share interests in in equity Share
premium subsidiaries  of associates option Total
At January 1 § 88,501,031 $102,442,097 $ 10,603,561 $ 1,099,253 $202,645,942

Adjustments arising from changes
in percentage of ownership in

subsidiaries - 3,744,555 - - 3,744,555
Changes in equity of associates
and joint ventures accounted for
under the equity method - - ( 4,642,079) - ( 4,642,079)
Due to recognition of equity
component of convertible bonds
issued - - - 336,012 336,012
At December 31 $ 88,501,031 $106,186,652 $§ 5,961,482 § 1,435,265 $202,084,430
2020
Changes in
ownership Net change
Share interests in in equity Share
premium subsidiaries  of associates option Total
At January 1 $ 88,501,031 $ 99,189,558 §$ 10,593,529 § 1,099,253 $199,383,371

Adjustments arising from changes

in percentage of ownership in

subsidiaries - 3,252,539 - - 3,252,539
Changes in equity of associates

and joint ventures accounted for

under the equity method - - 10,032 - 10,032
At December 31 $ 88,501,031 $102,442,097 $ 10,603,561 § 1,099,253 $202,645,942

Regarding the recognition of the capital surplus from changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries,
refer to Note 6(30) for details; for the recognition of the capital surplus from changes in equity
interests in associates, refer to Note 6(9) for details.

(28) Retained earnings

A. The annual net income of the Company shall be appropriated in accordance with the priorities
listed as follows:
(a) Recovery of losses;
(b) Appropriation of 10% for legal reserve.
(c) Appropriation or reversal of special reserve pursuant to applicable law or regulation.
As to the earnings available for appropriation to shareholders including accumulated
unappropriated earnings and earnings available for appropriation this year, the board of directors
is authorized to draft an appropriation plan in accordance with the dividend policy in Section D
of the Articles of Incorporation.

The board of directors is authorized to distribute dividends and bonuses in whole or in part, which
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may be paid in cash after a resolution has been adopted by a majority vote at a meeting of the
board of directors attended by two-thirds of the total number of directors.

The Company is currently at a developing stage. The Company’s dividend distribution policy is
subject to the Company’s current and future investment environment, fund requirements,
competition from local and abroad, and capital budgets, as well as taking into consideration the
interests of shareholders and the long-term financial planning. Shareholder dividends are
appropriated based on accumulated unappropriated earnings, which shall not be less than 15%
of distributable earnings for the year and cash dividends shall not be less 10% of total dividends.

B. Except for covering accumulated deficit or issuing new stocks or cash to shareholders in
proportion to their share ownership, the legal reserve shall not be used for any other purpose.
The use of legal reserve for the issuance of stocks or cash to shareholders in proportion to their
share ownership is permitted, provided that the balance of the reserve exceeds 25% of the
Company’s paid-in capital.

C. In accordance with the regulations, the Company shall set aside special reserve from the debit
balance on other equity items at the balance sheet date before distributing earnings. When debit
balance on other equity items is reversed subsequently, the reversed amount could be included
in the distributable earnings.

D. The appropriations of 2021 earnings were proposed during the board meeting on March 23, 2022.
The appropriations of 2020 earnings had been resolved at the shareholders’ meeting on July 23,

2021. Details are summarized as follows:

2021 2020
Dividends per Dividends per
Amount share (in dollars) Amount share (in dollars)
Legal reserve $ 14,138,417 $ 9,711,843
Stock dividends 2,190,767 ( 15,136,594)
Cash dividends 72,087,551 § 5.2 55,451,962 § 4.0
$ 88,416,735 $ 50,027,211

The information on distribution of earnings will be posted on the “Market Observation Post
System” of the TSEC.
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(29) Other equity items

2021
Financial assets at
fair value through
other Currency
comprehensive translation Hedging
income adjustments instruments Total

At January 1 § 37,236,853 ($ 124,551,979) $ ($ 87,315,120)
Revaluation:
- Group 18,818,115 - 18,818,115
- Associates 1,382,226 - 1,382,226
Revaluation transferred

to retained earnings ( 795,774) - ( 795,774)
Currency translation:
- Group - ( 14,662,888) ( 14,662,888)
- Associates - ( 7,098,091) ( 7,098,091)
Cash flow hedges:
- Fair value gains during

in the year i i 1,572,299 1,572,299
- Tax on fair value

gains - - ( 29,231) ( 29,231)
- Transfers to other

equity items - - ( 1,377,423) ( 1,377,423)
At December 31 $ 56,641,420 ($ 146,312,958) $ 165,645 ($  89,505,893)

2020
Financial assets at
fair value through Currency
other comprehensive translation
income adjustments Total

At January 1 $ 11,437,746 ($ 113,889,466) ($ 102,451,720)
Revaluation:
- Group 20,644,948 - 20,644,948
- Associates 497,658 - 497,658
Revaluation transferred

to retained earnings 4,656,501 - 4,656,501
Currency translation:
- Group - ( 12,757,150) ( 12,757,150)
- Associates - 2,094,637 2,094,637
At December 31 $ 37,236,853 ($ 124,551,979) ($ 87,315,126)
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(30) Non-controlling interests

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
At January 1 $ 176,869,033 $ 159,641,071
Share attributable to non-controlling interests:
Gain for the year 14,502,709 12,530,780
Currency translation difference ( 1,437,325) ( 2,623,729)
Unrealised gains and losses on investments in
equity instruments measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income ( 1,191,913) ( 645,723)
Gain on hedging instrument 30,252 -
Earnings distribution to non-controlling
interests ( 3,292,721) ( 2,685,915)
Changes in non-controlling interests 7,322,773 10,652,549
At December 31 $ 192,802,808 $ 176,869,033

A. Certain subsidiaries of the Group have issued employee share-based payment and new shares
during 2021 and 2020. The Group has not purchased additional shares in proportion to its
ownership and thus, the non-controlling interest of the Group increased by $2,322,773 and
$3,110,549 and equity attributable to owners of the parent increased by $3,744,555 and
$3,252,539, for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

B. The above changes in 2021 mainly pertain to the subscription of Far EasTone
Telecommunications Co., Ltd. of 500,000 thousand shares of the subsidiary of the Group, Asia
Pacific Telecom Co., Ltd., on September 24, 2021. As a result, the non-controlling interest of
the Group increased by $5,000,000.

C. The main reason for the change in 2020 is because the Group established Foxtron Vehicle
Technologies Co., Ltd. (“Foxtron Vehicle”) together with Hua-Chuang Automobile Information
Technical Center Co., Ltd., where the Group owned 51% equity interest in Foxtron Vehicle.
Consequently, the non-controlling intertest of the Group increased by $7,542,000.

(31) Operating revenue

A. Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers
The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods and services over time and at a point in
time. Details of major product lines and geographical regions are provided in Note 14(5).

B. Contract assets and liabilities

The Group has recognised the following revenue-related contract liabilities:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020  January 1, 2020

Contract liabilities

(shown as “other
current hablhtles”) $ 21,342,884 $ 25,212,533 $ 25,153,889
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Contract liabilities at the beginning of the year amounting to $16,710,830 and $19,321,686 were
recognised as revenues for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

C. Assets recognised from costs to obtaining a contract
Under IFRS 15, the incremental costs related to obtaining a telecommunication contract was
recognised as an asset as the Group expects to recover these costs. For the details on incremental
costs recognised during the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, refer to Note 6(15).

(32) Interest income

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020

Interest income from bank deposits $ 29,745,645 $ 44,066,553
Interest income from current financial assets
at amortised cost 2,710,396 3,867,799
$ 32,456,041 $ 47,934,352
(33) Other income
Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
Rental income $ 2,155,044 $ 2,937,565
Dividend income 10,255,146 4,891,042
Government grants 546,543 1,241,388
Other non-operating income 2,226,458 2,817,538
$ 15,183,191 § 11,887,533

(34) Other gains and losses

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
Net gain on financial assets and liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss $ 2,531,148 $ 13,727,567
Gain (loss) on disposal of property, plant
and equipment 1,403,856 ( 873,283)
Gain on disposal of investment 2,938,622 633,645
Net currency exchange loss ( 5,075,113) ( 1,671,581)
Impairment loss ( 340,910) ( 959,481)
Other gain or losses ( 930,806) ( 3,542,402)
$ 526,797 $ 7,314,465
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(35) Expenses by nature

Additional disclosures related to cost of sales and operating expenses are as follows:

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
Product warranty costs $ 28,715,031 $ 36,411,836
Employee benefit expense 303,123,509 280,551,685
Depreciation 70,125,301 60,952,265
Amortisation 5,355,858 4,161,469
$ 407,319,699 $ 382,077,255

(36) Employee benefit expense

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
Wages and salaries $ 258,116,660 $ 241,135,661
Share-based payment 2,462,747 4,403,815
Labor and health insurance fees 11,145,364 8,187,657
Pension costs 16,475,699 10,757,065
Other personnel expenses 14,923,039 16,067,487
$ 303,123,509 $ 280,551,685

A. In accordance with the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, a ratio of distributable profit
of the current year, after covering accumulated losses, shall be distributed as employees'
compensation. The ratio shall be between 5% and 7% for employees’ compensation.

B. For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, employees’ compensation was accrued at
$8,122,670 and $6,001,329, respectively. The aforementioned amounts were recognised in
salary expenses. The expenses recognised for 2021 and 2020 were estimated and accrued based
on 5% of profit of current year distributable.

For 2021 and 2020, the employees’ compensation resolved by the Board of Directors amounted
to $8,122,670 and $6,001,329 on March 23, 2022 and March 30, 2021, respectively. The
amounts were the same with the amounts recognised in the financial statements for the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, and will be distributed in the form of cash.
Information about the appropriation of employees’ compensation (bonus) and directors’ and
supervisors’ remuneration by the Company as proposed by the Board of Directors and resolved
by the stockholders will be posted in the “Market Observation Post System” at the website of the
Taiwan Stock Exchange.
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(37) Financial costs

Interest expense:
Bank borrowings
Corporate bonds
Interest expense from lease liability
Financing expense from accounts
receivable factoring

(38) Income tax
A. Income tax expense

(a) Components of income tax expense:

Current tax:
Current tax on profits for the year
Tax on undistributed surplus earnings
Adjustments in respect of prior years
Total current tax
Deferred tax:
Origination and reversal of temporary
differences
Impact of change in tax rate
Total deferred tax
Income tax expense

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
$ 16,284,151 $ 36,124,258
4,218,476 2,831,396
1,300,151 1,193,246
155,717 168,113
$ 21,958,495 § 40,317,013
Years ended December 31,
2021 2020
$ 31,515,642 $ 30,671,601
2,355,930 422473
( 2,852,042) 744,825
31,019,530 31,838,899
8,729,172 188,548
- ( 880,800)
8,729,172 ( 692,252)
$ 39,748,702 $ 31,146,647

(b) The income taxes (charge)/credit relating to components of other comprehensive income are

as follows:

Measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income from changes
in fair values

Cash flow hedges

Remeasurement of defined benefit

obligations
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Years ended December 31,

2021 2020

($ 4,142,199) $ -
( 34,570) ;
( 20,569) 9,525
($ 4,197,338) $ 9,525




B. Reconciliations between income tax expense and accounting profit.

Tax calculated based on profit before
tax and statutory tax rate

Tax exempt income by tax regulation

Prior year income tax (overestimation)
underestimation

Tax on undistributed earnings

Others

Income tax expense

Change in deferred income tax

Impact of change in the tax rate

Prior year income tax overestimation
(underestimation)

Prepaid income tax

Income tax payable for prior years

Others

Current income tax liability
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Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
$ 66,245,805 $ 44,820,354
25,813,193) ( 13,979,463)

2,852,042) 744,825

2,355,930 422,473

187,798) ( 861,542)

39,748,702 31,146,647
8,729,172) ( 188,548)

- 830,800

2,852,042 ( 744,825)
13,862,785) ( 5,916,004)

7,641,715 638,116

1,176,477) ( 1,811,868)

$ 26,474,025 $ 24,004,318




C. Amounts of deferred tax assets or liabilities as a result of temporary differences are as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2021
Recognised

in other
Recognised in  comprehensive

January 1 profit or loss income December 31
Temporary differences:
— Deferred tax assets:
Reserve for inventory obsolescence $ 2,053,929 (S 191,003) $ - $ 1,862,926
and market price decline
Deferred revenue 1,374,885 ( 89,265) - 1,285,620
Unrealised loss on financial instruments 258,885 ( 102,528) - 156,357
Accrued expenses 1,710,185 175,715 - 1,885,900
Difference between accounting and
tax bases due to depreciation 1,919,690 669,115 - 2,588,805
Reserve for pension cost 290,593 39,905 ( 20,569) 309,929
Unused compensated absences 537,331 25,970 - 563,301
Others 11,801,354 144,704 - 11,946,058
19,946,852 672,613 ( 20,569) 20,598,896
— Deferred tax liabilities:
Foreign investment income using
equity method 4,815,981) ( 7,350,799) - ( 12,166,780)
Unrealised exchange gain 726,579) ( 393,669) - ( 1,120,248)
Interest income 2,576,904) 960,571 - ( 1,616,333)

Others 10,685,655) ( 2,617,888) (  4,176,769) ( 17,480,312)
18,805,119) ( 9,401,785) (  4,176,769) (  32,383,673)

$ 1,141,733 (S 8,729,172) (5 4,197,338) ($_11,784,777)

A~ N AN SN~

-235-



Year ended December 31, 2020
Recognised

in other
Recognised in  comprehensive

January 1 profit or loss income December 31
Temporary differences:
— Deferred tax assets:
Reserve for inventory obsolescence $ 1,392,595 § 661,334 § - § 2,053,929
and market price decline
Deferred revenue 1,366,424 8,461 - 1,374,885
Unrealised loss on financial instruments 177,600 81,285 - 258,885
Accrued expenses 1,727,478 ( 17,293) - 1,710,185
Difference between accounting and
tax bases due to depreciation 1,841,610 78,080 - 1,919,690
Reserve for pension cost 278,064 3,004 9,525 290,593
Unused compensated absences 775,714 ( 238,383) - 537,331
Others 11,141,980 659,374 - 11,801,354
18,701,465 1,235,862 9,525 19,946,852

— Deferred tax liabilities:

Foreign investment income using

equity method ( 4,378,792) ( 437,189) - ( 4,815,981)
Unrealised exchange gain ( 459,505) ( 267,074) - ( 726,579)
Interest income ( 3,711,661) 1,134,757 - ( 2,576,904)
Others (. 9,711,551) ( 974,104) - (_ 10,685,655)

( 18,261,509) ( 543,610) - ( 18,805,119)
$ 439,956 $ 692,252 ' $ 9,525 § 1,141,733

D. The Company has not recognised taxable temporary differences associated with investment in
subsidiaries as deferred tax liabilities. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the temporary
differences unrecognised as deferred tax liabilities were $1,155,469,127 and $1,120,928,606,
respectively.

E. The Company’s income tax returns through 2019 have been assessed and approved by the Tax
Authority.

F. The Company applied for and has been approved to repatriate funds overseas (including Mainland
China) within the time limit in accordance with the "The Management, Utilization, and Taxation
of Repatriated Offshore Funds Act" issued by R.O.C government. The tax rate for the fund
repatriation is 8% for the first year and 10% for the second year. For exemption from taxation
under the general income tax system, within 1 year after the repatriation of funds, the Company
can apply with the Ministry of Economic Affairs to engage in substantive investment, and those

who complete it within the time limit can enjoy a 50% tax refund.
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(39) Earnings per share

Year ended December 31, 2021

Weighted average
number of ordinary ~ Earnings
Amount shares outstanding ~ per share
after tax (shares in thousands) (in dollars)
Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the parent $ 139,320,332 13,861,508 $  10.05
Diluted earnings per share:
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders $ 139,320,332 13,861,508
of the parent
Assumed conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares
Employees’ compensation - 78,103
Convertible bonds-overseas 203,607 136,266
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the parent plus assumed conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares $ 139,523,939 14,075,877 $ 9.91
Year ended December 31, 2020
Weighted average
number of ordinary  Earnings
Amount shares outstanding per share
after tax (shares in thousands) (in dollars)

Basic earnings per share
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the parent $ 101,794,807 13,861,508 $ 7.34

Diluted earnings per share:
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the parent $ 101,794,807 13,861,508
Assumed conversion of all dilutive
potential ordinary shares
Employees’ compensation - 65,232
Convertible bonds-overseas 227,880 96,070
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders
of the parent plus assumed conversion of
all dilutive potential ordinary shares $ 102,022,687 14,022,810 $ 7.28
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(40) Business combinations
A. The Group established Foxtron Vehicle Technologies Co., Ltd. (“Foxtron Vehicle”) together
with Hua-Chuang Co., Ltd. on November 6, 2020. Hua-Chuang Co., Ltd. contributed asset with
a value of $7,542,000 as capital, and the Group contributed cash amounting to $7,850,321 as

capital. From the business combination, the Group mainly obtained the technology in progress
and construction in progress-mould equipment with total amount of $7,542,000. With the
acquisition, the Group looks forward to develop the business of electric vehicle.

B. The fair value of identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed are summarised as follows:

Foxtron Vehicle
Technologies Co., Ltd.

Purchase consideration

Cash paid $ 7,850,321
Fair value of the non-controlling interest 7,542,000
15,392,321

Recognised amount of identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed

Cash and cash equivalents 7,850,321
Property, plant and equipment 1,182,000
Intangible assets 6,360,000

Total identifiable net assets 15,392,321
Goodwill $ -

C. The fair value of the acquired identifiable tangible and intangible assets of $7,542,000 (including
electric vehicle platform, automobile power system and related developing technology, and
mould equipment). For details, refer to Notes 6(10) and 6(14).

D. FuYang Soleros Technology (Nanyang) Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Company, acquired 100%
equity interest in Shandong Chengshang Energy Co., Ltd. in the second quarter of 2020 for a
consideration of RMB275,260 thousand. The subsidiary mainly acquired property, plant and
equipment of $1,400,306 as a result of said acquisition.

E. Foxconn Precision International Limited, a subsidiary of the Company, acquired 100% equity
interest in Leapsy International Ltd. in the second quarter of 2020 for a consideration of
RMB31,068 thousand. The subsidiary mainly acquired patent of $142,697 as a result of said
acquisition.

F. Jusda Supply Chain Management International Co., Ltd., a subsidiary of the Group, acquired
100% equity interest in Guangxi Yuchai Logistics Co., Ltd. in the third quarter of 2021 for a
consideration of RMB 1 billion. The subsidiary mainly acquired property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets as a result of said acquisition.

G. Foxconn Interconnect Technology Limited, a subsidiary of the Group, acquired 100% equity
interest in Sound Legend Limited in October 2021. The subsidiary issued 175,787 thousand

ordinary shares (“the additional shares”), with a fair value of USD36,059 as consideration. The
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subsidiary mainly acquired property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as a result of said

acquisition.

(41) Supplemental cash flow information

A. Investing activities with partial cash payments

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
Purchase of property, plant and equipment $ 93,737,119 $ 65,897,393
Add: Opening balance of payable on
equipment 22,979,363 22,418,721
Less: Ending balance of payable on
equipment ( 24,349,399) ( 22,979,363)
Net exchange differences ( 71,399) 163,290
Cash paid during the year $ 92,295,684 $ 65,500,041
Disposal of property, plant and equipment $ 8,503,059 $ 6,054,328
Add: Opening balance of receivable on
equipment 170,110 220,019
Less: Ending balance of receivable on
equipment ( 902,692) ( 170,110)
Net exchange differences ( 1,375) 362
Cash received during the year $ 7,769,102 $ 6,104,599
B. Changes in liabilities from financing activities
2021
Short-term Liabilities from
notes and Short-term Long-term financing
bills payable borrowings borrowings ~ Bonds payable Lease liabilities activities-gross

At January 1 $ 39,101,893 $ 446,422,100

Changes in cash flow

§ 46,311,452 § 243,923,519 § 29,449,012 $ 805,207,976

from financing activities (  15,129,779) 99,435,408 6,618,505 21,674,438 ( 10,805,466) 101,793,106
Changes in other non-cash
items 27,003 514,500 ( 31,899) ( 118,036) 12,022,919 12,414,487
Impact of changes in
foreign exchange rate - - ( 1,368,410) (_ 2,823,241) ( 5,085,380) ( 9,277,031)
At December 31 $ 23,999,117 § 546,372,008 $ 51,529,648 § 262,656,680 §$ 25,581,085 § 910,138,538
2020
Short-term Liabilities from
notes and Short-term Long-term financing
bills payable borrowings borrowings  Bonds payable Lease liabilities activities-gross
At January 1 $ 30,528,296 § 380,866,050 $ 56,130,163 § 214,051,708 $ 28,006,381 § 709,582,598
Changes in cash flow
from financing activities 8,549,712 65,556,050 (  10,165,962) 32,722,252 ( 7,701,599) 88,960,453
Changes in other non-cash
items 23,885 - 23,600 309,994 10,558,087 10,915,566
Impact of changes in
foreign exchange rate - - 323,651 ( 3,160,435) ( 1,413,857) ( 4,250,641)
At December 31 $ 39,101,893 § 446,422,100 $ 46,311,452 §$ 243,923,519 § 29,449,012 §$§ 805,207,976
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7. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

(1) Names of related parties and relationship

Names of related parties Relationship with the Group
Sharp Corporation and subsidiaries Associate
Foxconn Technology Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries Associate
Pan International Industrial Corporation and subsidiaries Associate
Eson Precision Ind. Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries Associate
General Interface Solution Holding Limited and subsidiaries Associate
Zhen Ding Technology Holding Limited and subsidiaries Associate
Ennoconn Corporation and subsidiaries Associate
CyberTAN Technology, Inc. and subsidiaries Associate
Foxsemicon Integrated Technology Inc. and subsidiaries Associate
G-TECH Optoelectronics Corporation Associate
Advanced Optoelectronic Technology Inc. Associate
Ampower Technology Co., Ltd. Associate
Fitipower Integrated Technology Inc. and subsidiaries Associate
Zeitec Semiconductor Co., Ltd. Associate
Foxstar Technology Co., Ltd. Associate
Dawan District Semiconductor (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd. Associate
CJ Electric Systems Co., Ltd. Associate
Ampower (BeiHai) Ltd. Associate
SafeDX S.R.O. Associate
Beijing HengYu New Energy Auto Rental Co., Ltd. Associate
Hangzhou GengDe Electronics Co., Ltd. Associate
LingYanGe Semiconductor, Inc. Associate
Shenzhen Lluvia Technology Co., Ltd. Associate
Trans-Iot Technology Co., Ltd. Associate
Hongkang Zhihui Corporation Limited Associate
HaiWei Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Associate
Morgen Precision Industry Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries Associate
Zhoukou Gengde Electronics Co., Ltd. Associate
He Cheng Da Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Associate
Sichuang Cheng Gong Fu Chuang Technology Co., Ltd. Associate
Maxnerva Technology Services Ltd. and subsidiaries Associate
FuDongQun Automation Technology (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Associate
Hunan Fuyuan Intelligent Technology Co., Ltd. Associate
Henan Zhongchi Fulian Precision Technology Co., Ltd. Associate
Taiwan Intelligent Fiber Optic Network Co.,Ltd. Associate
Aurora Telecom Corporation Associate
Chongqing Yuanchuang Technology & Research Industrial Associate
Development Co.,Ltd.
Mugi Precision Industry (Shenzhen) Co., Ltd. Associate
Shenzhen Xiaohe E-Commerce Ltd. Associate
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Names of related parties Relationship with the Group

Vas Creative Co., Ltd. Associate
Shenzheng Mingteng New Material Co., Ltd. Associate
Amax Engineering Corporation Associate
Fsk L&S (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. Associate
Hebi Gengde Electronics Co., Ltd. Associate
Zettmage Solutions, Inc. Associate
Pollux Technologies, Inc. Associate
Qingdao New Core Technology Co., Ltd. Associate
Digiwin Software Co., Ltd. Associate
Shin Puu Technology Co., Ltd. Associate
Zhong Yang Technology Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries Associate
Hua-Chuang Automobile Information Technical Center Co., Ltd. Other related party
Cheng Uei Precision Industry Co., Ltd. and subsidiaries Other related party
Innolux Corporation and subsidiaries Other related party
SIO International Holdings Limited and subsidiaries Other related party
ES Platform Limited Otbher related party
(2) Significant transactions and balances with related parties
A. Sales
Years ended December 31,
2021 2020
Sales of goods:
Associates $ 142,657,033 § 150,243,473
Other related party 12,042,928 10,635,966
$ 154,699,961 § 160,879,439

The above amounts include administration and service revenue. Except for those circumstances
wherein there are no similar transactions for reference and the prices and credit periods are
negotiated by both parties, the other related party transactions are offered with prices very close
to those offered to other customers and given a payment period of 45 to 90 days. For the
transactions involving the sale of raw materials to the aforementioned related parties and
subsequent repurchase of finished goods made from the same raw materials from the same party,
the initial sale of raw materials is eliminated due to economic substance. The sales amount of
materials and repurchase price of finished goods were offset against each other and shown at net
amount in the financial statements.

B. Purchases

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
Purchase of goods:
Associates $ 85,208,868 $ 86,802,568
Other related party 8,169,830 11,999,940
$ 93,378,698 $ 98,802,508
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Except for those circumstances wherein there are no similar transactions for reference and the
prices and payment terms are negotiated by both parties, the Group purchases from the supplier
and aforementioned related parties at the prevailing market price. The payment terms given by
other vendors and related parties are 45 to 90 days and 30 to 90 days, respectively.
. Receivables from related parties

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Accounts receivable:
Associates $ 32,397,468 $ 37,132,298
Other related parties 3,071,727 2,296,652
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts ( 13,300) ( 14,786)
35,455,895 39,414,164

Other receivables - sale of property,
plant and equipment:

Associates 454,521 126,389
Other receivables - purchase of materials on
behalf of related parties:

Associates 2,149,532 1,075,843
Other related parties 2,672 50,738
Other receivables - dividend receivable:
Associates 17,432 -
Other receivables - disposal of investment:
ES Platform Limited - 5,172,696
Less: Allowance for doubtful accounts - ( 1,293,174)
2,624,157 5,132,492
$ 38,080,052 $ 44,546,656

(a) The amount is due 45 to 90 days after the transaction date.

(b) The Company disposed the preferred C stock shares without voting rights of Sharp Corporation
on December 29, 2017. The consideration for the disposal of 1,136,363 shares was
$93,128,046 (¥352,490,712 thousand), which is due in each quarter beginning from the
settlement date. As of December 31, 2021, all proceeds have been collected. As of December
31, 2020, the allowance for doubtful accounts amounted to $1,293,174. Allowance for
doubtful accounts is calculated based on historical repayment.

(c) The receivables are unsecured and non-interest bearing.

(d) Information relating to credit risk is provided in Note 12(2).
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D. Payables to related parties

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Accounts payable:
Associates $ 19,350,886 $ 24,842,288
Other related parties 1,672,094 2,837,758
21,022,980 27,680,046

Other payables - acquisition of property,

plant and equipment:

Associates 165,026 456,315
Other payables - procurement of raw

materials on behalf of others:

Associates 2,097,196 2,019,678
2,262,222 2,475,993
$ 23,285,202 $ 30,156,039

The amount is due 30 to 90 days after the transaction date. The payables are non-interest bearing.
E. Lease transactions — lessee
(a) The Group leases buildings from associates. Rental contracts are typically made for periods of
1 to 3 years. Rents are paid at the end of each month.
(b) For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group acquired right-of-use asset of
$7,968 and $803, respectively, from related parties.
(c) Lease liabilities
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Associates $ 59,349 $ 156,507
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the interest expense incurred on lease
liabilities were $5,327 and $13,682, respectively.
F. Prepayments:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
Associates $ 61,114 $ 1,686

G. Property transactions:

(a) Acquisition of property, plant and equipment:
Years ended December 31,
2021 2020

Acquisition of property, plant and
equipment:
Associates $ 815,796 $ 746,176
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(b) Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment and gain on disposal:

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
Proceeds Gain on Proceeds Gain on
from sale disposal from sale disposal
Sale of property,
plant and equipment:
Associates $ 514312 $ 63,503 § 83,684 $ 19,310
Other related parties 16,033 14,327 51,098 16,171
$ 530,345 § 77,830 § 134,782 § 35,481

(c) Disposal of financial assets:

Year ended December 31, 2020

[tem Shares Transaction Proceeds
recognised  traded target from disposal Gain on disposal
Associates Investment - Efeihu
accounted (Taiwan)
using the equity Limited
method $ 10,199 $ 44

H. Loans to related parties
(a) Receivables from related parties

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020
153,264 $ 153,282

Associates $

For collaterals, refer to Table 1.

(b) Interest income
Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
Associates $ 6,117 $ 8,374
For the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the interest was recognised at the rates of

4% and 1.8%~12%, respectively.
(3) Key management compensation

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
Salaries and other short-term employee $ 1,556,241 $ 1,099,768
benefits
Post-employment benefits 1,850 2,330
Share-based payments 868,138 941,929
$ 2,426,229 $ 2,044,027
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8. PLEDGED ASSETS
As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the book values of the Group’s pledged assets are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
Assets Nature 2021 2020
Time deposits and cash Customs deposits $ 176,938 $ 246,751
(shown as
“current financial assets
at amortised cost™)
Restricted deposits Guarantee for prepaid card, 146,545 468,414
(shown as “current performance bond, reserve
financial assets at accounts for short-term
amortised cost™) loans and security for
litigation
Time deposits and cash Security deposit for 53,352 53,352
(shown as provisional attachment,
“non-current financial bond deposit as security
assets at amortised cost”)  for court proceedings,
security deposit for
employment of foreign
employees and
customs deposits
Restricted deposits Switch center lease 57,901 1,400,641
(shown as “non-current guarantee, performance
financial assets at bond and the deposits
amortised cost™) restricted by the court
Property, plant and Long-term loans
equipment and
right-of-use assets 4,587,210 4,789,314
$ 5,021,946 $ 6,958,472

9. SIGNIFICANT CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND UNRECOGNISED CONTRACT
COMMITMENTS

Except for Note 6(4), contingencies and commitments are as follows:

(1) Contingencies - Significant legal matter

On March 8, 2019, Microsoft Corporation and Microsoft Licensing, GP sued the Group over the
dispute regarding the royalty payment under the patent licensing agreement. The two parties in the
case has reached a settlement in August 2020. Accordingly, the Group has properly accrued the

settlement value in the financial statements and paid in installments according to the agreement.
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(2) Commitments

A. Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet incurred is as follows:
December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Property, plant and
equipment $ 4267388 $ 6,191,809

B. On November 10, 2021, the Group entered into an asset purchase agreement with Lordstown
Motors Corp. and Lordstown EV Corporation, listed companies in U.S. NASDAQ. As of
December 31, 2021, the outstanding commitment under the asset purchase agreement was USD
130 million. As of the report date, the above agreement is still pending approval by the Committee
on Foreign Investment in the United States. If the transaction will not be completed by April 30,
2022 or terminated by both parties, Lordstown EV Corporation has to return all payments made
by the Group.

C. AsofDecember 31, 2021 and 2020, a subsidiary of the Company, Asia Pacific Telecom Co., Ltd.,
had outstanding contracts of equipment procurements and base transceiver stations construction
totaling $2,929,991 and $3,872,453, respectively that will be paid in the future or paid by issuing
promissory notes and commercial papers.

D. A subsidiary of the Group, Asia Pacific Telecom Co., Ltd., has entered into a 3.5GHz MOCN
contract with Far EasTone Telecommunications Co., Ltd. (FET). Details are provided in Note
6(15).

E. In order to enhance spectrum efficiency and increase competitiveness with FET, as resolved by
the Board of Directors on November 5, 2020, the Group and FET entered into (a) a MOCN
agreement on 700MHz, effective from November 5, 2020 to December 31, 2030, which the Group
and FET agreed to share the costs and expenses arising from or related to the agreement in the
proportions of two-ninth and seven-ninth, respectively; and (b) a frequency spectrum exchange
agreement wherein the Group exchanges its 723MHz~728MHz (uplink) and 778MHz~783MHz
(downlink) frequency bands with FET’s 2595MHz~2615MHz frequency bands and the exchange
value is based on the mutual agreement. The two aforementioned agreements must be approved
by the regulatory authorities before they can be executed. However, if the service on 700MHz
through MOCN is approved earlier than the frequency exchange exercise date, the frequency

exchange agreement is automatically terminated.

10. SIGNIFICANT DISASTER LOSS

None.
. SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE
1. On September 4, 2020, the Company passed the resolution of the Board of Directors to exchange

527,524,409 ordinary shares of Asia Pacific Telecom Co., Ltd. held by the Company in exchange
for approximately 81,842,616 ordinary shares issued by Far EasTone Telecommunications Co., Ltd.
After the approval by the authority, the share exchange is expected to be completed on June 30, 2022.
On February 25, 2022, the Board of Directors of the Company’s subsidiary, Asia Pacific Telecom
Co., Ltd., passed the resolution to terminate the share exchange agreement with Far EasTone

Telecommunications Co., Ltd.
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2. On February 25, 2022, the Board of Directors of the Company’s subsidiary, Asia Pacific Telecom
Co., Ltd. (Asia Pacific), resolved to merge with the FET, with FET as the surviving entity and Asia
Pacific as the dissolved entity. Under the merger, one share of common stock of FET will be issued
in exchange for 0.0934406 share of Asia Pacific based on the stockholder on record as reflected in
the Shareholder Register on the effective date of merger (tentatively set on September 30, 2022).
After the merger has been resolved at the shareholders' interim meeting and approved by the
competent authority, Asia Pacific will de-list from the Taiwan Stock Exchange, cease public offering,
and subsequently file for liquidation.

3. The appropriation of 2021 earnings was approved by the Board of Directors on March 23, 2022.
Refer to Note 6(28) for details.

12. OTHERS

(1) Capital management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to operate with
the goal to provide returns for shareholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce
the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. The Group
monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total
capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including ‘current and non-current borrowings’
as shown in the consolidated balance sheet) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated
as ‘equity’ as shown in the consolidated balance sheet less the total intangible assets.

During 2021, the Group’s strategy, which was unchanged from 2020, was to maintain the gearing
ratio at 70% or below.

(2) Financial instruments

A. Financial instruments by category
Refer to the consolidated balance sheets and Note 6 for the amounts and details of the financial
assets (financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, financial assets at amortised cost, derivative financial assets for
hedging, accounts receivable (including related parties) and other receivables) and financial
liabilities (financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, accounts payable (including
related parties), other payables, short-term loans, long-term loans and corporate bonds payable).
B. Financial risk management policies
(a) Risk categories:
The Group employs a comprehensive risk management and control system to clearly identify,
measure, and control the various kinds of financial risk it faces, including market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk, and liquidity
risk.
(b) Management objectives:

i. Except for market risk, which is controlled by outside factors, the remainder of the
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foregoing types of risks can be controlled internally or removed from business processes.
Therefore, the goal in managing each of these risks is to reduce them to zero.

ii. As for market risk, the goal is to optimize its overall position through strict analysis,
suggestion, execution and audit processes, and proper consideration of a) long-term
trends in the external economic/financial environment, b) internal operating conditions,
and c) the actual effects of market fluctuations.

iii. The Group's overall risk management policy focuses on the unpredictable item of
financial markets and seeks to reduce the risk that potentially pose adverse effects on the
Group's financial position and financial performance.

iv. For the information on the derivative financial instruments that the Group enters into,
refer to Notes 6(2) and (5).

(c) Management system:

1. Risk management is executed by the Group’s finance department by following policies
approved by the Board. Through cooperation with the Group's operating units, finance
department is responsible for identifying, evaluating and hedging financial risks.

ii. The Board has a written policy covering overall risk management. It also has written
policies covering specific issues, such as exchange rate risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
derivative and non-derivative financial instruments used, and the investment of excess
working capital.

C. Significant financial risks and degrees of financial risks
(a) Market risk
1. Foreign exchange risk
(1) Nature:

The Group is a multinational group in the Electronics manufacturing services industry.

Most of the exchange rate risk from operating activities come from:

a. Foreign exchange risk arises from different exchange rates to functional currency as
the invoice dates of accounts receivable and payable denominated in non-functional
foreign currency are different. Due to the characteristics of the subcontracting
industry, the Company’s revenue and expenditures are mostly denominated in
foreign currency. Thus, the remaining net foreign exchange risk is not material after
offsetting assets and liabilities. Furthermore, although the variations in currencies
of the Company’s certain foreign investments in emerging countries (i.e. Brazil,
Mexico, etc.) are considered huge, the percentage of the investments is not
significant and thus the Company’s foreign exchange risk can be maintained in the
controllable range. (Note: The Group has several sites in various countries and thus
is exposed to various foreign exchange risks. The main risk arises from USD and
RMB.)

b. Except for the above transactions (operating activities) recognised in the income
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statement, assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet and the net
investment in foreign operations also result in the exchange rate risk.
(i) Management:

a. For such risks, the Group has set up policies requiring companies in the Group to
manage its exchange rate risks.

b. As to the exchange rate risk arising from the difference between various functional
currencies and the reporting currency in the consolidated financial statements, it is
managed by the Group’s finance department.

(i11) The source:

a. U.S. dollar and NT dollar:

Foreign exchange risk arises primarily from U.S. dollar-denominated cash, cash
equivalents, accounts receivable and other receivables, other assets, loans, accounts
payable and other payables and other liabilities, which results in exchange loss or
gain when they are converted into New Taiwan dollars.

b. U.S. dollar and RMB:

Foreign exchange risk arises primarily from U.S. dollar-denominated cash, cash
equivalents, accounts receivable and other receivables, other assets, loans, accounts
payable and other payables and other liabilities, which results in exchange loss or
gain when they are converted into RMB.

c. JPY and U.S. dollar:

Foreign exchange risk arises primarily from yen-denominated loans, accounts
payable and other payables, which results in exchange loss or gain when they are
converted into U.S. dollar.

d. JPY and NT dollar:

Foreign exchange risk arises primarily from yen-denominated loans, accounts
payable and other payables, which results in exchange loss or gain when they are

converted into New Taiwan dollars.
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(iv) Extent

The information on assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies whose

values would be materially affected by the exchange rate fluctuations is as follows:

(Foreign currency:
Functional currency)
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD : NTD
USD : RMB
JPY :USD
JPY :NTD
Net effect in
consolidated entities

with foreign

currency
USD : NTD

Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD : NTD
USD : RMB
JPY :USD
JPY :NTD

December 31, 2021

Foreign Sensitivity analysis
currency Effect
amount  Exchange  Book value = Extent of on profit
(in thousands)  rate (NTD) variation or loss
$ 30,580,971 27.68 § 846,481,277 5% $42,324,064
9,358,668  6.3572 259,047,930 5% 12,952,397
4,135,247  0.0087 994,527 5% 49,726
5,991,131  0.2405 1,440,867 5% 72,043
$ 54,780,639 27.68 $1,516,328,088
$ 21,236,697 27.68 $§ 587,831,773 5% $29,391,589
11,587,601  6.3572 320,744,796 5% 16,037,240
8,017,565  0.0087 1,928,224 5% 96,411
67,846  0.2405 16,317 5% 816
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December 31, 2020

Foreign Sensitivity analysis
currency Effect
(Foreign currency: amount  Exchange  Book value  Extent of  on profit
Functional currency)  (in thousands)  rate (NTD) variation or loss
Financial assets
Monetary items
USD : NTD $ 24,831,785 28.48 $§ 707,209,237 5% $35,360,462
USD : RMB 21,170,183  6.5402 602,926,812 5% 30,146,341
JPY :USD 40,787,990  0.0097 11,269,722 5% 563,486
JPY :NTD 19,401,596  0.2763 5,360,661 5% 268,033
Net effect in
consolidated entities
with foreign
currency
USD : NTD $ 48,918,393 28.48 $ 1,393,195,833
Financial liabilities
Monetary items
USD : NTD $20,957,158 28.48 $§ 596,859,860 5% $29,842,993
USD : RMB 12,329,569  6.5402 351,146,125 5% 17,557,306
JPY :USD 8,459,700  0.0097 2,337,415 5% 116,871
JPY :NTD 1,329,434  0.2763 367,323 5% 18,366

(v) Total exchange gain (loss), including realised and unrealised arising from
significant foreign exchange variation on the monetary items held by the Group for
the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 amounted to a loss of $5,075,113 and
$1,670,581, respectively.

ii. Equity securities

(1) Nature

The Group primarily invests in domestic and foreign publicly traded equity

instruments, which are accounted for as financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss and financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
price of those equity instruments will be affected by the uncertainty of the future
value of the investment.
(i1) Extent

If such equity instruments’ price rise or fall by 1%, with all other factors held
constant, the impact on equity due to investments in equity instruments measured at
fair value through other comprehensive income, and investments in equity at fair
value through profit or loss are $1,153,617 and $900,878 for the years ended
December 31, 2021 and 2020, respectively.
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iil.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

(i) The Group's interest rate risk arises from long-term loans and short-term loans.
Borrowings with floating rates expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk, but
part of the risks are offset by cash and cash equivalents with variable interest rates.
Borrowings with fixed rates expose the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
Group's borrowings are mainly fixed and floating interest rates. During the years
ended December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group’s borrowings at variable rate were
mainly denominated in US Dollars and Czech Koruna.

(i1) The Group manages its cash flow interest rate risk by using fixed-to-fixed interest
rate swaps. Under these swaps, the Group agrees with other parties to exchange, at
specified intervals (mainly quarterly), the difference between fixed contract rates and
floating rate interest amounts calculated by reference to the agreed notional principal

amounts.

(b) Credit risk

1.

ii.

1il.

Credit risk refers to the risk of financial loss to the Group arising from default by the
clients or counterparties of financial instruments.
According to the Group’s credit policy, each local entity in the Group is responsible for
managing and analysing the credit risk for each of their new clients before standard
payment and delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Group assesses the credit
quality of the customers by taking into account their financial position, past experience
and other factors to conduct its internal risk management.
Individual risk limits are set based on internal or external ratings in accordance with
limits set by the board of directors. The utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored.
Major credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, derivative financial instruments
and other financial instruments. The counterparties are banks with good credit quality
and financial institutions with investment grade or above and government agencies, so
there is no significant compliance concerns and credit risk.
The Group assumes that if the contract payments were past due over 90 days based on
the terms, there has been a significant increase in credit risk on that instrument since
initial recognition; if past due over 360 days, a default has occurred.
The following indicators are used to determine whether the credit impairment of debt
instruments has occurred:

(1) It becomes probable that the issuer will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganization due to their financial difficulties;

(i1) Default or delinquency in interest or principal repayments;

(ii1)) Adverse changes in national or regional economic conditions that are expected to

cause a default.
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iv. The aging analysis of notes receivable and accounts receivable (including related parties)
is as follows:

December 31, 2021 December 31, 2020

Not past due $ 1,140,964,898 $ 932,168,658
Up to 90 days 19,830,988 10,579,283
91 to 180 days 1,761,546 652,993
181 to 270 days 235,968 476,187
271 to 360 days 58,333 232,608
Over 361 days 5,917,793 5,319,436

$ 1,168,769,526 $ 949,429,165

The above aging analysis is based on days overdue.
v. The Group applies the following approaches to assess the expected credit losses (ECLs)
of accounts receivable:
(1) Assess the ECLs on an individual basis if a significant default has occurred to certain
customers.
(i1) Classify the other customers’ accounts receivable based on the Group’s credit rating
standards and estimates the ECLs using loss rate methodology or provision matrix.
(i11) Adjust the loss rates constructed from historical and recent information by taking
into account the business cycle indicators of the National Development Council and
forecasts of the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision.
(iv) As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the individual provision for impairment of

accounts receivable using loss rate methodology or provision matrix is as follows:
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December 31, 2021

Expected loss rate
Total book value
Loss allowance

December 31, 2020

Expected loss rate
Total book value
Loss allowance

Individual Group 1 Group 2 Group 3 Group 4 Total
100% 0.0375% 0.0875% 0.01%~76.25% 0.69%~50.99%
$ 5,947,148 § 805,439,864 $ 278,018,126 $ 46,099,088 $ 33,265,300 $ 1,168,769,526
$ 5,947,148 $ 302,040 $ 243,266 $ 621,561 § 437,005 $ 7,551,020
Individual Group 1 Group 2 Group 3 Group 4 Total
100% 0.0375% 0.0875% 0.09%~37.55% 0.06%~41.63%
$ 5,338,814 § 685,428,941 § 213,283,588 $ 32,850,225 $ 12,527,597 $ 949,429,165
$ 5,338,814 § 257,036 $ 186,623 § 464,359 $ 697,939 § 6,944,771
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Group 1: Standard Poor’s, Fitch’s, or Moody’s rating of A-level, or rated as A-level in
accordance with the Group’s credit policies for those that have no external
credit ratings.

Group 2: Standard Poor’s or Fitch’s rating of BBB, Moody’s rating of Baa, or rated as
B or C in accordance with the Group’s credit policies for those that have no
external credit ratings.

Group 3: Standard Poor’s or Fitch’s rating of BB + and below, or Moody’s rating of Bal
and below.

Group 4: Rated as other than A, B, or C in accordance with the Group’s credit policies

for those that have no external credit ratings.

vi. As of December 31, 2021 and 2020, the Group calculated the expected loss rate based

on historical overdue repayment to assess other receivables - related parties impairment
losses and recognised allowance for uncollectible accounts at $0 and $1,293,174,

respectively.

vii.Movements in relation to the Group’s loss allowance for accounts receivable (including

related parties) is as follows:

2021 2020
At January 1 $ 8,237,945 $ 6,570,167
(Reversal of) provision for impairment  ( 658,060) 1,705,559
Amqunts wrltter} .Off due ( 1.356) i
to irrecoverability
Effect of foreign exchange ( 27,509) ( 37,781)
At December 31 $ 7,551,020 $ 8,237,945

(c) Liquidity risk

1.

il.

Cash flow forecasting is performed by each operating entity of the Group and aggregated
by Group treasury. The Group treasury monitors rolling forecasts of the Group’s liquidity
requirements to ensure it has sufficient cash to meet operational needs while maintaining
sufficient headroom on its undrawn committed borrowing facilities at all times so that
the Group does not breach borrowing limits or covenants (where applicable) on any of
its borrowing facilities. Such forecasting takes into consideration the Group’s debt
financing plans, covenant compliance, compliance with internal balance sheet ratio
targets and, if applicable, external regulatory or legal requirements, for example,
currency restrictions.

The table below analyses the Group’s non-derivative financial liabilities and net-settled
or gross-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date for non-
derivative financial liabilities and to the expected maturity date for derivative financial

liabilities. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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Non-derivative financial liabilities:

December 31, 2021 Less than 1 year Between | to 2 years  Between 2 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
Bonds payable $ 36,573,338  $ 13,400,000 $ 127,027,156  § 85,856,800 262,857,294
Long-term loans 2,188,870 18,254,439 27,874,047 3,267,399 51,584,755
Lease liabilities 7,364,055 6,062,151 7,899,151 8,037,240 29,362,597
$ 46,126,263 $ 37,716,590 $ 162,800,354 $ 97,161,439 343,804,646
December 31, 2020 Less than 1 year Between 1 to 2 years ~ Between 2 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
Bonds payable $ 42,288,000 $ 36,785,978 $ 92,510,640 $ 72,774,000 244,358,618
Long-term loans 14,728,908 19,678,483 8,330,826 3,596,443 46,334,660
Lease liabilities 9,058,272 7,792,086 9,880,171 5,607,047 32,337,576
$ 66,075,180 $ 64,256,547 ' $ 110,721,637 § 81,977,490 323,030,854
Aside from those mentioned above, other non-derivative financial liabilities are to be settled within one year.
Derivative financial liabilities:
December 31, 2021 Less than 1 year Between 1 to 2 years  Between 2 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
Forward exchange contracts $ 489,575 $ -3 - - 489,575
Cross currency swap contracts 474,440 - - - 474,440
$ 964,015 $ - 8 - - 964,015
December 31, 2020 Less than 1 year Between 1 to 2 years  Between 2 to 5 years Over 5 years Total
Forward exchange contracts $ 170,003 $ - 8 - - 170,003
Cross currency swap contracts 2,121,218 - - - 2,121,218
$ 2,291,221  § - 3 - - 2,291,221
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(3) Fair value information

A. The different levels that the inputs to valuation techniques are used to measure fair value of
financial and non-financial instruments have been defined as follows:

Level 1: Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
entity can access at the measurement date. A market is regarded as active where a
market in which transactions for the asset or liability take place with sufficient
frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis. The fair
value of the Group’s investment in listed stocks is included in Level 1.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly or indirectly. The fair value of the Group’s investment in
derivative instruments is included in Level 2.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs for the asset or liability. The fair value of the Group’s equity
investment without active market is included in Level 3.

B. Fair value information of investment property at cost is provided in Note 6(13).
C. Financial instruments not measured at fair value:

(a) Except for those listed in the table below, the carrying amounts of the Group’s financial
instruments not measured at fair value (including cash and cash equivalents, notes and
accounts receivable, other receivables, financial assets at amortised cost (excluding bank
debentures), short-term loans, notes and accounts payable, other payables and long-term
loans approximate to their fair values:

December 31, 2021

Fair Value
Book Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial liabilities:
Bonds payable $§ 262,857,294 § - $ 255,993,200 $ -
December 31, 2020
Fair Value
Book Value Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial liabilities:
Bonds payable  $ 244,358,618 § - $ 241,667,699 $ -

(b) The methods and assumptions of fair value measurement are as follows:
Bonds payable: Regarding the bonds issued by the Group, the coupon rate approximates to
the current market rate. Therefore, the fair value is estimated using the present value of the
expected cash flows and market interest rate.
D. The related information on financial and non-financial instruments measured at fair value by

level on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assets and liabilities at December
31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:
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(a) The related information on the nature of the assets and liabilities is as follows:

December 31, 2021

Level 1

Level 2

Level 3 Total

Assets:

Recurring fair value
measurements

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss
Equity instruments
Beneficiary certificates
Derivatives

Derivative financial assets
for hedging

Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
Equity instruments
Debt instruments
Accounts receivable

expected factoring

Total

Liabilities:

Recurring fair value
measurements

Financial liabilities at fair
value through profit or loss
Derivatives

$ 2,390,890
692,411

88,073,459

$ -
18
2,353,326

1,068,785

3,932,646

97,923,986

$ 295,616 § 2,686,506
84,082,306 84,774,735
- 2,353,326

1,068,785

20,669,078 112,675,183
174,164 174,164

97,923,986

$ 91,156,760

$ 105,278,761

$105,221,164 $301,656,685

$ - (8 2,291,221) $ - ($ 2,291,221)
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December 31, 2020

Level 1 Level 2

Level 3 Total

Assets:

Recurring fair value
measurements

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss
Equity instruments
Beneficiary certificates
Derivatives
Financial assets at fair value
through other comprehensive
income
Equity instruments
Debt instruments
Accounts receivable
expected factoring
Total

Liabilities:

$

1,754,913 $ - 3
535,149 15
- 6,800,300

65,599,401 -

- 109,052,508

1,433,017 $ 3,187,930
79,443,386 79,978,550
- 6,800,300

21,300,504
174,184

86,899,905
174,184

- 109,052,508

$ 67,889,463

$115,852,823

$102,351,091

$ 286,093,377

Recurring fair value

measurements
Financial liabilities at fair

value through profit or loss

Derivatives $

- (8 2,291,221) § - ($ 2,291,221)

(b) The methods and assumptions the Group used to measure fair value are as follows:

1.

il.

1il.

The instruments the Group used market quoted prices as their fair values (that is, Level 1)
are listed below by characteristics:

Listed shares Open-end fund

Market quoted price Closing price Net asset value
Except for financial instruments with active markets, the fair value of other financial
instruments is measured by using valuation techniques or by reference to counterparty
quotes. The fair value of financial instruments measured by using valuation techniques
method can be referred to current fair value of instruments with similar terms and
characteristics in substance, discounted cash flow method or other valuation methods,
including calculated by applying model using market information available at the
consolidated balance sheet date.

When assessing non-standard and low-complexity financial instruments, for example, debt
instruments without active market, interest rate swap contracts, foreign exchange swap
contracts and options, the Group adopts valuation technique that is widely used by market

participants. The inputs used in the valuation method to measure these financial
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instruments are normally observable in the market.

iv. The valuation of derivative financial instruments is based on valuation model widely
accepted by market participants, such as present value techniques and option pricing
models. Forward exchange contracts are usually valued based on the current forward
exchange rate (Black-Scholes model).

v. The output of valuation model is an estimated value and the valuation technique may not
be able to capture all relevant factors of the Group’s financial and non-financial
instruments. Therefore, the estimated value derived using valuation model is adjusted
accordingly with additional inputs, for example, model risk or liquidity risk and etc. In
accordance with the Group’s management policies and relevant control procedures relating
to the valuation models used for fair value measurement, management believes adjustment
to valuation is necessary in order to reasonably represent the fair value of financial and
non-financial instruments at the consolidated balance sheet. The inputs and pricing
information used during valuation are carefully assessed and adjusted based on current
market conditions.

vi. The Group takes into account adjustments for credit risks to measure the fair value of
financial and non-financial instruments to reflect credit risk of the counterparty and the
Group’s credit quality.

E. For the year ended December 31, 2021, the shares of Vizio Holding Corporation held by the
Group were transferred from Level 2 to Level 1 as the lock-up period of the shares ended in the
third quarter. For the year ended December 31, 2020, there was no transfer between Level 1 and
Level 2.

F. The following chart is the movement of Level 3 for the years ended December 31, 2021 and
2020:

2021 2020

At January 1 $ 102,351,091 §$ 87,127,295
Gains recognised in profit 2,156,364 8,074,864
Gains and losses recognised in other

comprehensive income 1,904,468 ( 353,766)
Acquired during the year 16,125,726 17,915,754
Sold during the year ( 840,448) ( 8,629,617)
Investment cost refund ( 8,076,434) -
Transfer (out) in to Level 3 ( 5,487,105) 1,861,689
Effect of exchange rate changes ( 2,912,498) ( 3,645,128)
At December 31 $ 105,221,164 $ 102,351,091

G. Investment segment is in charge of valuation procedures for fair value measurements being
categorised within Level 3, which is to verify independent fair value of financial instruments.
Such assessment is to ensure the valuation results are reasonable by applying independent

information to make results close to current market conditions, confirming the resource of

-260-



information is independent, reliable and in line with other resources and represented as the
exercisable price, and frequently calibrating valuation model, performing back-testing, updating
inputs used to the valuation model and making any other necessary adjustments to the fair value.
Investment segment sets up valuation policies, valuation processes and rules for measuring fair
value of financial instruments and ensures compliance with the related requirements in IFRS.

. The following is the qualitative information of significant unobservable inputs and sensitivity
analysis of changes in significant unobservable inputs to valuation model used in Level 3 fair

value measurement:

Fair value
at December 31,  Valuation Significant Range (weighted Relationship of inputs
2021 technique  unobservable input average) to fair value
Non-derivative equity instrument:
Unlisted $ 929,467 Market Revenue multiple 0.48~16.69  The higher the revenue
shares comparable (2.32) multiple, net value
companies  Net value multiple 1.29~23.46  multiple amd value to
(5.16) NIAT multiple, the
Discount for lack 17%~34%  higher the fair value;
of marketability (22.67%) the higher the discount
Value to NIAT 0.99~1028 forlackof
multiple (5.06) marketability, the
lower the fair value.
$ 4,256,131 Stock value = Weighted average 12.15% The higher the
~ incomplex cost of capital long-term revenue
capital growth rate, long-term
structure Long-term revenue 26% pre-tax operating
growth rate margin, revenue
Long-term pre-tax 31.33% multiple and expected
operating margin equity value volatility,
Discount for lack 20%~34% the higher the fair
of marketability (23.57%)  value; the higher the
Discount for lack 19.22% discount for lack of
of control marketability, discount
Expected equity ~ 28.20%~76.07% for lack of control and
value volatility (44.45%) welgh‘Fed average cost
Revenue multiple 0.95~11.27 of capltal, the lower
(5.05) the fair value.
S 8797280 Net assets Discount for lack 13%~32%  The higher the
——————  value of marketability (15.36%) discount for lack of
Discount for lack 5% marketability and
of control discount for lack of

control, the lower the
fair value.
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Unlisted
shares

Venture
capital
shares and
private
equity fund
investment

Fair value

Relationship

Non-derivative debt instrument:

Financial bond $

Non-derivative equity instrument:

Unlisted
shares

at December 31,  Valuation Significant Range (weighted of inputs to
2021 technique  unobservable input average) fair value
$ 6,981,816 Recent Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
~ non-active
market
price
$ 40,099,988 Net assets Discount for lack 10%~30% The higher the
value of marketability (15.90%) discount for lack of
marketability, the
lower the fair value.
$ 42,744,120 Stock value  Discount for lack 5% The higher volatility
in complex of marketability in expected equity
capital value, the higher the
structure fair value; the higher
Expected equity 26.64% the discount.ff)r lack
value volatility of marketability, the
lower the fair value.
$ 1,238,198 Recent Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
~ non-active
market
price
174,164 Recent Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
~ non-active
market
price
Fair value at Relationship
December 31, Valuation Significant Range (weighted of inputs to
2020 technique  unobservable input average) fair value
S 874.328 Market Revenue multiple 0.24~20.86  The higher the revenue
—— comparable (12.88) multiple, profit after
companies  Profit after tax 18.07 tax, net value multiple
multiple and value to EBIT
Net value multiple 1.43~1.88  multiple, the higher
(1.88) the fair value; the
Discount for lack 20%~35%  higher the discount for
of marketability (26.09%) lack of marketability,
Value to EBIT 1.89~14.32  the lower the fair
multiple (14.32) value.
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Unlisted
shares

Venture
capital
shares and
private
equity fund
investment

Fair value at

Relationship

non-active
market
price

$ 26,107,499 Net assets

value

Discount for lack
of marketability

Discount for lack
of control
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9.46%~14.74%
(11.79%)

6.57%~19.95%
(9.26%)

December 31, Valuation Significant Range (weighted of inputs to
2020 technique  unobservable input average) fair value
$ 8,021,999 Stock value  Weighted average 14.18%~ The higher the
in complex cost of capital 27.28% long-term revenue
capital (18.06%) growth rate, long-term
structure Long-term revenue 2% pre-tax operating
growth rate margin, value to EBIT
Itiple and
Long-term pre-tax 25.04%~ u ¥p ¢ and revenue
. . multiple, expected
operating margin 65.96% . e
equity value volatility,
(33.76%) the hicher the fai
Discount for lack 10%~20% e; 1g }fr b eh alrh
of marketability (15.10%) V? ue; the higher the
. discount for lack of
Discount for lack 10%~15% . .
¢ control (10.39%) marketability, discount
ot co ) ) . ? for lack of control and
Expected eql'n'ty 39.11 /‘; - weighted average cost
value volatility 1 15.070A) of capital, the lower
] (51.76%) the fair value.
Revenue multiple 0.24~31.81
(4.00)
Value to EBIT 7.08
multiple
$ 6,047,203 Net assets Discount for lack 9.46%~25%  The higher the
value of marketability (9.52%) discount for lack of
Discount for lack 5%~15%  marketability and
of control (9.26%) discount for lack of
control, the lower the
fair value.
$ 7,789,991 Recent Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable

The higher the
discount for lack of
marketability, discount
for lack of control, the
lower the fair value.



Fair value at Relationship

December 31, Valuation Significant Range (weighted of inputs to
2020 technique  unobservable input average) fair value
Venture $ 47,528,449 Stock value  Discount for lack 5% The higher the discount
capital in complex of marketability for lack of
shares and capital marketability, the
private structure lower the fair value.
equity fund
investment
Expected equity 21.88% The higher the
value volatility expected equity value

volatility, the higher
the fair value.

$ 5,807,438 Recent Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
~ non-active
market
price
Non-derivative debt instrument:
Financial bond $ 174,184 Recent Not applicable Not applicable Not applicable
~ non-active
market
price

The Group has carefully assessed the valuation models and assumptions used to measure fair
value. However, use of different valuation models or assumptions may result in different
measurement. The following is the effect on profit or loss or on other comprehensive income
from financial assets and liabilities categorised within Level 3 if the inputs used to valuation
models have changed:

December 31, 2021
Recognised in Recognised in other

profit or loss comprehensive income

Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable

Input Change change change change change
Financial
assets
Equity Discount for

instrument lack of
and control and

beneficiary marketability
cereificates +1% § 926,340 (§ 926,340) $§ 173,430 ($ 173,430)
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December 31, 2020
Recognised in Recognised in other

profit or loss comprehensive income

Favourable Unfavourable Favourable Unfavourable

Input Change  change change change change

Financial
assets

Equity Discount for

instrument lack of

and control and

beneficiary marketability

coretficate £1% $ 811,840 ($ 811,869) $ 168,231 ($ 164,527)

(4) Other matters
In response to the COVID-19 pandemic, the Company and subsidiaries have adopted relevant
preventive measures imposed by the government. The pandemic had no significant impact on the
Group's operations and business in 2021.
13. SUPPLEMENTARY DISCLOSURES

(1) Significant transactions information
A. Loans to others: Please refer to table 1.

B. Provision of endorsements and guarantees to others: Please refer to table 2.

C. Holding of marketable securities at the end of the period (not including subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures): Please refer to table 3.

D. Acquisition or sale of the same security with the accumulated cost reaching NT$300 million or
20% of paid-in capital or more: Please refer to table 4.

E. Acquisition of real estate reaching NT$300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: Please refer
to table 5.

F. Disposal of real estate reaching NT$300 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more: Please refer
to table 6.

G. Purchases or sales of goods from or to related parties reaching NT$100 million or 20% of paid-
in capital or more: Please refer to table 7.

H. Receivables from related parties reaching NT$100 million or 20% of paid-in capital or more:
Please refer to table 8.

I. Trading in derivative instruments undertaken during the reporting periods: Please refer to Note
6(2) and (5).

J. Significant inter-company transactions during the reporting periods: Please refer to table 9.

(2) Information on investees

Names, locations and other information of investee companies (not including investees in Mainland
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China): Please refer to table 10.

(3) Information on investments in Mainland China

A. Basic information: Please refer to table 11.

B. Significant transactions, either directly or indirectly through a third area, with investee companies
in the Mainland Area: The Company appointed Foxconn (Far East) Limited’s Mainland investee
to render processing services and to trade. The transactions were eliminated in the consolidated
financial statements. For significant transactions of processing services, trading, receivables and
payables, endorsements and guarantees or collaterals provided, and financing, please refer to
Note 13(1) A, B, G and H.

(4) Major shareholders

For the names, number and ratio of shares held by shareholders holding over 5% of the Company’s

shares: Please refer to Table 13.
14. SEGMENT INFORMATION

(1) General information

The Group has adopted eCMMS (E-enabled Components, Modules, Moves & Services) strategy,
and provided a one-stop shop to its customers, which are primarily in the 3C industries, with a total
solution for design, development, engineering, procurement, manufacturing, logistics and after-sales
service.

The Group segregates group systems from both a customer service and product perspective.
Operating segments are classified and each segment’s performance is assessed based on the
operating results of different group systems in the consolidated financial statements reported for
review by the chief operating decision maker. There were changes in the composition of the
reportable segments as the chief operating decision maker changed the classification of operating
segments for reviewing segment performance. The Group has restated the prior period
corresponding information for comparison.

(2) Measurement of segment information

The chief operating decision maker assesses performance and allocates resources of the operating
segments based on each operating segment’s revenue and operating income after adjusting the
internal costs and allocated expenses. Except for the recognition of internal costs which shall be in
accordance with the Group’s related internal calculation basis, the operating segments’ accounting
policies are the same as disclosed in Note 4.

In accordance with IFRS No. 8, “Operating Segments”, the Group has determined the operating
segments and reportable operating segments. Operating segments which have met certain
quantitative threshold are disclosed individually or aggregately as reportable operating segments
depending on whether the segments have similar economic characteristics and the aggregation meets
the core principal of the standard; other segments which have not met the quantitative threshold are

included in ‘all other segments’. When deciding on an aggregate disclosure, the criteria for
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consideration include: (1) the nature of the products and services; (2) the nature of the production
process; (3) the customer types or categories of the products or services; and (4) the methods used
to distribute its products or provide its services. The Group has identified the Hon Hai parent group,

FII subgroup and FIH subgroup as reportable segments.
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(3) Segment information

A. The segment reports reported to the chief operating decision maker for making operating decisions for each segment is measured in a manner
consistent with that in the statement of comprehensive income. Thus, the reconciliation is not required.

B. The segment information provided to the chief operating decision maker for the reportable segments is as follows:

2021 (in millions) Hon Hai parent group FII subgroup  FIH subgroup Others Number of write-offs  Consolidation
External revenue $ 4,279,459 § 1,892,259 § 203,403 $ 125,960 ($ 506,907) § 5,994,174
Internal revenue 78,555 14,518 47,046 15,243 ( 155,362) -
Operating revenue 4,358,014 1,906,777 250,449 141,203 ( 662,269) 5,994,174
Depreciation and amortisation 52,061 10,929 5,304 7,187 - 75,481
Segment operating income (loss) 57,616 89,118 39 ( 1,446) 3,632 148,959
2020 (in millions) Hon Hai parent group  FII subgroup  FIH subgroup Others Number of write-offs  Consolidation
External revenue $ 3,596,459 § 1,828,985 $ 233,800 $ 131,400 ($ 432,621) $§ 5,358,023
Internal revenue 76,971 17,867 41,042 15,999 ( 151,879) -
Operating revenue 3,673,430 1,846,852 274,842 147,399 ( 584,500) 5,358,023
Depreciation and amortisation 41,019 10,417 5,800 7,878 - 65,114
Segment operating income (loss) 27,615 79,800 ( 3,936) ( 721) 8,069 110,827

The descriptions for the above group systems are as follows:

Hon Hai parent group: It includes the Company and subsidiaries except for the subsidiaries included in the following subgroups.

FII subgroup: It includes Foxconn Industrial Internet Co., Ltd. (a listed company in the Shanghai Stock Exchange) and its consolidated subsidiaries.
FIH subgroup: It includes FIH Mobile Limited (a listed company in the Hong Kong Exchange) and its consolidated subsidiaries.

Others: In includes other listed subsidiaries and its subsidiaries.
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(4) Information on product types

Information on revenue from external customers by product types for the years ended December 31,

2021 and 2020 is as follows:

Smart Consumer Electronics
Cloud and Networking Products
Computing Products
Components and Others

2021 2020
(Revenue in millions) (Revenue in millions)
$ 3,256,733  $ 2,594,513
1,273,788 1,303,166
1,117,925 1,144,080
345,728 316,264
$ 5,994,174 § 5,358,023

The product categories are classified based on the types of products from which each operating

segment drives it external revenue. The descriptions of product types are as follows:

Product

Definition

Smart Consumer Electronics
Cloud and Networking Products
Computing Products
Components and Others

(5) Geographical information

Smartphones, TVs, Game Consoles, etc.
Servers, communication network, etc.
Computers, tablets, etc.

Connectors, mechanical parts, services, etc.

Geographical information for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

Year ended December 31, 2021

Year ended December 31, 2020

Non-current Non-current
Revenue assets Revenue assets
U.S.A $ 2,036,574,847 $ 40,983,793 $ 1,731,206,941 $ 23,037,241
Ireland 1,983,265,627 14,372 1,689,433,499 1,612
China 472,287,796 247,951,718 509,164,254 264,875,861
Singapore 409,347,588 1,436,291 370,084,875 43,967
Japan 277,804,060 361,399 223,293,804 403,507
Taiwan 138,678,573 68,019,003 137,320,445 52,808,106
Others 676,215,391 76,007,876 697,519,247 63,768,396

$ 5,994,173,882 $

434,774,452  § 5,358,023,065 § 404,938,690

(6) Major customer information

Major customer information for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

Client E

Years ended December 31,

2021 2020
Revenue (in millions) Revenue (in millions)
$ 3,418,003 § 2,891,396
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Hon Hai Precision Industry Co., Ltd. and Subsidiaries
Loans to others

December 31,2021

Table 1 Expressed in thousands of TWD
(Except as otherwise indicated)
Maximum outstanding Amount of ~ Reason  Allowance Collateral
General Isa balance during Balance at transactions  for short- for Limit on loans
ledger related the year ended December 31, Actual amount  Interest ~Nature of  with the term doubtful granted to Ceiling on
No. Creditor Borrower account party  December 31,2021 2021 drawndown  rate (%)  loan borrower  financing  accounts Ttem Value asingle party _total loans granted _Footnote

0 Hon Hai Precision Hyield Venture Other Y $ 5,000,000 $ 5,000,000 $ - N/A 2 N - Business $ - None N $  138,045731 § 552,182,924 Note |
Industry Co., Ltd. ~ Capital Co., Ltd. Receivables operation

1 Hyield Venture Jusda International ~ Other Y 60,000 - - N/A 2 - Business - None 2,834,362 11,337,448 Note 2
Capital Co., Ltd.  Logistics (Taiwan) Receivables operation

Co., Ltd.

1 Hyield Venture Linkooh Other Y 10,000 - - N/A 2 - Business - None 2,834,362 11,337,448 Note 2
Capital Co.,Ltd. ~ Technology Inc. Receivables operation

1 Hyield Venture Foxnum Other Y 267,000 - - N/A 2 - Business - None 2,834,362 11,337,448 Note 2
Capital Co., Ltd. ~ Technology Co.,  Receivables operation

Ltd.

2 Bon Shin Altus Technology ~ Other Y 220,000 220,000 220,000 2.00 2 - 